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KENYA URBAN ROADS AUTHORITY
P.O.BOX 41727~00100
NAIROBI, KENYA

ATHI RIVER/MAVOKO ROADS - PACKAGE 4
PBC & ROUTINE MAINTENANCE OF ATHI RIVER/MAVOKO ROADS (SYOKIMAU)-~ LOT 11

KURA/RMLF/LE/142/2025-2026

TENDER DOCUMENTS FOR PROCUREMENT OF PERFORMANCE-~ BASED CONTRACTS (ROAD
MAINTENANCE WORKS)

1) NAME AND CONTACT ADDRESSES OF PROCURING ENTITY
Name: KENYA URBAN ROADS AUTHORITY
Address: P.O. BOX 41727 ~- 00100 NAIROBI

Email address: info@kura.go.ke.

2) Invitation to Tender (ITT) No. KURA/RMLF/LE/142/2025-~2026.

3) Tender Name: ATHI RIVER/MAVOKO ROADS ~ PACKAGE 4
PBC & ROUTINE MAINTENANCE OF ATHI RIVER/MAVOKO ROADS (SYOKIMAU)-~ LOT 11

Tender No. KURA/RMLF/LE/142/2025-2026 Issued by Kenya Urban Roads Authority vii|Page


mailto:info@kura.go.ke

INVITATION TO TENDER
PROCURING ENTITY: KENYA URBAN ROADS AUTHORITY, P.O. BOX 41727 00100 NAIROBI

TENDER NAME AND DESCRIPTION: ATHI RIVER/MAVOKO ROADS - PACKAGE 4 : PBC & ROUTINE
MAINTENANCE OF ATHI RIVER/MAVOKO ROADS (SYOKIMAU)-~ LOT 11

L

10.

11.

The Kenya Urban Roads Authority invites sealed tenders for the construction and maintenance of
ATHI RIVER/MAVOKO ROADS -~ PACKAGE 4 : PBC & ROUTINE MAINTENANCE OF ATHI
RIVER/MAVOKO ROADS (SYOKIMAU)- LOT 11 for a period of Four (4) months.

Tendering will be conducted under National open competitive method using a standardized tender

document. Tendering is open to all qualified and interested Tenderers in the category specified in the
tender Notice.

Qualified and interested tenderers may obtain further information and inspect the Tender Documents
during office hours [i.e. 0800 to 1700 hours] at the address given below.

A complete set of tender documents may be purchased or obtained by interested tenders upon
payment of a non- refundable fees of Kenya shillings One Thousand (1000) in cash or Banker's
Cheque and payable to the address given below. Tender documents may be obtained electronically
from the Website(s)_ www.kura.go.ke or www.tenders.go.ke . Tender documents obtained
electronically will be free of charge.

Tender documents may be viewed and downloaded for free from the website www.kura.go.ke or
www.tenders.go.ke). Tenderers who download the tender document must forward their particulars
immediately to (insert email, telephone and postal address) to facilitate any further clarification or
addendum.

All Tenders must be accompanied by a BID SECURITY IN THE FORM OF UNCONDITIONAL BANK
GUARANTEE ISSUED BY BANKS REGULATED BY THE CENTRAL BANK OF KENYA (Amount
Specified in the TDS) or Tender Securing Declaration form dully filled.

The Tenderer SHALL chronologically and sequentially serialize all pages of the tender documents submitted
in the numerical format i.e. 1,2,3,4..... including the cover page and all other pages and attachments.

Completed tenders must be delivered to the address below on or before as indicated in the Tender
Notice. Electronic Tenders will not be permitted.

Tenders will be closed on as indicated in the Tender Notice. Tenders will be opened immediately
thereafter in the Regional office boardroom in the presence of tenderers or their representatives who
choose to attend.

Late tenders will be rejected.

The addresses referred to above are:
DIRECTOR GENERAL,
KENYA URBAN ROADS AUTHORITY,
P.O. BOX 41727-00100, NAIROBI, BARABARA PLAZA OFF MAZAO ROAD, 4™ FLOOR,,
BLOCK D
info@kura.go.ke

A.  Address for obtaining further information
KENYA URBAN ROADS AUTHORITY
SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT OFFICE
BARABARA PLAZA OFF AIRPORT SOUTH ROAD MAZAO ROAD, GROUND FLOOR;
BLOCK D
P.O. BOX 41727-00100, NAIROBI
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DEPUTY DIRECTOR (SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT),
+254717105233, supplychain@kura.go.ke

B.  Address for purchasing tender documents

KENYA URBAN ROADS AUTHORITY
LOWER EASTERN REGIONAL OFFICE, PUBLIC WORKS OFFICES
P.O. BOX 2605~90100,
MACHAKOS.

C. Address for Submission of Tenders.
1) Name of Procuring Entity: KENYA URBAN ROADS AUTHORITY

2) PostalAddress:  Deputy Director (URC) Lower Eastern Region,
P.O. BOX 2605-90100,
MACHAKOS

3) Physical address Lower Eastern Regional Office, Off Machakos ~ Nairobi Road,
Machakos Town

D.  Address for Opening of Tenders.
i. Name of Procuring Entity: KENYA URBAN ROADS AUTHORITY

ii. Physicaladdress: Lower Eastern Regional Office, Off Machakos ~ Nairobi Road,
Machakos Town

Name: ENG. SILAS M. KINOT]

Designation: DIRECTOR GENERAL YENYA URBAN ROADS
AUTHORITY (KURA)
P O. Box 41727 - 00100
S NAIRQSI

-, '

Date: 3" October 2025

Signature

~
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PART 1 — TENDERING PROCEDURES
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SECTION I ~ INSTRUCTIONS TO TENDERERS
A. General
L. Scope of Tender

1.1 The Procuring Entity, as indicated in the TDS, issues this tendering document for the procurement
of Works and Services as listed below for the award of a Performance-based Road Contract. The
name, identification, and number of lots (contracts) of this ITT are specified in the TDS. The Works
and Services under the Performance- based Contract will cover the Roads indicated in the TDS
and will consist of:

a) Maintenance Services or “Services” consisting of all interventions on the Roads which are
to be carried out by the contractor in order to achieve and keep the Road performance
stand defined by the Service Level included in Section VII, Specifications for Works and
Services of this tendering document, and all activities related to the management and
evaluation of the road network under contract;

b) Rehabilitation Works, when requested in the TDS for the sections of the Road(s) indicated
in the TDS, consisting of specific types of civil works described in the Specifications;

¢) Improvement Works, when requested in the TDS, consisting of a set of specific
interventions indicated in the Specifications to add new characteristics to the Roads in
response to existing or new traffic and safety or other considerations;

d) Works consisting of activities needed to reinstate the Roads and reconstruct their structure
or their right of way which has been damaged as a result of natural phenomena with
imponderable consequences, such as strong storms, flooding, and earthquakes.

2 Interpretations
Throughout this tendering document:

The term “in writing” means communicated in written form (e.g. by mail, e-mail, and fax,
including if specified in the TDS, distributed or received through electronic-procurement
system used by the Procuring Entity) with proof of receipt;

if the context so requires, “singular” means “plural’ and vice versa; and “Day” means calendar
day, unless otherwise specified as a “Business Day.” A Business Day is any day that is a working
day of the Procuring Entity. It excludes the Procuring Entity's official public holidays.

3.  Fraud and Corruption

3.1 The Procuring Entity requires compliance with the provisions of the Public Procurement and
Asset Disposal Act, 2015, Section 62 “Declaration not to engage in corruption”. The tender
submitted by a person shall include a declaration that the person shall not engage in any
corrupt or fraudulent practice and a declaration that the person or his or her sub-contractors
are not debarred from participating in public procurement proceedings.

3.2 The Procuring Entity requires compliance with the provisions of the Competition Act 2010,
regarding collusive practices in contracting. Any tenderer found to have engaged in collusive
conduct shall be disqualified and criminal and/or civil sanctions may be imposed. To this
effect, Tenders shall be required to complete and sign the “Certificate of Independent Tender
Determination” annexed to the Form of Tender.

3.3 Unfair Competitive Advantage-Fairness and transparency in the tender process require that
the firms or their Affiliates competing for a specific assignment do not derive a competitive
advantage from having provided consulting services related to this tender. To that end, the
Procuring Entity shall indicate in the Data Sheet and make available to all the firms together
with this tender document all information that would in that respect give such firm any unfair
competitive advantage over competing firms.
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3.4 Tenderers shall permit and shall cause their agents (Where declared or not), subcontractors,
sub consultants, service providers, suppliers, and their personnel, to permit the Procuring
Entity to inspect all accounts, records and other documents relating to any initial selection
process, prequalification process, tender submission, proposal submission, and contract
performance (in the case of award), and to have them audited by auditors appointed by the
Procuring Entity.

4. Eligible Tenderers

4.1 ATenderer may be a firm that is a private entity, a state-owned enterprise or institution subject
to ITT 4.6 or any combination of such entities in the form of a joint venture (JV) under an
existing agreement or with the intent to enter into such an agreement supported by a Form of
intent. In the case of a joint venture, all members shall be jointly and severally liable for the
execution of the entire Contract in accordance with the Contract terms. The JV shall nominate
a Representative who shall have the authority to conduct all business for and on behalf of any
and all the members of the JV during the Tendering process and, in the event the JV is awarded
the Contract, during contract execution. Members of a joint venture may not also make an
individual tender, be a subcontractor in a separate tender or be part of another joint venture

for the purposes of the same Tender. The maximum number of JV members shall be specified
in the TDS.

4.2 Public Officers of the Procuring Entity, their Spouses, Child, Parent, Brothers or Sister. Child,
Parent, Brother or Sister of a Spouse, their business associates or agents and
firms/organizations in which they have a substantial or controlling interest shall not be
eligible to tender or be awarded a contract. Public Officers with such relatives are also not
allowed to participate in any procurement proceedings.

4.3 A Tenderer shall not have a conflict of interest. Any Tenderer found to have a conflict of

interest shall be disqualified. A Tenderer may be considered to have a conflict of interest for
the purpose of this Tendering process, if the Tenderer:

a) Directly or indirectly controls, is controlled by or is under common control with another
Tenderer; or

b) Receives or has received any direct or indirect subsidy from another Tenderer; or
¢) Has the same legal representative as another Tenderer; or

d) Has a relationship with another Tenderer, directly or through common third parties, that
puts it in a position to influence the Tender of another Tenderer, or influence the decisions
of the Procuring Entity regarding this Tendering process; or

e) Or any of its affiliates participated as a consultant in the preparation of the design or
technical specifications of the works that are the subject of the Tender; or

f) Or any of its affiliates has been hired (or is proposed to be hired) by the Procuring Entity
or Procuring Entity as Engineer for the Contract implementation; or

g) would be providing goods, works, or non-consulting services resulting from or directly
related to consulting services for the preparation or implementation of the project
specified in the TDS ITT 2.1 that it provided or were provided by any affiliate that directly
or indirectly controls, is controlled by, or is under common control with that firm; or

h) has a close business or family relationship with a professional staff of the Procuring Entity, who:

i) are directly or indirectly involved in the preparation of the tendering document or
specifications of the Contract, and/or the Tender evaluation process of such Contract;
or

ii) would be involved in the implementation or supervision of such contract unless the
conflict stemming from such relationship has been resolved in a manner acceptable
to the Procuring Entity throughout the Tendering process and execution of the
Contract.

4.4 A firm that is a Tenderer (either individually or as a JV member) shall not participate in more
than one Tender, except for permitted alternative Tenders. This includes participation as a
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subcontractor in other Tenders. Such participation shall result in the disqualification of all
Tenders in which the firm is involved. A firm that is not a Tenderer or a JV member may
participate as a subcontractor in more than one Tender.

4.5 A Tenderer may have the nationality of any country, subject to the restrictions pursuant to ITT
4.9. A Tenderer shall be deemed to have the nationality of a country if the Tenderer is
constituted, incorporated or registered in and operates in conformity with the provisions of the
laws of that country, as evidenced by its articles of incorporation (or equivalent documents of
constitution or association) and its registration documents, as the case maybe. This criterion also
shall apply to the determination of the nationality of proposed subcontractors or sub-consultants
for any part of the Contract including related Services.

4.6 Tenderer that has been debarred from participating in public procurement shall be ineligible to
be prequalified for a tender or be awarded a contract. The list of debarred firms and individuals
is available from the website of PPRA www.ppra.go.ke or email complaints@ppra.go.ke.

4.7 Tenderers that are state-owned enterprises or institutions in Kenya may be eligible to compete
and be awarded a Contract(s) only if they can establish that they (i) are legally and financially
autonomous (ii) operate under commercial law, and (iii) are not under supervision of the
Procuring Entity.

4.8 Tenderer shall not be under suspension from Tendering by the Procuring Entity as the result
of the operation of a Tender-Securing or Proposal-Securing Declaration.

4.9 Firms and individuals may be ineligible if so indicated in Section V and (a) as a matter of law
or official regulations, if Kenya prohibits commercial relations with that country, or (b) by an
act of compliance with a decision of the United Nations Security Council taken under Chapter
VII of the Charter of the United Nations, Kenya prohibits any import of goods or contracting
of works or services from that country, or any payments to any country, person, or entity in
that country.

4.10 Foreign tenderers are required to source at least forty (40%) percent of their contract inputs
(in supplies, subcontracts and labor) from national suppliers and contractors. To this end, a
foreign tenderer shall provide in its tender documentary evidence that this requirement is met.
Foreign tenderers not meeting this criterion will be automatically disqualified. Information
required to enable the Procuring Entity determine if this condition is met shall be provided in
for this purpose is be provided in “SECTION III -~ EVALUATION AND QUALIFICATION
CRITERIA, Item 9”.

4.11 Pursuant to the eligibility requirements of ITT 4.10, a tender is considered a foreign tenderer,
if the tenderer is not registered in Kenya or if the tenderer is registered in Kenya and has less
than 51 percent ownership by Kenyan citizens. JVs are considered as foreign tenderers if the
individual member firms are not registered in Kenya or if are registered in Kenya and have
less than 51 percent ownership by Kenyan citizens. The JV shall not subcontract to foreign
firms more than 10 percent of the contract price, excluding provisional sums.

4.12 The National Construction Authority Act of Kenya requires that all local and foreign
contractors be registered with the National Construction Authority and be issued with a
Registration Certificate before they can undertake any construction works in Kenya.
Registration for foreign contractors shall not be a condition for tender, but it shall be a
condition of contract award and signature. A selected tenderer shall be given opportunity to
register before such award and signature of contract. Application for registration with
National Construction Authority may be accessed from the website www.nca.go.ke.

4.13 The Competition Act of Kenya requires that firms wishing to tender as Joint Venture
undertakings which may prevent, distort or lessen competition in provision of services are
prohibited unless they are exempt in accordance with the provisions of Section 25 of the
Competition Act, 2010. JVs will be required to seek for exemption from the Competition
Authority. Exemption shall not be a condition for tender, but it shall be a condition of contract
award and signature. A JV tenderer shall be given opportunity to seek such exemption as a
condition of award and signature of contract. Application for exemption from the Competition
Authority of Kenya may be accessed from the websitewww.cak.go.ke
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4.14 A Tenderer may be considered ineligible if he/she offers goods, works and production
processes with characteristics that have been declared by the relevant national environmental
protection agency or by other competent authority as harmful to human beings and to the
environment shall not be eligible for procurement.

4.15 A Kenyan tenderer shall provide evidence of having fulfilled his/her tax obligations by

producing a valid tax compliance or tax exemption certificate issued by the Kenya Revenue
Authority.

5.  Eligible Materials, Equipment, and Services

5.1 The materials, equipment and services to be supplied under the Contract may have their origin
in any eligible country and all expenditures under the Contract will be limited to such
materials, equipment, and services. At the Procuring Entity's request, Tenderers may be
required to provide evidence of the origin of materials, equipment and services.

5.2 For purposes of ITT 5.1 above, “origin” means the place where the materials and equipment are
mined, grown, produced or manufactured, and from which the services are provided. Materials
and equipment are produced when, through manufacturing, processing, or substantial or major
assembling of components, a commercially recognized product results that is substantially
different in its basic characteristics or in purpose or utility from its components.

B. Contents of Tendering Document
6 Sections of Tendering Document

6.1 The tendering document consists of Parts 1, 2, and 3, which include all the Sections indicated
below, and should be read in conjunction with any Addenda issued in accordance with ITT 10.

PART 1 ~ Tendering Procedures

Section I~ Instructions to Tenderers (ITT) Section II-Tender Data Sheet (TDS)
Section III- Evaluation and Qualification Criteria Section IV-Tendering Forms

PART 2 -~ Works and Services' Requirements
Section V -~ Specifications

PART3-~Conditions of Contract and Contract Forms
Section VI ~ General Conditions of Contract
Section VII - Special Conditions of Contract
Section VIII-Contract Forms

6.2 The Invitation to Tender (ITT) or the notice to the prequalified Tenderers issued by the
Procuring Entity is not part of the tendering document.

6.3 Unless obtained directly from the Procuring Entity, the Procuring Entity is not responsible for
the completeness of the tendering document, responses to requests for clarification, the minutes
of the pre-Tender meeting (if any), or Addenda to the tendering document in accordance with
ITT 10. In case of any contradiction, documents obtained directly from the Procuring Entity
shall prevail.

6.4 The Tenderer is expected to examine all instructions, forms, terms, and specifications in the
tendering document and to furnish with its Tender all information and documentation as is
required by the tendering document.

7 Site Visit

7.1 The Tenderer, at the Tenderer's own responsibility and risk, is encouraged to visit and examine
the site of the works and its surroundings and obtain all information that may be necessary for
preparing the Tender and entering into a contract for the Services. The costs of visiting the Site
shall be at the Tenderer's own expense.

KURA/RMLF/LE/142/2025-2026 Issued by Kenya Urban Roads Authority 14 |Page



8.2

8.3

8.4

9.1

10

10.1

10.2

10.3

11

11.1

Pre~-Tender Meeting and a pre~arranged pretender site visit

The Procuring Entity shall specify in the TDS if a pre-tender conference will be held, when and
where. The Procuring Entity shall also specify in the TDS if a pre-arranged pretender visit of
the site of the works will be held and when. The Tenderer's designated representative is invited
to attend a pre-arranged pretender visit of the site of the works. The purpose of the meeting
will be to clarify issues and to answer questions on any matter that may be raised at that stage.

The Tenderer is requested to submit any questions in writing, to reach the Procuring Entity not
later than the period specified in the TDS before the meeting.

Minutes of the pre-Tender meeting and the pre-arranged pretender visit of the site of the
works, if applicable, including the text of the questions asked by Tenderers and the responses
given, together with any responses prepared after the meeting, will be transmitted promptly to
all Tenderers who have acquired the Tender Documents in accordance with ITT 6.3. Minutes
shall not identify the source of the questions asked.

The Procuring Entity shall also promptly publish anonymized (no names) Minutes of the pre-
Tender meeting and the pre-arranged pretender visit of the site of the works at the web page
identified in the TDS. Any modification to the Tender Documents that may become necessary
as a result of the pre-Tender meeting shall be made by the Procuring Entity exclusively through
the issue of an Addendum pursuant to ITT 10 and not through the minutes of the pre-Tender
meeting. Nonattendance at the pre-Tender meeting will not be a cause for disqualification of a
Tenderer.

Clarification of Tender Documents

A Tenderer requiring any clarification of the Tender Document shall contact the Procuring
Entity in writing at the Procuring Entity's address specified in the TDS or raise its enquiries
during the pre-Tender meeting and the pre-arranged pretender visit of the site of the works if
provided for in accordance with ITT 8.4. The Procuring Entity will respond in writing to any
request for clarification, provided that such request is received no later than the period
specified in the TDS prior to the deadline for submission of tenders. The Procuring Entity shall
forward copies of its response to all tenderers who have acquired the Tender Documents in
accordance with ITT 6.3, including a description of the inquiry but without identifying its
source. If so specified in the TDS, the Procuring Entity shall also promptly publish its response
at the web page identified in the TDS. Should the clarification result in changes to the essential
elements of the Tender Documents, the Procuring Entity shall amend the Tender Documents
appropriately following the procedure under ITT 10.

Amendment of Tendering Document

At any time prior to the deadline for submission of Tenders, the Procuring Entity may amend
the Tendering document by issuing addenda.

Any addendum issued shall be part of the tendering document and shall be communicated in
writing to all who have obtained the tendering document from the Procuring Entity in
accordance with ITT 6.3. The Procuring Entity shall also promptly publish the addendum on
the Procuring Entity's website in accordance with ITT 8.4.

To give prospective Tenderers reasonable time in which to take an addendum into account in
preparing their Tenders, the Procuring Entity shall extend, as necessary, the deadline for
submission of Tenders, in accordance with ITT 24.2 below.

Preparation of Tenders

Cost of Tendering

The Tenderer shall bear all costs associated with the preparation and submission of its Tender,

and the Procuring Entity shall not be responsible or liable for those costs, regardless of the
conduct or outcome of the Tendering process.
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12 Language of Tender

12.1 The Tender, as well as all correspondence and documents relating to the Tender exchanged by
the Tenderer and the Procuring Entity, shall be written in the English language. Supporting
documents and printed literature that are part of the Tender may be in another language
provided they are accompanied by an accurate translation of the relevant passages in the
English language, in which case, for purposes of interpretation of the Tender, such translation
shall govern.

13 Documents Comprising the Tender

13.1 The Tender shall comprise the following:
a Form of Tender prepared in accordance with ITT 14;
b Schedules, including priced Bills of Quantities completed in accordance with ITT 14 and ITT 16;
¢ Tender Security or Tender-Securing Declaration, in accordance with ITT 21.1;
d Alternative Tender, if permissible, in accordance with ITT 15;

¢ Authorization: written confirmation authorizing the signatory of the Tender to commit the
Tenderer, in accordance with ITT 22.3;

f Qualifications: documentary evidence in accordance with ITT 19 establishing the
Tenderer's qualifications, or continued qualified status, as the case may be, to perform the
Contract if its Tender is accepted;

¢ Conformity: a technical proposal in accordance with ITT 18;

h  Any other document required in the TDS.

13.2 In addition to the requirements under ITT 13.1, Tenders submitted by a JV shall include a copy
of the Joint Venture Agreement entered into by all members. Alternatively, a Form of Intent to
execute a Joint Venture Agreement in the event of a successful Tender shall be signed by all
members and submitted with the Tender, together with a copy of the proposed agreement.

13.3 The Tenderer shall furnish in the Form of Tender information on commissions and gratuities,
if any, paid or to be paid to agents or any other party relating to this Tender.

14 Form of Tender, and Schedules

14.1 The Form of Tender and Schedules, including the Bills of Quantities, shall be prepared using the
relevant forms furnished in Section IV, Tendering Forms. The forms must be completed without
any alterations to the text, and no substitutes shall be accepted. All blank spaces shall be filled in
with the information requested. The Tenderer chronologically serialize all pages of the tender
documents submitted.

15  Alternative Tenders
15.1 Unless otherwise indicated in the TDS, alternative Tenders shall not be considered.

15.2 When alternative times for reaching the required Service Levels or for the completion of
Rehabilitation or Improvement Works are explicitly invited, a statement to that effect will be
included in the TDS, as will the method of evaluating different times for completion.

15.3 Except as provided under ITT 15.4 below, Tenderers wishing to offer technical alternatives to
the requirements of the tendering document must first price the Procuring Entity's design as
described in the tendering document and shall further provide all information necessary for a
complete evaluation of the alternative by the Procuring Entity, including drawings, design
calculations, technical specifications, breakdown of prices, and proposed construction
methodology and other relevant details. Only the technical alternatives, if any, of the Tenderer
with the Best Evaluated Tender conforming to the basic technical requirements shall be
considered by the Procuring Entity.

15.4 When specified in the TDS, Tenderers are permitted to submit alternative technical solutions
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for specified parts of the Rehabilitation and/or Improvement Works, and such parts will be
identified in the TDS, as will the method for their evaluating, and described in Section VII,
Works and Services' Requirements.

16 Tender Prices and Discounts

16.1 The prices and discounts quoted by the Tenderer in the Form of Tender and in the Bills of
Quantities shall conform to the requirements specified below.

16.2 The Tenderer shall fill in rates and prices for all items of the Works and Services described in
the Bills of Quantities. Items against which no rate or price is entered by the Tenderer will not
be paid for by the Procuring Entity when executed and shall be deemed covered by the rates
for other items and prices in the Bills of Quantities and will not be paid for separately by the
Procuring Entity. An item not listed in the priced Bill of Quantities shall be assumed to be not
included in the Tender, and provided that the Tender is determined substantially responsive
notwithstanding this omission, the average price of the item quoted by substantially responsive
Tenderers will be added to the Tender price and the equivalent total cost of the Tender so
determined will be used for price comparison.

16.3 The price to be quoted in the Form of Tender, in accordance with ITT 14.1, shall be the total
price of the Tender, excluding any discounts offered.

16.4 The Tenderer shall quote any discounts and the methodology for their application in the Form
of Tender, in accordance with ITT 16.1.

16.5 Unless otherwise provided in the TDS and the Contract, the rates and prices quoted by the
Tenderer are subject to adjustment during the performance of the Contract in accordance with
the provisions of the Conditions of Contract. In such a case, the Tenderer shall furnish the
indices and weightings for the price adjustment formulae in the Schedule of Adjustment Data
and the Procuring Entity may require the Tenderer to justify its proposed indices and
weightings.

16.6 If so indicated in ITT 1.1, Tenders are being invited for individual lots (contracts) or for any
combination of lots (packages). Tenderers wishing to offer any price reduction for the award
of more than one Contract shall specify in their tender the price reductions applicable to each
package, or alternatively, to individual Contracts within the package. Discounts shall be
submitted in accordance with ITT 14.4, provided the Tenders for all lots (contracts) are
submitted and opened at the same time.

16.7 All duties, taxes, and other levies payable by the Contractor under the Contract, or for any other
cause, as of the date 28 days prior to the deadline for submission of Tenders, shall be included
in the rates and prices and the total Tender Price submitted by the Tenderer.

17  Currencies of Tender and Payment

17.1 The currency (ies) of the Tender and the currency (ies) of payments shall be the same and shall
be as specified in the TDS.

17.2 Tenderers may be required by the Procuring Entity to justify, to the Procuring Entity's
satisfaction, their foreign currency requirements, and to substantiate that the amounts shown
in the Summary of Payment Currency Schedule, in which case a detailed breakdown of the
foreign currency requirements shall be provided by Tenderers.

18 Documents Comprising the Technical Proposal

18.1 The Tenderer shall furnish a technical proposal (if so required) including a statement of work
methods, equipment, personnel, schedule and any other information as stipulated in Section
IV, Tendering Forms, in sufficient detail to demonstrate the adequacy of the Tenderers' proposal
to meet the work and services' requirements and the completion time.
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19  Documents Establishing the Qualifications of the Tenderer

19.1 Toestablish Tenderer's eligibility in accordance with ITT 4, Tenderers shall complete the Form
of Tender, included in Section IV, Tendering Forms.

19.2 In accordance with Section III, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria, to establish its
qualifications to perform the Contract the Tenderer shall provide the information requested in
the corresponding information sheets included in Section IV, Tendering Forms.

19.3 If a margin of preference applies as specified in accordance with ITT 36.1, domestic Tenderers,
individually or in joint ventures, applying for eligibility for domestic preference shall supply
all information required to satisfy the criteria for eligibility specified in accordance with ITT
36.1.

19.4 Tenderers shall be asked to provide, as part of the data for qualification, such information,
including details of ownership, as shall be required to determine whether, according to the
classification established by the Procuring Entity, a particular contractor or group of
contractors qualifies for a margin of preference. Further the information will enable the
Procuring Entity identify any actual or potential conflict of interest in relation to the
procurement and/or contract management processes, or a possibility of collusion between
tenderers, and thereby help to prevent any corrupt influence in relation to the procurement
process or contract management.

19.5 The purpose of the information described in ITT 19.4 above overrides any claims to
confidentiality which a tenderer may have. There can be no circumstances in which it would
be justified for a tenderer to keep information relating to its ownership and control confidential
where it is tendering to undertake public sector work and receive public sector funds. Thus,
confidentiality will not be accepted by the Procuring Entity as a justification for a Tenderer's
failure to disclose, or failure to provide required information on its ownership and control.

19.6 The Tenderer shall provide further documentary proof, information or authorizations that the
Procuring Entity may request in relation to ownership and control which information on any
changes to the information which was provided by the tenderer under ITT 19.4. The obligations
to require this information shall continue for the duration of the procurement process and
contract performance and after completion of the contract, if any change to the information
previously provided may reveal a conflict of interest in relation to the award or management
of the contract.

19.7 All information provided by the tenderer pursuant to these requirements must be complete,
current and accurate as at the date of provision to the Procuring Entity. In submitting the
information required pursuant to these requirements, the Tenderer shall warrant that the
information submitted is complete, current and accurate as at the date of submission to the
Procuring Entity.

19.8 If a tenderer fails to submit the information required by these requirements, its tenderer will
be rejected. Similarly, if the Procuring Entity is unable, after taking reasonable steps, to verify
to a reasonable degree the information submitted by a tenderer pursuant to these requirements,
then the tender will be rejected.

19.9 If information submitted by a tenderer pursuant to these requirements, or obtained by the
Procuring Entity (whether through its own enquiries, through notification by the public or
otherwise), shows any conflict of interest which could materially and improperly benefit the
tenderer in relation to the procurement or contract management process, then:

i)  If the procurement process is still ongoing, the tenderer will be disqualified from the
procurement process,

ii)  If the contract has been awarded to that tenderer, the contract award will be set aside,

iii) the tenderer will be referred to the relevant law enforcement authorities for
investigation of whether the tenderer or any other persons have committed any
criminal offence.

19.10 If a tenderer submits information pursuant to these requirements that is incomplete,
inaccurate or out-of-date, or attempts to obstruct the verification process, then the
consequences ITT 19.9 will ensue unless the tenderer can show to the reasonable satisfaction
of the Procuring Entity that any such act was not material, or was due to genuine error which
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was not attributable to the intentional act, negligence or recklessness of the tenderer.
20  Period of Validity of Tenders

20.1 Tenders shall remain valid for the period specified in the TDS. The Tender Validity period starts
from the date fixed for the Tender submission deadline (as prescribed by the Procuring Entity
in accordance with ITT 24). A Tender valid for a shorter period shall be rejected by the
Procuring Entity as non-responsive.

20.2 In exceptional circumstances, prior to the expiration of the Tender validity period, the
Procuring Entity may request Tenderers to extend the period of validity of their Tenders. The
request and the responses shall be made in writing. If a Tender Security is requested in
accordance with ITT 21, it shall also be extended for thirty (30) days beyond the deadline of
the extended validity period. A Tenderer may refuse the request without forfeiting its Tender
Security. A Tenderer granting the request shall not be required or permitted to modify its
Tender, except as provided in ITT 26.3.

21 Tender Security

21.1 The Tenderer shall furnish as part of its Tender, either a Tender-Securing Declaration or a
Tender Security as specified in the TDS, in original form and, in the case of a Tender security,
in the amount and currency specified in the TDS.

21.1 A Tender-Securing Declaration shall use the form included in Section IV, Tendering Forms.

21.2 The Tender Security shall be a demand guarantee at the Tenderer's option, in any of the following
forms:

a cash;

i.  abank guarantee;
ii.  aguarantee by an insurance company registered and licensed by the Insurance
Regulatory Authority listed by the Authority; or

iii.  a guarantee issued by a financial institution approved and licensed by the Central
Bank of Kenya, from a reputable source, and an eligible country.

iv.  Other forms of Security as specified in the TDS.

21.3 If the unconditional guarantee is issued by a non-bank financial institution located outside
Kenya, the issuing non-bank financial institution shall have a correspondent financial
institution located in Kenya to make it enforceable unless the Procuring Entity has agreed in
writing, prior to Tender submission, that a correspondent financial institution is not required.
In the case of a bank guarantee, the Tender Security shall be submitted either using the Tender
Security Form included in Section IV, Tendering Forms, or in another substantially similar
format approved by the Procuring Entity prior to Tender submission. The Tender Security shall
be valid for thirty (30) days beyond the original validity period of the Tender, or beyond any
period of extension if requested under ITT 24.2.

21.4 If a Tender Security or Tender-Securing Declaration is specified pursuant to ITT 21.1, any
Tender not accompanied by a substantially responsive Tender Security or Tender-Securing
Declaration shall be rejected by the Procuring Entity as non-responsive.

21.5 If a Tender Security is specified pursuant to ITT 21.1, the Tender Security of unsuccessful
Tenderers shall be returned as promptly as possible upon the successful Tenderer's signing the
Contract and furnishing the Performance Security. The Procuring Entity shall also promptly
return the tender security to the tenderers where the procurement proceedings are terminated,
all tenders were determined non responsive or a bidder declines to extend tender validity
period.

21.6 The Tender Security of the successful Tenderer shall be returned as promptly as possible once

the successful Tenderer has signed the Contract and furnished the required Performance
Security.
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21.7 The Tender Security may be forfeited or the Tender-Securing Declaration executed:

a if a Tenderer withdraws its Tender during the period of Tender validity specified by the
Tenderer on the Form of Tender or any extension thereto provided by the Tenderer; or

b if the successful Tenderer fails to:
i. sign the Contract in accordance with ITT 48; or

ii. furnish a performance security.

21.8 Where tender securing declaration is executed, the Procuring Entity shall recommend to the
PPRA that PPRA debars the Tenderer from participating in public procurement as provided in
the law.

21.9 The Tender Security or the Tender Securing Declaration of a JV shall be in the name of the JV
that submits the Tender. If the JV has not been legally constituted at the time of Tendering, the
Tender Security or the Tender- Securing Declaration shall be in the names of all future members
as named in the Form of intent referred to in ITT 4.1 and ITT 13.2.

22  Format and Signing of Tender

22.1 The Tenderer shall prepare one original of the documents comprising the Tender as described
in ITT 13and clearly mark it “ORIGINAL.” Alternative Tenders, if permitted in accordance with
ITT 15, shall be clearly marked “ALTERNATIVE.” In addition, the Tenderer shall submit copies
of the Tender, in the number specified in the TDS and clearly mark them “COPY.” In the event
of any discrepancy between the original and the copies, the original shall prevail.

22.2 Tenderers shall mark as “CONFIDENTIAL” all information in their Tenders which is
confidential to their business. This may include proprietary information, trade secrets, or
commercial or financially sensitive information.

22.3 The original and all copies of the Tender shall be typed or written in indelible ink and shall be
signed by a person duly authorized to sign on behalf of the Tenderer. This authorization shall
consist of a written confirmation as specified in the TDS and shall be attached to the Tender.
The name and position held by each person signing the authorization must be typed or printed
below the signature. All pages of the Tender where entries or amendments have been made
shall be signed or initialed by the person signing the Tender.

22.4 In case the Tenderer is a JV, the Tender shall be signed by an authorized representative of the
JV on behalf of the JV, and so as to be legally binding on all the members as evidenced by a
power of attorney signed by their legally authorized representatives.

22.5 Any inter-lineation, erasures, or overwriting shall be valid only if they are signed or initialed
by the person signing the Tender.

D. Submission and Opening of Tenders
23  Sealing and Marking of Tenders

23.1 Depending on the sizes or quantities or weight of the tender documents, a tenderer may use an
envelope, package or container. The Tenderer shall deliver the Tender in a single sealed
envelope, or in a single sealed package, or in a single sealed container bearing the name and
Reference number of the Tender, addressed to the Procuring Entity and a warning not to open
before the time and date for Tender opening date. Within the single envelope, package or
container, the Tenderer shall place the following separate, sealed envelopes:

a. in an envelope or package or container marked “ORIGINAL”, all documents comprising
the Tender, as described in ITT 13; and

b. in an envelope or package or container marked “COPIES”, all required copies of the Tender;
and

c. if alternative Tenders are permitted in accordance with ITT 15, and if relevant:
i. in an envelope or package or container marked “ORIGINAL ~ ALTERNATIVE
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TENDER”, the alternative Tender; and

ii. in the envelope or package or container marked “COPIES-ALTERNATIVE
TENDER?”, all required copies of the alternative Tender.

23.2 The inner envelopes or packages or containers shall:
a Bear the name and address of the Procuring Entity.
b Bear the name and address of the Tenderer; and

¢ Bear the name and Reference number of the Tender.

23.3 Where a tender package or container cannot fit in the tender box, the procuring entity shall:
a Specify in the TDS where such documents should be received.

b Maintain a record of tenders received and issue acknowledgement receipt note to each
tenderer specifying time and date of receipt.

¢ Ensure all tenders received are handed over to the tender opening committee for opening
at the specified opening place and time.

23.4 If all envelopes are not sealed and marked as required, the Procuring Entity will assume no
responsibility for the misplacement or premature opening of the Tender. Tenders that are
misplaced or opened prematurely will not be accepted.

24 Deadline for Submission of Tenders

24.1 Tenders must be received by the Procuring Entity at the address and no later than the date and
time indicated in the TDS. When so specified in the TDS, Tenderers shall have the option of
submitting their Tenders electronically. Tenderers submitting Tenders electronically shall
follow the electronic Tender submission procedures specified in the TDS.

21.2 The Procuring Entity may, at its discretion, extend the deadline for the submission of Tenders
by amending the tendering document in accordance with ITT 10, in which case all rights and
obligations of the Procuring Entity and Tenderers previously subject to the deadline shall
thereafter be subject to the deadline as extended.

25 Late Tenders

25.1 The Procuring Entity shall not consider any Tender that arrives after the deadline for submission
of Tenders, in accordance with ITT 22. Any Tender received by the Procuring Entity after the
deadline for submission of Tenders shall be declared late, rejected, and returned unopened to
the Tenderer.

26  Withdrawal, Substitution, and Modification of Tenders

26.1 A Tenderer may withdraw, substitute, or modify its Tender after it has been submitted by
sending a written notice, duly signed by an authorized representative, and shall include a copy
of the authorization in accordance with ITT 20.3, (except that withdrawal notices do not
require copies). The corresponding substitution or modification of the Tender must accompany
the respective written notice. All notices must be:

a prepared and submitted in accordance with ITT 20 and ITT 21 (except that withdrawals
notices do not require copies), and in addition, the respective envelopes shall be clearly
marked “WITHDRAWAL,” “SUBSTITUTION,” “MODIFICATION; “and

b received by the Procuring Entity prior to the deadline prescribed for submission of
Tenders, in accordance with ITT 22.

26.2 Tenders requested to be withdrawn in accordance with ITT 24.1 shall be returned unopened to the
Tenderers.

26.3 No Tender may be withdrawn, substituted, or modified in the interval between the deadline for
submission of Tenders and the expiration of the period of Tender validity specified by the
Tenderer on the Form of Tender Form or any extension thereof.
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27 Tender Opening

27.1 Except in the cases specified in ITT 23 and ITT 24.2, the Procuring Entity shall publicly open
and read out in accordance with this ITT all Tenders received by the deadline, at the date, time
and place specified in the TDS, in the presence of Tenderers' designated representatives and
anyone who chooses to attend. Any specific electronic Tender opening procedures required if
electronic tendering is permitted in accordance with ITT 22.1, shall be as specified in the TDS.

27.2 First, envelopes marked “WITHDRAWAL” shall be opened and read out and the envelope with
the corresponding Tender shall not be opened, but returned to the Tenderer. No Tender
withdrawal shall be permitted unless the corresponding withdrawal notice contains a valid
authorization to request the withdrawal and is read out at Tender opening.

27.3 Next, envelopes marked “SUBSTITUTION” shall be opened and read out and exchanged with
the corresponding Tender being substituted, and the substituted Tender shall not be opened,
but returned to the Tenderer. No Tender substitution shall be permitted unless the
corresponding substitution notice contains a valid authorization to request the substitution and
is read out at Tender opening.

27.4 Next, Envelopes marked “MODIFICATION” shall be opened and read out with the
corresponding Tender. No Tender modification shall be permitted unless the corresponding
modification notice contains a valid authorization to request the modification and is read out
at Tender opening.

27.5 Next, all remaining envelopes shall be opened one at a time, reading out: the name of the
Tenderer and whether there is a modification; the total Tender Price, per lot (contract) if
applicable, including any discounts and alternative Tenders; the presence or absence of a
Tender Security, if required; and any other details as the Procuring Entity may consider
appropriate.

27.6 Only Tenders, alternative Tenders and discounts that are opened and read out at Tender
opening shall be considered further. The Form of Tender and the Bill of Quantities are to be
initialed by representatives of the Procuring Entity attending Tender opening in the manner
specified in the TDS.

27.7 The Procuring Entity shall neither discuss the merits of any Tender nor reject any Tender (except
for late Tenders, in accordance with ITT 23.1).
27.8 The Procuring Entity shall prepare a record of the Tender opening that shall include, as a minimum:
i. The name of the Tenderer and whether there is a withdrawal, substitution, or modification;
ii. The Tender Price, per lot (contract) if applicable, including any discounts;
iii. Any alternative Tenders;
iv. The presence or absence of a Tender Security, if one was required.
v. Number of pages of each tender document submitted
27.9 The Tenderers' representatives who are present shall be requested to sign the record. The
omission of a Tenderer's signature on the record shall not invalidate the contents and effect of

the record. A copy of the record shall be distributed to all Tenderers. A copy of the tender
opening register shall be issued to a Tenderer upon request

E.  Evaluation and Comparison of Tenders

28 Confidentiality

29.0 Information relating to the evaluation of Tenders and recommendation of contract award shall
not be disclosed to Tenderers or any other persons not officially concerned with such process
until information on Intention to Award the Contract is transmitted to all Tenderers in
accordance with ITT 43.
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29.1 Any effort by a Tenderer to influence the Procuring Entity in the evaluation of the Tenders or
Contract award decisions may result in the rejection of its Tender.

29.2 Notwithstanding ITT 28.2, from the time of Tender opening to the time of Contract award, if
any Tenderer wishes to contact the Procuring Entity on any matter related to the Tendering
process, it may do so in writing.

29 Clarification of Tenders

29.1 To assist in the examination, evaluation, and comparison of the Tenders, and qualification of
the Tenderers, the Procuring Entity may, at its discretion, ask any Tenderer for a clarification
of its Tender. Any clarification submitted by a Tenderer that is not in response to a request by
the Procuring Entity shall not be considered. The Procuring Entity's request for clarification and
the response shall be in writing. No change in the prices or substance of the Tender shall be
sought, offered, or permitted, except to confirm the correction of arithmetic errors discovered
by the Procuring Entity in the evaluation of the Tenders, in accordance with ITT 33.

29.2 1If a Tenderer does not provide clarifications of its Tender by the date and time set in the
Contracting Agency's request for clarification, its Tender may be rejected.

30 Deviations, Reservations, and Omissions

30.1 During the evaluation of Tenders, the following definitions apply:

a “Deviation” is a departure from the requirements specified in the tendering document;
“Reservation” is the setting of limiting conditions or withholding from complete acceptance
of the requirements specified in the tendering document; and

b “Omission” is the failure to submit part or all of the information or documentation
required in the tendering document.

31 Determination of Responsiveness

31.1 The Procuring Entity's determination of a Tender's responsiveness is to be based on the
contents of the Tender itself, as defined in ITT 13.

31.2 A substantially responsive Tender is one that meets the requirements of the tendering
document without material deviation, reservation, or omission. A material deviation,
reservation, or omission is one that:

a. If accepted, would:

i. Affect in any substantial way the scope, quality, or performance of the Works
specified in the Contract; or

ii. Limit in any substantial way, in consistent with the tendering document, the
Procuring Entity's rights or the Tenderer's obligations under the proposed Contract;
or

b. if rectified, would unfairly affect the competitive position of other Tenderers presenting
substantially responsive Tenders.

31.3 The Procuring Entity shall examine the technical aspects of the Tender submitted in accordance
with ITT18, Technical Proposal, in particular, to confirm that all requirements of Section VII,
Specifications for Works and Services have been met without any material deviation,
reservation or omission.

31.4 If a Tender is not substantially responsive to the requirements of the tendering document, it
shall be rejected by the Procuring Entity and may not subsequently be made responsive by
correction of the material deviation, reservation, or omission.

32 Non-~material Non-~conformities

32.1 Provided that a Tender is substantially responsive, the Procuring Entity may waive any non-~
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conformities in the Tender.

32.2 Provided that a Tender is substantially responsive, the Procuring Entity may request that the
Tenderer submit the necessary information or documentation, within a reasonable period of
time, to rectify nonmaterial non- conformities in the Tender related to documentation
requirements. Requesting information or documentation on such non-conformities shall not
be related to any aspect of the price of the Tender. Failure of the Tenderer to comply with the
request may result in the rejection of its Tender.

32.3 Provided that a Tender is substantially responsive, the Procuring Entity shall rectify nonmaterial
non-~ conformities related to the Tender Price. To this effect, the Tender Price shall be adjusted,
for comparison purposes only, to reflect the price of a missing or non-conforming item or
component in the manner specified in the TDS.

33 Correction of Arithmetical Errors

33.1 The tender sum as submitted and read out during the tender opening shall be absolute and final
and shall not be the subject of correction, adjustment or amendment in anyway by any person
or entity.

33.2 Provided that the Tender is substantially responsive, the Procuring Entity shall handle errors on
the following basis:

a Any error detected if considered a major deviation that affects the substance of the tender,
shall lead to disqualification of the tender as non-responsive.

b Any errors in the submitted tender arising from a miscalculation of unit price, quantity,
subtotal and total bid price shall be considered as a major deviation that affects the substance
of the tender and shall lead to disqualification of the tender as non-responsive. and

¢ If there is a discrepancy between words and figures, the amount in words shall prevail
33.3 Tenderers shall be notified of any error detected in their bid during the notification of award.
34  Conversion to Single Currency

34.1 For evaluation and comparison purposes, the currency(ies) of the Tender shall be converted
into a single currency which is Kenya Shillings. The source of the exchange rates shall be the
Central Bank of Kenya.

35 Nominated Subcontractors

35.1 Unless otherwise stated in the TDS, the Procuring Entity does not intend to execute any specific
elements of the Works by subcontractors selected/nominated by the Procuring Entity. In case
the Procuring Entity nominates a subcontractor, the subcontract agreement shall be signed by
the Subcontractor and the Procuring Entity. The main contract shall specify the working
arrangements between the main contractor and the nominated subcontractor.

35.2 Tenderers may propose subcontracting up to the percentage of total value of contracts or the
volume of works as specified in the TDS. Subcontractors proposed by the Tenderer shall be fully
qualified for their parts of the Works.

35.1 The subcontractor's qualifications shall not be used by the Tenderer to qualify for the Works
unless their specialized parts of the Works were previously designated so by the Procuring
Entity in the TDS as can be met by subcontractors referred to here after as 'Specialized
Subcontractors', in which case, the qualifications of the Specialized Subcontractors proposed
by the Tenderer may be added to the qualifications of the Tenderer.

36 Margin of Preference and Reservations

36.1 A margin of preference on local contractors may be allowed only when the contract is open to
international competitive tendering where foreign contractors are expected to participate in
the tendering process and where the contract exceeds the value/threshold specified in the
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Regulations.
36.2 A margin of preference shall not be allowed unless it is specified so in the TDS.

36.3 Contracts procured on basis of international competitive tendering shall not be subject to
reservations exclusive to specific groups as provided in ITT 36.5.

36.4 An individual firm is considered a Kenyan tenderer for purposes of the margin of preference if
it is registered in Kenya, has more than 51 percent ownership by nationals of Kenya, and if it
does not subcontract more than 10 percent of the contract price, excluding provisional sums,
to foreign contractors. JVs are considered as Kenyan Tenderer and eligible for domestic
preference only if the individual member firms are registered in Kenya or have more than 51
percent ownership by nationals of Kenya, and the JV shall be registered in Kenya. The JV shall
not subcontract more than 10 percent of the contract price, excluding provisional sums, to
foreign firms.

36.5 Where it is intended to reserve a contract to a specific group of businesses (these groups are
Small and Medium Enterprises, Women Enterprises, Youth Enterprises and Enterprises of
persons living with disability, as the case may be), and who are appropriately registered as such
by a competent authority, a procuring entity shall ensure that the invitation to tender
specifically indicates that only businesses or firms belonging to the specified group are eligible
to tender. No tender shall be reserved to more than one group. If not so stated in the Invitation
to Tender and in the Tender documents, the invitation to tender will be open to all interested
tenderers.

37 Evaluation of Tenders

37.1 The Procuring Entity shall use the criteria and methodologies listed in this ITT and Section III,
Evaluation and Qualification Criteria. No other evaluation criteria or methodologies shall be
permitted. By applying the criteria and methodologies the Procuring Entity shall determine the
Best Evaluated Tender in accordance with ITT 39.

37.2 Toevaluate a Tender, the Procuring Entity shall consider the following:

a Price adjustment due to discounts offered in accordance with ITT 16.4;

b Price adjustment due to quantifiable non material non-conformities in accordance with ITT 32.3;

¢ converting the amount resulting from applying (a) and (b) above, if relevant, to a single
currency in accordance with ITT 34; and

d any additional evaluation factors specified in the TDS and Section III, Evaluation and
Qualification Criteria.

37.3 The estimated effect of the price adjustment provisions of the Conditions of Contract, applied
over the period of execution of the Contract, shall not be considered in tender evaluation.

37.4 In the case of multiple contracts or lots, Tenderers are allowed to tender for one or more lots
and the methodology to determine the lowest evaluated cost of the lot (contract) and for
combinations, including any discounts offered in the Form of Tender, is specified in Section III,
Evaluation and Qualification Criteria.

37.5 The price of the Rehabilitation and Improvement Works included in each Tender shall not be
higher than the threshold indicated in the TDS. If the Tenderer estimates that its costs for the
Rehabilitation and Improvement Works are higher than the threshold indicated in the TDS, it
shall include the portion above the threshold in its price for the Maintenance Services. If the
Tender price in the Best Evaluated Tender is above the threshold indicated in the TDS for the
Rehabilitation and Improvement Works, the Procuring Entity may reject the Tender.

38 Comparison of Tenders

38.1 The Procuring Entity shall compare the evaluated costs of all substantially responsive Tenders
in accordance with ITT 34.2 to determine the Tender that has the lowest evaluated cost.

38.2 After application of the criteria established in ITT 37.1 to ITT 37.5, the Evaluated Tender Price
KURA/RMLF/LE/142/2025-2026 Issued by Kenya Urban Roads Authority 25|Page



for comparison of Tenders will be:
a The lump-sum price offered by the Tenderer for the Maintenance Services; plus

b The lump-sum price offered by the Tenderer for the Rehabilitation Works, if the tendering
document requires prices for this type of works; plus

¢ the total price of the priced Bill of Quantities for the Improvement Works, if the tendering
document requires prices for this type of works; plus

d the total price of the priced Bill of Quantities for the Emergency Works.
39  Abnormally Low Tenders

39.1 An Abnormally Low Tender is one where the Tender price, in combination with other
constituent elements of the Tender, appears unreasonably low to the extent that the Tender
price raises material concerns as to the capability of the Tenderer to perform the Contract for
the offered Tender price.

39.2 Inthe event of identification of a potentially Abnormally Low Tender, the Procuring Entity shall
seek written clarifications from the Tenderer, including detailed price analyses of its Tender
price in relation to the subject matter of the contract, scope, proposed methodology, schedule,
allocation of risks and responsibilities and any other requirements of the tendering document.

39.3 After evaluation of the price analyses, in the event that the Procuring Entity determines that the
Tenderer has failed to demonstrate its capability to perform the Contract for the offered Tender
Price, the Procuring Entity shall reject the Tender.

40 Abnormally High Tenders

40.1 An abnormally high price is one where the tender price, in combination with other constituent
elements of the Tender, appears unreasonably too high to the extent that the Procuring Entity
is concerned that it (the Procuring Entity) may not be getting value for money or it may be
paying too high a price for the contract compared with market prices or that genuine
competition between Tenderers is compromised.

40.2 In case of an abnormally high tender price, the Procuring Entity shall make a survey of the
market prices, check if the estimated cost of the contract is correct and review the Tender
Documents to check if the specifications, scope of work and conditions of contract are
contributory to the abnormally high tenders. The Procuring Entity may also seek written
clarification from the tenderer on the reason for the high tender price. The Procuring Entity
shall proceed as follows:

i) If the tender price is abnormally high based on wrong estimated cost of the contract, the
Procuring Entity may accept or not accept the tender depending on the Procuring Entity's
budget considerations.

ii) If specifications, scope of work and/or conditions of contract are contributory to the
abnormally high tender prices, the Procuring Entity shall reject all tenders and may
retender for the contract based on revised estimates, specifications, scope of work and
conditions of contract, as the case may be.

40.3 If the Procuring Entity determines that the Tender Price is abnormally too high because genuine
competition between tenderers is compromised (often due to collusion, corruption or other
manipulations), the Procuring Entity shall reject all Tenders and shall institute or cause
competent Government Agencies to institute an investigation on the cause of the compromise,
before retendering.

41 Unbalanced Tenders or Front Loaded

41.1 If the Tender that is evaluated as the lowest evaluated cost is, in the Procuring Entity's opinion,
seriously unbalanced or front loaded the Procuring Entity may require the Tenderer to provide
written clarifications. Clarifications may include detailed price analyses to demonstrate the
consistency of the Tender prices with the scope of works, proposed methodology, schedule and
any other requirements of the tendering document.
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41.2 After the evaluation of the information and detailed price analyses presented by the Tenderer,
the Procuring Entity may as appropriate:

a)  Accept the Tender; or

b)  Require that the amount of the Performance Security be increased at the expense of the
Tenderer to a level not exceeding 20% of the Contract price; or

¢) Reject the Tender.
42  Qualification of the Tenderer

42.1 The Procuring Entity shall determine to its satisfaction whether the Tenderer that is selected as
having submitted the lowest evaluated cost and substantially responsive Tender meets the
qualifying criteria specified in Section III, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria or, if
prequalification has taken place, continues to be eligible and continues to meet the qualifying
criteria.

42.2 The determination shall be based upon an examination of the documentary evidence of the
Tenderer's qualifications submitted by the Tenderer, pursuant to ITT 19.2. The determination
shall not take into consideration the qualifications of other firms such as the Tenderer's
subsidiaries, parent entities, affiliates, subcontractors (other than Specialized Subcontractors,

if permitted in TDS when prequalification has not taken place) or any other firm(s) different
from the Tenderer.

42.3 An affirmative determination shall be a prerequisite for award of the Contract to the Tenderer.
A negative determination shall result in disqualification of the Tender, in which event the
Procuring Entity shall proceed to the next lowest evaluated Tender to make a similar
determination of that Tenderer's qualifications to perform satisfactorily.

43 Lowest Evaluated Tender

43.1 Having compared the evaluated costs of Tenders, the Procuring Entity shall determine the Best
Evaluated Tender. The Best Evaluated Tender is the Tender of the Tenderer that meets the
Qualification Criteria and whose Tender has been determined to be:

a)  Most responsive to the tendering document; and

b)  The lowest evaluated cost.

44 Procuring Entity's Right to Accept Any Tender, and to Reject Any or All Tenders

44.1 The Procuring Entity reserves the right to accept or reject any Tender, and to annul the
Tendering process and reject all Tenders at any time prior to contract award, without thereby
incurring any liability to Tenderers. In case of annulment, all Tenderers shall be notified with
reasons and all Tenders submitted and specifically, Tender securities, shall be promptly
returned to the Tenderers.

45 Notice of Intention to enter in to a Contract

45.1 Upon award of the contract and Prior to the expiry of the Tender Validity Period the Procuring
Entity shall issue a Notification of Intention to Enter into a Contract/Notification of award to
all tenderers which shall contain, at a minimum, the following information:

a)  The name and address of the Tenderer submitting the successful tender;
b)  The Contract price of the successful tender;

c) A statement of the reason(s) the tender of the unsuccessful tenderer to whom the letter is
addressed was unsuccessful, unless the price information in ¢ above already reveals the
reason;

d)  The expiry date of the Standstill Period; and

e) Instructions on how to request a debriefing and/or submit a complaint during the standstill
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period;
46  Standstill Period

46.1 The Contract shall not be signed earlier than the expiry of a Standstill Period of 14 days to
allow any dissatisfied tender to launch a complaint. Where only one Tender is submitted, the
Standstill Period shall not apply. Where only one Tender is submitted, the Standstill Period
shall not apply.

46.2 Where a Standstill Period applies, it shall commence 100when the Procuring Entity has

transmitted to each Tenderer the Notification of Intention to Enter into a Contract with the
successful Tenderer.

47 Debriefing by the Procuring Entity

47.1 On receipt of the Procuring Entity's Notification of Intention to Enter into a Contract referred
to in ITT 43, an unsuccessful tenderer may make a written request to the Procuring Entity for
a debriefing on specific issues or concerns regarding their tender. The Procuring Entity shall
provide the debriefing within five days of receipt of the request.

45.2 Debriefings of unsuccessful Tenderers may be done in writing or verbally. The Tenderer shall
bear its own costs of attending such a debriefing meeting.

F.  Contract Negotiations and Award of Contract
48 Negotiations

48.1 Before signature of contract, the procuring Entity may conduct negotiations with the best
evaluated tenderer. The negotiations will be held at the date and address indicated in the TDS
with the Tender's Representatives who must have written power of attorney to negotiate a
Contract on behalf of the Tenderer.

48.2 The Procuring Entity shall prepare minutes of negotiations that are signed by the Procuring
Entity and the Tender's authorized representative.

48.3 The negotiations include discussions of the Schedule of Requirements, the proposed
methodology, the Procuring Entity's inputs, the Special Conditions of the Contract, and
finalizing the “Works and Services' Requirements” part of the Contract. These discussions shall
not substantially alter the original scope of services or the terms of the contract, lest the quality
of the final product, its price, or the relevance of the initial evaluation be affected.

48.4 The financial negotiations include the clarification of the tax liability in Kenya and how it
should be reflected in the Contract. If the selection method included cost as a factor in the
evaluation, the total price stated in the Financial Proposal for a Lump-~Sum contract shall not
be negotiated. The Procuring Entity may ask for clarifications and, if the costs are very high,
ask to change the rates.

48.5 The negotiations are concluded with a review of the finalized draft Contract, which then shall
be initialed by the Procuring Entity and the Tender's authorized representative. If the
negotiations fail, the Procuring Entity shall inform the Tender in writing of all pending issues
and disagreements and provide a final opportunity to the Tenderer to respond. If disagreement
persists, the Procuring Entity shall terminate the negotiations informing the Tenderer of the
reasons for doing so. The Procuring Entity will invite the next-ranked Tenderer to negotiate a
Contract. Once the Procuring Entity commences negotiations with the next-ranked Tenderer,
the Procuring Entity shall not reopen the earlier negotiations.

49 Letter of Award

49.1 Prior to the expiry of the Tender Validity Period and upon expiry of the Standstill Period
specified in ITT 44.1, upon addressing a complaint that has been filed within the Standstill
Period, the Procuring Entity shall transmit the Letter of Award to the successful Tenderer. The
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letter of award shall request the successful tenderer to furnish the Performance Security within
21 days of the date of the letter.

50 Signing of Contract

50.1 Upon the expiry of the fourteen days of the Notification of Intention to enter into contract and
upon the parties meeting their respective statutory requirements, the Procuring Entity shall send
the successful Tenderer the Contract Agreement.

50.2 Within fourteen (14) days of receipt of the Contract Agreement, the successful Tenderer shall
sign, date, and return it to the Procuring Entity.

50.3 The written contract shall be entered into within the period specified in the notification of award
and before expiry of the tender validity period

51  Performance Security

51.1 Within twenty-one (21) days of the receipt of the Letter of Award from the Procuring Entity,
the successful Tenderer shall furnish the Performance Security and if required in the TDS, using
for that purpose the Performance Security Forms included in Section VIII, Contract Forms, or
another form acceptable to the Procuring Entity. If the Performance Security furnished by the
successful Tenderer is in the form of a bond, it shall be issued by a bonding or insurance
company that has been verified by the successful Tenderer to be acceptable to the Procuring
Entity. A foreign institution providing a bond shall have a correspondent financial institution
located in Kenya, unless the Procuring Entity has agreed in writing that a correspondent
financial institution is not required.

51.2 Failure of the successful Tenderer to submit the above-mentioned Performance Security or sign
the Contract shall constitute sufficient grounds for the annulment of the award and forfeiture
of the Tender Security. In that event the Procuring Entity may award the Contract to the
Tenderer offering the next Best Evaluated Tender.

52  Publication of Procurement Contract

52.1 Within fourteen days after signing the contract, the Procuring Entity shall publish the awarded
contract at its notice boards and websites; and on the Website of the Authority. At the minimum,
the notice shall contain the following information:

a) Name and address of the Procuring Entity;

b) Name and reference number of the contract being awarded, a summary of its scope and
the selection method used;

¢) The name of the successful Tenderer, the final total contract price, the contract duration.

d) dates of signature, commencement and completion of contract; names of all Tenderers
that submitted Tenders, and their Tender prices as read out at Tender opening.

53 Procurement Related Complaints

53.1 The procedures for making a Procurement-related Complaint are as specified in the TDS.
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SECTION II - TENDER DATA SHEET

The following specific data for the Works and Services to be procured shall complement, supplement, or
amend the provisions in the Instructions to Tenderers (ITT). Whenever there is a conflict, the provisions
herein shall prevail over those in ITT.

[Where an e~-procurement system is used, modify the relevant parts of the TDS accordingly to reflect the
e~-procurement process.|

[Instructions for completing the Tender Data Sheet are provided, as needed, in the notes in italics
mentioned for the relevant ITT.]

Reference to PARTICULARS OF APPENDIX TO INSTRUCTIONS TO TENDERS
ITC Clause

A. General

ITT 1.1 The reference number of the Invitation to Tender is: KURA/RMLF/LE/142/2025-
2026

The Procuring Entity is: KENYA URBAN ROADS AUTHORITY

The name of the ITT is: ATHI RIVER/ MAVOKQO ROADS - PACKAGE 4 PBC & ROUTINE
MAINTENANCE OF ATHI RIVER/MAVOKO ROADS (SYOKIMAU)~ LOT 11

Rehabilitation Works are required. Improvement Works are not required.

The sections of the Road(s) subject to Rehabilitation Works are as indicated in the
Performance Specifications and Bill of Quantities.

ITT 1.2 (a) Electronic —Procurement System

Electronic~-procurement system shall not be used.

ITT 4.1 Maximum number of members in the JV shall be: NOT APPLICABLE

ITT 4.11 The Tenderer will require to register with NOT APPLICABLE
whose contact addresses are:
Physical address:

B. Tendering Document

8.1 A pretender site visit shall take place as indicated in the Tender Notice..

ITT 8.2 The Tenderer will submit any questions in writing, to reach the Procuring Entity not
later than Seven (7) Days to the close of the tender.

ITT 8.4 The Procuring Entity’s website where Minutes of the pre-Tender meeting and the pre-

arranged pretender will be published is www.kura.go.ke.

ITT 9.1 For Clarification of Tender purposes, for obtaining further information and for
purchasing tender documents, the Procuring Entity’s address is:
KENYA URBAN ROADS AUTHORITY
SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT OFFICE
BARABARA PLAZA OFF AIRPORT SOUTH ROAD MAZAO ROAD, GROUND FLOOR,;
BLOCK D
P.O. BOX 41727-00100, NAIROBI

DEPUTY DIRECTOR (SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT),
+254717105233, supplychain@kura.go.ke

C. Preparation of Tenders
ITP 13.1 (h) | The Tenderer shall submit the following additional mandatory documents in its
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Reference to

PARTICULARS OF APPENDIX TO INSTRUCTIONS TO TENDERS

ITC Clause
Tender:
As indicated in the qualification criferia and Tender Notice

ITT 15.1 Alternative Tenders shall not be permitted.

ITT 15.3 Alternative times for reaching the required Service Levels and for the completion of
the Rehabilitation and/or Improvement Works shall not be permitted.

ITT 15.4 Alternative technical solutions for the Rehabilitation and/or Improvement Works shall
be permitted for the following parts of the Works:

[List the parts of the Works].

If alternative technical solutions are permitted, the evaluation method will be as
specified in Section III, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria. NOT APPLICABLE

ITT 16.5 The prices quoted by the Tenderer shall be: FIXED

ITT 17.1 The currency(ies) of the Tender and the payment currency(ies) shall be as described
below:
(@) The unit rates and the prices shall be quoted by the Tenderer in the Bill of
Quantities, entirely in Kenya Shillings.

ITT 20.1 The Tender validity period shall be 210 days from the specified date of opening as
indicated in the Invitation to tender.

ITT 20.3 The Tender price shall be adjusted by the following factor(s): NOT APPLICABLE

ITT 21.1
A Tender-Securing Declaration SHALL BE required.

ITT 21.2
A Tender Security SHALL NOT BE required.

ITT 22.1 The tenderer shall prepare and submit ONE original Tender document and ONE Copy
Tender document.

ITT 22.2 The written confirmation of authorization to sign on behalf of the Tenderer shall

consist of a signed Certificate of Independent Tender Detfermination

D. Submission

and Opening of Tenders

ITT 23.1

(A) For Tender submission purposes only, the Procuring Entity’s address is:

1)  Name of Procuring Entity: KENYA URBAN ROADS AUTHORITY

(2) Postal Address: DEPUTY DIRECTOR (RURC), LOWER EASTERN REGION,
P.O BOX 2605 — 90100 MACHAKOS
TEL: +254 — 746 — 893182
EMAIL: lowereastern@kura.go.ke

(3) Physical address LOWER EASTERN REGIONAL OFFICE, OFF MACHAKOS -~
NAIROBI ROAD, MACHAKOS TOWN

(4) Date and time for submission of Tenders: as indicated in the Tender Notice.

Tenders shall not be submitted electronically.

ITT 24.1

The Tender opening shall take place at:-
(1) Name of Procuring Entity: KENYA URBAN ROADS AUTHORITY

(2) Physical address: LOWER EASTERN REGIONAL OFFICEOFF MACHAKOS -

NAIROBI ROAD, MACHAKOS TOWN
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Reference to
ITC Clause

PARTICULARS OF APPENDIX TO INSTRUCTIONS TO TENDERS

(3) State date and time of tender opening. as indicated in the Tender Notice.

ITT 27.6

The tenders shall be initialed by representatives of the Procuring Entity attending
Tender opening.
Initialization shall be conducted as follows: ~

ALL MEMBERS OF TENDER OPENING COMMITTEE SHALL
e [Initialize summary page of BOQ,
e Form of Tender
e Bid Bonds/Tender Securing Declaration Form
e Cover page of the Bid Document
e Last page of the Bid Document

E. Evaluation and Comparison of Tenders

ITT 32.3

The adjustment shall be based on the average price of the item or component as
quoted in other substantially responsive Tenders. If the price of the item or component
cannot be derived from the price of other substantially responsive Tenders, the
Procuring Entity shall use its best estimate: NOT APPLICABLE

ITT 35.1

The Procuring Entity does not intend to execute any specific elements of the Works by
subcontractors selected/nominated by the Procuring Entity.

ITT 36.2

A margin of domestic preference shall not apply.

ITT 37.2 (d)

Additional requirements apply. These are detailed in the evaluation criteria in Section
111, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria.

ITT 37.5

The combined price for the Rehabilitation and Improvement Works may not exceed
the following threshold:

Option 1: 70% of the total contract price excluding provisional sums. NOT
APPLICABLE

ITT 42.1

Where prequalification has not taken place, the Procuring Entity shall permit that
specific experience for parts of the Works and Service may be met by Specialized
Subcontractors. NOT APPLICABLE

ITT 48.1

Contract negotiations with the best evaluated tenderer shall NOT APPLICABLE

ITT 53.1

The procedures for making a Procurement-related Complaint are available from the
PPRA website info@ppra.go.ke or complaints@ppra.go.ke. If a Tenderer wishes to
make a Procurement-related Complaint, the Tenderer should submit its complaint
following these procedures, in writing (by the quickest means available, that is either
by hand delivery or email to:

For the attention: ENG. SILAS M. KINOTI, MBS
Title/position: DIRECTOR GENERAL

Procuring Entity: KENYA URBAN ROADS AUTHORITY
Email address. dg@kura.go.ke

In summary, a Procurement-related Complaint may challenge any of the following;:

(i) the terms of the Tender Documents; and
(i) the Procuring Entity’s decision to award the contract.
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SECTION III ~ EVALUATION AND QUALIFICATION CRITERIA
1. GENERAL PROVISIONS

1.1 Wherever a Tenderer is required to state a monetary amount, Tenderers should indicate the Kenya
Shilling equivalent using the rate of exchange determined as follows:

a) For construction turnover or financial data required for each Year-Exchange rate prevailing
on the last day of the respective calendar year (in which the amounts for that year is to be
converted) was originally established.

b) Value of single Contract-Exchange rate prevailing on the date of the contract signature.

¢) Exchange rates shall be taken from the publicly available source identified in the ITT. Any
error in determining the exchange rates in the Tender may be corrected by the Procuring
Entity.

1.2 This section contains the criteria that the Employer shall use to evaluate tender and qualify
tenderers. No other factors, methods or criteria shall be used other than specified in this tender
document. The Tenderer shall provide all the information requested in the forms included in
Section 1V, Tendering Forms. The Procuring Entity should use the Standard Tender Evaluation
Document for Goods and Works for evaluating Tenders.

Evaluation and contract award Criteria

The Procuring Entity shall use the criteria and methodologies listed in this Section to evaluate
tenders and arrive at the Lowest Evaluated Tender. The tender that (i) meets the qualification
criteria, (ii) has been determined to be substantially responsive to the Tender Documents, and (iii)
is determined to have the Lowest Evaluated Tender price shall be selected for award of contract.

2. PRELIMINARY EXAMINATION FOR DETERMINATION OF RESPONSIVENESS

The Procuring Entity will start by examining all tenders to ensure they meet in all respects the
eligibility criteria and other requirements in the ITT, and that the tender is complete and meets all
the requirements of “Part 2 — Works and Services 'Requirements”, including checking for tenders
with unacceptable errors, abnormally low tenders, abnormally high tenders and tenders that are
front loaded. The Standard Tender Evaluation Report Document for Goods and Works for
evaluating Tenders provides very clear guide on how to deal with review of these requirements.
Tenders that do not pass the Preliminary Examination will be considered irresponsive and will not
be considered further.
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PRELIMINARY EVALUATION (Removed No.25)

Qualificatio
8/No. | Qualification Subject References Qualification Requirement n
‘ (MET/NOT
I. | Form of Equipment e Section IV; Form | e Properly fill, sign and Stamp
EQU e Provide all required information
2. | Key personnel and e Section IV; Form | e Provide all required information
Declaration PER 1 & 2 e Properly fill, sign and stamp
3. | Tender Qualification | e Section IV; Form | e Provide all required information
4, ELI-1.LELI- | e Properly fill, sign and stamp
1”2
4. | Non-Performance e Section IV; Form | e Provide all required information
4, Form CON-2 | e Properly fill, sign and stamp
5. | Pending Litigation e Section IV; Form | e Provide all required information
4, Form CON-2 | e Properly fill, sign and stamp
6. | Litigation History e Section IV; Form | e Provide all required information
4, Form CON-2 | e Properly fill, sign and stamp
7. | Financial Situation & | e Section IV; Form | e Provide all required information
Performance 4, Form, FIN-3.1/| e Properly fill, sign and stamp
8. | Average Apnual e Section IV; Form | e Provide all required information
r(rIonstructlon 4, Form FIN-3.2 | e Properly fill, sign and stamp
urnover
9. | Financial Resources e Section IV; Form | e Provide all required information
4, Form FIN-3.3 | e Properly fill, sign and stamp
10. | Current Contract e Section IV; Form | e Provide all required information
Commitments/Works | 4, Form FIN-3.4 | e Properly fill, sign and stamp
in Prooress
1. | General Construction | ® iethion Lv; Foinll e Provide all required information
Experience , Form EXP-4.11 Properly fill, sign and stamp
12. | Specific Construction | ® iethion Ig;;(PForm e Provide all required information
and Contract » HOTIL BAE- e Properly fill, sign and stam
Management 4.1(a) pery i P
13. | Construction o Section IV; Form | ¢ provyide all required information
Experience in Key 4, Form EXP- o
Activities 4.2(b) e Properly fill, sign and stamp
14. | Form of Tender * Section IV; e Provide all required information
Format T
e Properly fill, sign and stamp
e Tenderer to use stationery bearing
its letterhead
15. | Tenderer’s Eligibility | e Section IV; Form | ® Provide all required information
5 A(a-f) e Properly fill, sign and stamp
16. | Certificate of * Section IV; Form | o provide all required information
Independent Tender 5B s
Determination e Properly fill, sign and stamp
17. | Self-declaration Forms| e Section iv; e Provide all required information
IFT?)IAI?MSSCI:)i P Properly fill, sign and stamp
18. Append1.x 1-Fraud and| e Section iv; e Read, Understand and Comply
Corruption Form 5 D R
e Properly fill, sign and stamp
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S/No.

Qualification Subject

References

Qualification Requirement

Qualificatio
n
(MET/NOT

19.

Form of Tender
Security

/Tender declaration
Form

e Section 1V; 7

e Form of Tender Security (Tender
Bond) - In the format provided
with all conditions. Must be valid
for 30 days after bid validity

e Tender Securing Declaration Form
to be fully filled, signed and

document

13.2

stamped.
20. | Priced Bill of e Section VII e Fill all the bill of Quantities, sign
Quantities o (Bill of stamp and counter sign any
Quantities) alteration(s)
21. | Serializing of e TDS CLAUSE

e Chronologically and sequentially
serialize all pages in a numerical
format 1,2,3,4,5....... Including the
cover page of the tender documents
submitted.

22. | Certificate of o ITT13.1 () e Copy certified by commissioner of
Incorporation oaths
certificate
23. | Tax Compliance e ITT 13.1 (h) e Must be valid
Certificate
24. | National Construction | ® ITT 13.1 (h) e Category stated in the Tender Notice
Authority Certificate
25. | Recent CR12 e ITT13.1 () ¢ Copy certified and current (As
Certificate Indicated in the Tender Notice)
26. | Copies of Tender o ITT 22.1 ¢ ONE original and ONE exact replica
Document of original tender document.
217. gre ]fSid /Site Visit e ITT&.1 e There shall be a MANDATORY site
onference/stie Vist visit as Indicated in the Tender
Notice. Tenderers are required to fill,
sign and stamp the Site Visit
Certificate in FORM CON -3 (B)
28. | Completeness of o ITT 22.3 e The person or persons signing the bid
tender document e ITT 22.5 shall initial all pages of the bid where
entries have been made
o All pages with entries (Typed or hand
written) must be initialed.
e Any alterations made in the tender
document must be countersigned.
Fully filled certificate of independent
tender determination.
29. | Addendum e ITT 6.3
e ITT 8.4 e To be attached (if any).
o ITT 10.2
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3. ASSESSMENT OF ADEQUACY OF TECHNICAL PROPOSAL WITH REQUIREMENTS (IF APPLICABLE)

The Procuring Entity will evaluate the Technical Proposals of all responsive tenders using the
following criteria, sub-criteria, and assessment system for the evaluation of the Technical

Proposals:
ITEM DESCRIPTION ASSESSMENT
1 FINANCIAL CAPABILITY MET/NOT
MET
a | Working capital of Kshs. 2,747,179.36
b | Cash flow statement (forecasts)

¢ | Audited Statements of account for the last 2 years presented in the
Internationally Financial Reporting Standard
d | Turnover of Kshs. 6,867,900.00

2 EXPERIENCE

General Experience as Contractor in the last five years.

Experience in road construction in the last three years.

¢ | Experience as a prime contractor, joint venture member,
management contractor or sub-~contractor in at least three (3) road
projects with value of Kshs. 6,867,900.00 in the last three years.

3 KEY PERSONNEL

b | Road Manager meets criteria

¢ | Senior Foreman meets criteria

d | Head Office Staff meets criteria

T e

4 PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
a | Details of all listed equipment in table 9 provided
5 WORK METHODOLOGY

a | Work methodology provided as required

6 CURRENT COMMITMENTS

a | The total value of outstanding works on the on-going contracts
not exceeding the Engineer’s Estimate/Budget

REMARKS

Tenderers who do not meet all the criteria will automatically be disqualified. Tenderers who meet
all the technical criteria will be subjected to financial evaluation.

4. TENDER EVALUATION (ITT 37)~-NOT APPLICABLE

Price evaluation: in addition to the criteria listed in ITT 37.2 (a) — (d) the following criteria shall apply:
i)  Alternative Completion Times, if permitted under ITT 13.2, will be evaluated as follows: N/A

ii) Alternative Technical Solutions for specified parts of the Works, if permitted under ITT 13.4,
will be evaluated as follows. N/A

iii) Other Criteria; if permitted under ITT 37.2 (d)
5. MULTIPLE CONTRACTS — NOT APPLICABLE

Multiple contracts will be permitted in accordance with ITT 35.4. Tenderers are evaluated on basis
of Lots and the lowest evaluated tenderer identified for each Lot. The Procuring Entity will select
one Option of the two Options listed below for award of Contracts.

OPTION 1

i) If a tenderer wins only one Lot, the tenderer will be awarded a contract for that Lot,
provided the tenderer meets the Eligibility and Qualification Criteria for that Lot.

ii) If a tenderer wins more than one Lot, the tender will be awarded contracts for all won Lots,
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provided the tenderer meets the aggregate Eligibility and Qualification Criteria for all the Lots.
The tenderer will be awarded the combination of Lots for which the tenderer qualifies and the
others will be considered for award to second lowest the tenderers.

OPTION 2

The Procuring Entity will consider all possible combinations of won Lots [contract(s)] and
determine the combinations with the lowest evaluated price. Tenders will then be awarded to the
Tenderer or Tenderers in the combinations provided the tenderer meets the aggregate Eligibility
and Qualification Criteria for all the won Lots.

6. ALTERNATIVE TENDERS (ITT 13.1) — NOT APPLICABLE
An alternative if permitted under ITT 13.1, will be evaluated as follows:

The Procuring Entity shall consider Tenders offered for alternatives as specified in Part 2— Works
and Services' requirements. Only the technical alternatives, if any, of the Tenderer with the Best
Evaluated Tender conforming to the basic technical requirements shall be considered by the
Procuring Entity.

7. MARGIN OF PREFERENCE

7.1 If the TDS so specifies, the Procuring Entity will grant a margin of preference of fifteen percent
(15%) to be loaded one valuated price of the foreign tenderers, where the percentage of
shareholding of Kenyan citizens is less than fifty-one percent (51%).

7.2 Contractors applying for such preference shall be asked to provide, as part of the data for
qualification, such information, including details of ownership, as shall be required to determine
whether, according to the classification established by the Procuring Entity, a particular contractor
or group of contractor’s qualifies for a margin of preference.

7.3 After Tenders have been received and reviewed by the Procuring Entity, responsive Tenders
shall be
assessed to ascertain their percentage of shareholding of Kenyan citizens. Responsive tenders shall
be

classified into the following groups:

i) Group A:tenders offered by Kenyan Contractors and other Tenderers where Kenyan citizens
hold shares of over fifty one percent (51%).

il)  Group B:tenders offered by foreign Contractors and other Tenderers where Kenyan citizens
hold shares of less than fifty one percent (51%).

7.4  All evaluated tenders in each group shall, as a first evaluation step, be compared to determine the
lowest tender, and the lowest evaluated tender in each group shall be further compared with each
other. If, as a result of this comparison, a tender from Group A is the lowest, it shall be selected for
the award. If a tender from Group B is the lowest, an amount equal to the percentage indicated in
Item 3.1 of the respective tender price, including unconditional discounts and excluding
provisional sums and the cost of day works, if any, shall be added to the evaluated price offered in
each tender from Group B. All tenders shall then be compared using new prices with added prices
to Group B and the lowest evaluated tender from Group A. If the tender from Group A is still the
lowest tender, it shall be selected for award. If not, the lowest evaluated tender from Group B based
on the first evaluation price shall be selected.

8. POST QUALIfiCATION AND CONTRACT WARD (ITT 37), MORE SPECIfiCALLY

a)  In case the tender was subject to post-qualification, the contract shall be awarded to the
lowest evaluated tenderer, subject to confirmation of prequalification data, if so required.

b)  In case the tender was not subject to post-qualification, the tender that has been determined
to be the lowest evaluated tender shall be considered for contract award, subject to meeting
each of the following conditions.
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i)  The Tenderer shall demonstrate that it has access to, or has available, liquid assets,
unencumbered real assets, lines of credit, and other financial means (independent of

any contractual advance payment) sufficient to meet the construction cash flow of
Kenya Shillings 2,747,179.36 (20% of the EE/ budget)

ii) Minimum average annual construction turnover of Kenya Shillings Kshs.
6,867,900.00 (Equivalent to 50% of the EE/Budget), equivalent calculated as total
certified payments received for contracts in progress and/or completed within the last
two (2) years.

iii) At least three (3) No. contract(s) of a similar nature executed within Kenya, or the East
African Community or abroad, that have been satisfactorily and substantially
completed as a prime contractor, or joint venture member or sub-contractor each of
minimum value Kenya shillings Kenya Shillings 6,867,900.00 (50% of Budget/EE )

iv) Contractor's Representative and Key Personnel, which are specified in the post qualification
table 9 below

v)  Contractors key equipment listed on table 10 below: -~
iv) Other conditions depending on their seriousness.
a) History of non-performing contracts:

Tenderer and each member of JV in case the Tenderer is a JV, shall demonstrate that
Non- performance of a contract did not occur because of the default of the
Tenderer, or the member of a JV in the last three (3) years. The required information
shall be furnished in the appropriate form.

b) Pending Litigation

Financial position and prospective long-term profitability of the Single Tenderer,
and in the case the Tenderer is a JV, of each member of the JV, shall remain sound
according to criteria established with respect to Financial Capability under
Paragraph (1) above if all pending litigation will be resolved against the Tenderer.
Tenderer shall provide information on pending litigations in the appropriate form.

¢) Litigation History
There shall be no consistent history of court/arbitral award decisions against the
Tenderer, in the last Three (3) years. All parties to the contract shall furnish the
information in the appropriate form about any litigation or arbitration resulting
from contracts completed or ongoing under its execution over the years specified.

A consistent history of awards against the Tenderer or any member of a JV may
result in rejection of the tender.
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9. QUALIFICATION CRITERIA
1 2 3 4 5
Item No. Qualification Qualification Requirement Document To be Completed For Procuring Entity’s
Subject by Tenderer Use (Qualification met
or Not Met)
1 Nationality Nationality in accordance with ITT 4.5 Forms ELI — 1.1 with
attachments
2 Conflict of No conflicts of interest in accordance with ITT 4.3 Confidential business
Interest questionnaire
3 Tax Obligations | Has produced a current tax clearance certificate or tax TDS; ITT 11.1 (h)
for Kenyan exemption certificate issued by the Kenya Revenue Authority in
Tenderers accordance with ITT 4.15.
4 PPRA Eligibility | Not having been declared ineligible by the PPRA as described in ITT 13.1 (h)
ITT 4.6
5 State- owned Meets conditions of ITT 3.7 Forms ELI — 1.1 with
Enterprise attachments
6 Goods, To have their origin in any country that is not determined Forms ELI — 1.1 with
equipment and | ineligible under ITT 5.1 attachments
services to be
supplied under
the contract
7 History of Non-~ | Non-~performance of a contract did not occur as a result of Form CON-1
Performing contractor default since 1%t January 2022.
Contracts
8 Suspension Not under suspension based on-execution of a Tender/Proposal | Form of Tender
Based on Securing Declaration pursuant to ITT 19.10.
Execution of
Tender/Proposal
Securing
Declaration by
the Procuring
Entity
9 Pending Tender’s financial position and prospective long-term Form CON -1
Litigation profitability still sound according to criteria established in 3.1
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1 2 3 4 5
Item No. Qualification Qualification Requirement Document To be Completed For Procuring Entity’s
Subject by Tenderer Use (Qualification met
or Not Met)
and assuming that all pending litigation will NOT be resolved
against the Tenderer.
10 Litigation No consistent history of court/arbitral award decisions against Form CON - 1
History the Tenderer for the last (3) Three years.
Financial Capability
11 Financial (i) The Tenderer shall demonstrate that it has access to, or has | Form FIN — 3.1, with
Capabilities available, liquid assets, unencumbered real assets, lines of credit, | attachments

and other financial means (independent of any contractual
advance payment) sufficient to meet the construction cash flow
requirements estimated as Kenya Shillings
2,747,179.36 (20% of EE/Budget) equivalent for the subject
contract(s) net of the Tenderer’s other commitments.

(ii) The Tenderers shall also demonstrate, to the satisfaction of the
Procuring Entity, that it has adequate sources of finance to meet
the cash flow requirements on works currently in progress and for
future contract commitments.

(iii) The audited balance sheets or, if not required by the laws of
the Tenderer’s country, other financial statements acceptable to
the Procuring Entity, for the last two (2) years shall be submitted
and must demonstrate the current soundness of the Tenderer’s
financial position and indicate its prospective long-term
profitability.

ICPAK and one of the Direcfors
e Financial Ratios
Computation shall be
made for the following
Ratios
~Working Capital
- Debft fo Equity Ratio
- Currenft ratio
- Operating
Flow ratio
e [Line of Credit
e PBank statements
o [fc

Affachments include:

Cash

e Audifed accounts
All pages must be initialed
and stamped by both a
practicing Audifor registered
with ICPAK and one of the
Directors. Audifor’s practicing
membership number from
ICPAK must be indicated and
a valid practicing license shall
be provided.
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Le. three (3) contracts, each of minimum value Kenya shillings
of Kshs. 6,867,900.00 (50% of EE/ budget) equivalent.

The similarity shall be based on the physical size, complexity,
methods/technology or other characteristics

e [for subcontracts and
entry level bidders
provide the following;

a) Award lefter of the
mainconftractor

b)  Award letfer of the
subcontract.

c) Completion letter of
thesubconfract.

d) Witnessed Subcontract
agreement.

e) Confirmation letter of
sub-~contract from
Resident Fngineer.

1 2 3 4 5
Item No. Qualification Qualification Requirement Document To be Completed For Procuring Entity’s
Subject by Tenderer Use (Qualification met
or Not Met)
The tinancial statements shall
contform fo the International
Financial Reporting Standards
(IRFS)
12 Average Annual | Minimum average annual construction turnover of Kenya | Form FIN — 3.2
Construction 6,867,900.00 (Equivalent fo 50% of the Budget/FE) , equivalent
Turnover calculated as total certified payments received for contracts in | Affachments include
progress and/or completed within the last Three(3) years, divided | Financial Statements,
by Three (3) years Payment Certificates
Experience
13 General Experience under construction contracts in the role of prime | 4. Form EXP — 4.1
Construction contractor, JV member, sub-contractor, or management | Experience
Experience contractor for at least the last five (5) years.
14 Specific A minimum number of three (3) similar contracts specified below | Form EXP 4.2(a)
Construction & that have been satisfactorily and substantially completed as a | ¢  Provide Letters of
Contract prime contractor, joint venture member, management contractor Award and Completion
Management or sub-contractor in the last 3 years prior to the applications Certificates
Experience submission deadline.
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1

2

3

4

5

Item No.

Qualification
Subject

Qualification Requirement

Document To be Completed
by Tenderer

For Procuring Enftity’s
Use (Qualification met
or Not Met)

Key Personnel

Capability

15

The site staff shall possess
minimum levels set below NB: Attachment of CVs and certified
copies Academic Certificates for all staffis mandatory; (Certification
by Commissioner of Qaths)

Section IV; Schedule F

Head Office

List of professional and technical staff and their resume in
accordance with Sub-Clause 19 of GCC section VI

At least 1No. Personnel be based at HQ

Qualification: Diploma/Degree in Finance or Human Resource
Management.

General Experience: 5 years

Specific Experience in similar works: 3 years

Section IV; Schedule F

Roads Manager

Qualification: Bsc. in Civil Engineering.
General Experience: 5 years
Specific Experience in similar works: 3 years

MUST be trained on PBC by KIHBT.
Registered with Engineers Board of Kenya (EBK).
Registered with Institution of Engineers of Kenya (IEK).

Section IV; Schedule F

Senior Foremen
2 NO

Qualification: Diploma in Civil Engineering.
General Experience: 5 years
Specific Experience in similar works: 3 years

Registered with Kenya Engineering Technologist Registration
Board.

Registered with Institution of Engineering Technologists and
Technicians.

Section IV; Schedule F

Equipment

1o

Contractor's
Equipment

~ Bidder shall provide evidence of ownership whether owned or
leased (except those from Mechanical & Transport Department
(MOTIHUD)

~ Those hiring shall provide certified copies of Lease Agreement

Form EQU and Equipment
Table (9) below
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1

2

3

4

5

Item No.

Qualification
Subject

Qualification Requirement

Document To be Completed
by Tenderer

For Procuring Enftity’s
Use (Qualification met
or Not Met)

Valid for the current FY 2025~2026.

Work Methodology

17

Work
Methodology

Submission of a brief work methodology giving a brief
description of how you intend to carry out the work including;
Signed resourced work programme chart on A3 SHEET with
SUPERIMPOSED cash flow projection, traffic management,
quality assurance of works and general Site organization in not
less than three (3) pages and not more than five (5) pages (typed,
font 12 and single spaced).

Further, the methodology should include the followin%:

a) Procedure on execution of activities as outlined in the BoQs

b) Allocation of machinery/labor in execution the activities

c) Procedures in quality control of the activities described in BoQs

d) Provide a methodology on health and safety during the
construction period.

e) Personal protective equipment

f) Signage

g) Delineation of construction and passage of traffic Passage of
traffic at night

h) Site Organization.

1) Risk Management

i( Environmental Management

) Traffic Management

Section IV; Schedule B &
Schedule E

26.Current Co

mmitments

On-going
contracts

The total value of outstanding works on the on-going contracts
must not exceed the average annual turnover for the last two
years.

Form FIN -~ 3.4

POST QUALIFI

CATION:

The procuring entity may verify the documents provided by the bidder with the issuing authority.
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10. CONTRACTOR'S EQUIPMENT.
The Bidder shall indicate the core plant and equipment considered by the company to be necessary for
undertaking the project together with proof of ownership or lease of the same. The lease must be current i.e. dated
from FY 2025 ~ 2026. Leases which are out dated will not be accepted. (* Mandatory minimum number of
equipment required by the Employer for the execution of the project that the bidder shall make available for the
Contract).

Item Equipment Details Ideal No. of | No. of equipment | No. of | Date of
No. Number | Equipment | to be | equipment | Arrival on
Required | Owned by | hired/purchased | to be made | Project
for  the | the Bidder | by the Bidder available (Days after
Contract for the | commence)
Execution Contract
by the
Bidder
A) Concrete
Equipment
(i) Mobile concrete 1
mixers
(ii)) Concrete 1
vibrators
B) Transport (Tippers,
dumpers, water
tankers)
(1) 6 X 4 tippers
payload 16 — 20 3
tones
(i) Water tankers
(18,000 — 20,000 1
Its. capacity)
C) Earth — Moving
Equipment
(i) Wheeled loaders 1
(i) Motor graders (93 1
- 205kW)
D) Excavators
1. Hydraulic crawler
mounted (7 — 10
tonnes) — 0.25 — ~
0.4 m3 SAE
bucket.
E) Rollers
(i) Self-propelled 1
single drum
vibrating (various
types)
(i) Pneumatic Roller 1
F) F) Others
(i) Paver 1
(ii) Pot hole cutter 1
(iii) Hand sprayer 1
(iv) Pedestrian Roller 1

I certify that the above information is correct.

Signature of Tenderer: .........c.ccooviiiiiiiiiiina... Date: ..o
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11.  .FINANCIAL

The tenders that pass the technical assessment shall be subjected to costs comparison. The Best Evaluated
Tender shall be determined as the Tender of the Tenderer that meets the Qualification Criteria and whose
Tender has been determined to be:

¢)  Most responsive to the tendering document; and

d) The lowest evaluated cost.
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SECTION IV-TENDERING FORMS
FORM OF TENDER

INSTRUCTION TO TENDERERS
(i)  The Tenderer must prepare this Form of Tender on stationery with its letterhead clearly showing the
Tenderer's complete name and business address.

(i)  All italicized text is to help Tenderer in preparing this form.

(iii) Tenderer must complete and sign and TENDERER'S ELIGIBILITY~ CONFIDENTIAL BUSINESS
QUESTIONNAIRE, CERTIFICATE OF INDEPENDENT TENDER DETERMINATION and the SELF
DECLARATION OF THE TENDERER, all attached to this Form of Tender.

iv)  The Form of Tender shall include the following Forms duly completed and signed by the Tenderer.

A) Tenderer's Eligibility~- Confidential Business Questionnaire

B) Certificate of Independent Tender Determination

@) Self-Declaration of the Tenderer

FORM OF TENDER

Date of this Tender SUbDMISSION: ......c.eiviiiiiiiiiiiiiiieieieeanaas [Insert date
(as day, month and year) of Tender submission] Invitation to Tender No.: /[insert
identification/ Alternative No.: [insert identification No if this is a Tender for an
alternative/

To:

We, the undersigned, declare that:

a) No reservations: We have examined and have no reservations to the tendering
document, including Addenda issued in accordance with Instructions to Tenderers
(ITD);

b) Eligibility: We meet the eligibility requirements and have no conflict of interest in accordance with
ITT4;

c) Tender-Securing Declaration: We have not been suspended nor declared ineligible by
the Procuring Entity based on execution of a Tender-Securing Declaration or Proposal-~
Securing Declaration in Kenya in accordance with ITT 4.8.

d) Conformity: We offer to execute in conformity with the tendering document and in accordance
with the construction or service schedule the following Works:

[Insert one of the options below as appropriate/

e) Tender Price: The total price of our Tender, excluding any discounts offered in item (f) below is:

Description Amount (in
numbers)

(a)Maintenance Services in an amount of
.......................................................................................... [amount
in words] [name of currency.
(b) Rehabilitation Works in an amount of
.......................................................................................... [amount

in words] [name of currencyl].
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(c)Improvement Works in an amount of N/A
ceeeeneenen. [amount
in words] [name of currencyl/.
A. SUB-TOTAL = (a) + (b) + ()
(d) Emergency Works in an amount of | N/A
......................................................................................... [amount
in words] [name of currencyl/.
B. TOTAL = A + (d)
(Insert amount in words)
f) Combpined Price: We hereby confirm that our combined price for Rehabilitation Works and

Improvement Works does not exceed the threshold given in the TDS ITT 34.5.
2) Tender Price: The total price, excluding any discounts offered in item (f) below is:

h) Discounts: The discounts offered and the methodology for their application are:

i) The discounts offered are: ...........ccooviiiiiiiiiiiiin... [Specity in detail each discount
offered.]
i) The exact method of calculations to determine the net price after application of discounts
is shown
below

................................................................................................ [Specity in
detail the

method that shall be used to apply the discounts/;

i) We agree to adhere by this tender until ...................c [Insert date/, and it shall remain binding
upon us and may be accepted at any time before that date.

Jj)  Tender Validity FPeriod: Our Tender shall be valid for a period specified in TDS 18.1 (or as amended if
applicable) from the date fixed for the Tender submission deadline specified in TDS 22.1 (or as
amended if applicable), and it shall remain binding upon us and may be accepted at any time before
the expiration of that period;

k) Performance Security: If our Tender is accepted, we commit fo obtain a Performance Security in
accordance with the fendering document;

1)  One Tender per Tenderer: We are not submitting any other Tender (s) as an individual Tenderer, and we
are not participating in any other Tender(s) as a Joint Venture member or as a subcontractor, and meet
the requirements of ITT 4.4, other than alternative Tenders submitted in accordance with ITT 13;

m) Suspension and Debarment: We, along with any of our subcontractors, suppliers, consultants,
manufacturers, or service providers for any part of the contract, are not subject to, and noft controlled
by any entity or individual that is subject fo, a temporary suspension or a debarment imposed by the
Procuring Entity. Further, we are not ineligible under Kenya laws or official regulations or pursuant
fo a decision of the United Nations Security Council;

n) State-owned enterprise or institution: [select the appropriate option and delete the other/ [We are not a
state~-owned enfterprise or institution/ /' [We are a state~-owned enterprise or institution but meet the
requirements of ITT 4.7/;

o) Commissions, gratuities and fees: We have paid, or will pay the following commissions, gratuities, or fees
with respect fo the Tendering process or execution of the Confract: [insert complete name of each
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Recipient, its tull address, the reason for which each commission or gratuity was paid and the amount
and currency of each such commission or gratuity/.
Name of Recipient Address Reason Amount

(If none has been paid or is to be paid, indicate “none.”).

p) Binding Confract: We understand that this Tender, fogether with your written acceptance thereof
included in your Form of Acceptance, shall constitute a binding contract between us, until a formal
contract is prepared and executed;

q) Not Bound fo Accept: We understand that you are not bound fo accept the lowest evaluated cost Tender,
the Best Evaluated Tender or any other Tender that you may receive;

r) Fraud and Corruption: We hereby certify that we have taken steps fo ensure that no person acting for us
or on our behalf engages in any type of Fraud and Corruption;

s) Collusive practices: We hereby certify and confirm that the tender is genuine, non-collusive and made
with the infention of accepting the contract if awarded. To this effect we have signed the “Certificate
of Independent Tender Determination” attached below.

1) We undertake to adhere by the Code of Ethics for Persons Participating in Public Procurement and
Asset Disposal, copy available from_www.ppra.go.ke during the procurement process and the
execution of any resulting contract.

S) We, the Tenderer, have completed fully and signed the following Forms as part of our Tender:

a) Tenderer's Eligibility; Confidential Business Questionnaire — to establish we are not in any
conflict to interest.

b) Certificate of Independent Tender Determination — to declare that we completed the tender
without colluding with other tenderers.

a) Self-Declaration of the Tenderer — to declare that we will, if awarded a contract, not engage
in any form of fraud and corruption.

b) Declaration and commitment to the Code of Ethics for Persons Participating in Public
Procurement and Asset Disposal.

t) Further, we confirm that we have read and understood the full content and scope of fraud and
corruption as informed in “Appendix 1- Fraud and Corruption” attached to the Form of Tender.
Name of the TENAETET: ... .o.u i e *[insert

complete name of person signing the Tender]

Name of the person duly authorized to sign the Tender on behalf of the Tenderer:
complete name of person duly authorized to sign the Tender]

Title of the person signing the

30T 1 [insert complete title of the
person signing the Tender]

Signature of the person named above: .........ooeiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii e, [insert
signature of person whose name and capacity are shown above]

Date signed: ............ [insert date of signing] day of ............... [insert month],

.................. [insert year]

Name in the capacity of

Signed

Duly authorized to sign the Tender for and on behalf of
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Dated on day of R

(A) TENDERER'S ELIGIBILITY ~ CONFIDENTIAL BUSINESS QUESTIONNAIRE
Instruction to Tenderer

Tender is instructed to complete the particulars required in this Form, one form for each entity if Tender is a
JV. Tenderer is further reminded that it is an offence to give false information on this Form.

a) Tenderer's details

ITEM DESCRIPTION
Name of the Procuring Entity

Reference Number of the Tender

Date and Time of Tender Opening

Name of the Tenderer
Full Address and Contact Details of the
Tenderer.

Q1| W DN =

Country

City

Location

Building

Floor

Postal Address

Name and email of contact person.

NS T RN

6 Current Trade License Registration
Number and Expiring date

7 Name, country and full address (postal
and physical addresses, email, and
tfelephone number) of Registering
Body/Agency

8 Description of Nature of Business

9 Maximum value of business which the
Tenderer handles.

10 State if Tenders Company is listed in

stock exchange, give name and full
address (postal and physical addresses,
email, and felephone number) of

state which stock exchange

b) Sole Proprietor, provide the following details.

Name in full Age

Nationality Country of Origin

Citizenship

¢) Partnership, provide the following details.

Names of Partners Nationality Citizenship % Shares
owned

WIN|—
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d) Registered Company, provide the following details.

i)  Private or public Company

ii) State the nominal and issued capital of the Company-
Nominal Kenya Shillings (EQUIVALENT).....cc.cocuiriiiiiriiiniiierieierteseet ettt ettt sae st sae s et sae s e saesaeens
Issued Kenya Shillings (EQUIVAIEINE).....c.coueciiiriiiriiriiiniiireietetcteeteterct ettt et ettt ettt

iii) Give details of Directors as follows.

Names of Director Nationality Citizenship % Shares owned

WIN|—

¢) DISCLOSURE OF INTEREST - Interest of the Firm in the Procuring Entity.

1) Are there any persON/PErSONS I1. .. .u.utenu ettt e eaeanes (Name
of Procuring Entify) who has/have an interest or relationship in this firm?
Yes/NO..uiuiiiiiiiiiiienean,

If yes, provide details as follows.
Names of Person Designation in the Interest or Relationship with
Procuring Entity Tenderer

WIN|—

i)  Conflict of Interest Disclosure

Type of Conflict Disclosure If YES provide details of the
YES OR NO relationship with Tenderer

1 | Tenderer is directly or indirectly controls, is
controlled by or is under common control with
another tenderer.

2 | Tenderer receives or has received any direct or
indirect subsidy from another tenderer.

3 | Tenderer has the same legal representative as
another tenderer

4 | Tender has a relationship09+9 with another
tenderer, directly or through common third
parties, that puts it in a position to influence the
tender of another tenderer, or influence the
decisions of the Procuring Entity regarding this
tendering process.

5 | Any of the Tenderer’s affiliates participated as a
consultant in the preparation of the design or
technical specifications of the works that are the
subject of the tender.

6 | Tenderer would be providing goods, works,
non-~consulting services or consulting services
during implementation of the contract specified
in this Tender Document.

7 Tenderer has a close business or family
relationship with a professional staff of the
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Type of Conflict Disclosure If YES provide details of the
YES ORNO relationship with Tenderer

Procuring Entity who are directly or indirectly
involved in the preparation of the Tender
document or specifications of the Contract,
and/or the Tender evaluation process of such
contract.

8 Tenderer has a close business or family
relationship with a professional staff of the
Procuring Entity who would be involved in
the implementation or supervision of the such
Contract.

9 Has the conflict stemming from such
relationship stated in item 7 and 8 above been
resolved in a manner acceptable to the
Procuring Entity throughout the tendering
process and execution of the Contract.

f)  Certification

On behalf of the Tenderer, I certify that the information given above is complete, current and accurate as at the
date of submission.

Full Name

Title or Designation

(Signature) (Date)
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(B)  CERTIFICATE OF INDEPENDENT TENDER DETERMINATION

I, the undersigned, in submitting the accompanying Letter of Tender to the

[Name of Procuring Entity] for:
[Name

and number of tender]| in response to the request for tenders made by:
[Name

of Tenderer| do hereby make the following statements that I certify to be true and complete in every respect:

I certify, on behalf of [Name of Tenderer] that:

L. I have read and I understand the contents of this Certificate;

2. I understand that the Tender will be disqualified if this Certificate is found not to be true and
complete in every respect;

3. I am the authorized representative of the Tenderer with authority to sign this Certificate, and to
submit the Tender on behalf of the Tenderer;

4, For the purposes of this Certificate and the Tender, I understand that the word “competitor” shall
include any individual or organization, other than the Tenderer, whether or not affiliated with the
Tenderer, who:

a) Has been requested to submit a Tender in response to this request for tenders;

b) could potentially submit a tender in response to this request for tenders, based on their
qualifications, abilities or experience;

5. The Tenderer discloses that [check one of the following, as applicable]:

a) The Tenderer has arrived at the Tender independently from, and without consultation,
communication, agreement or arrangement with, any competitor;

b) the Tenderer has entered into consultations, communications, agreements or arrangements with
one or more competitors regarding this request for tenders, and the Tenderer discloses, in the
attached document(s), complete details thereof, including the names of the competitors and the
nature of, and reasons for, such consultations, communications, agreements or arrangements;

6. In particular, without limiting the generality of paragraphs (5) (a) or (5) (b) above, there has been
no consultation, communication, agreement or arrangement with any competitor regarding;:

a) prices;
b) methods, factors or formulas used to calculate prices;
¢) the intention or decision to submit, or not to submit, a tender; or

d) the submission of a tender which does not meet the specifications of the request for Tenders;
except as specifically disclosed pursuant to paragraph (5) (b) above;

7. In addition, there has been no consultation, communication, agreement or arrangement with any
competitor regarding the quality, quantity, specifications or delivery particulars of the works or
services to which this request for tenders relates, except as specifically authorized by the procuring
authority or as specifically disclosed pursuant to paragraph (5) (b) above;

8. the terms of the Tender have not been, and will not be, knowingly disclosed by the Tenderer, directly
or indirectly, to any competitor, prior to the date and time of the official tender opening, or of the
awarding of the Contract, whichever comes first, unless otherwise required by law or as specifically
disclosed pursuant to paragraph (5) (b) above.
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Name

Title

Date

[Name, title and signature of authorized agent of Tenderer and Date]
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¢) SELF-DECLARATION FORMS
FORM SD1

SELF DECLARATION THAT THE PERSON/TENDERER IS NOT DEBARRED IN THE MATTER OF THE PUBLIC
PROCUREMENT AND ASSET DISPOSAL ACT 2015

L e , Of Post Office BOX....c.ceerueruenenenenenenenerene being a resident of
.............................................. in the Republic Of.........cccecevrerrcenvccerncnencnen...do hereby make a statement as follows:

1. THAT I am the Company Secretary/ Chief Executive/Managing Director/Principal Officer/Director of
................................................... (insert name of the Company) who is a Bidder in respect of

Tender
NO.eeeeeeeereeeeeeeene O e s bt s r e st re e nee (a
nsert tender title/description) for................ veeeen... (insert

name of the Procuring entity) and duly authonzed and competent to make thls statement

2 THAT the aforesaid Bidder, its Directors and subcontractors have not been debarred from
participating in procurement proceeding under Part IV of the Act.

3. THAT what is deponed to herein above is true to the best of my knowledge, information and belief.

(Title) (Signature) (Date)

Bidder Official Stamp
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FORM SD2

SELF DECLARATION THAT THE TENDERER WILL NOT ENGAGE IN ANY CORRUPT OR FRAUDULENT
PRACTICE

L e Of P. O. BOXuuuiiiririnirenenenceiceceenee being a resident of
............................................... in the Republic Of.........ccccevverevviercenieneennneeenee.do hereby make a statement as
follows: -

1. THAT I am the Chief Executive/Managing Director/Principal Officer/Director
Of et
.............................. (insert name of the Company) who is a Bidder in respect of Tender No.
....................... fOF e e e een . (nnser ! fendler
HHle/deSCEIDIION) O ... i e
(insert name of the Procuring entity) and duly authorized and competent to make this statement.

2 THAT the aforesaid Bidder, its servants and/or agents /subcontractors will not engage in any corrupt
or fraudulent practice and has not been requested to pay any inducement to any member of the Board,
Management, Staff and/or employees and/or agents of
............................................................................................... (insert name of the

Procuring entity) which is the procuring entity.

3 THAT the aforesaid Bidder, its servants and/or agents /subcontractors have not offered any inducement
to any member of the Board, Management, Staff and/or employees and/or agents
OF e e e (name of the procuring
entity).

4 THAT the aforesaid Bidder will not engage/has not engaged in any corrosive practice with other
bidders participating in the subject tender

5. THAT what is deponed to herein above is true to the best of my knowledge information and belief.

i) (slgnature) (Date)

Bidder's Official Stamp
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DECLARATION AND COMMITMENT TO THE CODE OF ETHICS

L ettt ettt ettt be et et sbesaee b s (person) on behalf of (Name of the
Business/ ComMPANY/FITTN) ....c.cceeuerierierenienienienieniestesestestestessessessessessessessessessessensessessessensensens declare that 1 have
read and fully understood the contents of the Public Procurement & Asset Disposal Act, 2015, Regulations
and the Code of Ethics for persons participating in Public Procurement and Asset Disposal and my
responsibilities under the Code.

I do hereby commit to abide by the provisions of the Code of Ethics for persons participating in Public
Procurement and Asset Disposal.

Name of AULNOTIZE SIZNATOTY ......ouiriiiiiiiiirtiieereetc ettt ettt ettt b et ettt e b et b et be bt b nene

(Company Seal/ Rubber Stamp where applicable)

Witness
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D) APPENDIX 1-FRAUD AND CORRUPTION
(Appendix 1 shall not be modified)
1. Purpose

1.1 The Government of Kenya's Anti~Corruption and Economic Crime laws and their sanction's policies
and procedures, Public Procurement and Asset Disposal Act (no. 33 of 2015) and its Regulation,
and any other Kenya's Acts or Regulations related to Fraud and Corruption, and similar offences,
shall apply with respect to Public Procurement Processes and Contracts that are governed by the
laws of Kenya.

2. Requirements

2.1 The Government of Kenya requires that all parties including Procuring Entities, Tenderers,
(applicants/proposers), Consultants, Contractors and Suppliers; any Sub-contractors, Sub-
consultants, Service providers or Suppliers; any Agents (Whether declared or not); and any of their
Personnel, involved and engaged in procurement under Kenya's Laws and Regulation, observe the
highest standard of ethics during the procurement process, selection and contract execution of all
contracts, and refrain from Fraud and Corruption and fully comply with Kenya's laws and
Regulations as per paragraphs 1.1 above.

2.2 Kenya's public procurement and asset disposal act (no. 33 of 2015) under Section 66 describes
rules to be followed and actions to be taken in dealing with Corrupt, Coercive, Obstructive,
Collusive or Fraudulent practices, and Conflicts of Interest in procurement including consequences
for offences committed. A few of the provisions noted below highlight Kenya's policy of no
tolerance for such practices and behavior:

1 A person to whom this Act applies shall not be involved in any corrupt, coercive, obstructive,

collusive or fraudulent practice; or conflicts of interest in any procurement or asset disposal
proceeding;

2 Aperson referred to under subsection (1) who contravenes the provisions of that sub-section
commits an offence;

3 Without limiting the generality of the subsection (1) and (2), the person shall be—
a disqualified from entering into a contract for a procurement or asset disposal proceeding; or
if a contract has already been entered into with the person, the contract shall be voidable;

4 The voiding of a contract by the procuring entity under subsection (7) does not limit any legal
remedy the procuring entity may have;

5  An employee or agent of the procuring entity or a member of the Board or committee of the
procuring entity who has a conflict of interest with respect to a procurement—

i. Shall not take part in the procurement proceedings;

ii. Shall not, after a procurement contract has been entered into, take part in any decision
relating to the procurement or contract; and

iii. Shall not be a subcontract or for the bidder to whom was awarded contract, or a
member of the group of bidders to whom the contract was awarded, but the
subcontractor appointed shall meet all the requirements of this Act.

6  Anemployee, agent or member described in subsection (1) who refrains from doing anything
prohibited under that subsection, but for that subsection, would have been with in his or her
duties shall conflict of interest to the procuring entity;

7  If a person contravenes subsection (1) with respect to a conflict of interest described in
subsection (5) (a) and the contract is awarded to the person or his relative or to another
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person in whom one of them had a direct or indirect pecuniary interest, the contract shall be
terminated and all costs incurred by the public entity shall be made good by the awarding
officer. Etc.

2.3 In compliance with Kenya's laws, regulations and policies mentioned above, the Procuring Entity:

a)  Defines broadly, for the purposes of the above provisions, the terms set forth below as follows:

i)  “corrupt practice” is the offering, giving, receiving, or soliciting, directly or indirectly, of
anything of value to influence improperly the actions of another party;

ii) “fraudulent practice” is any act or omission, including misrepresentation, that knowingly
or recklessly misleads, or attempts to mislead, a party to obtain financial or other benefit or
to avoid an obligation;

iii) “collusive practice” is an arrangement between two or more parties designed to achieve an
improper purpose, including to influence improperly the actions of another party;

iv) “coercive practice” is impairing or harming, or threatening to impair or harm, directly or
indirectly, any party or the property of the party to influence improperly the actions of a
party;

v)  “obstructive practice” is:

« Deliberately destroying, falsifying, altering, or concealing of evidence material to the
investigation or making false statements to investigators in order to materially impede
investigation by Public Procurement Regulatory Authority (PPRA) or any other
appropriate authority appointed by Government of Kenya into allegations of a corrupt,
fraudulent, coercive, or collusive practice; and/or threatening, harassing, or intimidating
any party to prevent it from disclosing its knowledge of matters relevant to the
investigation or from pursuing the investigation; or

« Acts intended to materially impede the exercise of the PPRA's or the appointed authority's
inspection and audit rights provided for under paragraph 2.3 e. below.

b)  Defines more specifically, in accordance with the above procurement Act provisions set forth
for fraudulent and collusive practices as follows:

"fraudulent practice" includes a misrepresentation of fact in order to influence a procurement or
disposal process or the exercise of a contract to the detriment of the procuring entity or the
tenderer or the contractor, and includes collusive practices amongst tenderers prior to or
after tender submission designed to establish tender prices at artificial non-~competitive levels
and to deprive the procuring entity of the benefits of free and open competition.

¢)  Rejects a proposal for awardl of a contract if PPRA determines that the firm or individual
recommended for award, any of its personnel, or its agents, or its sub-consultants, sub-~
contractors, service providers, suppliers and/ or their employees, has, directly or indirectly,
engaged in corrupt, fraudulent, collusive, coercive, or obstructive practices in competing for
the contract in question;

d)  Pursuant to the Kenya's above stated Acts and Regulations, may sanction recommend to
appropriate authority(ies) for sanctioning and debarment of a firm or individual, as
applicable under the Acts and Regulations;

¢)  Requires that a clause be included in Tender documents and Request for Proposal documents
requiring (i) Tenderers (applicants/proposers), Consultants, Contractors, and Suppliers, and
their Sub-contractors, Sub-~ consultants, Service providers, Suppliers, Agents personnel,
permit the PPRA or any other appropriate authority, records and other documents relating
to the procurement process, selection and/or contract execution, and to have the audited by
auditors appointed by the PPRA or any other appropriate authority appointed by Government
of Kenya; and

f) Pursuant to Section 62 of the above Act, requires Applicants/Tenderers to submit along with
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their Applications/Tenders/Proposals a “Self-Declaration Form” as included in the
procurement document declaring that they and all parties involved in the procurement
process and contract execution have not engaged/will not engage in any corrupt or
fraudulent practices.

Name of Authorized SIZNatory. ... ....ooouiit it

D) Lo 4215 1 ) ¢

Signature, Date and STAMP. ... ... e

! For the avoidance of doubt, a party's ineligibility fo be awarded a contract shall include, without

limitation, (i) applying for pre-qualification, expressing inferest in a consultancy, and tendering, either
directly or as a nominated sub-confractor, nominated consulfant, nominated manufacturer or supplier, or
nominated service provider, in respect of such contract, and (ii) entering into an addendum or amendment
infroducing a material modification fo any existing contract.

Zlnspecz‘zbns in this context usually are investigative (i.e., forensic) in nature. They involve factfinding
activities undertaken by the Investigating Authority or persons appointed by the Procuring Entity fo
address specific matters related fo investigations/audits, such as evaluating the veracity of an allegation
of possible Fraud and Corruption, through the appropriate mechanisms. Such activity includes buft is not
limited fo: accessing and examining a firm's or individual’s financial records and information, and
making copies thereof as relevant; accessing and examining any other documents, data and information
(Whether in hard copy or electronic format) deemed relevant for the investigation/audit, and making
copies thereof as relevant; interviewing statf and other relevant individuals; performing physical
inspections and site visits; and obtaining third party verification of information.
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COMMITMENT TO PROVIDE BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP INFORMATION

L s e eeeeees. Of PO O BOX i being a
resident of ... in the Republic of ................... do hereby make a state as
follows: -

I.THAT 1 am the Chief Executive Officer/Managing Director/Principal Officer/Director/

Authorized OffiCer Of.....coouiiiiiniiie e (Insert name of the Company) who
is a Bidder in respect of Tender NO..........cccevevenennn. for i (Insert tender
title/description) advertised by .................. (Insert name of the Procuring entity) (the Procuring

Entity) and duly authorized and competent to make this statement.

2. THAT I do hereby commit to provide Beneficial Ownership Information in conformity with the Beneficial
Ownership Disclosure Form to the procuring entity upon receipt of notification of award in the event we
are the successful tenderer in this subject procurement proceeding. I fully understand that failure to
furnish the procuring entity with the Beneficial Ownership Information within the period provided for
in the letter of award shall invalidate my award and may considered as refusal to enter into a written

contract which is punishable under Section 41(1) (e ) of the Public Procurement and Asset Disposal Act,
2015.

Name Of the FIrm/ COMPANY ........uiuiitiiiit ettt e e e et et e et et ae et eateaneenane
Registered Physical Address of the COMPaANY.........ovuiiiiiiiiiiiii e e
POSEA AQATESS. .. ettt e e e e e e
Telephone NO......c.vvvviiiiiiiiiiiieeieeanen MObile NUIMDET .......uiiiieieieieeieseeieeeee et
EMAIL AQATESS .. neneeet et e e e et
Name of AULhOTISEd SIZNATOTY ... ..ttt et ae e
D) Co 4215 1 ) ¢

o 4 o) 2 P

WIENESSEA DY .. eeen et e e e e et et

SIZNALUTE OF WIENESS. ... e ettt ettt et ettt ettt ettt et et e e et e eeaaeeeennans
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BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP DISCLOSURE FORM

arrangement.

INSTRUCTIONS TO TENDERERS: DELETE THIS BOX ONCE YOU HAVE COMPLETED THE FORM

This Beneficial Ownership Disclosure Form (“Form”) is to be completed by the successful tenderer pursuant to Regulation 4 of the Companies (Beneficial Ownership
Information) (Amendment) Regulations, 2022. In case of joint venture, the tenderer must submit a separate Form for each member. The beneficial ownership
information to be submitted in this Form shall be current as of the date of its submission.

For the purposes of this Form, a Beneficial Owner of a Tenderer is any natural person who ultimately owns or controls the legal person (tenderer) or arrangements
or a natural person on whose behalf a transaction is conducted, and includes those persons who exercise ultimate effective control over a legal person (Tenderer) or

Tender Reference No.:

[insert name of the assignment] to.____[insert complete name of Procuring Entity]

[insert identification no] Name of the Tender Title/Description:

In response to the requirement in your notification of award dated__ [insert date of notification of award] to furnish additional information on beneficial ownership:

I) Wehere by provide the following beneficial ownership information.

Details of beneficial ownership

[select one option as applicable and delete the options that are not applicable]

Details of all Beneficial Owners % of shares a person % of voting rights a Directly or indirectly directly or
holds in the company person holds in the having the right to appoint | indirectly exercises
Directly or indirectly company a majority of the board of | significant
the directors or an influence or control
equivalent governing body | over the tenderer
of the Tenderer (Yes / No) | /company (Yes /
No)
Full Name Directly~~~~~~~~~~~ Directly................ %
0 e
National identity card number or % of shares of voting rights
Passport number
1 0,
L. Personal Identification Number . Ior;cggteiitlyri hts %
(where applicable) Indirectly---------- e
% of shares
Nationality
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Details of all Beneficial Owners % of shares a person % of voting rights a Directly or indirectly directly or
holds in the company person holds in the having the right to appoint | indirectly exercises
Directly or indirectly company a majority of the board of | significant
the directors or an influence or control
equivalent governing body | over the tenderer
of the Tenderer (Yes / No) | /company (Yes /
No)
Date of birth /dd/mm/yyyy/
Postal address
Residential address
Telephone number
Email address
Occupation or profession
2. Full Name Directly~~~~~~~~~~~ Directly................ %
0 e
National identity card number or % of shares of voting rights
Passport number
Indirectly~~~~~~~~~~ 9
Personal Identification Number . Or;c\i;sficrf gyri ahts A
(where applicable) Indirectly----------
% of shares
Nationality
Date of birth /dd/mm/yyyy/
Postal address
Residential address
Telephone number
Email address
Occupation or profession
3. Details of all Beneficial Owners % of shares a person % of voting rights a Directly or indirectly directly or
holds in the company person holds in the having the right to appoint | indirectly exercises
eto Directly or indirectly | company a majority of the board of | significant
- the directors or an influence or control
equivalent governing body | over the tenderer

of the Tenderer (Yes / No)

/company (Yes /
No)
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Details of all Beneficial Owners % of shares a person
holds in the company
Directly or indirectly

% of voting rights a
person holds in the
company

Directly or indirectly
having the right to appoint
a majority of the board of
the directors or an
equivalent governing body
of the Tenderer (Yes / No)

directly or
indirectly exercises
significant
influence or control
over the tenderer
/company (Yes /
No)

II) Am fully aware that beneficial ownership information above shall be reported to the Public Procurement Regulatory Authority together with other details in relation to
contract awards and shall be maintained in the Government Portal, published and made publicly available pursuant to Regulation 5 of the Companies (Beneficial Ownership

Information) (Amendment) Regulations, 2022

IIT) What is stated to herein above is true to the best of my knowledge, information and belief.

Name of the Tenderer: ....................... *[insert complete name of the Tenderer]

Name of the person duly authorized to sign the Tender on behalf of the Tenderer: ** [insert complete name of person duly authorized to sign the Tender]

Designation of the person signing the Tender: ....................... [insert complete title of the person signing the Tender]
Signature of the person named above: ....................... [insert signature of person whose name and capacity are shown above]
Date this ..................... [insert date of signing] day of....................... [Insert month], [insert year]
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BILLS OF QUANTITIES
The tender includes the following Bills of Quantities:

i) Bills of Quantities for Maintenance Services
i) Bills of Quantities for Rehabilitation Works (if those are required under the contract)
iii)  Bills of Quantities for Improvement Works (if those are required under the contract)

iv)  Bills of Quantities for Emergency Works
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A.  Bills of Quantities for Maintenance Services

L The Bills of Quantities for Maintenance Services shall be read in conjunction with the Instructions to
Tenderers, Conditions of Contract, Specifications and the Drawings.

2 This Bills of Quantities is the basis for payment of maintenance services that are to be provided on a
lump sum per km basis for maintaining the roads covered under the contract, at the Service Levels
defined in the Specifications. The rates given by the Tenderer shall, except insofar as is otherwise
provided under the Contract, include all plant, equipment, labour, management and supervision,
materials, erection, maintenance, insurance, profit, taxes and duties, together with all general risks,
liabilities and obligations set out or implied in the Contract.

3. Payment shall be made in accordance with the actual performance of the Contractor and compliance
with the Service Level criteria given in the Specifications for each road. Failure to meet the Service
Levels will result in payment reductions in accordance with Clause 47 of the General Conditions and
the Performance Specifications.

4. The unit rates and prices shall be quoted entirely in local currency but payment will be made in the
proportions and currencies quoted in the Schedule of Adjustment Data.

5. A unit rate or price shall be entered by the Tenderer against each item in the Bill of Quantities. The
cost of items against which the Tenderer has failed to enter a unit rate or price shall be deemed to be
covered by other unit rates and prices entered in the Bill of Quantities.

0. General directions and descriptions of work and materials are not repeated or summarized in the Bill
of Quantities. References to the relevant sections of the Contract documentation shall be made before
entering rates or prices against each item in the Bill of Quantities.

7. The method of measurement of completed work for payment shall be in accordance with the
measurement and payment provisions of the relevant section in the Performance Specifications.

8 Arithmetical errors discovered prior to award of the Contract will be corrected by the Procuring Entity
pursuant to the Instructions to Tenderers.

KURA/RMLF/LE/142/2025-2026 Issued by Kenya Urban Roads Authority 65|Page



Tender Document Performance Based Routine Maintenance of Package 17 Roads

A. 1 Bill of Quantities and Unit Prices for Maintenance Services
[To be completed by the tenderer/

A.2 Bill of Quantities for Maintenance Services and their Prices

Bill of quantities and unit price for Maintenance Services (To be completed by the Tenderer)

Unit Price
(Ksh)

Description of services and Price

Unit Price Per KM per Month
This price is the full remuneration to the contractor to carry out the services and works required
in order to reach and maintain the service level described in the specifications and elsewhere in
the contract. It further includes the activities of the contractor related to self-control, quality
assurance and material testing

The Unit Price Per
KM per Month is:
Nofte: There may be either one unit price for all roads or road sections included in the contract or
different prices tor ditferent roads
UNIT PRICE PER AMOUNT
S/NO. | ROAD NAME LENGTH (KM) KM (KSH) (KSH)
1. Syokimau-Katani Road 5.07
2. Milolongo Access Road 1 1.21
3. Kiungani Road 4.74
4. Community Road 5.96
5. Syokimau Airport Road 7.37
6. Latte Close (Mwanainchi 369
Road
A. Sub-Total Per Month: 28.04
Number of Months 4
B. Sub Total (Sub Total A X No. of
months)
C. Add 16% of Sub Total (B) for
VAT
D. Add 0.03% of Sub-Total A for
Public Procurement Capacity
Building Levy
E. Total (Add B+C+D) carried to
Form of Tender

B. Bill of Quantities for Rehabilitation and Improvement Works

1. The Bills of Quantities for Rehabilitation Works and for Improvement Works shall be read in

conjunction with the Instructions to Tenderers, Conditions of Contract, Specifications and the
Drawings.

Bill of Quantities for Rehabilitation Works

2 The Bill of Quantities for Rehabilitation Works presents a number of explicit activities considered
necessary to rehabilitate particular road sections before some or all of the Service Level criteria for
performance-based maintenance defined in the Specifications can be applied. The Tenderer shall
undertake a detailed assessment of road conditions at the time of Tender. The location and extent of
the particular rehabilitation works considered necessary to reach required Service Levels shall be
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Tender Document Performance Based Routine Maintenance of Package 17 Roads

indicated by the Tenderer in his Tender submission.

3. Although the tendering document may show estimated quantities of Rehabilitation Works, it is the
responsibility of the Tenderer to prepare his own estimate for the quantity of work required for each
rehabilitation activity, and he shall indicate these quantities in the Bill of Quantities.

4 The Procuring Entity may in some cases indicate fixed quantities for some specific Rehabilitation
Works, such as asphalt resurfacing. Those cases are clearly indicated as such by the Procuring Entity
in the TDS Specifications and the Bill of Quantities for Rehabilitation Works.

5. Payment for Rehabilitation Works shall be made in relation to the work outputs satisfactorily
completed in conformity with the Specifications as measured by the Contractor and verified by the
Engineer, and valued at the unit rates and prices stated in the priced Bill of Quantities. The total price
for Rehabilitation Works and Improvement Works, if any, shall not exceed the threshold value or
percentage given by the Procuring Entity in the TDS.

Bill of Quantities for Improvement Works

6. The Bill of Quantities for Improvement Works lists a set of interventions to be carried out by the
contractor that add new characteristics to the Road in response to existing or new traffic, safety or
other conditions, as defined in the TDS and the Specifications.

7. Payment for Improvement Works shall be made in relation to the work items satisfactorily completed
in conformity with the Specifications, as measured by the Contractor and verified by the Engineer, and
valued at the unit rates and prices stated in the priced Bill of Quantities for Improvement Works.

General

8. The unit rates and prices Tender in the priced Bill of Quantities shall, except insofar as is otherwise
provided under the Contract, include all plant, equipment, labor, supervision, materials, erection,
maintenance, insurance, profit, taxes and duties, together with all general risks, liabilities and
obligations set out or implied in the Contract. Unit rates and prices shall also include the cost of
engineering design services, and measures needed to prevent or mitigate environmental impacts and
safety measures.

9. The unit rates and prices shall be quoted entirely in local currency but payment will be made in the
proportions and currencies quoted in the Schedule of Adjustments.

10. A quantity, unit rate or price shall only be entered against those work items considered necessary to
attain the required Service Levels and sustain such Service Levels thereafter through execution of
maintenance services that are provided for separately.

11. General directions and descriptions of work and materials are not repeated or summarized in the Bill
of Quantities. References to the relevant sections of the Contract documentation shall be made before
entering rates or prices against each item in the Bill of Quantities.

12. The method of measurement of completed work for payment shall be in accordance with the
measurement and payment provisions of the relevant section of the Specifications.

13. Arithmetical errors discovered prior to award of the Contract will be corrected by the Procuring Entity
pursuant to ITT 33.
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BILL NO. 1

PRELIMINARY & GENERAL ITEMS

ITEM CODE

Activity Description.

Unit

Billed Qty

Unit Bid
Rate (Ksh)

Bill Item Cost
Without VAT (Ksh)

01.80.010

Allow a prime cost of sum
for material testing as
directed by the Engineer

ITEM

80,000.00

80,000

01.80.011

Extra over item 01-80-010
for contractors’ overheads
and profits

%

80,000.00

01.80.026

Allow for RE's miscellaneous
account

ITEM

220,000.00

220,000

01.80.027

Extra over 01-80-026 for
profits and overheads

%

220,000.00

01.80.030

Allow for attendance to the
RE's supervisory staff
including overtime

ITEM

400,000.00

400,000

01.80.030b

Include percentage on item
01-80-030 for contractors
overhead and profit

%

400,000.00

Total of Bill Carried Forward to Summary

BILL 7

EXCAVATION & FILLING OF STRUCTURES

07.70.001

Excavate, Provide and place
200mm thick stone pitching
including back filling
grouting to outfall drains as
detailed in the drawings or
as directed by the Engineer

MZ

50

Total carried forward to Summary

BILL NO. 8: CULVERTS AND DRAINAGE WORKS

ITEM CODE

Activity Description.

Unit

Billed Qty

Unit Bid
Rate (Ksh)

Bill Item Cost
Without VAT (Ksh)

08.50.022a

Open lined drain repair-
masonry

MZ

50

08.60.023

Culvert installation 450mm
ID including: excavation,
bed, haunching, headwalls
and wingwalls

MT

20

08.60.026

Culvert installation 600mm
ID including: excavation,
bed, haunching, headwalls
and wingwalls

MT

25

Total of Bill Carried Forward to Summary
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BILL NO. 10: GRADING & GRAVELLING WORKS

ITEM CODE

Activity Description.

Unit

Billed Qty

Unit Bid
Rate (Ksh)

Bill Item Cost
Without VAT (Ksh)

10.60.001

Spot Gravelling with
watering and compaction

MS

450.00

10.50.002

Carriageway grading ~-Heavy
grading with watering &
compaction

MZ

45630

Total of Bill Carried Forward to Summary

BILL NO. 12:

NATURAL MATERIAL BASE AND SUB BASE

ITEM CODE

Activity Description.

Unit

Billed Qty

Unit Bid
Rate (Ksh)

Bill Item Cost
Without VAT (Ksh)

12.50.001

Provide, lay and compact
150mm hand packed stone
base including filling of
voids with stone dust and
watering for subbase as
directed by the Engineer.

MS

120

Total of Bill Carried Forward to Summary

BILL NO. 15:

BITUMINOUS SURFACE TREATMENT AND SURFACE DRESSING

ITEM CODE

Activity Description.

Unit

Billed Qty

Unit Bid
Rate (Ksh)

Bill Item Cost
Without VAT (Ksh)

15.50.002

Prepare surface of
carriageway, bus bays and
repair areas, provide and
spray MC-30 cutback
bitumen at a rate of 0.8-1.2
litre/m2 as prime coat

600

15.50.003a

Prepare surface of repair
areas provide and spray K1-
60 bitumen emulsion as tack
coat or seal to repair areas at
a spray rate of 0.8~1.0
litre/m2

600

Total of Bill Carried Forward to Summary

BILL NO. 16:

BITUMINOUS MIX

ITEM CODE

Activity Description.

Unit

Billed Qty

Unit Bid
Rate (Ksh)

Bill Item Cost
Without VAT (Ksh)

16-80-004

Clearing and cutting of
potholes and failed sections

MS

120
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Provide and lay asphaltic
16.60.001 concrete type Il as wearing M# 30
course

Total of Bill Carried Forward to Summary

BILL NO. 20: ROAD FURNITURE

Unit Bid Bill Item Cost

ITEM CODE | Activity Description. Unit Billed Qty Rate (Ksh) | Without VAT(Ksh)

Provide and Paint 0.1m wide
thermoplastic yellow
centreline on the road as
specified.

20.50.006 M? 50

Provide and Paint 0.1m wide
20.50.007 | thermoplastic white lines on | M* 100
road edges

Excavate for, provide and
place 250x125mm class
25/20 precast concrete
straight raised kerbs
haunched in 100mm thick
class 15/20 concrete base
bedding and mortar joined
in support to carriageaways,
bus bays and junctions as
directed by the Engineer

20.50.012 MT 100

Excavate for, provide and
place 100x125mm class
25/20 precast concrete
straight channels haunched
in 100mm thick class 15/20
concrete base bedding and
mortar joined in support to
carriageaways,bus bays and
junctions as directed by the
Engineer

20.50.011 MT 200

Total of Bill Carried Forward to Summary

BILL NO. 25: CROSS CUTTING ISSUES

Unit Bid Bill Ifem Cost

ITEM CODE | Activity Description. Unit Billed Qty Rate (Ksh) | Without VAT(Ksh)

Provide, plant and maintain
throughout the contract
period trees as instructed by
the Engineer.

25.50.005 No. 93

Collect, erect, brand and

maintain publicity signs and
25-50-029 | return to the employer upon | NO. 1
expiry of the contract period
as instructed by the Engineer

Total of Bill Carried Forward to Summary
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SUMMARY OF BILL OF QUANTITIES

BILL ITEM

AMOUNT (KSHS)

PRELIMINARY AND GENERAL ITEMS

7
EXCAVATION AND FILLING FOR STRUCTURES
3
CULVERTS AND DRAINAGE WORKS
10 CARRIAGEWAY GRADING AND GRAVELLING
12 NATURAL BASE AND SUB-~BASE
15 BITUMINOUS SURFACE TREATMENT AND SURFACE
DRESSING
16 BITUMINOUS MIXES
20 ROAD FURNITURE
25
CROSS-CUTTING ISSUE
A
Sub-total 01
B
Add 16% of TOTAL for VAT
C Add 0.03% for Public Procurement Capacity Building
Levy
D

Grand Total Carried Forward to Form of Tender
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C.2 Sample

Bill of Quantities for Improvement Works

Activity Quantity Unit Unit | Write in Total
Price | Full Price

Additional Lane between Km 50 30 Km

and 80

Shoulder paving between Km 50 30 Km

and 80

Construction of Bus stops in 5 5 Bus Stop

cities Type A

Total Price for Improvement Works

THERE ARE NO IMPROVEMENT WORKS

C. Schedule of rates for anticipated Emergency Works

1. The bidders are expected to insert the rates to the anticipated items that can arise as
emergency works during the contract period of the performance-based contract. The
Employer shall be at no obligation to use the indicated non-competitive rates indicated
in this schedule in case of emergency works along the project road. In such a case
Employer will be a liberty to either negotiate new rates with successful bidder
(Contractor) or procure another contractor to execute the emergency works

independently using the laid down procurement regulations.

KURA/RMLF/LE/142/2025-2026

Issued by Kenya Urban Roads Authority 72| Page




Table 5.2: Emergency Works Bills of quantities

. Rate
ITEM DESCRIPTION Unit (Kshs)
05.50.006a | Fill in soft material and compact M3
05.50.007a | Fill in hard material and compact M3
05.50.008a | Cut to spoil in Soft M3
05.50.012 | Rock fill to swamp M3
07.50.001 | Excavate for structure in soft material M3
07-50-006 | Selected granular fill material Mm?
Provide and place gabion boxes and mattresses 2
07.70.004 as specified or as directed by the Engineer M
07.70.005 Provide and place rock fill to gabions and MZ
mattresses
07.60.004 Allow for grouting of the rock fill where M2
necessary
08.60.024 Provide, Iay and join 600mm inner dia MT
concrete pipes
08.60.026 Provide, Iay and join 900mm inner dia MT
concrete pipes
08.60.028 Provide, lay and join 1200mm inner dia MT
concrete pipes
08.50.032 | Construction Of scour checks (concrete) M2
Construct, gravel, water, compact and
maintain deviation roads in maximum lengths
09.60.002 | of 5km. Allow for minimum width of 6.5m, KM
thickness of gravel 150mm with minimum CBR
20
12.50.003 Provide, place, spread and compact natural M®
gravel for subbase
14.50.001 Provide, transport, spread, mix and curing TON
cement on natural material or GCS material
14.50.003 l(\}/[é);lng in cement/lime into natural gravel or M®
14.50.004 | Curing and protection of treated layers Mz
Provide and Spray MC 30 cut-back bitumen as
prime coat to carriageway, shoulders, busbays .
15.50.002 and junctions at rate 0.8-1.2 lts/m2 as prime Litres
coat
Provide and spray K-160 as tack coat at a rate
15.50.003a | of 0.8-1.0 L/sq metre as directed by the Litres
Engineer
Provide, lay and roll asphalt concrete type 1
16.80.001 | (bitumen content 5~-6% by weight) as directed M3

by the Engineer
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Excavation and spoiling of the existing

16.80.010 | bituminous layers to any distance where M?
directed by the Engineer
17.60.003 | Vertical framework class F2 finish M?
17.60.004 | Horizontal framework class F2 finish M?
Provide, cut, bend and fix steel reinforcement
17.80.004 of diameter greater,equal to or less than 16mm
e dia per the drawing or as instructed by the
Engineer
20.70.002 P}"OVlde and erect standard and mandatory no
signs 600mm diameter
20.50.006 Paint 0.1m wide yellow center line on road as M2
specified
20.50.007 | Paint 0.1m wide white line on road as specified M?
20.50.019 Proylde white reflecn\{e delineators (cat eyes) NO
as directed by the Engineer
20.50.015 | Rumble strips using AC M3
20.70.023a | Guard rail installation MT
20.70.023b | Guard rail repair and reinstatement MT
Provide and place steel encased Bollards
20.50.021 (200mm thick) with yellow reflective strips NO
20.50.012 | Straight kerbs M
20.50.108 | Handrails M
20-50~012 | Flush kerbs M
Supply, lay and compact 60mm thick precast
concrete paving blocks with a 49 N/mm? Cube
23.50.002 | crushing strength conforming to BS 6717 Part 1 Mz

of 1986 or Kenya Bureau of Standard equivalent
including 30mm thick sand/quarry dust bed.
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TECHNICAL PROPOSAL

The Tenderer's Technical Proposal shall include the following elements:
SCHEDULE A. Projected Cash Flow

SCHEDULE B. Site Organizations

SCHEDULE C. Subcontractors

SCHEDULE D. Contractor's Equipment

SCHEDULE E. Initial Tentative Program of Performance

SCHEDULE F. Key Personnel Proposed

Instructions on how to present the various schedules of the Technical Proposal are given on the following
pages.
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SCHEDULE A
Projected Cash Flow

1)  Tenderers shall tabulate below estimates, based on their preliminary work programme, of:
a)  On the expenditure side, the value of the work which will be carried out;

b)  On the revenue side, the net payments to which they will become entitled with due allowance for
the advance payment and repayment, materials prepayments, and retention money, but
excluding price adjustments for rise and fall and provisional sums for emergency works.

¢)  The projected net cash flow during the contract period.

2)  The prospective successful Tenderer may be required to submit full details to substantiate his estimates.
Period Cost of Maintenance | Cost of Rehabilitation | Net Payments to | Net Cash
(Months) | Services and Improvement be received Flow

Works

1-6
7-12
13-18
19-24
25-30
31-36
37-42
43-48
ETC.
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SCHEDULE B

Site Organization

Tenderers shall give below full particulars of the organization they propose to establish, direct, and
administer the performance of the Contract. In particular, Tenderers shall indicate the location of site camps
and the resources they intend to allocate to Self-Control Units for planning and monitoring purposes.

L SITE ORGANIZATION CHART

2 NARRATIVE DESCRIPTION OF SITE ORGANIZATION CHART
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SCHEDULE C
Sub-Contractors / Partners

Tenderers shall list below those parts of the Works and Services which they propose to subcontract, and state
the approximate value of those parts and the names and addresses of the proposed subcontractors, if those
are known at Tendering stage. Tenderers shall also list other business partners involved in the execution of
the contract and their respective roles and responsibilities.

Part of Works / Services:

Approximate value:

Name and address of proposed subcontractor / partner:

Part of Works / Services:
Approximate value:

Name and address of proposed subcontractor / partner:

Part of Works / Services:

Name and address of proposed subcontractor / partner:

Part of Works / Services:
Approximate value:

Name and address of proposed subcontractor / partner:
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SCHEDULE D

Contractor's Equipment Form

The Tenderer shall provide adequate information to demonstrate clearly that it has the capability to meet the
requirements for the key equipment listed in Section III, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria. A separate
Form shall be prepared for each item of equipment listed (Table 9).

Item of equipment

Equipment Name of manufacturer Model and power rating
information

Capacity Year of manufacture

Current status Current location

Details of current commitments

Source Indicate source of the equipment
O Owned [ORented [OlLeased O Specially manufactured

Omiit the following information for equipment owned by the Tenderer.

Owner Name of owner

Address of owner

Telephone Contact name and title
Fax
Agreements Details of rental / lease / manufacture agreements specific to the project
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SCHEDULE E
Initial Tentative Program of Performance

To demonstrate a clear understanding of the requirements of the Contract, Tenderers shall provide the
following;:

i) A bar chart sub-divided into sections for each road showing the major activities to be carried out for
Maintenance Services, Rehabilitation Works and Improvement Works, if any. The activities shall be

shown against time, with linkages shown between related/sequential activities as far as possible and
appropriate.

ii)  abar chart or schedule showing the usage of major plant, including those listed in Schedule D
(Contractor's Equipment).
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SCHEDULE F

Form PER -1 Key Personnel Schedule

Tenderers should provide the names and details of the suitably qualified Key Personnel to perform the
Contract. The data on their experience should be supplied using the Form PER-2 below for each candidate.

Key Personnel

1. Title of position: Head Office Staff 1

NAME Of CANAIAALE: ..o vttt ettt et eteeternnassasneseeeeseseesssssssannnnnnnes
Duration of
appointment: | e

[inserf the whole period (starf and end dates) for which this position
will be engaged)

Time commitment: for
this PoSItION: | .o
[insert the number of days/week/months/ that has been scheduled for

this position|

Expected time

schedule for this | ..o e

position: [insert the expected time schedule for this position (e.g. attach high
level Gantt charf]

2. Title of position: Head Office Staff 2

Name of CaNdidate: ......ouiniiniiiiiiiiniitiiiieiniitiatieneieratteneeatensasanssansnsensassnssans

Duration of

appointment: | e

[insert the whole period (starf and end dates) for which this position
will be engaged)

Time commitment: for
this position: [
[insert the number of days/week/months/ that has been scheduled for

this position|
Expected time
schedule for this | ..o
position: [insert the expected time schedule for this position (e.g. attach high
level Gantt charf]

3. Title of position: Road Manager

NAME Of CANAIAALE: .. oveiiiiiiiii ettt ttt ettt ttetnnassasaeseeeeseeeesssssssannnnnnnes
Duration of
appointment: |

[insert the whole period (starf and end dates) for which this position
will be engaged)

Time commitment: for
this POSItION: | e
[insert the number of days/week/months/ that has been scheduled for

this position|
Expected time
schedule for this | ..o
position: [insert the expected time schedule for this position (e.g. attach high
level Gantf charf]

4. Title of position: Senior Foreman 1
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NAME Of CANAIAALE: ..o viiiiiiiii ettt ettt eteteetesnnnassasseseeeeseseesssssssannnnnnnes

Duration of
appointment: | e

[insert the whole period (start and end dates) for which this position
will be engaged)

Time commitment: for
this poSItION: | .o
[insert the number of days/week/months/ that has been scheduled for

this position|

Expected time

schedule for this | ..o e

position: [inserf the expected time schedule for this position (e.g. attach high
level Gantt charf]

5. Title of position: Senior Foreman II

Name of Candidate: .......coiiniiiiii it iii i it taetaeaeaearaeaeraranaaearaeancneans

Duration of

appointment: |

[insert the whole period (starf and end dates) for which this position
will be engaged)

Time commitment: for
this position: [
[insert the number of days/week/months/ that has been scheduled for

this position|
Expected time
schedule for this | ..o
position: [inserf the expected time schedule for this position (e.g. attach high
level Gantt charf]
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Form PER-~2

Resume and Declaration ~ Key Personnel

Name of Tenderer

Position [HEADQUARTER STAFF .......oiiiiiiii i e

[title of position from Form PER- 1]

Personnel Name: Date of birth:

INFOrMAtION | vovieiieii i e e,
Address: E-mail

[language and levels of speaking, reading and writing skills/

Details

Address of Procuring Entity:

Telephone: Contact (manager / personnel
officer):

Fax:

Job title: Years with present Procuring Entity:
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Summarize professional experience in reverse chronological order. Indicate particular technical and managerial
experience relevant to the project.

Project Role ﬁﬁ?sgrﬁeotft Relevant experience

[main [role and . . .
project responsibilities on | [time in role/ [céiizgﬁi the experience relevant 10 this
details] the project] P

Declaration

[, the undersigned Key Personnel, certify that to the best of my knowledge and belief, the information
contained in this Form PER -2 correctly describes myself, my qualifications and my experience.

I confirm that I am available as certified in the following table and throughout the expected time schedule for
this position as provided in the Tender:

Commitment Details

Commitment to duration of

contract: StartDate..................cc...... End
Date......cccovvvvieiiiiiinninn..

[insert period (starf and end dates) for which this
Contractor’s Representative or Key Personnel is
available fo work on this contract]/

Time commitment:

[insert period (start and end dates) for which this
Conftractor’s Representative or Key Personnel is
available fo work on this contract]

[ understand that any misrepresentation or omission in this Form may:
a)  be taken into consideration during Tender evaluation;

b)  my disqualification from participating in the Tender;

¢)  my dismissal from the contract.

Name of Key Personnel: /inserf name/

Signature:

Date: (day month year):

Countersignature of authorized representative of the Tenderer:

Signature:
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Date: (day month year):

Position ;HEADQUARTER STAFF IL......ooniiiii e,
[fitle of position from Form PER- 1]

Personnel Name: Date of birth:
INFOrMation | coveeeeiieiiiiie e,

[language and levels of speaking, reading and writing skills/

Details

Address of Procuring Entity:

Telephone: Contact (manager / personnel
officer):

Fax:

Job title: Years with present Procuring Entity:

Summarize professional experience in reverse chronological order. Indicate particular technical and
managerial experience relevant to the project.

Project Role Duration of Relevant experience
involvement
[ma{n [role and responsibilities .. . . . ..
project . [time in role/ [describe the experience relevant fo this position]
s on the project/
details/
Declaration

I, the undersigned Key Personnel, certify that to the best of my knowledge and belief, the information
contained in this Form PER -2 correctly describes myself, my qualifications and my experience.

I confirm that I am available as certified in the following table and throughout the expected time schedule for
this position as provided in the Tender:
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Commitment Details

Commitment to duration of
contract: StartDafe............cccccovvve..... End

[insert period (starf and end dates) for which this
Conftractor’s Representative or Key Personnel is
available fo work on this contract]

Time commitment:

[insert period (start and end dates) for which this
Conftractor’s Representative or Key Personnel is
available fo work on this confract]

[ understand that any misrepresentation or omission in this Form may:
d)  be taken into consideration during Tender evaluation;

e)  my disqualification from participating in the Tender;

f)  my dismissal from the contract.

Name of Key Personnel: /insert name/

Signature:

Date: (day month year):

Countersignature of authorized representative of the Tenderer:

Signature:

Date: (day month year):

KURA/RMLF/LE/142/2025-2026

Issued by Kenya Urban Roads Authority 86 |Page



Position [ROAD MANAGER
[title of position from Form PER- 1]

Personnel Name Date of birth:
Iformation | .....oociiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiees e
Address: E-mail
Professional qualifications
Academic qualifications:
Language proficiency:
[language and levels of speaking, reading and writing skills/
Details

Address of Procuring Entity:

Telephone: Contact (manager / personnel
officer):

Fax:

Job title: Years with present Procuring Entity:

Summarize professional experience in reverse chronological order. Indicate particular technical and
managerial experience relevant to the project.

Project Role puratlon of Relevant experience
involvement
[main [role and responsibilities
project eSp [time in role/ [describe the experience relevant fo this position]
g on the project/
details]
Declaration

I, the undersigned Key Personnel, certify that to the best of my knowledge and belief, the information
contained in this Form PER -2 correctly describes myself, my qualifications and my experience.
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I confirm that I am available as certified in the following table and throughout the expected time schedule for
this position as provided in the Tender:

Commitment Details

Commitment to duration of

contract: StartDafe..............cccoo....... End
Date........covvveeieeiiiiiininn..

[insert period (start and end dates) for which this
Conftractor’s Representative or Key Personnel is
available to work on this contract/

Time commitment:

[insert period (starf and end dates) for which this
Conftractor’s Representative or Key Personnel is
available fo work on this contract]/

[ understand that any misrepresentation or omission in this Form may:
g)  be taken into consideration during Tender evaluation;

h)  my disqualification from participating in the Tender;

i)  my dismissal from the contract.

Name of Key Personnel: /insert name/

Signature:

Date: (day month year):

Countersignature of authorized representative of the Tenderer:

Signature:

Date: (day month year):

KURA/RMLF/LE/142/2025-~2026 Issued by Kenya Urban Roads Authority 88 |Page



Position [SENIOR FOREMAN L.ttt
[fitle of position from Form PER- 1]

Personnel Name: Date of birth:
INFOrMation | coveeeeiieiiiiie e,

[language and levels of speaking, reading and writing skills/

Details

Address of Procuring Entity:

Telephone: Contact (manager / personnel
officer):

Fax:

Job title: Years with present Procuring Entity:

Summarize professional experience in reverse chronological order. Indicate particular technical and
managerial experience relevant to the project.

Project Role puratlon of Relevant experience
involvement
[main s
project é I;fﬁj’;i;ig?nﬂbmﬁes [time in role/ [describe the experience relevant fo this position]
details/
Declaration

I, the undersigned Key Personnel, certify that to the best of my knowledge and belief, the information
contained in this Form PER -2 correctly describes myself, my qualifications and my experience.

I confirm that I am available as certified in the following table and throughout the expected time schedule for
this position as provided in the Tender:
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Commitment Details

Commitment to duration of
contract: StartDate.............cccccoo...... End

[insert period (start and end dates) for which this
Conftractor’s Representative or Key Personnel is
available to work on this contract/

Time commitment:

[insert period (starf and end dates) for which this
Conftractor’s Representative or Key Personnel is
available fo work on this contract]

I understand that any misrepresentation or omission in this Form may:
j) be taken into consideration during Tender evaluation;

k)  my disqualification from participating in the Tender;

1)  my dismissal from the contract.

Name of Key Personnel: /insert name/

Signature:

Date: (day month year):

Countersignature of authorized representative of the Tenderer:

Signature:

Date: (day month year):
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Position [SENIOR FOREMAN II (if maintenance Length exceeds
BOKM).o.vnveiiiiii i,
[title of position from Form PER- 1]

Personnel Name: Date of birth:
INFOrMation | coveeeeeiieiiiii e,

[language and levels of speaking, reading and writing skills/

Details

Address of Procuring Entity:

Telephone: Contact (manager / personnel
officer):

Fax:

Job title: Years with present Procuring Entity:

Summarize professional experience in reverse chronological order. Indicate particular technical and
managerial experience relevant to the project.

Project Role puratlon of Relevant experience
involvement
[main o
project é Ifﬁg’;iéig?nﬂbmms [time in role/ [describe the experience relevant fo this position]
details]
Declaration

I, the undersigned Key Personnel, certify that to the best of my knowledge and belief, the information
contained in this Form PER -2 correctly describes myself, my qualifications and my experience.
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I confirm that I am available as certified in the following table and throughout the expected time schedule for
this position as provided in the Tender:

Commitment Details

Commitment to duration of

contract: StarfDafe............c.cccoo....... End
Date......cccovvveeiiiiiiiinninnn.

[insert period (start and end dates) for which this
Conftractor’s Representative or Key Personnel is
available to work on this contract/

Time commitment:

[insert period (starf and end dates) for which this
Confractor’s Representative or Key Personnel is
available fo work on this contract]

[ understand that any misrepresentation or omission in this Form may:
m) be taken into consideration during Tender evaluation;

n)  my disqualification from participating in the Tender;

0)  my dismissal from the contract.

Name of Key Personnel: /insert name/

Signature:

Date: (day month year):

Countersignature of authorized representative of the Tenderer:

Signature:

Date: (day month year):

Declaration

[, the undersigned Key Personnel, certify that to the best of my knowledge and belief, the information
contained in this Form PER -2 correctly describes myself, my qualifications and my experience.

I confirm that I am available as certified in the following table and throughout the expected time schedule for
this position as provided in the Tender:
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Commitment Details

Commitment to duration of
contract: StartDate.............cccccoo...... End

[insert period (start and end dates) for which this
Conftractor’s Representative or Key Personnel is
available to work on this contract/

Time commitment:

[insert period (starf and end dates) for which this
Conftractor’s Representative or Key Personnel is
available fo work on this contract]

[ understand that any misrepresentation or omission in this Form may:
p)  be taken into consideration during Tender evaluation;

q)  my disqualification from participating in the Tender;

r)  my dismissal from the contract.

Name of Key Personnel: /insert name/

Signature:

Date: (day month year):

Countersignature of authorized representative of the Tenderer:

Signature:

Date: (day month year):
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TENDERER’S QUALIFICATION FORMS
Tenderer Information Form

Date:

ITT No. 13.1 and title: DOCUMENTS COMPRISING THE TENDER

Tenderer's name

In case of Joint Venture (JV), name of each member:

NOT APPLICABLE

Tenderer's actual or intended country of registration:

KENYA

Tenderer's actual or intended year of incorporation:

[in country of registration]:

Tenderer's authorized representative information

Name:

IAddress:

i‘elephone/ Fax numbers:

E-mail address:

1. Attached are copies of original documents of
L Articles of Incorporation (or equivalent documents of constitution or association), and/or
documents of registration of the legal entity named above, in accordance with ITT 4.1
O In case of JV, Form of intent to form JV or JV agreement, in accordance with ITT 4.1
O In case of state-owned enterprise or institution, in accordance with ITT 4.7 documents
establishing;
e Legal and financial autonomy
e Operation under commercial law
e Establishing that the Tenderer is not under the supervision of the Procuring Entity
2. Included are the organizational chart, a list of Board of Directors, and the beneficial ownership.
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Form ELI ~1.2
Tenderer's JV Information Form
(to be completed for each member of Tenderer’s JV)
Date: NOT APPLICABLE

ITT No. and title: NOT APPLICABLE

Tenderer’s JV name:
NOT APPLICABLE

JV member’s name:
NOT APPLICABLE

JV member’s country of registration:
NOT APPLICABLE

JV member’s year of constitution:
NOT APPLICABLE

JV member’s legal address in country of constitution:
NOT APPLICABLE

JV member’s authorized representative information
Name:  NOT APPLICABLFE

Address: NOT APPLICABLE
Telephone/Fax numbers: _ NOT APPLICABLE
E-mail address: ____ NOT APPLICABLF

1. Attached are copies of original documents of

[ Articles of Incorporation (or equivalent documents of constitution or association), and/or
registration documents of the legal entity named above, in accordance with ITT 4. 1.

L7 In case of a state-owned enterprise or institution, documents establishing legal and financial
autonomy, operation in accordance with commercial law, and that they are not under the
supervision of the Procuring Enftity, in accordance with ITT 4.7.

2. Included are the organizational chart, a list of Board of Directors, and the beneficial
ownership.
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Form ELI ~ 1.3 Qualification of Foreign Tenderers

Pursuant to ITT 4.10, a foreign tenderer must complete this form to demonstrate that the tender
fulfils this condition (the 40% Rule).

ITEM | Description of Work Item | Describe location | COST in Comments, if
of Source K. shillings any

A Local Labor

1

2

3

4

5

B Sub contracts from Local sources

1

2

3

4

5

C Local materials

1

2

3

4

5

D Use of Local Plant and Equipment

1

2

3

4

5

E Add any other items

1

2

3

4

5

6

7
TOTAL COST LOCAL CONTENT XX
PERCENTAGE OF CONTRACT PRICE XX

Disclosure of Interest — Interest of the Firm in the Procuring Entity (this form is already attached to
the Form of Tender).
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Form CON — 1 HISTORICAL CONTRACT NON-PERFORMANCE, PENDING LITIGATION AND
LITIGATION HISTORY

Tenderer’s Name:

Date:

JV Member’s Name: NOT APPLICABLE

ITT No. 37 (7) vi, (a) and title: NON PERFORMANCE

Non-Performed Contracts in accordance with Section III, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria

O Contract non-performance did not occur for the last (3) three years as specified in Section
I11, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria, Sub-~Factor 2.1.

L Contract(s) not performed since for the last (3) three years as specified in Section III,
Evaluation and Qualification Criteria, requirement 2.1

Year Non-~ performed Contract Identification Total Contract
portion of Amount (current
contract value, currency,

exchange rate and
Kenya Shilling
equivalent)
Contract Identification: [insert amount]
[INSErf aMOUNE — |...coiuiiiiiiii it
ANA PEICENIASE] |
[indicate complete contract name/ number, and any
other identitication]
Name of Procuring Entity:
Address of Procuring
Entity...ooovveeiiiiiiiiiiins
Reason(s) for nonperformance:
[indlicate main reason(s)/

Pending Litigation, in accordance with Section III, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria

(] No pending litigation in accordance with Section III, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria,
Sub-Factor 2.3.
O Pending litigation in accordance with Section III, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria, Sub-

Factor 2.3 as indicated below.
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Year of
dispute

Amount in dispute
(currency)

Contract Identification

Total Contract
Amount
(currency),
Kenya Shilling
Equivalent
(exchange rate)

Contract Identification:
Name of Procuring Entity: KURA

Address of Procuring Entity: P.O.BOX
41727-00100 NAIROBI

Matter in dispute: ...........ccooeeenel.

Party who initiated the dispute:

Status of dispute: ...

Contract Identification:
Name of Procuring Entity: KURA

Address of Procuring Entity: P.O.BOX
41727-00100 NAIROBI

Matter in dispute: ........cooveiiiiiiiiiiiiin

Party who initiated the dispute:
Status of
AiSPUte...vveii i

Litigation History in accordance with Section III, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria

O
Sub-Factor 2.4.
O

No Litigation History in accordance with Section III, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria,

Litigation History in accordance with Section III, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria, Sub-
Factor 2.4 as indicated below.

Year of
award

Outcome as
percentage of Net
Worth

Contract Identification

Total Contract
Amount
(currency),
Kenya Shilling
Equivalent
(exchange rate)
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[insert year/

[inserf
percentage/

Contract Identification:

[indicate complete contract name/ number, and
any other identification]

Name of Procuring Entity................

Address of Procuring Entity:

[indicate main issues in dispute]
Party who initiated the
dispute......ocvviiiiiiinn..

[indicate “Procuring Entity” or “Contractor”]

Reason(s) for Litigation and award decision

[indicate main reason(s)/

[inserf amount]
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FORM CON - 3: DECLARATION OF KNOWLEDGE OF SITE

This is to certify that

Has familiarized himself/herself with the Site conditions in accordance with the Instructions to
bidders and the Tender Notice for purposes of bidding for this road project. ATHI
RIVER/MAVOKO ROADS ~ PACKAGE 4

PBC & ROUTINE MAINTENANCE OF ATHI RIVER/MAVOKO ROADS (SYOKIMAU)-~ LOT 11

Having studied the tender Documents, and gained knowledge of local conditions on site likely to

influence the works and cost thereof, I certify that I am satisfied with the description of the works

and understand the scope of works as specified and as implied in this tender.

(Signed and Stamped by Authorized Bidder’s Agent/ Representative) (Designation)
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FORM CON - 3(B): CERTIFICATE OF BIDDER’S VISIT TO SITE
This is to certify that

LIVAITIE/S] . . o oo e e e

participated in the organized inspection visit of the site of the works for the

ATHI RIVER/MAVOKO ROADS - PACKAGE 4

PBC & ROUTINE MAINTENANCE OF ATHI RIVER/MAVOKO ROADS (SYOKIMAU)~ LOT 11
KURA/RMLF/LE/142/2025-2026

heldon........coooevviiiiiiiii dayof.....ccoooiiiiiiiiiiiiii. 200 i

(Name of Employer’s Representative) (Designation)

NOTE: This form is to be completed at the time of the organized site visit.

KURA/RMLF/LE/142/2025-2026 Issued by Kenya Urban Roads Authority 101 |Page



Form FIN — 3.1:

Financial Situation and Performance

Tenderer's Name: Date:

JV Member's Name ITT No. and title:

1. Financial data
Type of Financial information in Historic information for previous years,
(Kenya Shillings)

(amount in Millions ( Kshs))
Year 2020 Year 2021 Year 2022

Statement of Financial Position (Information from Balance Sheet)

Total Assets (TA)

Total Liabilities (TL)

Total Equity/Net Worth (NW)

Current Assets (CA)

Current Liabilities (CL)

Working Capital (WC)

Information from Income Statement

Total Revenue (TR)

Profits Before Taxes (PBT)

Cash Flow Information

Cash Flow from Operating Activities

2. Sources of Finance

Specify sources of finance to meet the cash flow requirements on works currently in progress and
for future contract commitments.

No. | Source of Finance Amount (Kenya Shilling equivalent)
1
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2.1. Detailed Financial Situation Evaluation
No | Description Auditors Auditors Evaluation Award Criteria
Assessment | Assessmen | Auditors | ( MET/NOT MET)
2018 t Assessme
2019 nt
2020
Financial Ratios
1.

Current Ratio=
a. | Current Assets
Current Liabilities

Current Ratio more than 1
Yes/No

Debt to Equity Ratio = Equity Capital Ratio less than 1
b. | Total Liabilities Yes/No

Total Equity

Working Capital = Positive Working Capital =
c. | Current Assets-Current Yes/No

Liabilities

Operating Cash Flow Ratio

Operating Cash-flow more than

d | = 1 Yes/No

Cash Flow from Operations

Current Liabilities

Working Capital in Ksh. Working Capital is equal or
20 | more than 20% of Bid Sum

Yes/No

The above Financial Ratios have to be derived from first Principles from the Audit Statements. The Auditor
who has undertaken the analysis has to demonstrate the financial ratios and append his signature and stamp

to the Document as below:

The Auditor shall be required to provide his/her workings and demonstrate the source of the workings from
the various Audited statements by including the Page Numbers and references of the source of the figures
used in the computation of the assigned values.
The Auditor undertaking the above Financial Analysis MUST duly fill the Contact Sheet below in all aspects
and attach current annual practicing license.
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2.11. Financial ratios Computed by a Certified Public Accountant:

CPA: Name

ICPAK Number

Telephone Number

Email Address

Postal Address

Physical Address

Contact Person

Mobile Contact of the Contact Person

Signature

Date

Personal/Corporate
Stamp

2.1.2. Ratios attested by the Company Director: Director’s

Name

ID/Passport Number

Telephone Number

Email Address

Postal Address

Physical Address

Signature

Date

Personal/Corporate
Stamp
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3. Financial documents

The Tenderer and its parties shall provide copies of financial statements the last two (2) years

pursuant Section III, Evaluation and Qualifications Criteria, Sub-factor 3.1. The financial
statements shall:

a)

b)

c)
d)

reflect the financial situation of the Tenderer or in case of JV member, and not an affiliated
entity (such as parent company or group member).

Be independently audited or certified in accordance with local legislation.
Be complete, including all notes to the financial statements.

Correspond to accounting periods already completed and audited.

Attached are copies of financial statements the

with the requirements

two (2) years required above; and complying
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Form FIN — 3.2:
Average Annual Construction Turnover

Tenderer's Name: Date: A% Member's
Name ITT No. and title:

Annual turnover data (construction only)

Year Amount Exchange rate Kenya Shilling equivalent
Currency where Applicable

[indlicate year] [insert amount and
indicate currency/

2020

2021

2022

Average Annual

Construction Turnover
*

* See Section III, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria.

1 If the most recent set of financial stdtemen fs is for a period earlier than 12 months from the date of
Bid, the reason for this should be justified.
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Form FIN ~ 3.4:
Current Contract Commitments / Works in Progress

Tenderers and each member to a JV should provide information on their current commitments on all
contracts that have been awarded, or for which a Form of intent or acceptance has been received, or for

contracts approaching completion, but for which an unqualified, full completion certificate has yet to be
issued.

Value of Average Monthl
Procuring Entity’s | Oufstanding |Estimated Invoicgin Over Y
No. |Name of Contract |Contact Address, Work Completio ng
Tel, Fax (Kenya Shilling | n Date Last Six Months
’ . [KSh. /month)]
equivalent)
1
2
3
4
5
6

Signature:

Stamp and Date: (day month year):
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Form EXP ~ 4.1

General Construction Experience

Tenderer's Name:

Date:

JV Member's Name

ITT No. and title:

Starting Year

Ending
Year

Contract Identification

Role of Tenderer

Contract name:

Brief Description of the Works and Services
performed by the

Tenderer:

Amount of contract:

Name of Procuring Entity:

Address:

Contract name:

Brief Description of the Works and Services
performed by the

Tenderer:

Amount of contract:

Name of Procuring Entity:

Address:

Contract name:

Brief Description of the Works and Services
performed by the

Tenderer:
Amount of contract:

Name of Procuring Entity:

Address:
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Form EXP ~ 4.2(a)

Specific Construction and Contract Management Experience

Tenderer's Name:

Date:

JV Member's Name

ITT No. and title:

Similar Contract No.

Information

Contract Identification

\Award date

Completion date

Role in Contract

Prime
Contractor

Member in
I\
O

Management
Contractor
O

Sub-
contractor
O

'Total Contract Amount

Kenya Shillings

If member in a JV or sub-contractor,
specify participation in total
Contract amount

Procuring Entity's Name:

Address:
Telephone/fax number
E-mail:
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Form EXP ~ 4.2(a) (cont.)

Specific Construction and Contract Management Experience (cont.)

Similar Contract No.

Information

Description of the similarity in
accordance with Sub-Factor 4.2(a) of
Section III:

1. Amount

2. Physical size of required Works and
Services items

3. Complexity

4. Methods/Technology

5. Construction rate for key activities

6. Other Characteristics
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Form EXP -~ 4.2(b)

Construction Experience in Key Activities

Tenderer's Name:
Date:
Tenderer's JV Member Name:

Sub-contractor's Name! (as per ITT 33.2):

ITT No. and title:

Page of

pages

All Sub-contractors for key activities must complete the information in this form as per ITT 33.2

and Section III, Qualification Criteria and Requirements, Sub-Factor 4.2.

1. Key Activity No One:

the year

Information
Contract Identification
Award date
Completion date
Role in Contract ) .
Prime Member in ~ Management Sub-
Contractor |V Contractor contractor
O O O O
Total Contract Amount
Kenya Shillings
Quantity (Volume, number or rate of [Total quantity in Percentage Actual
production, as applicable) performed the contract participation Quantity
under the contract per year or part of (i) (i1) Performed

() x ({1

Year 1

Year 2

Year 3

Year 4

Procuring Entity’s Name:

" If applicable
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Information

Address:
Telephone/fax number
E-mail:

Information

Description of the key activities in
accordance with Sub-Factor 4.2(b) of
Section III:

2. Activity No. Two

B v
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FORM OF TENDER SECURITY (TENDER BOND)

[The Surety shall fill in this Tender Bond Form in accordance with the instructions indicated.]

BOND NO.

L. BY THIS BOND ......................[name of tenderer] as Principal (hereinafter called “the Principal”),
and............ , authorized to transact business in KENYA, as Surety (hereinafter called “the Surety”),
are held and firmly bound unto ................. as Obligee (hereinafter called “the Procuring Entity”)
inthe sumof famountofBondj............... /,for the payment of which sum, well and truly to be made,
we, the said Principal and Surety, bind ourselves, our successors and assigns, jointly and severally,
firmly by these presents.

2 WHEREAS the Principal has submitted or will submit a written Tender to the Procuring Entity dated
the 12TH day
) O ,forthesupplyof .................. [name of Contract] (hereinafter called the “Tender”).

3 NOW, THEREFORE, THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATION is such that if the Principal:
a) has withdrawn its Tender during the period of Tender validity set forth in the Principal's Letter

of Tender (“the Tender Validity Period”), or any extension thereto provided by the Principal; or

b) having been notified of the acceptance of its Tender by the Procuring Entity during the
Tender Validity

Period or any extension thereto provided by the Principal; (i) failed to execute the Contract
agreement; or

(ii) has failed to furnish the Performance Security, in accordance with the Instructions to
tenderers (“ITT”) of the Procuring Entity's Tendering document.

Then the Surety undertakes to immediately pay to the Procuring Entity up to the above amount upon
receipt of the Procuring Entity's first written demand, without the Procuring Entity having to
substantiate its demand, provided that in its demand the Procuring Entity shall state that the demand
arises from the occurrence of any of the above events, specifying which event(s) has occurred.

4, The Surety hereby agrees that its obligation will remain in full force and effect up to and including
the date 30 days after the date of expiration of the Tender Validity Period set forth in the Principal's
Letter of Tender or any extension thereto provided by the Principal.

5. IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, the Principal and the Surety have caused these presents to be executed

in their respective names this day of 20
Principal: Suret
Corporate Seal (Where appropriate) y
(Signature) (Signature)
(Printed nameand title) (Printed name and title)
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FORM OF TENDER~SECURING DECLARATION

[The Bidder shall complete this Form in accordance with the instructions indicated]

Date:...cccoeveveneenenene [insert date (as day, month and year) of Tender Submission/
Tender NO.:...ccoovevveeruennnee [insert number of tendering process/
TON e [insert complete name of

Purchaser/1/We, the undersigned, declare that:

l.  I/Weunderstand that, according to your conditions, bids must be supported by a Tender-Securing
Declaration.

2. I/We accept that I/we will automatically be suspended from being eligible for tendering in any contract
with the Purchaser for the period of time of [insert number of months or years] starting on [insert date],
if we are in breach of our obligation(s) under the bid conditions, because we— (a) have withdrawn our
tender during the period of tender validity specified by us in the Tendering Data Sheet; or (b) having
been notified of the acceptance of our Bid by the Purchaser during the period of bid validity, (i) fail or
refuse to execute the Contract, if required, or (ii) fail or refuse to furnish the Performance Security, in
accordance with the instructions to tenders.

3. I/Weunderstand that this Tender Securing Declaration shall expire if we are not the successful
Tenderer(s), upon the earlier of:

a) Our receipt of a copy of your notification of the name of the successful Tenderer; or

b) Thirty days after the expiration of our Tender.

4. 1/We understand that if [ am/we are/in a Joint Venture, the Tender Securing Declaration must be in the
name of the Joint Venture that submits the bid, and the Joint Venture has not been legally constituted at
the time of bidding, the Tender Securing Declaration shall be in the names of all future partners as named
in the letter of intent.

Duly authorized to sign the bid for and on behalf of: [insert complete name of

Tenderer] Dated on...................... dayof.....ccooviiiiiiiinnis [Insert date of

signing|

Seal or stamp
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PART 2 — WORKS AND SERVICES' REQUIREMENTS
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SECTION V A ~ SPECIFICATIONS
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SPECIAL SPECIFICATION - LOT 17

ROADS

SECTION V B: PERFORMANCE SPECIFICATIONS

1. Introduction on Service Level Categories Levels of Category

Based on the study of current service levels applied by the road authorities, four (4) standard
service level categories cover road network in Kenya. The principal factors considered in the
selection of service levels are road type and traffic volume. However, specific road
characteristics, such as climatic conditions, road function and terrain, may also be considered.
Two service levels (High and Standard) are for paved roads and another two service levels
(High and Standard) for un-paved roads.

The Service Levels should be selected from Table 1.1 according Annual Average Daily Traffic
Volume (AADT). The road type and services levels for roads under this lot is as highlighted

below;

Table 1.1. Service Level Categories Adopted

Road Type Paved Un-Paved

gerwce Level High Standard High Standard
ategory

Annual Average Daily | More than | Less than | More fan 500 | Less than 500

Traffic Volume 20,000 vpd 20,000 vpd vpd vpd

Nofte: vpd — vehicles per day

1.1. Service Criteria

Selection of Standard Service Level Category is made based on the road type (Paved or
Unpaved), the traffic volume, as well as road conditions assessment.

The Table 1.2 below shows the list of service criteria under each Service Category and Service

Scope.

Table 1.2. List of Service Criteria

Service Service
Category | Scope Elements-Paved Road Elements-Unpaved Road
Road
Usability | Passability | Pavement Pavement.
Pavement Pavement
Smooth Shoulder Shoulder
and Safe | Median Footpath
Traffic Footpath/ Cycleway
Road User Footbridge
S Sight Distance Availability Sight Distance Availability
Comfort | Visibility —
Street Lighting
Traffi Signage Signage
atc  ["Road Works advance Road Works advance warning
Informatio . . .
n warning signs signs
Road Marking
. Side Drains, Mitres Drains Side Drains, Mitres Drains, Cut
Road Drainage P ’ N ’
Durabilit | Capability C.ut off D.rams(.Lmed) - off Drains
y Side Drains, Mitres Drains,
Cut off Drains(Unlined)
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SPECIAL SPECIFICATION - LOT 17

ROADS
Service Service
Category | Scope Elements-Paved Road Elements-Unpaved Road
Culverts and Drifts Culverts and Drifts
Scour checks, gabions and
other erosion protection Scour checks, gabions and other
Structures erosion protection Structures
Manholes and gulley pots
: Vegetation free zone Vegetation free zone
Vegetation - -
Control Inner Veggtatlon zone Inner vegqtatlon zone
Overhanging branches Overhanging branches
Concrete structures/ crash
Maint barriers Concrete structures
AMena - gyeel structures Steel structures
nce of - —— . —
Bridge expansion joints Bridge expansion joints
other : - .
structures Guardrail/Pedestrian rail/ ' .
Bollards / edge marker posts | Guardrail/Pedestrian rail
Riverbeds Riverbeds
Slope Embankment Slopes Embankment Slopes
Stability Slopes in Cuts Slopes in Cuts

Special specification is supplementary fo the Standard Specifications and the fwo must be read
in conjunction. In any case where there appears fo be conflict between the two then the
Special Specitications will take precedence.

2. Description of the Roads
The project roads are located in several areas within Machakos County and largely traverse
relatively rolling to flat terrain.

The total length of the roads under this contract is 28.04 KM is as indicated below:

The Roads have the following major physical features.
a) The roads are paved with carriageway width of 6-7m
b) The available road corridor ranges between 15m to 56m

¢) The existing drainage structures include pipe culverts, Lined drains, box
culverts and bridges.

As a general reference on the Road, the information shown below is provided to the
Contractor. The Employer provides this information to the best of his knowledge, but does
not guarantee its correctness, and the Contractor may not make any claim based on
potential errors or omissions in the information provided.

Road earmarked for maintenance are listed in the table below;

NB: Traffic volumes for each road section, Traffic composition, Rain fall quantities and patterns
and Technical information of each road, such as original design, previous works Fxecuted,
efc. and any maintenance history that is available shall be sought from the relevant Authorities
and the Engineer where Applicable.
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S/No. | Road Name Surface Type Length (Km) | Scope of Works

e Performance Based
Routine Maintenance to

1. Syokimau-Katani Road Paved 5.07 acceptable service levels
2. Milolongo Access Road 1 Paved/ /Earth 1.21 * Instructed works:
3. Kiungani Road Pawj%;iiavel 4.74 » Tree Planting
. Paved/Gravel .
4. Community Road /Earth 5.96 » Pothole patching
5. Syokimau Airport Road Paved/Gravel 7.37 » Road Marking
/Earth
Latte Close (Mwanainchi Paved/Gravel » Grading & Gravelling
6. 3.69
Road /Earth
» Drainage works
Total 28.04
Works and Services to be provided
3.1 Works

The Works are what the Contract requires the Contractor to construct, install, and hand over to the Employer, as
covered under Rehabilitation Works, Improvement Works and Emergency Works.

3.1.1 Rehabilitation Works

Rehabilitation Works are a set of measurable inputs to be executed by the Contractor during the Initial
Mobilization Period to allow the Road to achieve the performance standards required under the contract.
Rehabilitation Works shall be carried out by the Contractor in accordance with the Bill of Quantities.
Rehabilitation Works will be paid for as measured items in accordance with the unit rates in the Bill of
Quantities.

The major scope of the INSTRUCTED WORKS comprises the following but not limited to;

General: Office Administration and Overheads

Cut to spoil debris on the shoulders and road corridor where applicable

Milling the existing wearing course and cut away or stockpile for re-use where instructed.
Localized base repairs using Handpacked stones or approved material as instructed by the Engineer
Crack sealing where applicable

Reconstruction or repair of walkway and cycle track with Asphalt concrete or paving blocks where
applicable

Replacement of broken kerbs and channels for edge restraint on the carriageway and footpaths
Trimming of potholes and base repairs

Pothole patching and regulation using Asphalt Concrete Type 1.

Benching of shoulders and installation of kerbs and channels for edge restrain for carriageway widening
where applicable.

Overlay with 35mm Asphalt Concrete (0/14) on carriageway, cycle track and footpath where
applicable.

(] Excavation of drains where applicable

[J Installation of culverts and Invert Block Drains (IBDs) where instructed

[J Road furniture:

(N I O A B

(I I I I A

|
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Installation of road signs and bollards

Road marking on all roads

Edge restrains

Shoulder grading and gravelling where applicable

Protection works: Provision of gabion boxes and stone pitching on selected drainage structures of the

road as directed by the Engineer

Drainage works: Provision of access culverts, drains and culvert cleaning as instructed by the Engineer.

Pothole patching, regulation and surfacing using asphalt Type 1 on selected sections

[J Reinstatement of road furniture as directed by the Engineer: This will include reinstatement of road
marking, road signs and safety fences

[J Provision of Road Marking and other specified Road Furniture

1 Performance based maintenance of the carriageway, road reserve and structures to the required service
level

(1 Any other works as may be instructed by the Engineer and specified in table 1.3 above

[ I B A B A B

O

Repairs and maintenance works will be paid for as measured items in accordance with the unit rates in the
Bill of Quantities. These works shall be instructed and done concurrently during the Maintenance Period.

3.1.2 Improvement Works

Improvement Works are a set of interventions to be executed by the Contractor to allow the Road to acquire
new characteristics under the contract. Improvement Works shall be carried out by the Contractor when
specifically instructed by the Engineer as set out in Clause 27 of GCC and in accordance with the Bill of
Quantities. Improvement Works will be paid for as measured items in accordance with the unit rates in the
Bill of Quantities.

3.1.3 Emergency Works

Emergency Works are a set of necessary inputs to be executed by the Contractor to allow the Road to be
reinstated under the contract in case of inflicted damages as a result of natural phenomena with imponderable
consequences, such as strong storms, flooding and earthquakes. Emergency Works shall be carried out by the
Contractor when specifically instructed by the Engineer as set out in Clause 27 of GCC and in accordance with
the unit rates provided for in the Specifications.

In the event of an emergency, the Contractor shall draw to the attention of the Engineer that certain works
need to be carried out to reinstate the carriageway and other road features to restore the safe passage of traffic
and ensure the integrity of the Road.

The Engineer who will determine the quantities of activities to reinstate the roads, shall make the payments
according to the measured works. The rates for the emergency works are listed in table 5.2.

3.1.1 Design Responsibility for Works

All Works, Rehabilitation Works, Improvement Works and Emergency Works shall be designed by the
Employer in accordance with the latest specifications adopted by the Employer. Read Clause 8 of GCC

3.2 Maintenance Services

The Maintenance Services to be provided by the Contractor include all activities, physical and others,
which the Contractor needs to carry out in order that specific road related assets and items comply
with the Road Performance Standards as defined by the Service Levels and other output and
performance criteria indicated in the contract, or with any other requirements of the contract. In
particular, they include management tasks and physical works associated with the following road-
related assets and items:

[Note: List the extent of specific road related assets and items that are to be maintained under the
contract. The list of assets and items may include:
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1) Pavements (paved roads)

2) Shoulders

3) Footpaths/cycle ways

4) Road embankments and slopes

5) Bridges

6) Drainage system

7) Vegetation

8 Riverbeds

9) Footbridges

10) Road furniture

11) Other road related structures

12) Traffic Management

13) Data collection Maintenance service delivery outputs
During the entire contract period, the Contractor is expected to achieve the following outcomes:

I.  No potholes on any part of the Project Road

No encroachments on the entire road corridor

No side drains and/or culverts on the Project roads shall be blocked, silted or damaged

No standing water on the project road

No road furniture on the Project road is missing

The road is safe to all users

No defects on the project road

No road section length shall be unavailable

Clean road structures/furniture; crash barriers, retaining walls, guardrails, traffic signs, street
lighting etc

Rl S e I i e

For guidance, the activities to be undertaken by the Contractor include, but are not limited to, management
tasks and physical works associated with the following;:

Inspect the road for safety defects and defects likely to impact on durability of the assets
Inspect road, identify and remove all obstructions

Clean drainage (side drains, culverts)

Repair and replace scour checks

Vegetation control, grass cutting, bush clearing, tree pruning

Maintain bridges, footbridges and minor repairs (replacement of guardrails)

Maintain road furniture and replace damaged traffic signs

NNk LD

The Contractor shall prepare and submit Routine Maintenance strategy for approval by
Engineer. Management tasks and physical works include, but not limited to the
following;

[Note: List the management tasks and physical works that are to be provided by the Contractor under the
contract. The list may include:

1)  Maintain road usability

2)  Maintain road user comfort

3)  Maintain road durability

4)  Maintain control of the Road by patrolling, data collection, conducting inspections and reporting

Maintenance Services shall be paid for as a fixed lump sum per km per month, with payment reductions
made for non- compliance, if appropriate.

1.  Compliance with Service Level Requirements

The Initial Mobilization Period for the Road to be brought to Service Level requirements is 3 months after the
issuance of the Actual Start Date by the Contractor. However, the period should vary depending on the initial
condition of the road as defined and specified in the SCC. In the Contract. Within the first 3 months,
compliance with the Service Levels will be adjusted as shown in Table 3.1 to allow the Contractor to properly
mobilize the team within the Initial Mobilization Period.
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Table 4.1 Timetable for Compliance with Service Level Requirements

Contract Road Usability Road User Comfort Road Durability
Month Compliance Compliance required Compliance required on %
required on % of | on % of contract road of contract road
contract road
1 50 50 50
2 100 75 75
3 100 100 100
Until end of 100 100 100
Contract
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2.  Programme of Performance

In accordance with clause 17.2 of the General Conditions of Contract (GCC), the Contractor shall
submit a Program of Performance within twenty-eight (28) days after the signing the contract
agreement. The program shall include, but not be limited, to the following items:

3.1.  Contractor's Quality Assurance Plan

The purpose of the Contractor's Quality Assurance Plan is to integrate the requirements of the contract
and the Contractor's quality assurance systems to deliver the Works and Services.

The Contractor's Quality Assurance Plan describes the methods and procedures which the Contract or
will apply for the execution of the Contract, including how the Contractor will:

a)  Identify the quality requirements specific to the contract,

b)  Plan and execute the Works and Services to satisfy those requirements

¢) Inspect and/or test the Works and Services to ensure compliance with the quality requirements
d)  Record and monitor the results as evidence of compliance, and

e)  Ensure that prompt action is taken to correct non-~-compliance.

The Contractor's Quality Assurance Plan must clearly describe the systems, procedures and methods
that will be used to deliver and monitor compliance of the Works and Services.

3.2. Traffic Management Plan

If required in the Special Conditions of Contract (SCC) the Program of Performance shall include a
Traffic Management Plan. The Traffic Management Plan establishes the practices for traffic

management at work sites. The Traffic Management Plan must be developed by the Contractor and
agreed with the Engineer.

The objectives of the Traffic Management Plan are to:

a clearly define and document the responsibilities and chain of command for the development,
implementation and management of traffic control measures and systems

b establish the minimum requirements for temporary traffic control
¢ establish the minimum geometric, cross section and surfacing standards for temporary works

d provide appropriate transitions and enable safe and efficient traffic flow into, through and out of
work sites

e protect the Contractor's personnel at all times
f protect the Assets and the Contractor's resources at all times.
¢ Meet the operational requirements for the road

The Traffic Management Plan must include at least the following;:

Lay out diagrams, method statements etc. for implementation of traffic control while undertaking each
aspect of the Works and Services (including site specific layout diagrams and method statements if the
Services require traffic control measures not covered by standard codes of practice)

A documented process for preparation, review and approval of the Traffic Management Plan

A document tracking and control system to ensure that only the latest operative copy of the Traffic
Management Plan is in circulation

Contact details for Contractor, Principal, emergency services and other stakeholders.

3.3. Safety Management Plan
If required in the Special Conditions of Contract (SCC) the Program of Performance shall include a
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Safety Management Plan. The Safety Management Plan establishes the practices for safety management
at work sites. The Safety Management Plan must be developed by the Contractor and agreed with the
Engineer.

The objectives of the Safety Management Plan are to:
a  clearly define and document the responsibilities and chain of command for the development,
implementation and management of safety control measures and systems

b establish the minimum requirements for the safety of workers, road users and community
people using the Road

c Protect the Contractor's personnel at all times.

The Safety Management Plan must include at least the following;:

Method statements for implementation of work safety undertaking on each aspect of the Works
and Services (including safety gears for workers, use of tool box meetings for safety awareness,
provision of work safety signs, training of workers on safe use of tools and equipment, safety
inspection under the patrolling by Self Control Unit and commitment by the Contractor on
adherence to the Occupational Safety and Health Act, 2007 amended on 2010.)

A documented process for preparation, review and approval of the Safety Management Plan

A document tracking and control system to ensure that only the latest operative copy of the Safety
Management Plan is in circulation

Contact details for Contractor, Engineer, emergency services and other stakeholders.
3.4. Environmental Management Plan

If required in the Special Conditions of Contract (SCC) the Program of Performance shall include an
Environmental Management Plan. The Environmental Management Plan establishes the practices for
environmental management at work sites. The Environmental Management Plan must be developed by
the Contractor and agreed with the Engineer.

The objectives of the Environmental Management Plan are to:

a clearly define and document the responsibilities and chain of command for the development,
implementation and management of environmental control measures and systems

b establish the minimum requirements for environmental control measures for maintaining the
adequate environment for workers, road users and community people using the Road

¢ maintain the awareness of the Contractor's personnel on environmental protection at all times

The Environmental Management Plan must include at least the following:

Method statements for maintaining the adequate environmental on work sites undertaking on each
aspect of the Works and Services (including specific dumping locations of debris and materials
unwanted from the Road, use of tool box meetings for environmental protection awareness, training
of workers on environmental control measures, inspection under the patrolling by Self Control Unit
and commitment by the Contractor on adherence to the regulations and acts enacted by the
government of Kenya under National Environmental Management Authority.)

A documented process for preparation, review and approval of the Environmental Management Plan

A document tracking and control system to ensure that only the latest operative copy of the
Environmental Management Plan is in circulation

Contact details for Contractor, Engineer, emergency services and other stakeholders
3.5. Emergency Procedures and Contingency Plan

If required in the Special Conditions of Contract (SCC) the Program of Performance shall include an
Emergency Procedures and Contingency Plan which shall establish the roles, practices and procedures
during specific types of emergency events identified in the plans and contingency plans associated with
the closure of roads. The Emergency Procedures and Contingency Plan must be developed by the
Contractor and agreed with the Engineer and any other stakeholders the Engineer may identify.
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The purpose of the Emergency Procedures and Contingency Plan is to ensure the safety of the
Contractor's personnel and road users in the case of emergency and/or road closure. It should include:
an effective communication and event recording system the name, contact number and specific duties of
the Contractor's personnel nominated to respond to an emergency even the contact number of other
parties who need to be notified in cases of emergency events, e.g. police detailed response procedures for
all emergency events possible detour routes in the event of road closure

3. Service Criteria

The Contractor is required to carry out the Maintenance Services and to maintain the specific road
related assets and items as stipulated in Clause 1.2.2 of the Performance Specifications during the
contract duration in compliance with the Road Performance Standards as defined by the Service
Criteria as stipulated hereunder.

The Employer requires the Contractor to maintain roads under the contract to be safe and efficient
together with the satisfactory level of availability to road users. In order that the Contract or can achieve
such, service criteria are established for guidance and classified into three Service Categories; i.e. Road
Usability, Road User Comfort and Road Durability.

1)  Road Usability is a description that encompasses the scope of passability of the Road, and service
level requirements entailed for each.

2)  Road User Comfort is a description that encompasses the scope of operational performance
indicators of road assets from the road user comfort perspective, such as cleanliness, smooth
riding surface, sight distance availability, shoulder availability, adequacy of safety features and
functionality of NMT facilities, and service level requirements entailed for each

3)  Road Durability is a description that encompasses the scope of operational performance
indicators of road assets from the Employer's perspective towards monitoring and prolonging the
life spans of the assets such as drainage capabilities, functionality of structures, functionality of
road furniture and suitability of road profiles, road widths, embankments, slopes and vegetation
control.

The service level requirements, defects and the response times thereof that the Contractor must
comply with and separately adhere to are defined in the Performance Standards for the various
standard service level categories indicated in the appendices shown in table 6.1 below;

Table 6.1. Performance Standards

Appendix Service Level Categories Required Level
A Performance Standards for Paved High Road
B Performance Standards for Paved Standard Road
C Performance Standards for Unpaved High Road
D Performance Standards for Unpaved Standard
Road

4, Self~Control Unit (SCU)

The Contractor is required to establish a Self-Control Unit within his project organization throughout
execution and completion of the Works and Services to the satisfaction of the Engineer. The roles of the
SCU:

1. For conducting self-inspection to verify the degree of compliance with the Road Performance
Standards as defined by the Service Levels and maintain the reporting system of self-inspection.

2. Assessment of the Road. The Self-Control Unit shall have a complete knowledge of the road
condition, both on and off carriage way, at all times by carrying out patrolling, to the satisfaction
of the Engineer.
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3. The Self~Control Unit is responsible for Gathering information required by the Contractor to
prepare the Monthly Statement.

4. The carrying out, in close cooperation with the Engineer, the Form a land Informal Inspections of
Service Levels which will take place as required.

The Contractor is required to assign a technically qualified and trained person, or persons, to
continuously verify the degree of compliance of Service Levels. The Contractor is also required to
arrange a satisfactory means of mobility for conducting patrolling to the satisfaction of the Engineer.
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7.1. Staffing Structure of Self~Control Unit
The composition of the SCU shall be established by the contractor as per the following guideline depending on
the size and length of the roads subsections.

S/No | Position Task Requirement Number of staff (Depending on the road

type and complexity
Up to Up to Over
10km*1 50km*2 50km*3

Coordination of | Trained in PBC,

data Experience more than

1 SCU leader collection 5 . 1 1 1
Report, years in road

communication | construction
and maintenance

Data collection | Experienced more
SCU Patrol than 3 _
2 I years in road 0 1 2
nspector .
construction

and maintenance
*1 Up fo 10km: SCU leader conduct both patrol and selt-inspection (1 vehicle required)

*2 Up fo 50km (standard): SCU leader conduct patrol and self-inspection with one inspector (1 vehicle
required)

'8 Over 50km: SCU leader and an assistant conduct patrol and self-inspection. An inspector conducts patrol in
other roads under contract at same time (2 vehicles required).
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8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

9.1

Site Inspection and Patrolling/Reporting

The Contractor is required to undertake the following management tasks to ensure the full integrity of
the Road throughout execution and performance of the Works and Maintenance Services.

Site Condition Assessment before Commencement of Works and Services

The Contractor shall conduct initial site condition assessment before commencement of the Works and
Services under the contract. In case any defects and deficiencies are discovered under the assessment,
the Contractor shall notify the Engineer by submitting the Defect Detection and Rectification List as
attached to the Appendix 1 of the Performance Specifications and upon agreement of the Engineer, the
Contractor shall carry out rectification works as the Rehabilitation Works.

In case the Contractor discovers cases of illegal encroachment and illegal dumping of unwanted
materials or otherwise illegal actions by the third parties, the Contractor shall notify the Engineer for
further instructions as required.

Determination of Subsection and Installation of Marker Posts

The Contractor shall either mark clearly on the road or install temporary posts to determine the

subsections inspection purposes. The Contractor shall submit the record of such identification and
markers to the Engineer.

Patrolling/Reporting

The Contractor shall carry out patrolling of the Road as required under the contract. Such patrolling
shall be reported to the Engineer without delay through submission of the Daily Work Record, Daily
Patrol Record, Monthly Photo Record and Incident Report as attached to the Appendices 2, 3, 4 and 5
of the Performance Specifications. The contractor is also required to give the result of self~inspection
to the Engineer without delay through submission of the Detail Self Inspection Result Record Form
(Paved Road) as attached to the Appendix 6 of the Performance Specifications.

In case the Contractor discovers cases of illegal encroachment and dumping of unwanted materials or
illegal actions by third parties, the Contractor shall notify the Engineer for further instructions as
required.

Ad hoc Inspection

The Engineer may carry out ad-hoc inspections to verify the degree of compliance with the Road
Performance Standards as defined by the Service Levels. He may do so on his own initiative, at anytime
and anywhere on the roads under the contract. If he detects any road sections where the Service Level
criteria are not met, he is required to notify the Contractor within 24 hours in writing as the Corrective
Order, to enable the Contractor to take remedial action as soon as possible. The results of ad-hoc
inspections may not be used by the Engineer for purposes of correcting the Contractor's monthly
statements or applying penalties, except for cases in which the traffic flow on the road has been
completely interrupted due to the negligence and tardy action by the Contractor.

Monthly Statement
Preparation for Monthly Statement

For the Works and Maintenance Services executed and performed during the month, the Monthly
Statement shall be prepared by the Contractor in accordance with the GCC Clauses 46, 47, 48,49, 50
and 51. The format of Monthly Statement is attached as Appendix 7.

For the Maintenance Services. The Contractor shall take the following actions;

1) Prior to compilation of the Monthly Statement for each month, the Contractor is required to
prepare the Payment Reduction Calculation Table for the month by utilizing the result of the most
recent self- inspection recorded in Self Inspection Result Record Form to determine the total
length of non-compliant sections for each Service Scope and for calculation of the reductions
required for the month by determining the percentages of non-compliant sections for each
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Service Scope. The formats of Payment Reduction Calculation Table are attached as Appendix 8.
2 The prepared Payment Reduction Calculation Table shall become the basis of the payment request
for the Maintenance Services.

3 Upon completion of Formal Inspection, the amounts indicated on the Monthly Statement and the
Payment Reduction Calculation Table will be adjusted, if required. Such modified Monthly
Statement and Payment Reduction Calculation Table shall be countersigned by the Engineer to
sign it and present it to the Employer for payment, and to the Contractor for information.

9.2  Reduction Weighting for Non-Compliance on Maintenance Services

In accordance with the relevant clauses of the Performance Specifications and GCC, payment
reduction is applied in case of non-compliance with Service Levels.

The total aggregate weighting of 650% is applied to various Service Criteria and Documentation. The
reduction weighting for each is indicated below.

Table 9.1: Amounts of Payment Reductions, and the Formula for Their Adjustment over Time

SERVICE LEVEL SERVICE LEVEL SCOPE % OF UNIT RATES
CATEGORY FOR NON-
COMPLIANCE
DOCUMENTATI | Contractor to provide during the formal inspection 10%
ON
ROAD USABILITY | A) Pass ability, Road Works Advance Signs 30%
ROAD USER B) Road Cleanliness, Potholes, Cracking, Rutting, Raveling, 200%
COMFORT loose Pavement, Drop Off, Paved Shoulders, Concrete
Pavement
ROAD C) Drainage (Lined/Unlined drains, Culverts, Drifts, Scour 150%
DURABILITY Checks, Gabions, Scour Checks, Manhole, Gulleys pofts
efc.)
D) Vegetation (Free Zone, Outer/Inner Vegetation, Tree 100%
within ROW, Extent of the RR)
E) Structures (Concrete, Steel, Bridge Expansion Jjoinfs, 100%
Riverbeds)
F) Road Furniture (Road signs, Edge Marker / Guide/ 60%
Kilometre Post, Traffic Signals, Streetlights, Road Marking
/ Studs, Guardrails /' Pedestrian rails, humps efc.)
TOTAL 650%

(% xx indicates the percentage of service criteria non~compliant during the month for Service

Criteria xx. The amount of reduction for the Maintenance Services will be calculated as

follows:

If the Contractor fails to remedy a cause of non-compliance for which a payment reduction has already been
applied, the amount of the payment reduction increases month by month for that cause of non-compliance,
without a ceiling being applied, until compliance is established.

The amount of payment reduction for such case will be calculated as follows;

1)  If the non-compliance has not been remedied within the first thirty days of non-compliance,
additional payment reduction for periods beyond 30 days will be split into each 30 days.

2)  The additional payment reduction for periods beyond 30 days is calculated using the formula indicated
below,
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3)

PR = 2"PR, where
[2-1)
n-= ‘ 30 |

J

rounded up to full number (without decimals)

J = number of days of non-compliance beyond thirty days
PRy is the amount of the initial payment reduction.

Payment reductions and Liquidated damages will be charged as penalties and are non-recoverable in
subsequent monthly payment certificates.

Failure to comply with the required service levels for a sequential/continuous period of three (3)
months will lead to termination of the Contract by the Employer as stipulated in clause 60 of the
Condition of Contract. This failure should not exceed 30% of the overall monthly PBC.

A notice shall be served by the Engineer when the 30% reduction on the monthly payment of PBC is
noted.

9.3 Determination of Penalty for Encroachment

In addition to the deduction for non-compliance indicated in Table 9.1: Amounts of Payment Reductions and
the Formula for Their Adjustment over Time, the following schedule of penalties shall also apply for allowing
encroachment onto the road Reserve. The contractor shall ensure the road corridor is free of encroachments.

Table 9.1.1: SCHEDULE OF PENALTIES FOR ENCROACHMENT

S/NO ITEM ON ROAD RESERVE PENALTY FOR NON-COMPLIANCE
Construction of Illegal structures (kiosks, | Kshs 50,000.00 per structure
shades etc.)
2 Construction of illegal access Kshs 50,000.00 per access
Erection of Illegal/ unauthorized Kshs 50,000.00 per advertisement
3 advertisements (Billboards, banners,
posters etc.)
4 Illegal works (trenching for fibre optic Kshs 50000.00 per event
cables, water, and sewer lines etc.)
5 car wash Kshs 50,000.00 per car wash
6 vending of flowers & tree seedlings Kshs 50,000.00 per establishment
Illegal dumping /Stockpiling of building | Kshs 50,000.00 per stock pile
7 materials or any other deleterious
materials
8 any other encroachment Kshs 50,000.00 per event
7.  Formal Inspection
The Formal Inspection shall be carried out jointly by the Engineer and the Road Manager at the end of
each month. The Engineer shall notify the Contractor that he intends to carry out Formal Inspection in
writing within 7 days of notification. The Contractor shall inform the Engineer of the proposed date
and time and shall prepare for Formal Inspection. The main purpose of carrying out the Formal
Inspection is to enable the Engineer to verify the information presented in the Contractor's Monthly
Statement with the actual observed and measured conditions on the site.
10.1 Procedure for Formal Inspection

The Contractor shall submit the following documents as indicated in Table 10.1 to the Engineer for
scrutiny prior to the Formal Inspection after the receipt of notification of carrying out Formal
Inspection. The Contractor shall provide sufficient time to the Engineer to allow full scrutiny of the
submitted documents.

Table 10.1 List of Documents for Formal Inspection
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Appendices Name of Documents Mandatory Submissions if required by
Submissions the Engineer

1 Defects Detection and v
Rectification lists

Daily Work Records

Daily Patrol Records

Monthly Photo records

Incident condition & Activity
Reports

Detailed Self Inspection Result v
Record Form
7 Payment Reduction Calculation Y
Table

Q1| [N
2] 2]<2]

»

The criteria of each Service Level shall be checked jointly by the Engineer and the Road Manager at
sections selected by the Engineer based on visual appearance. The Engineer shall be the sole judge of
compliance. If a specified criterion is not met, the one-kilometer section in which the deficit occurs
will be judged non-compliant in accordance with the Self Inspection Result Record Form. 100% of the
monthly lump sum for One Km, applied to each one-km section which does not comply the entire
length if road less than 1km.

The Engineer shall prepare a brief Memorandum describing

i) The general circumstances of the site visit, including date, road sections visited, persons present, etc.,
ii)  Any non-compliance which may have been detected, and

iii)  The time granted by the Engineer to the Contractor to remedy the detected defects.

The results of Formal Inspection on Service Levels will be recorded by the Engineer in this
Memorandum. The Memorandum will state the type and location of any non-~-compliance detected, in
particular those non-~ compliances already shown in the most recent Self Inspection Result Record Form
provided by the Contractor as part of the Monthly Statement. For each individual case of non-
compliance, the Engineer will determine a date by which the Contractor must have completed the
necessary measures in order to remedy the cause of the non~ compliance. A follow-up site visit is
therefore necessary at the date fixed by the Engineer, or soon thereafter, in order to verify that the
Contractor has indeed remedied the cause of non-compliance. If at the date indicated in the
Memorandum, the Contractor has not remedied the cause for non-compliance, independent of the
reason given for their failure to do so, the Contractor is subject to payment reduction in accordance
with the relevant clauses of the Performance Specifications and GCC.

Based on the outcome of the Formal Inspection and subsequent remedies by the Contractor or
otherwise, the Engineer will correct any possible errors or misrepresentations in the Contractor's
Monthly Statement, countersign it and present it to the Employer for payment, and to the Contractor
for information.

8.  Performance Monitoring by the Employer

The Contractor shall acknowledge that the Employer encourages adoption of proactive approach by

the Contractor on performing the Maintenance Services. To maintain such approach, the Employer

shall have the power to entrust the Engineer to conduct monthly performance monitoring on the

Contractor.

1)  The Contractor, shall within seven (7) days of commencement, prepare and submit for the
Engineer’s approval the forms listed herein and any other that will be required for monitoring,
recording and checking the compliance of service levels during the implementation of Contract.
These forms are;

i. Daily Work Record Form
ii. Daily Patrol Record Form

iii. Photo Record Form
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iv. Incident Report Form

v. Defect Detection and Rectification List

vi. Detail Self-Inspection Result Report Form (Paved Road)
vii. Detail Self-Inspection Result Report

viii. Summary Self-Inspection Report Form (unPaved Road)
ix. Payment Reduction Calculation Table

X. Summary of Statement for Payment

xi. Account (Monthly Statement

2)  Performance monitoring will be conducted on service level compliance, self-control unit
performance, work safety performance, performance on environment and social management,
corrective order management and statutory compliance. The format of Monthly Evaluation Form
is attached as Appendix 9, for the purpose of performance monitoring.

3)  The result of performance monitoring of each month will be used for the evaluation of the
Contract or at the end of each year. Evaluation of the Contractor shall be carried out by the
Engineer using the Contract Evaluation Tally Sheet, which is attached as Appendix 10.

The total aggregate weighting of 650% is applied to 6 criteria in 1) above, INDICATED IN
appendix 8.

4)  The result of each month on each criterion will be evaluated either a pass or a fail. The tally will
be made at the end of each month, collected to the end of the year and to arrive at the performance
of the criterion as the percentage of pass attained during the year. The respective weight will be
applied to arrive at the evaluation score, with the maximum score of 100 and the minimum score
of 0. For statutory compliance, the evaluation score will not be tabulated, but a penalty of 20 will
be imposed in case the Contractor faces violation on statutory compliance at least once in a year.

9.  Handover Report

Immediately prior to the completion of the contract, the Contractor shall prepare a Handover Report
and submit to the employer. The purpose of the Handover Report is to provide a smooth transition to
the next contract and ensure that the next contractor is aware of any outstanding issues. The Report
will:

a)  Summarize any unresolved issues;
b)  Include the most recent complete set of data on the roads covered by the contract, and
¢)  Provide the following details as shall be agreed by the Engineer:
i) A schedule of outstanding defects.
ii)  Any unresolved issues, especially those that may impact on the next Contractor.
iii)  Details of any sensitive issues.

iv)  Any on-going special monitoring/maintenance needs.
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APPENDICES

Appendix A: Performance Standards for Paved High Road

ROAD USABILITY
Service criteria RESPONSE TIME
Check Service Level << X hours>> means | TOLERANCE
Element Defect "within x
hrs./days/wks."
) Passability
Pavement Obstruction on The road should always << {hr>> No tolerance
passage allow for passage of traffic permitted
Obstruction on << 1hr>>
overhead clearance
ROAD USER COMFORT
Service criteria RESPONSE TIME

Check

Element Defect

Service Level

<< x hours>>

means "within x
hrs./days/wks."

TOLERANCE

I) Smooth and Safe Traffic

1.Paveme | Unclean The road must always be | <<3 hours >> i) No tolerance permitted.
nt Pavement clean and free of soil,
debris, trash and other
objects.
Pavement The pavement must at all | <<1 week>> The permitted level of
too rough times be kept to an tolerance of the hand

for road use

acceptable level of
roughness.

over IRI. Shall be a
maximum of 2.5mm/m
higher than the takeover
IRI.

Potholes

All visible potholes must
be repaired

<<2 Days>>

No tolerance permitted.

Cracking in

All cracks >> 3mm in

<<1 week>>

The permitted maximum

2cm deep must be
repaired.

Surface width must be repaired. cracked area <5% in any
(Alligator subsection.

Transverse see note 1

and

Longitudinal

).

Rutting All rutting of more than | <<28 days>> The permitted maximum

rutted area > 2cm deep is
< 2 % in any subsection.

see note 2
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causing depression of >
40 mm must be

Service criteria RESPONSE TIME
Service Level << x hours>> TOLERANCE
%ﬁfm Defect means "within x
hrs./days/wks."
I) Smooth and Safe Traffic
1.Pavement Heaving/Shoving All shoving and heaving | <<28 days>> The permitted

maximum area
under heaving/

all times be kept free

repaired. shoving <5% in
any subsection.
see note 1
Bleeding (complete) | The pavement must at <<28 days>> The permitted

maximum area

edges, and/ or pieces of
pavement breaking off

Bleedi
ceamg from bleeding under bleeding
<5% in any
subsection.
See note 1.
Glazing The pavement must at <<28 days>> The permitted
all times be kept free maximum area
from Glazing at all under Glazing
times. < 5% in any
subsection.
see note 1
Ravelling All ravelled areas that <<28 days>> The permitted
are more than 5mm maximum ravelled
deep must be repaired. area > bmm deep
is
< 2 % in any
subsection.
see note 2
Stripping/Fretting Loose depth of fine <<28 days>> The permitted
Aggregates >20mm maximum area
must be repaired undergoing
stripping/fretting
<5% in any
subsection.
see note 1
Edge Damage All loose pavement <<1 week>> The permitted

maximum affected
length <2% in any

Concrete pavement

width must be sealed

Cracks > 3.0 mm

< 0.5 mm and 3.0 mm>

<<1 week>>

Cracks > 0.5 mm.

<< 2 weeks >>

at the edges must be subsection.
made good. see note 3
Cracking in All cracks > 0.2 mmin | <<I week>> The permitted

maximum cracked
area <1 % in any
subsection.

see note 4
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Service criteria

Service Level

RESPONSE TIME

<< x hours>>

TOLERANCE

of debris and objects which
must be removed within the
time given if they pose
danger to traffic safety

Element Defect means "within x
hrs./Days/wks."
) Smooth and Safe Traffic
1.Pavement | Damage on 1) Must be without << 24 hours>>. | 1) No ponding
Interlocking Paving deformations and depression water allowed on
Blocks. so that the cross fall allows the paved surface
for free-flowing water so for >4 % in any
that there isn’t any water subsection.
ponding.
2) Free of visible defects and
missing pieces.
2.Shoulder | Damaged 1) Repaired to avoid water <<2 weeks >> 1)Cross fall < the
(Scoured/Rutted/Dep | penetration camber on the
ressed/Potholed) paved surface >
paved shoulders than 4 % of the
subsection.
2) without deformations and 2) The permitted
erosion so that the cross fall maximum cracked
is not less than the camber arca with cracks>>
on the paved surface of 3 mm wide
3) free of visible potholes, <<10% C};f thetgrea
cracks wider >3mm, 1 any sub-scction.
multiple cracks and rutting
of > 2cm
Shoulder At all sections, difference in | <<1 week>> The permitted
Carriageway Step. height at edge of pavement maximum affected
must be maintained to < length of difference
Scm. in height < 2 % for
each subsection.
see note 5
3.Median | Unclean Median Must always be clean, free << 3 days >> No tolerance

permitted.

Ponding and spillage

The level of filling in the
median should be
maintained such that there
is no water ponding and no
fill material spills onto the
carriageway

<< 2 week>>

No tolerance
permitted.
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Service criteria

Element Defect

Service Level

RESPONSE TIME

<< x hours>>
means "within x
hrs./days/wks."

TOLERANCE

I) Smooth and Safe Traffic

3.Median
Vegetation.

Poorly maintained

Median plantations must be
maintained properly with
watering and pruning as
required from time to time.
The height of plantations <
Im at any time. There must
be no obstruction in sight
distance and no fallen
plantations on roadway are
allowed.

<< 2 weeks>>.

No tolerance
permitted.

4.Footpath | Obstruction due to All footpaths must be clean, | << 3 hours >> No tolerance
soil, debris, trash in good condition and fully permitted.
rocks, fallen trees. functional. Should be well
drained, No Potholes and
have access to people with
Disability.
5.Foot Broken footbridge Footbridge must be in good | << 3 hours >> No tolerance
Bridge steps condition and fully permitted.
functional
II) Visibility
1.Sight Vegetation obstructs | Must be removed if 5.5m <<24 hours >>. No tolerance
Distance of | visibility or is within | above the road surface permitted.
availability | the vegetation free and/or the minimum sight
zone distance of 240m is not
maintained
2 Street Two or more Road must always be well << 24 hours>>. The permitted
Lighting consecutive lights not | lit during the specified maximum
functioning/missing | hours at night. tolerance is 5 %
bulbs of the length of
the road
equipped with
street lighting is
below the

defined Service
Level.

III) Traffic Information

1.Signage
warning

signs

Absence of relevant

signs/Mandatory

All signage must be present,
complete, clean, legible,
reflective and firmly
installed

<<24 hours >>

Max. Tolerance
is 5 % of the
signs are below
the defined
Service Level in
any subsection.
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Service criteria RESPONSE TIME
Service Level << x hours>> means | TOLERANCE
Element Defect "within x
hrs/days/wks."
M) Traffic Information
1.Signage | Absence of relevant | All signage must be present, | << 2 days >> Max. Tolerance
Information Signs, | complete, clean, legible, is 5 % of the
Edge marker Post, reflective and firmly signs are below
Guide Post, installed the defined
Kilometre post Service Level in
any subsection.
Absence of relevant | All traffic signals must be << 24 hours >> No tolerance
Traffic signals clean, operational and well permitted
synchronized
2. Road Absence of relevant | Must be placed when << 1 hour>> No tolerance
Works warning clearing works are required permitted
Advance signs/obscured by | to be undertaken.
warning vegetation
signs
3. Road Faded marking, All road markings/ road << 4 weeks>> The permitted
Marking Damaged road studs including ‘cat’s eyes’ maximum
reflectors are clear, visible and tolerance is 5 %
functional. If the reflection of the area of
factor is road markings
< 35% of the specified and the number
design value: of road studs
below the
defined Service
Level.
ROAD DURABILITY
Service criteria RESPONSE TIME
Service Level << x hours>> TOLERANCE
Element Defect means "within x
hrs./days/wks."
I) Drainage Capability
1. Side Drains, | Obstructions due | Must be clean, free of << 3 days >> The permitted

Mitre Drains,
Cut off drains
(Lined)

2. Side Drains,
Mitre Drains,
Cut off drains
(Unlined)

to silt, sediments,
debris, soil,
materials washed
after storm

sediments and
obstructions to ensure
free flowing conditions
at all times

maximum tolerance
is 5% of the length of
drains below the
defined Service Level.

Must be clean and free
of obstructions to
ensure free flowing
conditions at all times

<< 3 days >>

The permitted
maximum tolerance
is 5% of the length of
drains below the
defined Service Level.
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Service criteria

RESPONSE TIME

<< x hours>> means

Drifts

due to debris

Obstruction due
to Structural

of obstacles to ensure
free flowing conditions
at all times

must be cleared
<< 3 days >>

Damages must be
repaired

Service Level i TOLERANCE
Element Defect "within x
hrs./days/wks."
I) Drainage Capability.
3. Culverts and | Obstructions Must be clean and free | Siltation/ Obstruction | The permitted

maximum tolerance
is 5% of the length of
drains below the
defined Service Level.

gabions and
other erosion

the structures.

serious defects that can
endanger the structure,

Damage <<2 weeks >>
Obstruction due Broken culverts No tolerance
to Broken should be reported to | permitted
Culvert. the Engineer
<< 24 hours>>
4. Scour Erosion due to Must be fully <<1 week>> The permitted
Checks, malfunction of functional with no maximum tolerance

is 5 %of the length
below the defined

flowing conditions

Damaged manholes
and gulley pots
<< 1 week>>

protection roadway or pose safety Service Level.

structures and hazard to road users

gabions

5. Manholes Blocked Must be clean and free | <<3 days>> The permitted

and Gulley manholes/ from obstructions and maximum tolerance

pots obstructions due | without structural is 5%of the number
to debris damage and ensure free of manholes and

gulley pots below the
defined Service Level.

ID) Vegetation Control

distance of 240m is not
maintained.

1. Vegetation | Unwanted Carriageway, shoulders | Height: Omm at all No tolerance
free zone vegetation on and structures must be | times permitted.
the Vegetation kept with no vegetation see note 6.
free zone
2. Inner Overgrown Inner vegetation must Height <25 mm, The permitted
vegetation vegetation zone, edge of shoulders | 2150 mm at all times | maximum tolerance
Zone to back of side drain is 5 %of the length
/ditch or 2m away Outer vegetation below the defined
from edge of shoulder | <<25mm and 300 Service Level in any
on straight and outside | mm>> subsection.
of curves and 5m on see note 6.
the inside of curves.
Also control of
vegetation around
street furniture and
other features.
Overhanging Must be removed if <<1 week>> No tolerance
Branches within 5.5m above the permitted
obstructing road surface and/or the
visibility. minimum sight
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Service criteria

RESPONSE

the Contractor
must notify the
Engineer
<<24
Hours>>.

TIME
Service Level | = XBOWS™> | rorpRANCE
Element Defect }t?eans
hrs./days/wks."
I) Vegetation Control
4. Trees within ROW Self sown Must be << 1 month>> | The permitted maximum
tree of removed in tolerance is 5 % of the
nuisance >1 | case of number of trees are
m high outgrown below the defined Service
roots which Level in any subsection
damage the
road/structure
Dead tree Dead trees << 1 week>>
that presents | within outer
risk of falling | vegetation
onto the road | zone must be
removed.
III) Maintenance of other Structures
1. Concrete structures Structural Concrete In case of No tolerance permitted
deterioration | structures structural
must be in damage, the
good contractor to
condition and | notify the
fully Engineer
functional. <<24 Hours>>
Blocked culvert Obstruction | Must be free
due to flowing at all
sediments, times
soils and
washed
materials
2. Steel structures Structural The steel In case of No tolerance permitted
deterioration, | structures (e.g. | structural
leaking Bridge and damage, the
structures pedestrian contractor to
bridge) must | notify the
be clean, in Engineer
good <<24
condition, free | Hours>>
of corrosion
and fully
functional.
3. Bridge expansion joints Debris All expansion | In case of any No tolerance permitted
impending joints must be | condition
joint clean and in which
movement/ | good threatens
damaging the | condition and | structural
joint fully integrity of the
functional expansion joint,
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Service criteria

RESPONSE
TIME

<< x hours>>

to 50 meters
upstream and
downstream
of the river at
all times

Service Level et s TOLERANCE
Element Defect }Teans tori
hrs./days/wks."
I) Vegetation Control
4. Trees within ROW Self sown Must be << 1 month>> | The permitted maximum
tree of removed in tolerance is 5 % of the
nuisance >1 | case of number of trees are
m high outgrown below the defined Service
roots which Level in any subsection
damage the
road/structure
Dead tree Dead trees << 1 week>>
that presents | within outer
risk of falling | vegetation
onto the road | zone must be
removed.
4. Guardrail / Pedestrian Rail | Deformed/ Guardrails << 1 week>> | No tolerance permitted
Missing must be in
guardrails good
condition and
fully
functional.
5. Riverbeds Obstructions | Riverbeds Any No tolerance permitted
due to debris | must be accumulation
or maintained to | of debris <400
inappropriate | ensure free mm must be
vegetation flow of water | removed.
under the
bridge and up

Eroded river

Erosion

Causes for non-

However, the damaged

beds around bridge | compliance portion pending repairs
abutments and | must be maybe left on site with
piers must be | eliminated proper signs and safety
controlled within 2 weeks | arrangements.
with all after water has
reasonable sufficiently
measures at all | receded to
times. allow working
conditions.
Service criteria Service Level RESPONSE TIME TOLERANCE
Element | Defect << x hours>> means "within x
hrs./days/wks."
IV) Slope Stability
1. Possibl | All embankment slopes | << 1 week >> The permitted Max.
Embank | e slope | must be without Tolerance is 5 %of the
ment failure | deformations/damages length of the road with
slopes and erosions of more embankment slopes is
than 100 mm in depth
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Service criteria Service Level RESPONSE TIME TOLERANCE
Element | Defect << x hours>> means "within x
hrs./days/wks."
IV) Slope Stability
below the defined Service
Level in each subsection.
2. Slopes | Possibl | All slopes in cuts must | Fallen slope material must be No tolerance permitted
in Cuts e slope | be stable removed, Quantities below 10m?3
failure per Km section
from pavement
<< 4hrs >>
from shoulders
<< lday >>

Response Time is the Time taken to repair a defect from the time of its detection.

Notes:

Note 1:8Say A sub-section is 200m long. The length below the defined service level must not exceed 10min the
sub- section.

NofteZ: Say area of sub-section of 200m length=7mx200=1400sqm. Area of cracking not to exceed 70sqm
in the sub-section.

Nofte 3: Say area of sub-section of 200m length=7mx200=1,400sqm. Area of cracking not to exceed
28sqm in the sub-section.

Nofe 4: Say sub-section of 200m length and the affected length of pavement edges not to exceed 4min the
sub-section.

Nofe 5: Say sub-section of 200m length and. The affected length of difference in height not to exceed 4min the
sub- section.

Nofte 6: For vegetation control such as vegetation free zone and inner vegetation, please refer to the vegetation
control cross section indicated in the next page.
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APPENDIX B: PERFORMANCE STANDARDS FOR PAVED STANDARD ROAD USABILITY

Service criteria RESPONSE TIME TOLERANCE
Check Service Level <<X h'c')u;'s>‘>
Element Defect means "within x
hrs./days/wks."
I) Passability
Pavement Obstruction on The road should << 2 hrs.>> No tolerance
passage always allow for permitted
Obstruction on passage of traffic << 2 hrs.>> No tolerance
overhead clearance permitted
ROAD USER COMFORT
Service criteria RESPONSE TIME
Service Level << X hours>> means | po[ ERANCE
Element Defect ervice Leve "within x hrs./ days/
wks."

1) Smooth and Safe Traffic

1.Pavement

Unclean Pavement

The road must always

<<12 hours >>

1) No tolerance

be clean and free of permitted.
soil, debris, trash and
other objects.
Pavement too rough | The pavement must at | <<5 Days>> The permitted level

for road use

all times be kept to an
acceptable level of
roughness.

of tolerance of the IRI
shall be a maximum
of 11 mm/km.

Potholes Max.permitted area <<1 week>> The permitted
within 1 km depth of maximum area <5%
pothole >5 cm and in any subsection.
dia.25 cm.

Corrugations Max.spacing 3.0 cm. | <<I1 week>> The permitted max.
corrugated area <5%
in any subsection.
see note 1

Rutting All rutting of >7 cm <<1 week >> The permitted
deep must be maximum rutted
repaired. area > 7 cm deep is<

5 % in any
subsection.
see note 1

Loss of Camber The Camber must be | <<1 week >> <1.0%
kept at 5.0 %.

Erosion Gullies The pavement must at | <<28 days>> The permitted

all times be kept free
from Gullies

maximum area
under <5% in any
subsection.

see note 1.

Soft Spots

The pavement must at
all times be well
drained, Quality base

<<28 days>>

The permitted
maximum Soft Spot
area< 5% in any

materials must be subsection.
used at all times. see note 1
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Service criteria

Service Level

RESPONSE TIME

<< x hours>>

TOLERANCE

vegetation free
zone

distance of 240m is not
maintained

Element Defect means "within x
hrs./ days/ wks."
) Smooth and Safe Traffic
1.Pavement | Loss of Gravel The gravel thickness along | <<6 Months>> No tolerance
Depth the road center line must permitted
be equal to design
thickness.
Shoulder Damaged 1) Repaired to avoid water | <<28 days >> 1)Cross fall < the
(Scoured/ Rutted/ | penetration camber on the
Depressed unpaved surface >
/Potholed/ High 4 % of the subsection.
vegetation)
unpaved
shoulders 2) without deformations 2) The permitted
and erosion so that the maximum cracked
cross fall is not less than area with cracks> 3
the camber on the paved mm wide <10 % of
surface the area in any sub-
3) free of visible potholes, section.
cracks wider >3mm,
multiple cracks and rutting
of > 2cm
Shoulder/ At all sections, difference in | <<2 weeks>> The permitted
Carriageway Step. | height at edge of pavement maximum difference
must be maintained to < in height should be <
Scm. 2 % for each
subsection.
see note 2
Footpath Obstruction due to | All footpath must be clean, | << 3 hours >> No tolerance
soil heaps, debris, | in good condition and fully permitted.
trash rocks, fallen | functional. Should be well
trees, abandoned | drained, No Potholes and
vehicles, rubbish. | have access to people with
Disability.
II) Visibility
Sight Vegetation Must be removed if >5.5m | <<24 hours >>. No tolerance
Distance obstructs visibility | above the road surface permitted.
availability or is within the and/or the minimum sight

III) Traffic Information

Signage Absence of All signage must be <<1 week >> Max.tolerance is 5 %
relevant warning | present, complete, clean, of the signs are below
signs/Mandatory | legible, reflective and the defined Service
signs firmly installed Level in any

subsection.
Absence of All signage must be << 2 weeks >> Max.tolerance is 5 %
relevant present, complete, clean, of the signs are below
Information Signs, | legible, reflective and the defined Service
Edge marker Post, | firmly installed Level in any
Guide Post, subsection.
Kilometer post
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Service criteria

RESPONSE TIME

<< x hours>>

Service Level g TOLERANCE
Element Defect means "within x
hrs./ days/ wks."
M) Traffic Information
Signage Absence of All traffic signals must | << 3 days >> No tolerance
relevant Traffic be clean, operational permitted
signals and well synchronized
Absence of Minimum traffic speed | << 5 days>> Not Applicable
minimum Traffic | is 40 km/hr.
Speed
Road Works Absence of Must be placed when << 6 hours>> No tolerance
Advance relevant warning | clearing works are permitted
warning signs | signs/obscured by | required to be
vegetation undertaken.
ROAD DURABILITY
Service criteria RESPONSE TIME
Service Level << x hours>> TOLERANCE
Element Defect means "within x
hrs./ Days/wks."
I) Drainage Capability
1. Side Obstruction due to Must be clean and free | << 1 week >> The permitted
Drains, sediments, soils, of obstructions to maximum tolerance is
Mitre debris and washed ensure free flowing 5% of the length of
Drains, Cut | materials conditions at all times drains below the
off drains defined Service Level.
2. Culverts Obstructions due to | Must be clean and free | Siltation/ The permitted
and Drifts debris of obstacles to ensure | Obstruction must maximum tolerance is
free flowing be cleared 5% of the length of
conditions at all times | << 7 days >> drains below the
Damages must be | defined Service Level.
repaired
<<3 weeks >>
Obstruction Broken culverts No tolerance permitted
/Collapse due to should be reported
Structural Damage to the Engineer
<< 1 week>>
3. Scour Erosion due to Must be fully <<1 week>> The permitted
Checks, malfunction of the functional with no maximum tolerance is
gabions and | structures. serious defects that 5 %of the length below
other erosion can endanger the the defined Service
protection structure, roadway or Level.
structures pose safety hazard to
and gabions road users

II) Vegetation Control

Vegetation
free zone

Unwanted vegetation
on the Vegetation
free zone

Carriageway,
shoulders and
structures must be
kept with no
vegetation.

Height: Omm at all
times

No tolerance permitted
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Service criteria

RESPONSE TIME

<< x hours>>

branches obstructing
visibility.

> 5.5m above the
road surface
and/or the
minimum sight
distance of 240m is
not maintained.

Service Level i TOLERANCE
Element Defect means "within x
hrs./ Days/wks."
II) Vegetation Control
2. inner Overgrown Inner vegetation Height <<25 The permitted
vegetation Zone vegetation must zone, edge of | mm and 150 mm | maximum tolerance is
shoulders to back of | >>at all times 5 %of the length below
side drain /ditch or the defined Service
2m away from edge Level in any
of shoulder on - subsection.
. . Outer vegetation
straight and outside
<<25mm and
of curves and 5m
o 300 mm>>
on the inside of
curves. Also control
of vegetation
around street
furniture and other
features.
Overhanging Must be removed if | <<1 week>> No tolerance permitted

3. Trees within
ROW

Self-sown tree of
nuisance >1 m high

Must be removed in
case of outgrown
roots which
damage the
road/structure

<< 1 month>>

The permitted
maximum tolerance is
5 % of the number of
trees are below the

defined Service Level

Dead trees within << 1 week>> in any subsection.
outer vegetation
zone must be

removed.

Dead tree that
presents risk of
falling onto the road.

III) Maintenance of other Structures

1. Concrete Structural Concrete structures | In case of No tolerance permitted
structures deterioration must be in good structural
condition and fully | damage, the
functional. contractor to
notify the
Blocked/Obstruction | Must be free Engineer

due to sediments, flowing at all times

soils and washed

<<24 Hours>>

materials
2. Steel structures | Structural The steel structures | In case of No tolerance permitted
deterioration, (e.g. Bridge and structural
Leaking structures pedestrian bridge) | damage, the
must be clean, in contractor to
good condition, free | notify the
of corrosion and Engineer

fully functional. <<24 Hours>>

3. Bridge Debris impeding All expansion joints | In case of any No tolerance permitted
expansion joints | joint must be clean and | condition which
movement/damaging | in good condition threatens
the joint and fully functional | structural
integrity of the
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expansion joint,
the Contractor
must notify the
Engineer

<<24 Hours>>.

Service criteria

Element

Defect

Service Level

RESPONSE TIME

<< x hours>>
means "within x
hrs./
Days/wks."

TOLERANCE

III) Maintenance of other Structures

debris or
inappropriate
vegetation

maintained to ensure
free flow of water
under the bridge and
up to 50 meters
upstream and
downstream of the
river at all times

accumulation of
debris <400 mm
must be
removed.

4. Guardrail Deformed/Missing | Guardrails must be in | << 1 week>> No tolerance permitted
/Pedestrian Rail | guardrails good condition and

fully functional.
5. Riverbeds Obstructions due to | Riverbeds must be Any No tolerance

permitted

Eroded river beds

Erosion around bridge
abutments and piers
must be controlled
with all reasonable

Causes for non-
compliance
must be
eliminated

However, the damaged
portion pending
repairs maybe left on
site with proper signs

<<24 Hours>>.

measures at all times. | within 2 weeks | and safety
after water has | arrangements.
sufficiently
receded to allow
working
conditions.
IV) Slope Stability
Embankment Collapse of All embankment slopes | In case of any The permitted Max.
slopes embankment slopes | must be without condition is tolerance is 5 %of the
deformations/damages | observed, the length of the road with
and erosions of more Contractor must | embankment slopes is
than 100 mm in depth | notify the below the defined
Engineer Service Level in each

subsection.

2. Slopes in Cuts

Eroded/High
vegetation//Collapse
of slope.

All slopes in cut must
either be stable or are
stabilized with
adequate retaining
walls.

In case of any
condition is
observed, the
Contractor must
notify the
Engineer

<<24 Hours>.

No tolerance permitted

Response Time is the Time taken to repair a defect from the time of its detection.

Notes:

Nofel:Say A sub-section is 200m long. The length below the defined service level must not exceed 10min the

sub- section.

Nofe 2: Say area of sub-~section of 200m length=7mx200=1400sqm. Area of cracking not to exceed 70sqm in

the sub-section.
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Nofe 5: Say area of sub-~section of 200m length=7mx200=1,400sqm. Area of cracking not to exceed
28sqm in the sub-section.

Nofe 4: Say sub-section of 200m length and the affected length of pavement edges not to exceed 4m in the

sub-section.

Nofte 5: Say sub-section of 200m length and. The affected length of difference in height not
toexceed4minthesub- section.

Nofte 6: For vegetation control such as vegetation free zone and inner vegetation, please refer to the vegetation
control cross section indicated in the next page.

APPENDIX C: PERFORMANCE STANDARDS FOR UNPAVED STANDARD ROAD

ROAD USABILITY
Service criteria RESPONSE TIME
Check Service Level << X hours>>means | ro] FRANCE
Element Defect within x
hrs./days/wks."
D) Passability
Pavement Obstruction on The road should << 24 hrs.>> No tolerance
passage always allow for permitted
Obstruction on passage of traffic <<24 hrs.>> No tolerance
overhead clearance permitted
ROAD USER COMFORT
Service criteria RESPONSE TIME
Check Service Level << X hours>>means | o] FRANCE
Element Defect within x
hrs./days/weeks"
) Smooth and Safe Traffic
1.Pavement | Unclean Pavement | The road must always | <<24 hours >> 1) No tolerance

be clean and free of permitted.
soil, debris, trash and
other objects.
Pavement too rough | The pavement must at | <<5 Days>> The permitted level

for road use

all times be kept to an
acceptable level of
roughness.

of tolerance of the IRI
shall be a maximum
of 11 mm/km.

Potholes Max.permitted area <<2 weeks>> The permitted
within 1 km depth of maximum area <5%
pothole should be <5 in any subsection.
cm and dia.25 cm.

Corrugations Max.spacing 3.0 cm. | <<2 weeks>> The permitted max.
corrugated area <5%
in any subsection.
see note 1

Rutting All rutting of more <<2 weeks>> The permitted

than 7 cm deep must
be repaired.

maximum rutted
area >7 cm deep is
<5 % in any
subsection.

see note 1
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Loss of Camber The Camber must be | <<2 weeks>> +1.0%
kept at 5.0 %.
Erosion Gullies Proper transversal <<28 days>> The permitted

Drainage

maximum area
under Erosion Gullies
<5% in any

subsection.
see note 1.
Soft Spots The pavement must at | <<28 days>> The permitted
all times be well maximum Soft Spot
drained, Quality base area <5% in any
materials must be subsection.
used at all times. see note 1
Service criteria RESPONSE TIME
Check Service Level <<X h'(')u;'s>.> TOLERANCE
Element Defect means "within x
hrs./days/weeks"
) Smooth and Safe Traffic
1.Pavement | Loss of Gravel The gravel thickness <<6 Months>> No tolerance
Depth along the road center line permitted
must be equal to design
thickness.
Shoulder Damaged (Scoured/ | 1) Repaired to avoid <<28 days >> 1)Cross fall < the
Rutted/ Depressed/ | water penetration camber on the
Potholed/ High unpaved surface >
vegetation) unpaved 4 % of the subsection.
shoulders
2) without deformations 2) The permitted
and erosion so that the maximum cracked
cross fall is not less than area with cracks> 3
the camber on the paved mm wide <10 % of
surface the area in any sub-
3) free of visible potholes, section.
cracks wider >3mm,
multiple cracks and
rutting of > 2cm
Shoulder/ At all sections, difference | <<2 weeks>> The permitted
Carriageway Step. in height at edge of maximum difference
pavement must be in height < 2 % for
maintained to < 5cm. each subsection
. see note 2
Footpath Obstruction due to | All footpath must be << 3 hours >> No tolerance
soil heaps, debris, clean, in good condition permitted.
trash rocks, fallen and fully functional.
trees, abandoned Should be well drained,
vehicles, rubbish. No Potholes and have
access to people with
Disability.
II) Visibility
Sight Vegetation obstructs | Must be removed if <<24 hours >>. No tolerance
Distance visibility or is within | >5.5m above the road permitted.
availability the vegetation free surface and/or the
zone minimum sight distance
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of 240m is not
maintained

ITI) Traffic Information

2.Signage

Absence of relevant
warning
signs/Mandatory
signs

All signage must be
present, complete, clean,
legible, reflective and
firmly installed

<<2 weeks >>

Max.tolerance is 5 %
of the signs are below
the defined Service
Level in any
subsection.

Absence of relevant
Information Signs,

All signage must be
present, complete, clean,

<< 4 weeks >>

Max.tolerance is 5 %
of the signs are below

Edge marker Post, legible, reflective and the defined Service
Guide Post, firmly installed Level in any
Kilometer post subsection.
Service criteria RESPONSE TIME
Check Service Level <<X h'c'm?s>.> TOLERANCE
Element Defect means "within x
hrs./days/weeks"
III) Traffic Information
2.Signage Absence of relevant | All traffic signals must be | The Contractor to | Not Applicable
Traffic regulatory clean, operational and inform relevant
signals well synchronized Authorities.
Absence of Minimum traffic speed is | << 5 days>> Not Applicable
minimum Traffic 30 km/hr.
Speed
Road Works | Absence of relevant | Must be placed when << 12 hours>> No tolerance
Advance warning clearing works are permitted
warning signs/obscured by required to be
signs vegetation undertaken.
ROAD DURABILITY
Service criteria RESPONSE TIME
Check Service Level << X hours>> TOLERANCE
Element Defect means "within x
hrs./days/weeks"
1) Drainage Capability.
1. Side Obstruction due to | Must be clean and free | << 2 weeks >> The permitted
Drains, sediments, soils, of obstructions to maximum tolerance is
Mitre debris and washed | ensure free flowing 5% of the length of
Drains, Cut | materials conditions at all times drains below the
off drains. defined Service Level.
2. Culverts Obstructions due to | Must be clean and free | Siltation/ The permitted
and Drifts debris of obstacles to ensure Obstruction must maximum tolerance is
free flowing conditions | be cleared 10 % of the length of
at all times << 1 week>> drains below the
Damages must be defined Service Level.
repaired <<4weeks
>>
Obstruction Broken culverts No tolerance permitted
/Collapse due to should be reported
Structural Damage to the Engineer
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<< 1 week>>

free zone

vegetation on the
Vegetation free zone

and structures must be
kept with no
vegetation.

times

3. Scour Erosion due to Must be fully <<4 weeks>> The permitted

Checks, malfunction of the | functional with no maximum tolerance is
gabions and | structures. serious defects that can 5 %of the length below
other endanger the structure, the defined Service
erosion roadway or pose safety Level.

protection hazard to road users

structures

and gabions

II) Vegetation Control

1.Vegetation | Unwanted Carriageway, shoulders | Height: Omm at all | No tolerance permitted

Service criteria

RESPONSE TIME

<< x hours>>

shoulders to back of
side drain /ditch or
2m away from edge
of shoulder on
straight and outside
of curves and 5m
on the inside of
curves. Also control
of vegetation
around street
furniture and other
features.

all times

Outer
vegetation<<25mm
and 500 mm>>

Service Level TOLERANCE
Check Element Defect means "within x
hrs./days/weeks"
I) Vegetation Control
2. inner Overgrown Inner vegetation Height <<25mm The permitted
vegetation Zone vegetation must zone, edge of | and 300 mm>> at | maximum tolerance is

5 %of the length below
the defined Service
Level in any
subsection.

ROW

3. Trees within

nuisance >1m

Self-sown tree of

Must be removed in
case of overgrown

<< 1 month>>

The permitted
maximum tolerance is

Obstruction due to
sediments, soils
and washed
materials

flowing at all times

high roots which 5 % of the number of
damage the trees are below the
road/structure defined Service Level
Dead tree that Dead trees within << 1 week>> in any subsection.
presents risk of outer vegetation
falling onto the zone must be
road. removed.
III) Maintenance of other Structures
1. Concrete Structural Concrete structures | In case of structural | No tolerance permitted
structures deterioration must be in good damage, the
condition and fully | contractor to notify
functional. the Engineer
Blocked/ Must be free
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2. Steel structures

Structural
deterioration,
Leaking structures

The steel structures
(e.g. Bridge and
pedestrian bridge)
must be clean, in
good condition, free
of corrosion and
fully functional.

In case of structural
damage, the
contractor to notify
the Engineer

No tolerance permitted

3. Bridge Debris impeding All expansion joints | In case of any No tolerance permitted
expansion joints | joint movement/ must be clean and | condition which
damaging the joint | in good condition threatens structural
and fully functional | integrity of the
expansion joint, the
Contractor must
notify the Engineer
<<2weeks>>.
4. Guardrail Deformed/Missing | Guardrails must be | Damages and No tolerance permitted
/Pedestrian Rail guardrails in good condition defects must be
and fully repaired
functional. << 2 weeks>>

Service criteria

Check Element

Defect

Service Level

RESPONSE TIME

<< x hours>>

means "within x
hrs./days/weeks"

TOLERANCE

III) Maintenance of other Structures

5. Riverbeds

Obstructions due
to debris or
inappropriate
vegetation

Riverbeds must be

maintained to ensure free
flow of water under the

bridge and up to 50
meters upstream and

downstream of the river

at all times

Any accumulation
of debris >400
mm must be
removed.

No tolerance
permitted

Eroded river beds

Erosion around bridge

abutments and piers

must be controlled with
all reasonable measures

at all times.

Causes for non-
compliance must
be eliminated
<< 2 weeks>>
after water has

However, the
damaged portion
pending repairs
maybe left on site
with proper signs

100mm in depth

sufficiently and safety
receded to allow | arrangements.
working
conditions.
IV) Slope Stability
1. Embankment | Collapse of All embankment slopes << 2 weeks >> The permitted Max.
slopes embankment must be without tolerance is 5 %of the
slopes deformations/damages length of the road
and erosions of > with embankment

slopes is below the
defined Service Level
in each subsection.

2. Slopes in Cuts

Eroded/ High

All slopes in cut must

In case of any

No tolerance

vegetation/ either be stable or are condition is permitted
Collapse of slope | stabilized with adequate | observed, the
protection retaining walls. Contractor must
notify the
Engineer
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<<24 Hours>>.

Response Time is the Time taken to repair a defect from the time of its detection.

Notes

Nofte 1:Say area of sub-section of 200 m length =7m x 200=1400sqm.Area of does not to exceed 70 sqm in
the subsection. This applies for Rutting, Soft Spots.

Note 2: Say sub-section of 200 m length and the affected length of difference in height not to exceed 4 m in
the sub- section.
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Appendix 1: Defect Detection/ Rectification Record Form

Road
Authority

Contractor

Project Road
Name

Service Category

Level Service
Scope

Service
Criteria

No | Detection Rectification Remark
(to be filled by SCU or PM) (to be filled by EXU)
Date Location Description Date Compliance
(Yes/No)
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Appendix 2: Daily Work Record Form

Basic Information

Road Authority

Contractor

Project

Road Name/Chainage ‘

Road Class Standard Service Level

Date

Date Weather

PBC Work Operations

Chainage

Activity Description Photo No
From To Vi P ’

Machinery, Truck Labor

Description Plate No, | Photo No, | Category number Photo No,

Materials Delivered to Site Materials Removed from Site

Description Quantity | Photo No, | Description Quantity | Photo No,

Admission

Personal Name Sign Date

Self-Control Unit

Road Manager
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Appendix 3: Daily Patrol Record

Basic Information
Road Authority
Contractor
Project
Road Name/Chainage
Road Class Standard Service
Level
Patrol
Date Weather
Cleanliness/Obstacles
) Time
Chainage - Remarks Photo No.
Detection Removal
Any other activities undertaken
Chainage Objects, Condition, other information Photo No.
Admission
Personal Name Sign Date
Self-~Control Unit
Road Manager
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Appendix 4: Monthly Photo Record

Basic Information
Road Authority
Contractor
Project
Road Name/Chainage
Road Class Standard Service
Level
No, | DATE DATE
Photo file size: less than 300kB Photo file size: less than 300kB
Q2
@]
<
[a ¥}
2
=
=
O
[«
No, | DATE DATE
Photo file size: less than 300kB Photo file size: less than 300kB
Q2
o
i
[a¥)
2
s
=
O
(=4
No, | DATE DATE
Photo file size: less than 300kB Photo file size: less than 300kB
2
@]
-
o)
2
=
s
[®)
[«
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Appendix 5: Incident Condition and Activity Report

Basic Information

Road Authority

Contractor

Project

Road Name/Chainage

Standard Service

Road Class Lovel

Incident Notification Caller Phone No,

Date/Time /Chainage or
Location

Information Resource Road Authority, Police, Engineer, Road Users, Others ( )

Mature of Incident

Location of Incident

Condition of Accident Vehicles

Number/Conditions of injured
People

Description

Site Condition Photo
(Any road asset damaged by the accident) No,

Assets Damage condition
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Appendix 6: Detail Self Inspection Result Record Form modified (Paved Road)( Defects Identification Form (Sample))

NAME OF CONTRACT/LOT NO:

FORM

CONTRACT NO:...KURA/RMLE/LE/**/2024-2025...CONTRACTOR: Y DETAILED SELF-INSPECTION

PERFORMANCE

PERFORMANCE IN SUB SECTION OF COMPLIANCE ("PASS"=1, "FAIL"=0)

SERVICE SCOPE

SERVICE LEVEL/ SERVICE
CRITERIA

9

10

11

12

13 14 15 16 17 18 19

20

21

22

23

24

26

Km 0+200

Km 1+000

Km 2+000

Km 3+000

Km 4+000

Km 5+000

Total
Complied
(km)

Total Non-
complied
(km)

1. Road Safety

1. Cleanliness of the road carriageway

2. Cleanliness of the road shoulders

3. Cleanliness of the road Reserve

a. Cleanliness

Compliance of A

3.1

1. Potholes patching and base repairs

2. Any other instructed works

< | <] < |2 (<]

< | <] < |2 (<]
< | <] < |2 (<]
< | 2] < |2 (<]
< | 2] < |2 (<]

2 |2 2 | A==

< | 2] < |2 (<]

< | <] < < <

< |=] 2 | A=<

< | 2] < |2 (<]

< | 2] < |2 (<]

< | 2] < |2 (<]

<2 | <] < |2 (<]
< | 2] < |2 (<]
< | <] < |2 (<]
<2 | <] < |2 (<]
<2 | <] < |2 (<]
< | <] < |2 (<]
< | <] < |2 (<]

< | <] < |2 (<]

b. Instruc|
ted Works

Compliance of B

2. Road Durabilify

1. Side Drains ,ditches, mitre and
unlined vertical drains

2. Culverts

<

<]
<]
<
<

<

<

<]

2]

2|

3. Cleaning of Manholes and Gulley
Pots

2

2
2
2
2

2

2

2

<

2

< |2

< |2

< |2
< |2
< |2
< |2

< <
< <
< <

< |2

Compliance of C

3.1

1. Vegetation free Zone

2. Inner vegetation zone 2m away from
the shoulder , 5m inside of curves

3. Outer vegetation Zone ,excluding
Zone 2

d. Vegetation

4. Growth encroaching into vegetation
free zone from the side or top

5. Neatness of hedges planted the road

<] 2 | 2| 2|

<] 2 |2 | <2 |
Rl I P R N
- I P .
<] 2 | 2| 2|

<] 2 | 2| 2|

- I P .

Rl I P R N

Pl I P R

R I P .

< | 2| 2| 2 [<]

< | 2| 2| 2=

< | 2| 2| 2 (=]
< | 2| 2| 2=
< | 2| 2| 2 [=<]
< | 2| 2| 2 |=2]
< | 2| 2| 2 (=]
< | 2| 2| <2 [<2]
< | 2| 2| 2 [=<2]

< | 2| 2| <2 [<2]

Compliance of D

4.1

Steel or other metallic structures

N/A

Concrete structures

N/A

Expansion joints

N/A

%

I Bl B N

Retention walls

N/A

Rivers beds

Compliance of E

Road Manager

Site Supervisor

Assistant Resident Engineer

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXX

Date/Sign




APPENDIX 6A: PBC INSPECTION CHECKLIST (to be read in conjunction with Appendix A, B &
C Performance specification) ~-SAMPLE

Service Level . . ]
Service level Requirements Time Allowed
1.Cleanliness
L. Cleanliness of the | 77 road must always be clean and free of soil, debris, frash and other objects, which must be
carriageway and removed within the time given if they pose:
shoulders
1. A high danger fo tratfic: such as rocks, fallen trees, dead animals, abandoned 6 hours
vehicles, fly tipping and other large obstacles, overburden efc.
2. A lesser (medium) danger fo traffic: such as material washed on to the road after 3 davs
storms, siltation efc. o
3. Shoulders must be free of overburden, soil, debris, trash and other objects. Shoulder
level must be lower than that of road edge(except on paved sections) and sloping fo 7 days
the drain
2. Cleanliness road The road reserve must always be clean and free of soil, debris, frash and other objects, which davs
reserve must be removed within the time given if they pose: ays
A lesser (medium) danger fo traffic: such as material washed on to the road after storms efc.
Areas adjacent to drains and carriageway must be free from overburden and encroachments
fo allow free flow of water i.e. Zm away from the drains or 5m from the edge of road
carriageway.
2.Instructed Works Refer to Table 2.5 (a)for more details
1. Activities carried Routine /maintenance & Improvement Works
out under the The Contractor must carry out instructed works within seven (7) days of the instructions. Tdavs
Engineer’s Periodic and Improvement Works ol
instruction: The contractor must carry out within Smonths after the start date
Pothole patching, | Routine /mainfenance & Improvement Works
Base repairs, Cut The Conftractor must carry ouf instructed works within seven (7) days of the instructions.
to spoil etc. Must | Periodic and Improvement Works
be carried out in The contractor must carry out within 3months after the start date
accordance with The carriageway must to be kept in good condition and fully functional. 7days/
specifications SBmonths
ensuring proper
workmanship and
use of quality
material.
3.Pavement , Shoulders and | Refer to Table 2.55 for more details
Right of way
Encroachment/ lllegal, lllegal or unauthorised structures, access, advertisement , car wash, vending of flowers and 24hours
advertisement , car wash, tree seedlings, works trenching shall not be put within the right of way atter commencement
vending of seedlings works
and tfrenching
4..Drainage Works
1.  Side drains, Must be clean and free of obstacles. Must be free flowing. Siltation /obstruction must be 7days
ditches, mitre <50mm But 3 weeks for instructed works.
drains and
unlined vertical
drains
2. Culverts Must be clean and free of obstacles and without structural damage. Must be firmly contained 7days
by surrounding soil or material. Must be free flowing. <50mm Siltation But 3 weeks for
instructed works.
3. Cleaning of Must be clean and free of obstacles and without structural damage. 7days 7days
manholes and But 3 weeks for instructed works. But 3 weeks for instructed works.
gulley pots
5. Vegetation
1. Vegetation Free Carriageway, shoulders, walkways and structures Oomm
Zone. tolerance
2. Inner vegetation Road verges and large vegetated areas, including surface water channels with longitudinal 50 mm(min)
zone: gradients < 3%. Also vegetation control around:-Marker posts, Chainage markers, Signposts, fo 100mm
PBridge and culverf markers, Guardrails, Bridge abutments, Cross culvert ends, headwalls, (max)
wing walls, man hole and gulley and Inner side drains
3. Outer vegetation Bush clearing and vegetation control around: Marker posts, Access culvert ends, wing walls 100mm
zone, excluding and headwalls, Outer side drains, Channels with gradients > 3%. And Road verges (min) fo
zone 2. 300mm
(max)
4. Growth Applies to vegetation control including trees, scrub or branches hanging over the zone. Must 7days
encroaching into be removed if within 5m above the road surface.
Vegetation Free
Zone from the side
or top.
5. Hedges planted along the Acceptable hedges will be agreed on onsite and maintained by the contractor .Re — growth As per
roads should be maintained after trimming should be maintained less than 50mm instruction
neat.
6.Structures
1. Steel or other Guardrails must be present and not deformed. All metal parts of overall structure shall be (7) Days.
metal structures painted (every six months) or otherwise protected and free of corrosion. Drainage system (e.g.
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weep holes) fo be kept in good condition and fully functional.

2. Concrete Guardrails must be present and painted. Beams and all other structural parts must be in good (7) Days
structures conditions and fully functional. Drainage system (e.g. weep holes) must be in good condition
and fully functional. Or as per instructions given.
3.  Expansion joints Clean and in good working condition (7) Days.
4.  Retention walls Conftractor must maintain in good working condition refention walls and their drainage (7) Days.
system must be functional.
5.  Riverbeds Contractor must ensure free flow of water under bridge and up fo 50 metres upstream and (14) days
downstream. Contractor must maintain design clearance under bridge clearing all debris
deposited during floods. The Contractor shall take all reasonable measures fo control erosion
around bridge abutments and piers.
Steel or other metal Guardrails must be present and not deformed. All metal parts of overall structure shall be (7) Days.
structures painted (every six months) or otherwise protected and free of corrosion. Drainage system (€.8.
weep holes) to be kept in good condition and fully functional.
Concrete structures Guardrails must be present and painted. Beams and all other structural parts must be in good (7) days

conditions and fully functional. Drainage system (e.g. weep holes) must be in good condition
and fully functional as per instructions given.
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Appendix 7: Monthly Inspection report (Sample)

1. Road Safety 2. Durability
Cleanliness of Road Cleanliness of Road Cleanliness of Road Instructed works Drainage Vegetation Structures
carriegeway shoulders Reserve
. Non-~ Non . | Non : Non Non .
Road Length(' | Complian Complian | Compliant Complian Compli Complia Compli Complian | Compliant Non Compliant | Complia Complia Non Compliant
Km) t : ¢ ant t ant " Compliant nt nt
1 [ Manyanja 2.00 | 1.00 1.00 - 2.00 1.00 1.00 2.00 - - 2.00 2.00 - 2.00 )
2| Kayole Spine 410 | 3.10 1.00 2.90 1.20 3.10 1.00 4.10 - 3.10 1.00 3.10 1.00 4.10 -
TOTAL 6.10 4.10 2.00 2.90 3.20 4.10 2.00 6.10 0.00 3.10 3.00 5.10 1.00 6.10 0.00
67 47.5 67.2 100.0 50.8 83.6 100.0
Average 70.5 78.14
Monthly Payment per KM 35,000.00
_ Date.....coovveeviiiiiiiiiie
Contractor
Resident
Date....ccoevviieiiiiiii Engineer
Assistant to Resident
Engineer
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Appendix 8: Payment Reduction Calculation Table (Paved Road) Sample

Sheet 1 of 1
Project PERFORMANCE BASED ROUTINE MAINTENANCE OF LOT 14 ROADS Contract Period 8
Road Authority KURA I Contractor : XYZ
Road Name/ Class/ Chainage/ (j)Length AS PER INSPECTION REPORT Road Class Urban Road 6.1km
Statement Month/ Year and Elapse of Month APRIL I 2018 2 | Standard Service Level Standard
Contract Due Amount of the Month (%) 213,500 KSH
Service Level Criteria Compliance Reduction
(H=(e)-(d)
c)=(a)*(b e >=() . . .
(@) b | O @@y © ¢ (&-(0/(©) (@) | Gexd)
. ) . Non Adjusted (h) . .
. . Contract Requir Exemption . NON- . Reduction Reduction
Service Service Scope Target Compliant Non- . Reduction
Road Length ed Length . Compliant . Rate Length
(km) Target Length (km) Length Compliant Rate Weight %) (km)
(km) (km) Length
(km)
A) Cleanliness of carriageway 6.1 75% 4.6 1.5 2.0 0.5 10% 100% 10.4% 0.48
B) Cleanliness of the road shoulders 6.1 75% 4.6 1.5 32 1.7 37% 50% 18.3% 0.84
1. Road Safety C) Cleanliness of the road reserve 6.1 75% 4.6 1.5 2.0 0.5 10% 50% 52% 0.24
D) Instructed Works ; Pothole Patching 6.1 75% 46 15 0.0 0.0 0% 100% 0.0% 0.00
repair works )
A)Drainage 6.1 75% 4.6 1.5 3.0 1.5 32% 50% 16.1% 0.74
- B)Vegetation Height 6.1 75% 4.6 1.5 1.0 0.0 0% 100% 0.0% 0.00
2. Road Durability = - otion Clearance 6.1 75% 46 1.5 1.0 0.0 0% 100% 0.0% 0.00
D)Structures 6.1 75% 4.6 1.5 0.0 0.0 0% 100% 0.0% 0.00
(j) Total = 39.6% 1.81
650%
Required Target Calculation of the Payment Amount of the Month
3.
. 2. Road User Road
Elapse of Month 1. Road Usability Comfort Durabi Contract Due Amount of the Month KSH 213,500 (x)
lity
1 50% 50% 50% Reduction Rate % 39.6% (k)
2 100% 75% 75% Reduction Amount KSH 84,583 (z2)=(x)x(k)
3 100% 100% 100% Payment Amount of the Month KSH 128,917 (v)=(x)-(2)
4 100% 100% 100%
5 100% 100% 100%
6 100% 100% 100%
Date... Date............
Contractor Resident Engineer
Date.....cccoovviiiiiiiiie

Assistant to Resident Engineer
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Appendix9: Monthly Evaluation Form ( Sample)
Number of elapsed month =

Project Title PERFO/RMANCE BASED CONTRACTING OF LOT 14 ROADS ( MANYANJA & KAYOLE SPINE ROADS)
KURA/RMLF/NBR/ 130/2017 — 2018
Road Authority KURA Name
Contractor XYZ Resident Engineer A
Date of checking 5-Sep-18 Assistant Resident Engineer ABC

This form is used by Project manager to verify monthly performance for contract evaluation.

Scope Requirement Pass or Fail*1
1 Service revel 1 Reduction rate for service level non-compliance is less than 5.0% 0
compliance

1 Self-control unit is organized by proper contractor’s member 1

2 Self-control unit 2 Self-control unit operates properly 1
performance

Pass or fail in total*2 1

1 Workers and operators wear proper safety gear 1

2 Traffic control is conducted properly 1

3 Work Safety 3 No accident of workers, operators attributable to the contractor 1
Management

4 No accident of third-parties attributable to the contractor 1

Pass or fail in total*2 1

1 Environmental consideration is properly conducted 1

4 Environment and 2 Waste material generated from the site is properly disposed 0

social management 3 Transportation by vehicles is properly controlled 1

Pass or fail in total*2 0

Corrective order 1 No corrective order is made by authority 1

6 Statutory compliance 1 Contractor complied with relevant statutory regulations 1

*1 Filling Example: “Pass”="1" “Fail” = “0” “Not applicable” = "N/A”

*2 Scoring criteria:

In case of having more than one requirement in each evaluation scope, all the requirements except not applicable case shall be passed for pass evaluation in total
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Appendix 10 B: Contract Evaluation Tally Sheet for PBC (Draft Ver.3)~ Roads(Sample)
Proiect Title PERFORMANCE BASED CONTRACTING OF LOT XXX ROADS ( XYZ ROADS) Date Name Sienature
. KURA/RMLF/NBR/ 130/2017 — 2018 &
Road Authority KURA .
XX
Contractor XYZ Project Manager XX
Date of Commencement 2" February 2018 Road XX XX
Expected date of Completion | 1% October, 2018 Manager
Number of elapsed months in the end of last year | 0
1. This tally sheet is for Project Manager to evaluate performance of contractor by scoring at the end of contract. Use this form for evaluation in every year during contract period.
2. Fill "1" for "Pass" or "0" for "Fail" in column for each item and month according to monthly evaluation form. Fill "-" in column for before and after commencement of work.
Evaluation (Pass ="1", Fail ="0") (a) (b) (c) (d) ®
No. of Year (2018) No. of Score
month (a)/ .
. month Weight for
ltem with with Total for each each Penalty*2
"Pass=1" Jan Feb | Mar | Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec "Pass=]" month . .
in past : ass= (%) 1tem 1tem
in total (b)*(c)
years
1| Service revel 0 S T R o [ o | o | o | - | - - - 1 143 | 50% 7
compliance*1
2| Self-control unit 0 N 1 1|1 1 - - - - 7 100 10% 10
performance
3| Work safety 0 - o |1 0 0 0 1 1 - - - - 3 429 20% 9
management
4 | Environment and social 0 _ 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 _ } } } 0 0 10% 0
management
3| Corrective order 0 N 1 11| - |- - - 7 100 | 10% 10
issuance
6 | Statutory compliance 0 - 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 - - - - 7 100 0
*1: Less than 5.0% of reduction rate for service level non-compliance in each month is considered as “Pass=1" 36 0
*2: Penalty of -20 point is given for non-compliance in equal or more than one month Total score 36
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Appendix 11: Monthly Statement ~sample

SUMMARY OF STATEMENT FOR PAYMENT OF ACCOUNT

CONTRACT NO:KURA/RMLF/NBR/241/XYZ2018-2019
CONTRACTOR: XYZ LTD

CONTRACT SUM: KSHS XXXXXXX

REVISED CONTRACT SUM : N/A

CONTRACT NAME:PERFORMANCE BASED ROUTINE MAINTENANCE OF LOT 01 ROADS

INTERIM PAYMENT CERTIFICATE NO. 02

VALUATION AS AT 16th OCTOBER 2021

DESCRIPTION

Previous Certificates This Certificate (Kshs) Total (Kshs)

A. PBC WORKS

B. INSTRUCTED WORKS

C. MATERIAL ON SITE

D. VARIATION OF PRICE

E. SUB TOTAL of (A+B+C+D)

F. REDUCTION FOR NON COMPLIANCE

G. SUB TOTAL of (E+F)

H. ADD VAT @ 16%

I. TOTAL VALUE OF WORK (G+H )

J. LESS 6% WITHOLDING VAT( 6% subtotal

K. LESS RETENTION (5%SUB-TOTAL I)

L. LESS 3% WITHHOLDING TAX (3%SUB-

M. CUMMULATIVE

O. TOTAL PAYMENT

P. ADVANCE PAYMENT

Q.RECOVERY OF

R. INTEREST OF LATE

S.LESS LIQUIDATED

T.NET PAYMENTS

I hereby confirm the above rates & quantities are correct
Submitted by :

KURA/RMLF/LE/142/2025-2026 Issued by Kenya Urban Roads Authority
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NOW DUE TO CONTRACTOR

I hereby certify that the above amount is now due to the Contractor
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CONTRACTOR RESIDENT ENGINEER

Checked by : I hereby certify the above payment

ASSISTANT RESIDENT ENGINEER (ENGINEER )
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Appendix 12: Monthly Evaluation Form for Routine or Periodic Maintenance ~sample

Monthly Evaluation Form for Routine or Periodic Maintenance Number of elapsed month = 6
|Proj ect Title PERIODIC/Rl)UTINE MAINTENANéE OF XXXROAID (PART) CONll"RAC”L NO.
KURA/RMLF/NRB/XXX/2021-2022
Road Agency KURA Name
Contractor XXX LTD Project Manager XXXX
Date of checking | 25" May 2024 Road Manager/Site XXXX
Agent
This form is used by Project Engineer to verify monthly performance for contract evaluation.
Scope Requirement Pas:s or
Fail*1
11 Works E)(.ecution Programme (including its revised version if any) is submitted before the date 1
_ ' specified in contract document
1 Execution syitem n 1.2 | Works Execution Programme properly reflects the given specifications and site conditions 0
sener 1.3 | Execuution procedures are in accordance with Works Execution Programme 1
Pass or fail in total*2 0
2.1 | All equipment used are properly mobilized in accordance with Works Execution Programme 1
2 | Equipment holding 2.2 | All equipment used are well maintained during execution of works 1
Pass or fail in total*2 1
31 Qualified technical staff of contractor are properly assigned as specified in Works Execution 1
Programme
3.2 | Contractor's in-house key staff understand work process and schedule properly 1
3 | Contractor's in-house staff 33 Contractor's in-house key staff give technical guidance and direction to workers and operators 1
"~ | properly and timely
3.4 | Communications with agency in writing is properly and timely 0
Pass or fail in total*2 0
4.1 | Workers and operators are deployed in accordance with Works Execution Programme 1
4| Personnel employment 4.2 | Wage payment is properly made on time 1
Pass or fail in total*2 1
5 ) o 5.1 | Office and stockyard are prepared in accordance with works Execution Programme 1
Site base facilities o L . . :
5.2 | Site is well maintained during the work execution and cleared on completion 1

KURA/RMLF/LE/142/2025-2026
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5.3 | Material stored on site properly managed during the work execution 1
Pass or fail in total*2 1
6.1 Materia} testi‘ng, structural examinat'ion, mesurements are properly and routinely conducted based 1
"~ | on specifications and Works Execution Programme
¢ | Quality and quantity 6.2 | Results of material testing, structural examination and measurments are within specifications 1
management 6.3 Results of material testing, structural examination and measurments are properly compiled as |
™ | reports for confirmation
Pass or fail in total*2 1
7.1 | Understanding critical path and its reflection on scheduling are proper 0
79 Actual proceedings are periodically compared to the planned schedule described in Works 1
Execution Programme
7 | Work scheduling 7.3 | Changes caused by site conditions are properly handled to keep Works on schedule 1
7.4 | All works are completed within the contract term or within the extended term as allowed 1
Pass or fail in total*2 0
8.1 | No accident occurs to workers, operators, or third parties 1
8.2 | Safety of workers and operators is considered 1
8 | Work safety management 8.3 | Accident preYention effort's for third parties. are proper 1
8.4 | Traffic and site safety devices are properly installed and managed 1
8.5 | Temporary facilities (e.g. scaffolding) are constantly checked 1
Pass or fail in total*2 1
91 Environmental and social mitigation efforts (e.g. against noise, vibration, emmission, and dust) are 1
" | conducted
9.9 Waste material from site is properly 0
o9 | Environmental and social disposed
management 9.3 | Damage to existing roads, works and services is avoided or are repaired when it occurs 1
9.4 Transportation by vehicles is properly done with no overloading, and neither material falling, 1
" | leakage, nor spillage
Pass or fail in total*2 0
10 | Statutory compliance 10.1 | Contractor complied with relevant statutory regulations 1

*1 Filling E

xample: “Pass”="1" “Fail” =“0" “Not applicable” = "N/A”

*2 Scoring criteria:
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In case of having more than one requirement in each evaluation scope, all the requirement except not applicable case shall be passed for pass evaluation in total
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SECTION V -~ DRAWINGS

The actual drawings including Site plans should be annexed in a separate booklet.

FIGURE C.1 - CULVERT ENTRY / EXIT STRUCTURE TYFPES

TYPE 1 (ENTRY AMD EXIT) T¥PE 3 [ENTRY AND EXIT)
! |
i |
! !

====k . .

! — L] IF —-— =

==FE=F ==E==E
i |
B1 ' Bl !
| i

TYPE 2 (ENTRY ONLY!) TY¥PE 4 [ENTRY AND EXIT OM ACCESS)

) )

i

B2

NOTE:

Coding system has been used in describing the standardised designs of the
various culvert entry and exit structures. The code names consist of a
number

to specify shape and function as elaborated in above while the used
construction materials are identified through an alphabetic symbol as

follows:

A = (Concrete block
B = Sione masonry
C = Dressed stones

An example code of “B2" would therefore stand for a drop inlet type
structure to be built in stone masonry.
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FIGURE C.6 - HEADWALL TYPE 4 ( FOR ACCESS CULVEKTS)
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FIGURE C.7- BEDDING AND HAUNCH PROFILES TYFES 1 & 1T

— .
e h
b b
ol | R .
a'] d a I] d ] a
c | -
Diameter 430 (e 200 200
(1] [1mm) {mm} [rmmm) 50 ()| 600 (mm) | (mum)
Dimensions in {m) Dimensions in (m)
a N 5] Q.2 Q.2 015 0.2 0.2
b 0.1 Q.15 a.15 ol Q.15 Q.15
C T .12 1.48 LEG 1.12 1.48
d 0.56 Q.72 1.08 056 Q.72 1.08
e 014 Q.18 Q.27 (.28 Q.36 0,54
f (min.) 0.34 Q.45 Q.68 .34 0.45 Q.68
&
h 0.24 033 0.42 (Rt Q.51 Q.GD
i
iConcrete Volume in (m2/m) Volume in {(m3/m)
(L 5 Q.3 048 0.2 Q.37 .56
Application | g, subgrade condition; - Fair to poor subgrade
- Orwverfill = % Diameter; Condition;
- Zeasonal waterflow only. - Chverfill > % Diameter;
- Seasonal waterflow only.
Remarks |- Use gravel material for backs - Use gravel material for
overfill. backs overfill.
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FIGURE C.8 - BEDDING AND HAUNCH PROFILES TYPES IIl & IV

B -
i
. 2
h
h e
i 7
by =i
L, J o Je
al d |a a d |a
Diamcter 450 600 200 900
(D) (mm) (mm) (mm) 450 (mm) 600 (mm)| (mm)
Dimensions in (m) Dimensions in (m)
a 0.15 0.2 0.2 Q.15 0.2 0.2
b 0.1 0.15 0.15 0.1 0.15 0.15
C 0.86 1.12 1.48 0.86 1.12 1.48
d 0.56 0.72 1.08 0.56 0.72 1.08
c 0.42 0.54 0.81 0.46 0.52 0.78
fmin) | o023 | 03 | 045 015 | 015 | 015
2 - - Q.15 Q.15 0.15
h 0.52 0.69 0.96 0.81 1.02 1.38
i - - 0.28 0.35 0.45
KConcrete Volume in (m3/m) Volume in (m3/m)
026 | 047 | o7l 0.37 0.61 0.92
Application | pair subgrade condition: - Fair to poor subgrade
- Overfill > % Diameter; Condition;
- Scasonal waterflow only. - Overfill > % Diamcter;
- Scasonal waterflow only.
[Remarks |- Use gravel material for back/ - Use gravel material for
overfill. back/ overfill.
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E-SECTION X-X ON FOUR SIDES OF
STRUCTURE {200X300mmp
QUANTITIES TABLE
RED
. DIMENSIONS |
[ I'LTISS- Slone masonry Lin'h::-:?-.r::‘i'n:
scchion er) pitching (m3)
A B |C| D E
Excavatiom [m3)
A 5000 | 1000 | 90D | 100D | 420 7590 Lao zl.v3
Bo00 | 4p00 | B0 | 1BOD | 4200 lo.oo 160 aals
B 8000 | 4400 | 400 | 00D | 3600 700 120 18.30
5000 | 4800 | 400 | 1BOD | 3600 8.00 130 23,30
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P.C.C. KERB AND CHANNEL

SCALE 171D

DIA. 300MM INVERT BLOCK DRAIN
SIDE SLABS VARIES

SCALE 10

VS &an n 100 wew
P.C [HAMMEL

P.C.C. CHANMEL AND HAUNCH

ECALE 1:50
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A:

STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS

The contractor must familiarize himself with General specification for Road works as contained in.

L

Standard Specification for Road and Bridge Construction.
Published by the Ministry of Transport and Communications of the Republic of Kenya, 1986.
Road Maintenance Manual, Published by Ministry of Roads.

Performance Based Road Maintenance Contract (PBC) Guideline, Edition 1.1, published by Japan
International Co-operation Agency (JICA), 2016.

Conditions of Contract for works of Civil engineering construction Fourth Edition 1987, reprinted in
1992 with further amendments, prepared by the Federation Internationale des Ingenieurs Conseils
(FIDIC)

Manuals and Guidelines.
Manuals and Guidelines are supplementary to the General Specifications, Performance Specifications

and Standard Specifications. In particular, they provide a standard methodology to implement the works
and services in order to comply with the requirement in the contract and not limited to;

i) Road Maintenance Manual, Ministry of Roads, 2010

ii)  Performance Based Road Maintenance Contract (PBC) Guideline, JICA, 2016
iii)  Proposed manual for Traffic Signs in Kenya, June 1975; Part I, Road Markings
Part II, Manual for Traffic Signs in Kenya

Work shall be carried out in accordance with the Standard Specification except as supplemented,
modified or revised in the Special Specification.
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SECTION V (B): PERFORMANCE SPECIFICATIONS AND SPECIAL SPECIFICATIONS

1. Road Works

Clearance of road reserve

Earthworks where necessary

Repair of sub-base with neat gravel as instructed

Repair of Base with hand packed stones as instructed

Clearing and cutting of potholes and pothole patching with AC Type 1 as instructed
Application of MC30 & K160 as instructed

Asphalt Concrete Wearing Course 50mm for pothole repairs and overlays as instructed

Road marking as instructed

2. Drainage Works

Excavation/cleaning of drains and culverts where necessary
Installation/repair of culverts as instructed

Lined drain repair as instructed

Culvert cleaning where necessary

Protection works: Stone pitching and bed drain lining etc. as instructed

3. Maintenance of works during Contract Period — Defect Liability Period shall be 2 months for

instructed works.
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PART 3 — CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT AND CONTRACT FORMS
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SECTION VI - GENERAL CONDITIONS

A.

CONTRACT AND INTERPRETATION

These General Conditions of Contract (GCC), read in conjunction with FIDIC Conditions of Contract 1999, the
Special Conditions of Contract (SCC) and other documents listed therein, should be a complete document
expressing fairly the rights and obligations of both parties.

These General Conditions of Contract have been developed on the basis of considerable international
experience in the drafting and management of contracts, bearing in mind a trend in the construction industry
towards simpler, more straightforward language.

The GCC can be used for both smaller admeasurement contracts and lump sum contracts.

1.

1.1

Definitions
Bold face type is used to identify defined terms.

Bill of Quantities means the priced and completed Bill of Quantities forming part of the Contractor's
Tender.

The Certificate of Completion is a document issued by the Engineer upon completion of Rehabilitation
Works, Improvement Works and Emergency Works, or parts thereof, as applicable, in accordance with
GC 54.1

The Completion Date is the date of completion of the Services and Works as certified by the Engineer,
in accordance with Sub-Clause 10.2.

The Contract is the Contract between the Procuring Entity and the Contractor to perform the services
to be provided by the Contractor, and to execute, complete, and maintain the Works. It consists of the
documents listed in Clause 3 below.

The Contractor is a person or corporate body whose Tender to carry out the Works and Services has
been accepted by the Procuring Entity.

The Contractor's Tender is the completed tendering document submitted by the Contractor to the
Procuring Entity.

The Contract Price is the price stated in the Form of Acceptance and thereafter as adjusted in accordance
with the provisions of the Contract.

Days are calendar days; months are calendar months.
A Defect is any part of the Works and Services not completed in accordance with the Contract.

The Defects Liability Certificate is the certificate issued by Engineer upon correction of defects by the
Contractor.

The Defects Liability Period is the period specified in the Contract and is applicable for Rehabilitation
Works and Improvement Works, with exclusions identified in the PC, if any.

Drawings include calculations and other information provided by the Contractor for the execution of
the Contract.

Emergency Works is a set of necessary and sufficient activities to reinstate the Road and reconstruct its
structure or right of way strip damaged as a result of natural phenomena with imponderable
consequences, such as strong storms, flooding and earthquakes. The need for execution of Emergency
Works is jointly identified by the Procuring Entity and the Contractor and for starting of execution of
Emergency Works the Procuring Entity shall issue a Work Order.
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The Procuring Entity is the party who employs the Contractor to carry out the Works and Services.

Equipment is the Contractor's machinery and vehicles brought temporarily to the Site to construct the
Works and to carry out the Services.

Improvement Works consists of a set of interventions that add new characteristics to the Road in
response to existing or new traffic, safety or other conditions, as defined in the Specifications.

Rehabilitation Works are specific and clearly defined civil works the Contractor is required to the
conditions of the Contract, as defined in the Specifications. Rehabilitation Works quantities were
estimated by the Contractor to achieve the performance standards defined by the Service Levels and
offered at a Lump-~ Sum price.

The Intended Completion Date is the date on which it is intended that the Contractor shall complete
the Works and Services. The Intended Completion Date is specified in the Special Conditions (SCC). The
Intended Completion Date may be revised only by the Engineer by issuing an extension of time.

Materials are all supplies, including consumables, used by the Contractor for incorporation in the
Works and for provision of Services.

The Engineer is the person named in the contract who is responsible for the overall administration of
the Contract on behalf of the Procuring Entity, and the supervision of works and services to be
performed thereunder. The Engineer may delegate through a written instrument some of his functions
to any other competent person, retaining however the overall responsibility for the actions of that
person. The Engineer may not delegate the overall administrative control of the Contract.

Road means the road or network of roads for which the Works and Services are contracted under the
Contract.

The Road Management Office is the location indicated by the Contractor from which the Road Manager
operates, and where the Contractor shall receive notifications.

The Road Manager is a person appointed by the Contractor who is in charge of managing all activities
of the Contractor under the Contract. He is also the Contractor's Representative for the purposes of this
contract.

Services means all interventions on the Road under the Contract and all activities related to the
management and evaluation of the Road which shall be carried out by the Contractor in order to
achieve and keep the Road Performance Standard's as defined by the Service Levels, and to receive full
payment of the monthly fee under the contract.

Service Levels are the minimum performance standards for the level of quality of conditions of the Road
defined in the Specifications which the Contractor shall comply with.

The Site is the area defined as such in the PC.

Site Investigation Reports are those that were included in the tendering document and are factual and
interpretative reports about the surface and subsurface conditions at the Site.

The Start Date is the date when the Contractor has started the physical execution of the Works and
Services on the site. It does not necessarily coincide with any of the Site Possession Dates.

A Subcontractor is a person or corporate body who has a contractual agreement with the Contractor
to carry out certain activities related to the services to be provided under the contract, which may
include work on the Site.

Specifications means the Specifications of the Works and Services included in the Contract and any
modification or addition made or approved by the Engineer.

A Variation is an instruction given by the Engineer which varies the Works or Services.
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2.1.1

3.1

5.1.1

5.1.2

5.1.3

5.14

5.2

5.3

The Works are what the Contract requires the Contractor to construct, install, and turn over to the
Procuring Entity, as covered under Rehabilitation Works, Improvement Works and Emergency Works.

Work Order is an order issued by the Engineer to the Contractor authorizing the execution of
Improvement Works and Emergency Works, as provided for in Clause 27 hereunder.

Public Procurement Regulatory Authority is a Statutory Government Agency responsible for oversight
of public procurement.

Interpretation

In interpreting these General Conditions (GC), singular also means plural, male also means female or
neuter, and vice versa. Headings have no significance. Words have their normal meaning under the
language of the Contract unless specifically defined. The Engineer will provide instructions clarifying
queries about these General Conditions (GC).

Documents Forming the Contract

The documents forming the Contract shall be interpreted in the following order of priority:
1) Agreement,

2)  Form of Acceptance,

3)  Contractor's Tender,

4)  Special Conditions of Contract (SCC),

5)  General Conditions of Contract (GCC),

6)  Specifications,

7)  Special Specifications,

8)  Drawings,

9)  Bill of Quantities, and

10) Any other document listed in the PC as forming part of the Contract.

Language and Law

The governing language shall be English and the law governing the Contract shall be the laws of
Kenya.

Notices

Unless otherwise stated in the Contract, all notices to be given under the Contract shall be in writing,
and shall be sent by personal delivery, air mail post, special courier, or E~mail to the address of the
relevant party set out in the PC, with the following provisions:

Any notice sent by E-mail shall be confirmed within two (2) days after dispatch by notice sent by air
mail post or special courier, except as otherwise specified in the Contract.

Any notice sent by air mail post or special courier shall be deemed (in the absence of evidence of earlier
receipt) to have been delivered ten (10) days after dispatch. In proving the fact of dispatch, it shall be
sufficient to show that the envelope containing such notice was properly addressed, stamped and
conveyed to the postal authoritiesorcourierservicefortransmissionbyairmailorspecialcourier.

Any notice delivered personally or sent by E-mail shall be deemed to have been delivered on date of its
dispatch.

Either party may change its postal, E-mail address or addressee for receipt of such notices by ten (10)
days' notice to the other party in writing.

Notices shall be deemed to include any approvals, consents, instructions, orders and certificates to be
given under the Contract.

The Contractor shall provide at its own cost, and maintain in operation permanently during the
duration of the Contract, such communications equipment which ensures that both written (E-mail)
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and oral(voice) communications can be established at all times:

a) Between the Road Manager and his senior field staff;

b) Between the Engineer and the Road Manager;

¢) Between the public telephone system and the Road Manager;

d) The equipment to be provided and maintained includes the equipment located at the Engineer's
office.

5.4  Atthe Start Date of the Contract, the Contractor must communicate to the Procuring Entity the address
of his office, including the postal, fax and E-mail address, which for the purposes of this contract is
called the Road Management Office, where Notices will be addressed to. The Procuring Entity may
require that the physical location of the Road Management Office is within the close geographical area
of the Road. If the Contractor fails to communicate the address of his Road Management Office, and
the Procuring Entity is otherwise unable to locate the Road Manager, all notifications to the Contractor
shall be valid if they are deposited at a designated location within the office of the Engineer, and if a
copy is sent to the Contractor's legal address.

6. Settlement of Claims and Disputes

6.1  Filing Claims or dispute or difference of any kind

6.1.1 A Party to the Contract may file a claim or dispute or difference of any kind to the other party by giving
a notice and requesting that the parties get together and resolve or act on the claims or dispute or
difference amicably.

6.2  Amicable Settlement

6.2.1 If any claims or dispute or difference of any kind whatsoever shall arise between the Procuring Entity
and the Contractor in connection with or arising out of the Contract, including without prejudice to
the generality of the foregoing, any question regarding its existence, validity or termination, or the
execution of the Works and Services—whether during the progress of the execution or after completion
and whether before or after the termination, abandonment or breach of the Contract- the parties shall
seek to resolve any such claims, dispute or difference by mutual consultation.

6.2.2 If the parties fail to resolve such a claim or dispute or difference amicably by mutual consultation, then
the matter in dispute shall, in the first place, be referred in writing by either party to Arbitration. Either
the Procuring Entity or the Contractor may, give notice to the other party of its intention to commence
arbitration, as hereinafter provided, as to the matter in dispute, and no arbitration in respect of this
matter may be commenced unless such notice is given. The arbitral tribunal shall have full power to
open up, review, and revise any decision, opinion, instruction, determination, and certificate.

6.2.3 The Party giving a Notice in accordance with Sub-Clause 6.2.2 above should move to commence
arbitration after 28 days from the day on which a claim or dispute or difference was given, even if no
attempt at an amicable settlement has been made.

6.2.4 Within 28 days after receiving a claim or dispute or difference or any further particulars supporting a
previous claim, or within such other period as may be proposed by the Engineer and approved by the
Contractor, the Engineer shall respond with approval, or with disapproval and detailed comments. He
may also request any necessary further particulars, but shall nevertheless give his response on the
principles of the claim or dispute or difference within the above defined time period.

6.2.5 Within the above defined period of 28days, the Engineer shall proceed to agree or determine the
Contractors claim or dispute or difference and any additional payment (if any) to which the Contractor
is entitled under the Contract.

6.2.6 If the Engineer does not respond within the timeframe defined in sub clause 6.2.4, either Party may
consider that the claim is rejected by the Engineer and any of the Parties may refer to Arbitration in
accordance with Sub- Clause 6.3.

6.3  Arbitration
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6.3.1 Any claim or dispute or difference in respect of which a notice of intention to commence arbitration
has been given, in accordance with Sub-Clause 6.2.4, shall be finally settled by arbitration. Neither
party shall be limited in the proceedings before such arbitration tribunal on any matter whatsoever
relevant to the dispute Arbitration may be commenced prior to or after completion of the Works and
Services.

6.3.2 Notwithstanding any reference to the Arbitration herein,

a The parties shall continue to perform the irrespective obligations under the Contract unless they
otherwise agree; and

b The Procuring Entity shall pay the Contractor any monies due to the Contractor.
6.4  Matters that may be referred to arbitration

6.4.1 Notwithstanding anything stated herein the following matters may be referred to arbitration before the
practical completion of the Works or abandonment of the Works or termination of the Contract by
either party:

a. The appointment of a replacement Engineer upon the said person ceasing to act.

b. Whether or not the issue of an instruction by the Engineer is empowered by these Conditions.

c. Whether or not a certificate has been improperly withheld or is not in accordance with these
Conditions.

b Any dispute arising in respect of war risks or war damage.

All other matters shall only be referred to arbitration after the completion or alleged completion
of the Works or termination or alleged termination of the Contract, unless the Procuring Entity
and the Contractor agree otherwise in writing.

6.5  Arbitration Proceedings
6.5.1 Arbitration proceedings shall be conducted in accordance with the following rules of procedure.
6.5.2 International arbitration with proceedings

6.5.3 If the contract is with a foreign contractor, arbitration proceedings shall be administered by the
arbitration institution designated in the Special Conditions of Contract, and conducted under the rules
of arbitration of such institution; or, if so specified in the Special Conditions of Contract, international
arbitration in accordance with the arbitration rules of the United Nations Commission on International
Trade Law (UNCITRAL); or if neither an arbitration institution nor UNCITRAL arbitration rules are
specified in the Special Conditions of Contract, with proceedings administered by the International
Chamber of Commerce (ICC) and conducted under the ICC Rules of Arbitration; by one or more
arbitrators appointed in accordance with said arbitration rules.

6.5.4 The place of arbitration shall be the neutral location specified in the Special Conditions of Contract;
and the arbitration shall be conducted in the English language for communications as defined in Sub-~
Clause 1.4 [Law and Language].

6.5.5 The arbitrators shall have full power to open up, review and revise any certificate, determination,
instruction, opinion or valuation of the Engineer, relevant to the dispute. Nothing shall disqualify
representatives of the Parties and the Engineer from being called as a witness and giving evidence
before the arbitrators on any matter whatsoever relevant to the dispute.

6.5.6 Neither Party shall be limited in the proceedings before the arbitrators to the evidence, or to the reasons
for a notice of intention to commence arbitration has been given.

6.5.7 Arbitration may be commenced prior to or after completion of the Works. The obligations of the Parties,
and the Engineer shall not be altered by reason of any arbitration being conducted during the progress
of the Works.

6.5.8 The terms of the remuneration of each or all the members of Arbitration shall be mutually agreed upon
by the Parties when agreeing the terms of appointment. Each Party shall be responsible for paying one-
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half of this remuneration.

6.5.9 The decision of the Arbitration shall be final.

6.5.10 National arbitration with proceedings

6.5.11 If the Contract is with a national contractor, arbitration proceedings shall have conducted in

accordance with the Arbitration Laws of Kenya.

6.5.12 In case of any claim or dispute, such claim or dispute shall be notified in writing by either party to the

other with a request to submit it to arbitration and to concur in the appointment of an Arbitrator within
thirty days of the notice. The dispute shall be referred to the arbitration and final decision of a person
to be agreed between the parties. Failing agreement to concur in the appointment of an Arbitrator, the
Arbitrator shall be appointed, on the request of the applying party, by the Chairman or Vice Chairman
of any of the following professional institutions;

a Institution of Engineers of Kenya

b Chartered Institute of Arbitrators (Kenya Branch)

6.5.13 The institution written to first by the aggrieved party shall take precedence over all other institutions.

6.5.14 Failure to Comply with Arbitrator's Decision-in the event that a Party fails to comply with a final and

7.1

7.2

8.2

8.2.1

binding Arbitrator's decision, then the other Party may, without prejudice to any other rights it may
have, refer the matter to the Court of Law.

ASSIGNMENT OF RESPONSIBILITIES
Scope of Works and Services

Unless otherwise expressly limited in the Specifications, the Contractor's obligations cover the Design,
the carrying out of all Works and the performance of all Services required for keeping the Road in
accordance with the Service Levels defined in the Specifications, while at the same time respecting the
plans, procedures, specifications, drawings, codes and any other documents as identified in the
Specifications. Such specifications include, but are not limited to, the provision of supervision and
engineering services; the supply of labor, materials, equipment; Contractor's Equipment; construction
utilities and supplies; temporary materials, structures and facilities; transportation (including, without
limitation, unloading and hauling to, from and at the Site); and storage, except for those supplies, works
and services that will be provided or performed by the Procuring Entity, if any, as set forth in the
corresponding Specifications.

The Contractor shall, unless specifically excluded in the Contract, perform all such work, services
and/or supply all such items and materials not specifically mentioned in the Contract but that can be
reasonably inferred from the Contract as being required for attaining the Performance Standard's (as
specified in Clause 24 of GC) as if such work, services and/or items and materials were expressly
mentioned in the Contract.

Design Responsibility

The Contractor shall be responsible for the design and programming of the Works and Services, and
for the accuracy and completeness of the information used for that design and programming in
accordance with the requirements established in the Specifications.

Specifications and Drawings

The Contractor shall execute the basic and detailed design and the engineering work in compliance
with the provisions of the Contract and the Specifications, or where not so specified, in accordance
with good engineering practice. The Contractor shall be responsible for any discrepancies, errors or
omissions in the specifications, drawings and other technical documents that it has prepared, whether
such specifications, drawings and other documents have been approved by the Engineer or not,
provided that such discrepancies, errors or omissions are not because of inaccurate information
furnished in writing to the Contract or by or on behalf of the Procuring Entity.
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8.2.2 The Contractor shall be entitled to disclaim responsibility for any design, data, drawing, specification
or other document, or any modification thereof, provided or designated by, or on behalf of, the
Procuring Entity, by giving a notice of such disclaimer to the Engineer.

8.3 Codes and Standards

Wherever references are made in the Contract to codes and standard's in accordance with which the
Contract shall be executed, the edition or the revised version of such codes and standard's current at
the date twenty-eight (28) days prior to date of Tender submission shall apply unless otherwise
specified. During Contract execution, any changes in such codes and standards shall be applied after
approval by the Procuring Entity and shall be treated in accordance with Clause 63.

8.4  Approval/Review of Technical Documents by Engineer

8.4.1 For those Works specified in the PC, the Contractor shall prepare (or cause its Subcontractors to
prepare) and furnish to the Engineer the documents listed in the Specifications (List of Documents for
Approval or Review) for its approval or review.

Unless otherwise specified in the PC, the Contractor shall not be required to submit for the Procuring
Entity's approval the Design or other technical documents concerning the Maintenance Services
remunerated through monthly lump-sum payments. Any part of the Works covered by or related to
the documents to be approved by the Engineer shall be executed only after the Engineer's approval
thereof. Sub-Clauses 8.4.2 through 8.4.7 shall Apply only to those documents requiring the Engineer's
approval, but not to those furnished to the Engineer for his information or review only.

8.4.2 Within fourteen (14) days after receipt by the Engineer of any document requiring the Engineer's
approval in accordance with Sub-Clause 8.4.1, the Engineer shall either return one copy thereof to the
Contractor with its approval endorsed thereon or shall notify the Contractor in writing of its
disapproval thereof and the reasons therefore and the modifications that the Engineer proposes. If the
Engineer fails to take such action within the said fourteen (14) days, then the said document shall be
deemed to have been approved by the Engineer.

8.4.3 The Engineer shall not disapprove any document, except on the grounds that the document does not
comply with some specified provision of the Contractor that it is contrary to good engineering practice.

8.4.4 1If the Engineer disapproves the document, the Contractor shall modify the document and resubmit it
for the Engineer's approval in accordance with Sub-Clause 8.4.2. If the Engineer approves the
document subject to modification(s), the Contractor shall make the required modification(s),
whereupon the document shall be deemed to have been approved.

8.4.5 If any dispute or difference occurs between the Procuring Entity and the Contractor in connection with
or arising out of the disapproval by the Engineer of any document and/or any modification(s) thereto
that cannot be settled between the parties within a reasonable period, then such dispute or difference
may be referred to Arbitration for determination in accordance with Sub-Clause 6.3 hereof. If such
dispute or difference is referred to Arbitration, the Engineer shall give instructions as to whether and
if so0, how, performance of the Contract is to proceed. The Contractor shall proceed with the Contract
in accordance with the Engineer's instructions, provided that if the Arbitration upholds the Contractor's
view on the dispute, then the Contractor shall be reimbursed by the Procuring Entity for any additional
costs incurred by reason of such instructions and shall be relieved of such responsibility or liability in
connection with the dispute and the execution of the instructions as the Arbitration shall decide, and
the Time for Completion shall be extended accordingly.

8.4.6 The Engineer's approval, with or without modification of the document furnished by the Contractor,
shall not relieve the Contractor of any responsibility or liability imposed upon it by any provisions of
the Contract except to the extent that any subsequent failure results from modifications required by
the Engineer.

8.4.7 The Contractor shall not depart from any approved document unless the Contractor has first submitted
to the Engineer an amended document and obtained the Engineer's approval thereof, pursuant to the
provisions of Sub-Clause 8.4.4. If the Engineer requests any change in any already approved document
and/or in any document based thereon, the provisions of Clause 63.2 shall apply to such request.
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9 Copyright

9.1  The copyright in all drawings, documents and other materials containing data and information
prepared by Contractor and furnished to the Procuring Entity herein shall remain vested in the
Contractor. Similarly, the copyright in all drawings, documents and other materials containing data
and information prepared by the Procuring Entity and furnished to the contractor shall remain vested
in the Procuring Entity and if they are furnished to the Procuring Entity directly or through the
Contractor by any third party, including suppliers of materials, the copyright in such materials shall
remain vested in such third party.

10 Start Date and Completion

10.1.1 The Contractor shall start the Works and Services within the period specified in the PC. Upon request
from the Contractor, the Procuring Entity shall confirm in writing the Start Date, after verifying that
works and services have started on the Site.

10.1.2 The Contractor shall attain the required Service Levels and the Completion of the Rehabilitation and
Improvement Works (or of a part where a separate time for Completion of such part is specified in the
Contract) within the time schedules included in the PC and the Specifications, or within such extended
time to which the Contractor shall be entitled under Clause 64 hereof.

11 Contractor's Responsibilities

11.1 The Contractor shall design and carry out the Works and Services (including associated purchases
and/or subcontracting) necessary to comply with the requirements established in the Specifications
with due care and diligence in accordance with the Contract.

11.2  The Contractor confirms that it has entered into this Contract on the basis of a proper examination of
the data relating to the Works and Services required, including any data and tests provided by the
Procuring Entity, and on the basis of information that the Contractor could have obtained from a visual
inspection of the Site and of other data readily available to it relating to the Road as of the date twenty-
eight (28) days prior to Tender submission. The Contractor acknowledges that any failure to acquaint
itself with all such data and information shall not relieve its responsibility for properly estimating the
difficulty or cost of successfully performing the Works and Services.

11.3 The Contractor shall acquire in its name all permits, approvals and/or licenses from all local, state or
national government authorities or public service undertakings in the country of the Procuring Entity
that are necessary for the performance of the Contract, including, without limitation, visas for the
Contractor's and Subcontractor's personnel and entry permits for all imported Contractor's Equipment.
The Contractor shall acquire all other permits, approvals and/or licenses that are not the responsibility
of the Procuring Entity under Sub-Clause14.3 hereof and that are necessary for the performance of the
Contract.

11.4 The Contractor shall comply with all laws inforce in the country of the Procuring Entity and where the
Works and Services are carried out. The laws will include all local, state, national or other laws that
affect the performance of the Contract and bind upon the Contractor. The Contractor shall indemnify
and hold harmless the Procuring Entity from and against any and all liabilities, damages, claims, fines,
penalties and expenses of whatever nature arising or resulting from the violation of such laws by the
Contractor or its personnel, including the Subcontractors and their personnel, but without prejudice
to Sub-Clause 14.1 hereof.

11.5 Any Plant, Material and Services that will be incorporated in or be required for the Works and Services
and other supplies shall have their origin in an eligible Country as defined under ITT.

11.6 The Contractor shall keep, and shall make all reasonable efforts to cause its Subcontractors and sub-
consultants to keep, accurate and systematic accounts and records in respect of the Goods in such form
and details as will clearly identify relevant time changes and costs.

11.7 Pursuant to paragraph 2.2 e. of Appendix A to the General Conditions, the Contractor shall permit and
shall cause its subcontractors and sub-consultants to permit, the PPRA or persons appointed by the
PPRA to inspect the Site and/or the accounts and records relating to the procurement process, selection
and/or contract execution, and to have such accounts and records audited by auditors appointed by
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12

12.1

12.2

13

13.1

14

14.1

14.2

14.3

14.4

14.5

14.5.1

15

15.1

the PPRA. The Contractor's and its Subcontractors' and sub-consultants' attention is drawn to Sub-
Clause 66.1 which provides, interalia, that acts intended to materially impede the exercise of the PPRA's
inspection and audit rights constitute a prohibited practice subject to contract termination.

Subcontracting

The Contractor may subcontract activities listed in the PC. Any other activity under the Contract may
be subcontracted only when approved by the Engineer. The Contractor may not assign the entire
Contract without the approval of the Procuring Entity in writing. Subcontracting shall not alter the
Contractor's obligations nor relieve the Contractor from any liability or obligation under the Contract
and he shall be responsible for the acts, defaults and neglects of any Subcontractor, his agents, servants
or workmen as fully as if they were the acts, defaults or neglects of the Contractor, his agents, servants
or workmen.

Notwithstanding Sub-Clause 12.1, the Contractor may subcontract under his own responsibility and
without prior approval of the Procuring Entity the small Works and Services also listed in the PC.

Assignment of Contract

Neither the Procuring Entity nor the Contractor shall, without the express prior written consent of the
other party (which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld), assign to any third party the Contract
or any part thereof, or any right, benefit, obligation or interest therein or thereunder, except that the
Contractor shall be entitled to assign either absolutely or by way of charge any monies due and payable
to it or that may become due and payable to it under the Contract.

Procuring Entity's Responsibilities

The Procuring Entity shall apply due diligence to ensure the accuracy of all information and/or data
to be supplied to the Contractor as described in the Specifications, except when otherwise expressly
stated in the Contract.

The Procuring Entity shall be responsible for acquiring and providing legal and physical possession of
the Site and access thereto, and for providing possession of and access to all other areas reasonably
required for the proper execution of the Contract, including all requisite rights of way, as specified in
the corresponding Specifications. The Procuring Entity shall give full possession of an accord all rights
of access thereto on or before the date(s) specified in the PC.

The Procuring Entity shall acquire and pay for all permits, approvals and/or licenses from all local,
state or national government authorities or public service undertakings in the country where the Site
is located, when such authorities or undertakings require the Procuring Entity to obtain them in the
Procuring Entity's name, are necessary for the execution of the Contract, and are specified in the
corresponding Specifications.

If requested by the Contractor, the Procuring Entity shall use its best endeavors to assist the Contractor
in obtaining in a timely and expeditious manner all permits, approvals and/or licenses necessary for
the execution of the Contract from all local, state or national government authorities or public service
undertakings that such authorities or undertakings require the Contractor or Subcontractors or the
personnel of the Contractor or Subcontractors, as the case may be, to obtain.

The Procuring Entity shall be responsible for the continued operation of the Road after Completion, in
accordance with Clause 28, and shall be responsible for facilitating the Guarantee Test(s) for the Road,
in accordance with Clause 20.

All costs and expenses involved in the performance of the obligations under this Clause 14 shall be the
responsibility of the Procuring Entity, save those to be incurred by the Contractor with respect to the
performance of Guarantee Tests, in accordance with Clause 20.

Confidential Information
The Procuring Entity and the Contractor shall keep confidential and shall not, without the written

consent of the other party hereto, divulge to any third party any documents, data or other information
furnished directly or indirectly by the other party hereto in connection with the Contract, whether
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15.2

15.3

15.4

15.5

C.
16

le.1

such information has been furnished prior to, during or following termination of the Contract.
Notwithstanding the above, the Contractor may furnish to its Subcontractor(s) such documents, data
and other information it receives from the Procuring Entity to the extent required for the
Subcontractor(s) to perform its work under the Contract, in which event the Contractor shall obtain
from such Subcontractor(s) an undertaking of confidentiality similar to that imposed on the Contractor
under this Clause 15.

The Procuring Entity shall not use such documents, data and other information received from the
Contractor for any purpose other than the operation and maintenance of the Road. Similarly, the
Contractor shall not use such documents, data and other information received from the Procuring
Entity for any purpose other than the design, procurement of Plant and Equipment, construction or
such Works and Services as are required for the performance of the Contract.

The obligation of a party under Sub-Clauses 15.1 and 15.2 above, however, shall not apply to that

information which

a) Now or hereafter enters the public domain through no fault of that party;

b) Can be proven to have been possessed by that party at the time of disclosure and which was not
previously obtained, directly or indirectly, from the other party hereto;

c) otherwise lawfully becomes available to that party from a third party that has no obligation of
confidentiality.

The above provisions of this Clause 15 shall not in any way modify any undertaking of confidentiality
given by either of the parties hereto prior to the date of the Contract in respect of the Works and Services
or any part thereof.

The provisions of this Clause 15 shall survive termination, for whatever reason, of the Contract.

EXECUTION OF WORKS AND SERVICES
Representatives

Engineer

16.1.1 If the Engineer is not named in the Contract, then within fourteen (14) days of the issuance of the Form

of Acceptance by the Procuring Entity, the Procuring Entity shall appoint and notify the Contractor in
writing of the name of the Engineer. The Procuring Entity may from time to time appoint some other
person as the Engineer in place of the person previously so appointed, and shall give a notice of the
name of such other person to the Contractor without delay. No such appointment shall be made at such
a time or in such a manner as to impede the progress of the Works and Services. Such appointment
shall only take effect upon receipt of such notice by the Contractor. The Engineer shall represent and
act for the Procuring Entity at all times during the period of the Contract. All notices, instructions,
orders, certificates, approvals and all other communications under the Contract shall be given by the
Engineer, except as herein otherwise provided.

16.1.2 All notices, instructions, information and other communications given by the Contractor to the

Procuring Entity under the Contract shall be given to the Engineer, except as herein otherwise
provided.

16.1.3 The Engineer may delegate any of his duties and responsibilities to other people, except to the

16.2

Adjudicator, after notifying the Contractor, and may cancel any delegation after notifying the
Contractor.

Road Manager

16.2.1 If the Road Manager is not named in the Contract, then the Contractor shall appoint the Road Manager

before the Start Date and shall request the Procuring Entity in writing to approve the person so
appointed. If the Procuring Entity makes no objection to the appointment within fourteen (14) days, the
Road Manager shall be deemed to have been approved. If the Procuring Entity objects to the appointment
within fourteen (14) days giving the reason therefore, then the Contractor shall appoint a replacement
within fourteen (14) days of such objection, and the foregoing provisions of Sub-~Clause 16.2.1 shall
apply thereto.
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16.2.2 The Road Manager shall represent and act for the Contractor at all times during the period of the
Contract and shall give to the Engineer all the Contractor's notices, instructions, information and all
other communications under the Contract. The Road Manager shall be in charge of the day-to-day
management of the works and services to be provided under the contract on behalf of the Contractor,
and shall have legal and all other faculties to take all necessary decisions related to the execution of the
contract.

16.2.3 All notices, instructions, information and all other communications given by the Procuring Entity or
the Engineer to the Contractor under the Contract shall be given to the Road Manager or, in its absence,
its deputy, except as herein otherwise provided.

16.2.4 The Contractor shall not revoke the appointment of the Road Manager without the Procuring Entity's
prior written consent, which shall not be unreasonably withheld. If the Procuring Entity consents
thereto, the Contractor shall appoint some other person as the Road Manager, pursuant to the
procedure set out in Sub-~ Clause 16.2.1.

16.2.5 The Road Manager may, subject to the approval of the Procuring Entity (which shall not be
unreasonably withheld), at any time delegate to any person any of the powers, functions and authorities
vested in him or her. Any such delegation may be revoked at any time. Any such delegation or
revocation shall be subject to a prior notice to the Engineer signed by the Road Manager, and shall
specify the powers, functions and authorities thereby delegated or revoked. No such delegation or
revocation shall take effect unless and until a copy thereof has been delivered to the Engineer.

16.2.6 Any act or exercise by any person of powers, functions and authorities so delegated to him or her in
accordance with this Sub-Clause 16.2.5 shall be deemed to be an act or exercise by the Road Manager.

16.2.7 From the Start Date until Completion, the Road Manager shall supervise all work and services done at
the Site by the Contractor and shall be present at the Site throughout normal working hours except
when on leave, sick or absent for reasons connected with the proper performance of the Contract.
Whenever the Road Manager is absent from the Site, a suitable person shall be appointed to act as his
or her deputy.

16.2.8 The Procuring Entity may by notice to the Contractor object to any representative or person employed
by the Contractor in the execution of the Contract who, in the reasonable opinion of the Procuring
Entity, may behave inappropriately, may be incompetent or negligent, or may commit a serious breach
of the Site regulations provided under the Specifications. The Procuring Entity shall provide evidence
of the same, whereupon the Contractor shall remove such person from the Site.

16.2.9 If any representative or person employed by the Contractor is removed in accordance with Sub-
Clause 16.2.8, the Contractor shall, where required, promptly appoint a replacement.

17 Work Program
17.1 Contractor's Organization

The Contractor shall supply to the Engineer a chart showing the proposed organization to be
established by the Contractor for carrying out the Works and Services. The chart shall include the
identities of the key personnel together with the curricula vitae of such key personnel to be employed
as included in the Contractor's Tender. The Contractor shall promptly inform the Engineer in writing
of any revision or alteration of such an organization chart.

17.2 Program of Performance

Not later than the Start Date, the Contractor shall prepare and supply to the Engineer a program of
performance of the Contract, made in the form specified in the Specifications and showing the sequence
in which it proposes to design and carry out the Works and Services, as well as the date by which the
Contractor reasonably requires that the Procuring Entity shall have fulfilled its obligations under the
Contract so as to enable the Contractor to execute the Contract in accordance with the program and to
achieve Completion in accordance with the Contract. The Contractor shall update and revise the
program as and when appropriate, but without modification in the Times for Completion given in the
PC and any extension granted in accordance with Clause 64, and shall supply all such revisions to the
Engineer.
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17.3 Progress Report

The Contractor shall monitor progress of all the activities specified in the program referred to in Sub-
Clause 17.2 above, and supply a progress report to the Engineer every month together with his Monthly
Statement. The progress report shall be in a form acceptable to the Engineer in accordance with the
Specifications.

17.4 Progress of Execution

If at any time the Contractor's actual progress falls behind the program referred to in Sub-Clause 17.2,
or it becomes apparent that it will so fall behind, the Contractor shall prepare and supply to the
Engineer a revised program, taking into account the prevailing circumstances, and shall notify the
Engineer of the steps being taken to expedite progress so as to attain Completion of the Works and
Execution of Services activities within the Time for Completion under Sub-Clause 10.2, any extension
thereof entitled under Sub-Clause 64, or any extended period as may otherwise be agreed upon
between the Procuring Entity and the Contractor.

17.5 Work Procedures

The Contract shall be executed in accordance with the Contract Documents and the procedures given
in the Specifications.

18 Execution of Works
18.1 Setting Out/Supervision/Labor

18.1.1 Bench Mark. The Contractor shall be responsible for the true and proper setting-out of the Works in
relation to benchmarks, reference marks and lines provided to it in writing by or on behalf of the
Procuring Entity.

If, at any time during the progress of execution of the Works, any error shall appear in the position,
level or alignment of the Works, the Contractor shall forthwith notify the Engineer of such error and,
at its own expense, immediately rectify such error to the reasonable satisfaction of the Engineer. If such
error is based on incorrect data provided in writing by or on behalf of the Procuring Entity, the expense
of rectifying the same shall be borne by the Procuring Entity.

18.1.2 Contractor's Supervision. The Contractor shall give or provide all necessary supervision during the
execution of the Works, and the Road Manager or its deputy shall be on the Site to provide full-time
supervision of the execution. The Contractor shall provide and employ only technical personnel who
are skilled and experienced in the irrespective callings and supervisory staff who are competent to
adequately supervise the work at hand.

18.2 Conftractor's Equipment

18.2.1 All Contractor's Equipment brought by the Contractor on to the Site shall be deemed to be intended to
be used exclusively for the execution of the Contract. The Contractor shall not remove the same from
the Site without informing the Engineer.

18.2.2 Unless otherwise specified in the Contract, upon completion of the Works and Services, the Contractor
shall remove from the Site all Equipment brought by the Contractor onto the Site and any surplus
materials remaining thereon.

18.2.3 The Procuring Entity will, if requested, use its best endeavors to assist the Contractor in obtaining any
local, state or national government permission required by the Contractor for the export of the
Contractor's Equipment imported by the Contractor for use in the execution of the Contract that is no
longer required for the execution of the Contract.

18.3 Site Regulations and Safety
The Procuring Entity and the Contractor shall establish Site regulations setting out the rules to be

observed in the execution of the Contract at the Site and shall comply therewith. The Contractor shall
prepare and submit to the Procuring Entity, with a copy to the Engineer, proposed Site regulations for
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the Procuring Entity's approval, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld. Such Site
regulations shall include, but shall not be limited to, rules in respect of security, safety, traffic control,
accident response, gate control, sanitation, medical care, and fire prevention.

18.4 Access to site for Other Contractors

18.4.1 The Contractor shall, upon written request from the Procuring Entity or the Engineer, give site access
to other contractors employed by the Procuring Entity on or near the site.

18.5 Site Clearance

18.5.1 Site Clearance in Course of Execution: In the course of carrying out the Contract, the Contractor shall
keep the Site reasonably free from all unnecessary obstruction, store or remove any surplus materials,
clear away any wreckage, rubbish or temporary works from the Site, and remove any Contractor's
Equipment no longer required for execution of the Contract.

18.5.2 Clearance of Site after Completion: After Completion of all parts of the Works and Services, the
Contractor shall clear away and remove all wreckage, rubbish and debris of any kind from the Site,
and shall leave the Site and the Road clean and safe.

18.6 Watching and Lighting

8.20.1 The Contractor shall provide and maintain at its own expense all lighting, fencing, and watching when
and where necessary for the proper execution and the protection of the Works and Services, for the
protection of his own installations and his equipment, for the safety of the owners and occupiers of
adjacent property and for the safety of the public.

18.7 Access to the Site

The Contractor shall allow the Engineer and any person authorized by the Engineer access to the Site
and to any place where work in connection with the Contract is being carried out or is intended to be
carried out.

18.8 Management Meetings

18.8.1 Either the Engineer or the Contractor may require the other to attend a management meeting. The
business of a management meeting shall be to review the plans for remaining work and to deal with
matters raised by either the Contractor or the Procuring Entity.

18.8.2 The Engineer shall record the business of management meetings and provide copies of the record to
those attending the meeting and to the Procuring Entity. The responsibility of the parties for actions to
be taken shall be decided by the Engineer either during or after the management meeting and stated in
writing to all who attended the meeting.

19  Staff and Labor
19.1 Engagement of Staff and Labor

Except as otherwise stated in the Specification, the Contractor shall make arrangements for the
engagement of all staff and labor, local or otherwise, and for their payment, feeding, transport, and,
when appropriate, housing.

The Contractor is encouraged, to the extent practicable and reasonable, to employ staff and labor with
appropriate qualifications and experience from sources within the Country.

19.2 Rates of Wages and Conditions of Labor

19.2.1 The Contractor shall pay rates of wages, and observe conditions of labor, which are not lower than
those established for the trade or industry where the work is carried out. If no established rates or
conditions are applicable, the Contractor shall pay rates of wages and observe conditions which are
not lower than the general level of wages and conditions observed locally by Procuring Entity's whose
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trade or industry is similar to that of the Contractor.

19.2.2 The Contractor shall inform the Contractor's Personnel about their liability to pay personal income
taxes in Kenya in respect of such of their salaries, wages, allowances and any benefits as are subject to
tax under the Laws of Kenya for the time being in force, and the Contractor shall perform such duties
in regard to such deductions thereof as may be imposed on him by such Laws.

19.3 Persons in the Service of Procuring Entity

The Contractor shall not recruit, or attempt to recruit, staff and labor from amongst the Procuring
Entity's Personnel.

19.4 Labor Laws

19.4.1 The Contractor shall comply with all the relevant labor Laws applicable to the Contractor's Personnel,
including Laws relating to their employment, health, safety, welfare, immigration and emigration, and
shall allow them all their legal rights.

19.4.2 The Contractor shall require his employees to obey all applicable Laws, including those concerning
safety at work.

19.5 Working Hours

No work shall be carried out on the Site on locally recognized days of rest, or outside the normal
working hours stated in the SCC, unless:

a)  Otherwise stated in the Contract,
b) The Engineer gives consent, or

¢) The work is unavoidable, or necessary for the protection of life or property or for the safety of
the Works, in which case the Contractor shall immediately advise the Engineer.

19.6 Facilities for Staff and Labor

Except as otherwise stated in the Specification, the Contractor shall provide and maintain all necessary
accommodation and welfare facilities for the Contractor's Personnel. The Contractor shall also provide
facilities for the Procuring Entity's Personnel as stated in the Specification.

The Contractor shall not permit any of the Contractor's Personnel to maintain any temporary or
permanent living quarters within the structures forming part of the Permanent Works.

19.7 Health and Safety

19.7.1 The Contractor shall at all times take all reasonable precautions to maintain the health and safety of
the Contractor's Personnel. In collaboration with local health authorities, the Contractor shall ensure
that medical staff, first aid facilities, sick bay and ambulance service are available at all times at the Site
and at any accommodation for Contractor's and Procuring Entity's Personnel, and that suitable
arrangements are made for all necessary welfare and hygiene requirements and for the prevention of
epidemics.

19.7.2 The Contractor shall appoint an accident prevention officer at the Site, responsible for maintaining
safety and protection against accidents. This person shall be qualified for this responsibility and shall
have the authority to issue instructions and take protective measures to prevent accidents. Throughout
the execution of the Works, the Contractor shall provide whatever is required by this person to exercise
this responsibility and authority.

19.7.3 The Contractor shall send, to the Engineer, details of any accident as soon as practicable after its
occurrence. The Contractor shall maintain records and make reports concerning health, safety and
welfare of persons, and damage to property, as the Engineer may reasonably require.

19.7.4 HIV-AIDS Prevention. The Contractor shall conduct an HIV-AIDS awareness programme via an
approved service provider and shall undertake such other measures as are specified in this Contract to
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reduce the risk of the transfer of the HIV virus between and among the Contractor's Personnel and the
local community, to promote early diagnosis and to assist affected individuals.

19.8 Contractor's Superintendence

19.8.1 Throughout the execution of the Works, and as long thereafter as is necessary to fulfil the Contractor's
obligations, the Contractor shall provide all necessary superintendence to plan, arrange, direct,
manage, inspect and test the work.

19.8.2 Superintendence shall be given by a sufficient number of persons having adequate knowledge of the
language for communications (defined in Sub-Clause 1.4 [Law and Language]) and of the operations
to be carried out (including the methods and techniques required, the hazards likely to be encountered
and methods of preventing accidents), for the satisfactory and safe execution of the Works.

19.9 Contractor's Personnel

19.9.1 The Contractor's Personnel specified in the SCC shall be appropriately qualified, skilled and
experienced in their respective trades or occupations. The Engineer may require the Contractor to
remove (or cause to be removed) any person employed on the Site or Works, including the Contractor's
Representative if applicable, who:

a Persists in any misconduct or lack of care,

Carries out duties incompetently or negligently,

Fails to conform with any provisions of the Contract,

Persists in any conduct which is prejudicial to safety, health, or the protection of the environment, or

Based on reasonable evidence, is determined to have engaged in Fraud and Corruption during the
execution of the Works.

o Qo o

19.9.2 If appropriate, the Contractor shall then appoint (or cause to be appointed) a suitable replacement
person.

19.10 Records of Contractor's Personnel and Equipment

19.10.1 The Contractor shall submit, to the Engineer, details showing the number of each class of
Contractor's Personnel and of each type of Contractor's Equipment on the Site. Details shall be
submitted each calendar month, in a form approved by the Engineer, until the Contractor has
completed all work which is known to be outstanding at the completion date stated in the Taking-Over
Certificate for the Works.

19.11 Disorderly Conduct

19.11.1 The Contractor shall at all times take all reasonable precautions to prevent any unlawful, riotous
or disorderly conduct by or amongst the Contractor's Personnel, and to preserve peace and protection
of persons and property on and near the Site.

19.12 Foreign Personnel

19.12.1 The Contractor may bring into the Country any foreign personnel who are necessary for the
execution of the Works to the extent allowed by the applicable Laws. The Contractor shall ensure that
these personnel are provided with the required residence visas and work permits. The Procuring Entity
will, if requested by the Contractor, use his lowest endeavors in a timely and expeditious manner to
assist the Contractor in obtaining any local, state, national or government permission required for
bringing in the Contractor's personnel.

19.12.2 The Contractor shall be responsible for the return of these personnel to the place where they
were recruited or to their domicile. In the event of the death in the Country of any of these personnel
or members of their families, the Contractor shall similarly be responsible for making the appropriate
arrangements for their return or burial.

19.13 Supply of Foodstuffs

The Contractor shall arrange for the provision of a sufficient supply of suitable food as may be stated
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in the Specification at reasonable prices for the Contractor's Personnel for the purposes of or in
connection with the Contract.

19.14 Supply of Water

The Contractor shall, having regard to local conditions, provide on the Site an adequate supply of
drinking and other water for the use of the Contractor's Personnel.

19.15 Measures against Insect and Pest Nuisance

19.15.1 The Contractor shall at all times take the necessary precautions to protect the Contractor's
Personnel employed on the Site from insect and pest nuisance, and to reduce the danger to their health.
The Contractor shall comply with all the regulations of the local health authorities, including use of
appropriate insecticide.

19.16 Alcoholic Liquor or Drugs

19.16.1 The Contractor shall not, otherwise than in accordance with the Laws of the Country, import,
sell, give, barter or otherwise dispose of any alcoholic liquor or drugs, or permit or allow importation,
sale, gift, barter or disposal thereof by Contractor's Personnel.

19.17 Arms and Ammunition

The Contractor shall not give, barter, or otherwise dispose of, to any person, any arms or ammunition
of any kind, or allow Contractor's Personnel to do so.

19.18 Festivals and Religious Customs

The Contractor shall respect the Country's recognized festivals, days of rest and religious or other
customs.

19.19 Funeral Arrangements

19.19.1 The Contractor shall be responsible, to the extent required by local regulations, for making any
funeral arrangements for any of his local employees who may die while engaged upon the Works.

19.20 Prohibition of Forced or Compulsory Labor

The Contractor shall not employ forced labor, which consists of any work or service, not voluntarily
performed, that is exacted from an individual under threat of force or penalty, and includes any kind
of involuntary or compulsory labor, such as indentured labor, bonded labor or similar labor-
contracting arrangements.

19.21 Prohibition of Harmful Child Labor

The Contractor shall not employ children in a manner that is economically exploitative, or is likely to
be hazardous, or to interfere with, the child's education, or to be harmful to the child's health or
physical, mental, spiritual, moral, or social development. Where the relevant labor laws of the Country
have provisions for Employment of minors, the Contractor shall follow those laws applicable to the
Contractor. Children below the age of 18 years shall not be employed in dangerous work.

19.22 Employment Records of Workers
The Contractor shall keep complete and accurate records of the employment of labor at the Site. The
records shall include the names, ages, genders, hours worked and wages paid to all workers. These
records shall be summarized on a monthly basis and submitted to the Engineer. These records shall be
included in the details to be submitted by the Contractor under Sub-Clause 19.10 [Records of
Contractor's Personnel and Equipment].

19.23 Workers' Organizations

The Contractor shall comply with laws on workers' rights to form and to join workers' organizations
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19.24

20

20.1

20.2

20.3

20.4

20.5

20.6

20.7

20.8

20.9

20.10

20.11

without interference and to bargain collectively.
Non-Discrimination and Equal Opportunity

The Contractor shall not make employment decisions on the basis of personal characteristics unrelated
to inherent job requirements. The Contractor shall base the employment relationship on the principle
of equal opportunity and fair treatment and shall not discriminate with respect to aspects of the
employment relationship, including recruitment and hiring, compensation (including wages and
benefits), working conditions and terms of employment, access to training, promotion, termination of
employment or retirement, and discipline.

Test and Inspection

The Contractor shall at its own expense carry out on the Site all such tests and/or inspections as are
specified in the Specifications, and in accordance with the procedures described in the Specifications.

The Procuring Entity and the Engineer or their designated representatives shall be entitled to attend the
aforesaid test and/or inspection.

For tests to be carried out on the initiative of the Contractor, whenever the Contractor is ready to carry
out any such test and/or inspection, he shall give a reasonable advance notice of such test and/or
inspection and of the place and time thereof to the Engineer. The Contractor shall provide the Engineer
with a signed report of the results of any such test and/or inspection.

If the Procuring Entity or Engineer (or their designated representatives) fails to attend a scheduled test
and/or inspection, or if it is agreed between the parties that such persons shall not attend, then the
Contractor may proceed with the test and/or inspection in the absence of such persons, and may
provide the Engineer with a signed report of the results thereof.

The Engineer may require the Contractor to carry out any test and/or inspection not required by the
Contract, provided that the Contractor's reasonable costs and expenses incurred in the carrying out of
such test and/or inspection shall be added to the Contract Price. Further, if such test and/or inspection
impedes the progress of the works and/or the Contractor's performance of its other obligations under
the Contract, due allowance will be made in respect of the Time for Completion and the other
obligations so affected.

If Rehabilitation Works, Improvement Works or Emergency Works fail to pass any test and/or
inspection, the Contractor shall either rectify or replace such works and shall repeat the test and/or
inspection upon giving a notice under Sub-Clause 20.3.

If any dispute or difference of opinion shall arise between the parties in connection with or arising out
of the test and/or inspection of the Works and Services, or part of them, that cannot be settled between
the parties within a reasonable period of time, it may be referred to the Arbitration for determination
in accordance with Sub- Clause6.1.

The Contractor agrees that neither the execution of a test and/or inspection of the Works and Services
or any part of them, nor the attendance by the Procuring Entity or the Engineer, nor the issue of any
test certificate pursuant to Sub-Clause 20.4, shall release the Contractor from any other responsibilities
under the Contract.

No part or foundations shall be covered up on the Site without the Contractor carrying out any test
and/or inspection required under the Contract. The Contractor shall give a reasonable notice to the
Engineer whenever any such part or foundations are ready or about to be ready for test and/or
inspection; such test and/or inspection and notice thereof shall be subject to the requirements of the
Contract.

The Contractor shall uncover any part of the Works or foundations, or shall make openings in or
through the same as the Engineer may from time to time require at the Site, and shall reinstate and
make good such part or parts.

If any parts of the Works or foundations have been covered up at the Site after compliance with the
requirement of Sub-Clause 20.9 and are found to be executed in accordance with the Contract, the
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expenses of uncovering, making openings in or through, reinstating, and making good the same shall
be borne by the Procuring Entity, and the Time for Completion shall be reasonably adjusted to the extent
that the Contractor has thereby been delayed or impeded in the performance of any of its obligations
under the Contract.

21 Rehabilitation Works

21.1 If soindicated in the PC, specific Rehabilitation Works shall be carried out explicitly in accordance with
the Specifications and as specified in the tendering document and in the Contractor's Tender. Input
quantities for Rehabilitation Works were estimated by the Contractor to achieve the performance
criteria for Rehabilitation Works given in the Specifications. The specific Rehabilitation Works were
offered by the Contractor at a Lump-Sum price.

22 Improvement Works

22.1 If soindicated in the PC, Improvement Works are required and will consist of a set of interventions that
add new characteristics to the roads in response to new traffic and safety or other conditions.
Improvement Works quantities were offered at unit prices included in the Bill of Quantities.

22.2 The execution of Improvement Works shall be requested by the Engineer, who will issue a Work Order
defining the requested works to be carried out by the Contractor, based on the activities priced in the
Bill of Quantities. The Work order shall specify the activities to be carried out and the corresponding
price. The Road Manager shall confirm his acceptance by signing the Work Order.

23 Maintenance Services

Maintenance Services are those activities necessary for keeping the Road in compliance with the
Performance Standard's pursuant to Clause 24. Maintenance Services shall include all activities
required to achieve and keep the Road Performance Standard's and Service Levels. These Services will
be remunerated by Lump-Sum amount for the period of the contract paid in fixed monthly payments
during the entire Contract period.

24 Performance Standards

24.1 The Contractor shall carry out the Maintenance Services to achieve and keep the Road complying with
the Service Levels defined in the Specifications. He will carry out all Works in accordance with the
performance standards indicated in the Specifications.

25 Contractor's Self-Control of Quality and Safety

25.1 The Contractor shall, throughout the execution and completion of the Works and Services, maintain a
System which shall ensure that the work methods and procedures are adequate and safe at all times
and do not pose any avoidable risks and dangers to the health, safety and property of the workers and
agents employed by him or any of his subcontractors, of road users, of persons living in the vicinity of
the roads under contract, and any other person who happens to be on or along the roads under
contract.

25.2  Unless specified otherwise in the PC, the Contractor shall establish, within his own organizational
structure, a specific Unit staffed with qualified personnel, whose task is to verify continuously the
degree of compliance by the Contractor with the required Service Levels. That Unit will also be
responsible for the generation and presentation of the information needed by the contractor for the
documentation required as defined in the Specifications. The Unit will be responsible for maintaining
a detailed and complete knowledge of the condition of the Road and to provide to the Road Manager
all the information needed in order to efficiently manage and maintain the Road. The Unit shall also
carry out, in close collaboration with the Engineer, the verifications on the Service Levels.

25.3 The Contractor's Self-Control Unit mentioned in Sub-Clause 25.2 shall report the level of compliance
with the required Service Levels in the standard format presented in the Specifications.

26 Environmental and Safety Requirements
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26.1 The Contractor shall, throughout the design, execution and completion of the Works and Services, and
the remedying of any defects therein:

a)  Have full regard for the safety of all persons employed by him and his subcontractors and keep
the Site (so far as the same is under his control) in an orderly state appropriate to the avoidance
of danger to such persons;

b) provide and maintain at his own cost all guardrails, fencing, warning signs and watching, when
and where necessary or required by Sub-Clause 18.3 of the Contractor by any duly constituted
authority, for the protection of the Works and Services or for the safety and convenience of his
workers and road users, the public or others; and

¢) Take all reasonable steps to protect the environment (both on and off the Site) and to limit damage
and nuisance to people and property resulting from pollution, noise and other results of his
operations.

27  Work Orders for Improvement Works and Emergency Works

Improvement Works and Emergency Works shall be executed by the Contractor on the basis of Work
Orders issued by the Engineer.

27.1 Work Orders shall be issued in writing and shall include the date on which the Work Order was issued
and the signature of the Engineer. Two copies of the Work Order shall be transmitted by the Engineer
to the Contractor, who shall immediately countersign one copy, including the date of acceptance, and
return it to the Engineer.

27.2  1If the Contractor has any objection to a Work Order, the Road Manager shall notify the Engineer of his
reasons for such objection within ten (10) days) of the date of issuing the Work Order. Within five (5)
days of the Road Manager's objection, the Engineer shall cancel, modify or confirm the Work Order in
writing.

28  Taking Over Procedures

28.1 When the whole of the Works and Services have been substantially completed and have satisfactorily
passed any Tests on Completion prescribed by the Contract, the Contractor may give a notice to that
effect to the Engineer, accompanied by a written undertaking to finish with due expedition any
outstanding work during the Defects Liability Period. Such notice and undertaking shall be deemed to
be a request by the Contractor for the Engineer to issue a Taking-Over Certificate in respect of the
Works and Services. The Engineer shall, within twenty-one (21) days of the date of delivery of such
notice, either issue to the Contractor a Taking-Over Certificate, stating the date on which the Works
and Services were substantially completed in accordance with the Contract, or give instructions in
writing to the Contractor specifying all the conditions to be complied with and all the work which is
required to be done by the Contractor before the issue of such Certificate. The Engineer shall also notify
the Contractor of any defects in the Works and Services affecting substantial completion that may
appear after such instructions and before completion of Taking-Over Certificate within twenty-one
(21) days of completion, to the satisfaction of the Engineer, of the Works and Services so specified and
remedying any defects so notified.

28.2  Similarly, in accordance with the procedure set out in Sub-Clause 28.1, the Contractor may request
and the Engineer shall issue a Taking-Over Certificate in respect of:

a)  Any Section in respect of which a separate Time for Completion is provided in the contract,

b)  Any substantial part of the Works and Services which has been both completed to the satisfaction
of the Engineer and, otherwise than as provided for in the Contract, occupied or used by the
Procuring Entity, or

¢) Any part of the Works and Services which the Procuring Entity has elected to occupy or use prior
to completion (where such prior occupation or use is not provided for in the Contractor has not
been agreed by the Contractor as a temporary measure).

29  Emergency Works

29.1 The need for execution of Emergency Works is jointly identified by the Procuring Entity and the
Contractor and the starting of the execution of Emergency Works shall always require a Work Order
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issued by the Engineer.

29.2  The execution of Emergency Works shall be requested by the Contractor based on losses or damages
occurred as a result of natural phenomena (such as strong storms, flooding or earthquakes) with
imponderable consequences, or on the possibility of damages or losses occurring, or the safety of
individuals, works, services or equipment being at risk as result of the natural phenomena. In order to
characterize the Emergency Works, the Contractor shall forward a Technical Report to the Engineer
requesting the execution of Emergency Works and characterizing the situation. On the basis of the said
report, and of his own judgment of the situation, the Engineer may issue a Work Order to the
Contractor.

29.3 The Procuring Entity or even Government authorities may declare an Emergency Situation on the basis
of local legislation. In those cases, the Engineer may issue a Work Order for Emergency Works to the
Contractor even without a request by the Contractor.

29.4 If the Contractor is unable or unwilling to do such work immediately, the Procuring Entity may do or
cause such work to be done as the Procuring Entity may determine necessary in order to prevent
damage to the Road. In such event the Procuring Entity shall, as soon as practicable after the occurrence
of any such emergency, notify the Contractor in writing of such emergency, the work done and the
reasons therefore. If the work done or caused to be done by the Procuring Entity is work that the
Contractor was liable to do at its own expense under the Contract, the reasonable costs incurred by the
Procuring Entity in connection therewith shall be paid by the Contractor to the Procuring Entity.
Otherwise, the cost of such remedial work shall be borne by the Procuring Entity.

30 Quality of materials used by Contractor

30.1 The quality of materials used by the Contractor for the execution of the Contract shall be in compliance
with the requirements of the Specifications. If the Contractor is of the opinion that materials of higher
quality than those stated in the Specifications need to be used in order to ensure compliance with the
Contract, he shall use such better materials, without being entitled to higher prices or remunerations.

30.2 Under no circumstances may the Contractor make any claim based on the insufficient quality of
materials used by him, even if the material used was authorized by the Engineer.

20.3 The Contractor shall carry out at his own cost the laboratory and other tests that he needs to verify if
materials to be used comply with the Specifications, and shall keep records of such tests. If requested
by the Engineer, the Contractor shall handover the results of the tests.

31 Signaling and demarcation of work zones and by passes

31.1 Toensure the safety of road users, including non-motorized road users and pedestrians, the Contractor
is responsible to install and maintain at his cost the adequate signaling and demarcation of worksites,
which in addition must comply with the applicable legislation.

31.2 Ifthe execution of services and works under the contract is likely to interfere with traffic, the Contractor
shall take at his cost the measures necessary to limit such interference to the strict minimum, or any
danger to the workers or others. For that purpose, he is entitled to install, within the right-of-way of
the road, temporary by passes, structures or other modifications to be used by traffic during the
execution of works and services. The Contractor shall notify the Engineer of any such temporary
installations.

31.3 If the execution of Works and Services by the Contractor makes it necessary to temporarily close a road
section, and a traffic detour has to be implemented over other public roads or streets, the Contractor
shall be responsible for the adequate signaling of the detour, under the same conditions as stated in
Sub-Clause 31.1.

31.4 The Contractor shall inform the local authorities and the local police about such activities to be carried
out by him which may cause any significant interruptions or changes to the normal traffic patterns.
Such information shall be made in writing and at least seven (7) days before the beginning of such
activities. Upon request from the Contractor, the Procuring Entity shall assist the Contractor in the
coordination with the local authorities and the local police.
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D. ALLOCATION OF RISKS
32  Procuring Entity's Risks

32.1 From the Start Date until the Defects Correction Certificate has been issued, the following are Procuring
Entity's risks in so far as they directly affect the execution of the Works and Services included in this
Contract:

a)  war, hostilities (Whether war be declared or not), invasion, act of foreign enemies;
b) rebellion, revolution, insurrection, military or usurped power, or civil war;

¢) ionizing radiations, contamination by radio activity from any nuclear fuel, or any nuclear waste
from the combustion of nuclear fuel, radioactive toxic explosive or other hazardous properties of
any explosive nuclear assembly or nuclear component thereof;

d) riot, commotion or disorder, unless solely restricted to employees of the Contractor or of his
Subcontractors and arising from the conduct of the Works and Services;

e) loss or damage due to the use or occupation by the Procuring Entity of any unfinished Section or
part of the Works, except as may be provided for in the Contract;

f)  Any operation of the forces of nature against which an experienced contractor could not
reasonably have been expected to take precautions.

33 Contractor's Risks

33.1 The Procuring Entity carries the risks which this Contract states are Procuring Entity's risks, and the
remaining risks are the Contractor's risks. The Risks are indicated in the PC.

34 Loss of or Damage to Property; Accident or Injury to Workers; Indemnification

34.1 Subject to Sub-Clause 34.3, the Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the Procuring Entity and
its employees and officers from and against any and all suits, actions or administrative proceedings,
claims, demands, losses, damages, costs, and expenses of whatsoever nature, including attorney's fees
and expenses, in respect of the death or injury of any person or loss of or damage to any property
arising in connection with the execution and by reason of the negligence of the Contractor or its
Subcontractors, or their employees, officers or agents, except any injury, death or property damage
caused by the negligence of the Procuring Entity, its contractors, employees, officers or agents.

34.2 If any proceedings are brought or any claim is made against the Procuring Entity that might subject the
Con tractor to liability under Sub-~Clause 34.1, the Procuring Entity shall promptly give the Contractor
a notice thereof and the Contractor may at its own expense and in the Procuring Entity's name conduct
such proceedingsorclaimandanynegotiationsforthesettlementofanysuchproceedingsorclaim.

34.3 35.3 If the Contractor fails to notify the Procuring Entity within twenty-eight (28) days after receipt
of such notice that it intends to conduct any such proceedings or claim, then the Procuring Entity shall
be free to conduct the same on its own behalf. Unless the Contractor has so failed to notify the Procuring
Entity within the twenty- eight (28) day period, the Procuring Entity shall make no admission that may
be prejudicial to the defense of any such proceedings or claim. The Procuring Entity shall, at the
Contractor's request, afford all available assistance to the Contractor in conducting such proceedings
or claim, and shall be reimbursed by the Contractor for all reasonable expenses incurred in so doing.

34.4 35.4 The Procuring Entity shall indemnify and hold harmless the Contractor and its employees, officers
and Subcontractors from any liability for loss of or damage to property of the Procuring Entity, other
than the Works not yet taken over, that is caused by fire, explosion or any other perils, in excess of the
amount recoverable from insurances procured under Clause 35, provided that such fire, explosion or
other perils were not caused by any actor failure of the Contractor.

34.5 The party entitled to the benefit of an indemnity under this Clause 35 shall take all reasonable measures
to mitigate any loss or damage which has occurred. If the party fails to take such measures, the other
party's liabilities shall be correspondingly reduced.

35 Insurance

35.1 Tothe extent specified in the PC, the Contractor shall at its expense take out and maintain in effect, or
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35.2

35.3

35.4

35.5

35.6

36

36.1

cause to be taken out and maintained in effect, during the performance of the Contract, the insurances
set forth below in the sums and with the deductibles and other conditions specified in the said PC. The
identity of the insurers and the form of the policies shall be subject to the approval of the Procuring
Entity, who should not unreasonably withhold such approval.

a)  Loss of or damage to the Plant and Materials-Covering loss or damage occurring prior to
Completion.

b) Third Party Liability Insurance-Covering bodily injury or death suffered by third parties
(including the Procuring Entity's personnel) and loss of or damage to property occurring in
connection with Works and Services.

¢) Automobile Liability Insurance - Covering use of all vehicles used by the Contractor or its
Subcontractors (whether or not owned by them) in connection with the execution of the
Contract.

d)  Workers' Compensation-In accordance with the statutory requirements applicable in any
country where the Contractor any part thereof is executed.

e) Procuring Entity's Liability ~ In accordance with the statutory requirements applicable in any
country where the Contractor any part thereof is executed.

f)  Other Insurances — Such other insurances as may be specifically agreed upon by the parties.

The Procuring Entity shall be named as co-insured under all insurance policies taken out by the
Contractor pursuant to Sub-Clause 35.1, except for the Third Party Liability, Workers' Compensation
and Procuring Entity's Liability Insurances, and the Contractor's Subcontractors shall be named as co-
insured under all insurance policies taken out by the Contractor pursuant to Sub-Clause 36.1 except
for the Cargo Insurance During Transport, Workers' Compensation and Procuring Entity's Liability
Insurances. All insurer's rights of subrogation against such co-insured for losses or claims arising out
of the performance of the Contract shall be waived under such policies.

The Contractor shall deliver to the Procuring Entity certificates of insurance (or copies of the insurance
policies) as evidence that the required policies are in full force and effect. The certificates shall provide
that no less than twenty-one (21) days' notice shall be given to the Procuring Entity by insurers prior
to cancellation or material modification of a policy.

The Contractor shall ensure that, where applicable, its Subcontractor(s) shall take out and maintain in
effect adequate insurance policies for their personnel and vehicles and for work executed by them
under the Contract, unless such Subcontractors are covered by the policies taken out by the Contractor.

If the Contractor fails to take out and/or maintain in effect the insurances referred to in Sub-Clause
36.1, the Procuring Entity may take out and maintain in effect any such insurances and may from time
to time deduct from any amount due the Contract or under the Contract any premium that the
Procuring Entity shall have paid to the insurer, or may otherwise recover such amount as a debt due
from the Contractor.

Unless otherwise provided in the Contract, the Contractor shall prepare and conduct all and any claims
made under the policies effected by it pursuant to this Clause 36, and all monies payable by any insurers
shall be paid to the Contractor. The Procuring Entity shall give to the Contractor all such reasonable
assistance as maybe required by the Contractor. With respect to insurance claims in which the
Procuring Entity's interest is involved, the Contractor shall not give any release or make any
compromise with the insurer without the prior written consent of the Procuring Entity. With respect
to insurance claims in which the Contractor's interest is involved, the Procuring Entity shall not give
any release or make any compromise with the insurer without the prior written consent of the
Contractor.

Unforeseen Conditions

If, during the execution of the Contract, the Contractor shall encounter on the Site any physical
conditions (other than climatic conditions) or artificial obstructions that could not have been reasonably
foreseen prior to the date of the Contract Agreement by an experienced contract or on the basis of
reasonable examination of the data relating to the Road (including any data and tests provided by the
Procuring Entity), and on the basis of information that it could have obtained from a visual inspection
of the Site or other data readily available to it relating to the Road, and if the Contractor determines that
it will in consequence of such conditions or obstructions incur additional cost and expense or require

KURA/RMLF/LE/142/2025-2026 Issued by Kenya Urban Roads Authority 205|Page



additional time to perform its obligations under the Contract that would not have been required if such
physical conditions or artificial obstructions had not been encountered, the Contractor shall promptly,
and before performing additional work or using additional Plant and Equipment or Contractor's
Equipment, notify the Engineer in writing of:-~

a)  The physical conditions or artificial obstructions on the Site that could not have been reasonably
foreseen;

b) The additional work and/or Plant and Equipment and/or Contractor's Equipment required,
including the steps which the Contractor will or proposes to take to overcome such conditions or
obstructions;

c) The extent of the anticipated delay;
d) The additional cost and expense that the Contractor is likely to incur.

36.2 On receiving any notice from the Contractor under this Sub-Clause 37.1, the Engineer decide upon the
actions to be taken to overcome the physical conditions or artificial obstructions encountered. Following
such consultations, the Engineer shall instruct the Contractor, with a copy to the Procuring Entity, of the
actions to be taken.

36.3 Any reasonable additional cost and expense incurred by the Contractor in following the instructions
from the Engineer to overcome such physical conditions or artificial obstructions referred to in Sub-
Clause 37.1 shall be paid by the Procuring Entity to the Contractor as an addition to the Contract Price.

36.4 If the Contractor is delayed or impeded in the performance of the Contract because of any such physical
conditions or artificial obstructions referred to in Sub-Clause 37.1, the Time for Completion shall be
extended in accordance with Clause 64.

37 Change in Laws and Regulations

37.1 If, after the date twenty-eight (28) days prior to the date of Tender submission, where the Site is located,
any law, regulation, ordinance, order or by-law having the force of law is enacted, promulgated,
abrogated or changed (which shall be deemed to include any change in interpretation or application by
the competent authorities) that subsequently affects the costs and expenses of the Contractor and/or the
Time for Completion, the Contract Price shall be correspondingly increased or decreased, and/or the
Time for Completion shall be reasonably adjusted to the extent that the Contractor has thereby been
affected in the performance of any of its obligations under the Contract. Notwithstanding the foregoing,
such additional or reduced costs shall not be separately paid or credited if the same has already been
accounted for in the price adjustment provisions where applicable, in accordance with the PC.

38 Force Majeure

38.1 “Force Majeure” shall mean any event beyond the reasonable control of the Procuring Entity or of the
Contractor, as the case may be, in so far as they directly affect the execution of the Services and Works
included in this Contract and which is unavoidable notwithstanding the reasonable care of the party
affected, and shall include, without limitation, the following: -

a)  war, hostilities or war like operations (whether a state of war be declared or not), invasion, act of
foreign enemy and civil war;

b) rebellion, revolution, insurrection, mutiny, usurpation of civil or military government, conspiracy,
riot, civil commotion and terrorist acts;

¢) confiscation, nationalization, mobilization, commandeering, requisition by or under the order of
any government or de jure or de facto authority or ruler or any other actor failure to act of any
local state or national government authority;

d) strike, sabotage, lockout, embargo, import restriction, port congestion, lack of usual means of
public transportation and communication, industrial dispute, shipwreck, shortage or restriction
of power supply, epidemics, quarantine and plague;

e) ecarthquake, landslide, volcanic activity, fire, flood or inundation, tidal wave, typhoon or cyclone,
hurricane, storm, lightning, or other inclement weather condition, nuclear and pressure waves
or other natural or physical disaster;

f)  Shortage of labor, materials or utilities where caused by circumstances that are themselves Force
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38.2

38.3

38.4

38.5

38.6

38.7

38.8

39

39.1

39.2

39.3

39.4

39.5

Majeure.

If either party is prevented, hindered or delayed from or in performing any of its obligations under the
Contract by an event of Force Majeure, then it shall notify the other in writing of the occurrence of
such event and the circumstances thereof within fourteen (14) days after the occurrence of such event.

The party who has given such notice shall be excused from the performance or punctual performance
of its obligations under the Contract for so long as the relevant event of Force Majeure continues and
to the extent that such party's performance is prevented, hindered or delayed. The Time for Completion
shall be extended in accordance with Clause 64.

The party or parties affected by the event of Force Majeure shall use reasonable efforts to mitigate the
effect thereof upon its or their performance of the Contract and to fulfill its or their obligations under
the Contract, but without prejudice to either party's right to terminate the Contract under Sub-Clause
39.6.

No delay or nonperformance by either party hereto caused by the occurrence of any event of Force
Majeure shall:

a)  Constitute a default or breach of the Contract; and

b)  Give rise to any claim for damages or additional cost or expense

occasioned thereby;

If and to the extent that such delay or nonperformance is caused by the occurrence of an event of
Force Majeure.

If the performance of the Contract is substantially prevented, hindered or delayed for a single period
of more than sixty (60) days or an aggregate period of more than one hundred and twenty (120) days
on account of one or more events of Force Majeure during the currency of the Contract, the parties
will attempt to develop a mutually satisfactory solution, failing which either party may terminate the
Contract by giving a notice to the other, but without prejudice to either party's right to terminate the
Contract under Clause 60.

In the event of termination pursuant to Sub-Clause 39.6, the rights and obligations of the Procuring
Entity and the Contractor shall be as specified in Sub-Clauses 60.1.2 and 60.1.3.

Notwithstanding Sub-Clause 39.5, Force Majeure shall not apply to any obligation of the Procuring
Entity to make payments to the Contractor herein.

GUARANTEES AND LIABILITIES
Completion Time Guarantee and Liability

The Contractor guarantees that it shall attain specified Service Levels and the Completion of
Rehabilitation and Improvement Works (or a part for which a separate time for completion is specified
in the PC) within the time schedules specified in the PC and the Specifications, pursuant to Sub-Clause
10.2, or within such extended time to which the Contractor shall be entitled under Clause 70 hereof.

If the Contractor fails to attain specified Service Levels within the contractually agreed time schedules
as given in the Specifications, the contractor shall receive reduced payments for Maintenance Services,
for such default and not as a penalty, in accordance with the Specifications.

If the Contractor fails to attain the Completion of Rehabilitation and Improvement Works (or apart for
which a separate time for completion is specified in the PC clause 40.1) within the contractually
required time schedules, the contractor shall pay to the Procuring Entity liquidated damages for such
default and not as a penalty, in accordance with the PC and the Specifications.

The payment reductions and liquidated damages indicated in Clause

And 39.3 shall be the only monies due from the Contractor for such defaults, and they will be applied
for every day of delay, in accordance with the PC and the Specifications. The aggregate amount of such
liquidated damages and payment reductions shall in no event exceed the “aggregate liability” in
accordance with Clause
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39.6 The payment or deduction of such sums shall not relieve the Contractor from his obligation to
complete the Works and Services, or from any other of his obligations and liabilities under the
Contract.

40  Performance Guarantee and Liability

40.1 The Contractor guarantees that during the Performance Tests or Inspections for Rehabilitation and
Improvement Works, and for Emergency Works, the Road and all parts thereof shall attain the
Performance Standard's specified in the corresponding Specifications.

40.2 If, for reasons attributable to the Contractor, the minimum level of the Performance Standard's specified
in the corresponding Specifications are not met either in whole or in part, the Contractor shall at its
cost and expense make such changes, modifications and/or additions to the Road or any part thereof
as may be necessary to meet at least the minimum level of such Standard's. The Contractor shall notify
the Procuring Entity upon completion of the necessary changes, modifications and/or additions, and
shall request the Procuring Entity to repeat the Test or Inspection until the minimum level of the
Standard's has been met. If the Contractor eventually fails to meet the minimum level of Performance
Standard, the Procuring Entity may consider termination of the Contract, pursuant to Sub-Clause 61.2.

40.3 If, for reasons attributable to the Contractor, the Performance Standard's relating to Rehabilitation and
Improvement Works specified in the corresponding Specifications are not attained either in whole or
in part, the Contractor shall, at the Contractor's choice, cither

a) Make such changes, modifications and/or additions to the Works and Services or any part thereof
that are necessary to attain the Performance Standard's at its cost and expense, and shall request
the Procuring Entity to repeat the Test, or

b) Pay liquidated damages to the Procuring Entity in respect of the Works and Services which fail to
meet the Performance Standard's in accordance with the provisions in the corresponding
Specifications.

40.4 The payment of liquidated damages under Sub-Clause 40.3, up to the limitation of liability specified in
the PC, shall completely satisfy the Contractor's guarantees under Sub-Clause 40.1, and the Contractor
shall have no further liability whatsoever to the Procuring Entity in respect thereof. Upon the payment
of such liquidated damages by the Contractor, the Engineer shall issue the Certificate of Completion
for the Works or any part thereof in respect of which the liquidated damages have been so paid.

41 Defect Liability

41.1 The Contractor warrants that the Works and Services or any part thereof shall be free from defects in
the design, engineering, materials and workmanship of the Works and Services executed.

41.2  The Defect Liability Period shall be twelve (12) months from the date of Completion of the Contract,
or eighteen (18) months from the date of Certificate of Completion of the Works (or any part thereof),
whichever occurs first, unless specified otherwise in the PC. If during the Defect Liability Period any
defect should be found in the design, engineering, materials and workmanship of the Works and
Services executed by the Contractor, the Contractor shall promptly, in consultation and agreement
with the Procuring Entity regarding appropriate remedying of the defects, and at its cost, repair, replace
or otherwise make good (as the Contractor shall, at its discretion, determine) such defect as well as any
damage to the Road caused by such defect. The Contractor shall not be responsible for the repair,
replacement or making good of any defector of any damage to the Road arising out of or resulting from
improper operation or maintenance of the Road by the Procuring Entity after taking over.

41.3 The Contractor's obligations under this Clause 42 shall not apply to: -

a)  Any works or materials that have a normal life shorter than the Defect Liability Period stated
herein,;

b)  Any designs, specifications or other data designed, supplied or specified by or on behalf of the
Procuring Entity or any matters for which the Contractor has disclaimed responsibility herein;

¢) Any other materials supplied or any other work executed by or on behalf of the Procuring Entity,
except for the work executed by the Procuring Entity under Sub-Clause 42.6.
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41.4 The Procuring Entity shall give the Contractor a notice stating the nature of any such defect together
with all available evidence thereof, promptly following the discovery thereof. The Procuring Entity
shall afford all reasonable opportunity for the Contractor to inspect any such defect.

41.5 The Procuring Entity shall afford the Contractor all necessary access to the Site to enable the Contractor
to perform its obligations under this Clause 42. The Contractor may remove from the Site any Plant
and Equipment that are defective if the nature of the defect is such that repairs cannot be expeditiously
carried out at the Site.

41.6 If the Contractor fails to commence the work necessary to remedy such defect or any damage to the
Road caused by such defect within a reasonable time (which shall in no event be considered to be less
than fifteen (15) days), the Procuring Entity may, following notice to the Contractor, proceed to do
such work, and the reasonable costs incurred by the Procuring Entity in connection there with shall be
paid to the Procuring Entity by the Contractor or may be deducted by the Procuring Entity from any
monies due the Contractor or claimed under the Performance Security.

41.7 If the Road or any part thereof cannot be used by reason of such defect and/or making good of such
defect, the Defect Liability Period of the Road or such part, as the case may be, shall be extended by a
period equal to the
periodduringwhichtheRoadorsuchpartcannotbeusedbecauseofanyoftheaforesaidreasons.

41.8 Except as provided in Clauses 41 and 42, the Contractor shall be under no liability whatsoever and
howsoever arising, and whether under the Contractor at law, in respect of defects in the Road or any
part thereof, the Plant and Equipment, design or engineering or work executed that appear after
Completion of the Works and Services, except where such defects are the result of the gross negligence,
fraud, criminal or willful action of the Contractor.

42 Limitation of Liability

42.1 Except in cases of criminal negligence or willful misconduct,

a)  The Contractor shall not be liable to the Procuring Entity, whether in contract, tort, or otherwise,
for any indirect or consequential loss or damage, loss of use, loss of production, or loss of profits
or interest costs, provided that this exclusion shall not apply to any obligation of the Contractor
to pay liquidated damages to the Procuring Entity and

b) The aggregate liability of the Contractor to the Procuring Entity, whether under the Contract, in
tort or otherwise, shall not exceed the limit specified in the PC.

43 Liability for Damages through Traffic Accidents and Traffic Interruptions

43.1 The Contractor cannot be held liable for losses or damages of any kind arising out of traffic accidents
on the roads included in the Contract, unless those traffic accidents have been caused directly by
potholes or other major defects of the Road covered by the Contract he failed to repair in a timely
manner, criminal acts, willful misconduct or gross negligence of the Contractor.

43.2 Under no circumstances can the Contractor be held liable for losses or damages of any kind and to
anyone arising out of interruptions of traffic or traffic delays on the road included in the Contract,
including any indirect or consequential loss or damage, loss of use, loss of production, or loss of profits
or interest costs.

F. PAYMENT

44 Contract Price

44.1 The Contract Price shall be as specified in the Form of Contract Agreement to be paid in the currencies
indicated in the PC.

44.2 Unless indicated otherwise in the PC, and except in the event of a Change as provided for in the
Contract, the Contract Price shall be: ~

a)  For Rehabilitation Works, a firm lump sum not subject to any alteration, to be paid according to
work progress;
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44.3

45

45.1

45.2

45.3

46

46.1

46.2

46.3

46.4

46.5

46.6

b) For Maintenance Services, a firm lump sum to be paid in monthly installments;
¢) For Improvement Works, the total price stated in the Bill of Quantities for this item;
d) For Emergency Works, the Provisional Sum reserved for this purpose.

The Contractor shall be deemed to have satisfied itself as to the correctness and sufficiency of the
Contract Price, which shall, except as otherwise provided for in the Contract, cover all its obligations
under the Contract.

Advance Payment

The Procuring Entity shall make advance payment to the Contractor of the amounts and by the date
stated in the PC, against provision by the Contractor of an Unconditional Bank Guarantee in a form
and by a bank acceptable to the Procuring Entity in amounts and currencies equal to the advance
payment. The Guarantee shall remain effective until the advance payment has been repaid, but the
amount of the Guarantee shall be progressively reduced by the amounts repaid by the Contractor.
Interest will not be charged on the advance payment.

The Contractor is to use the advance payment only to pay for Equipment, Plant, Materials, and
mobilization expenses required specifically for the execution of the Contract. The Contractor shall
demonstrate that advance payment has been used in this way by supplying copies of invoices or other
documents to the Engineer.

The advance payment shall be repaid by deducting proportionate amounts from payments otherwise
due to the Contractor, following the schedule of completed percentages of the Works and Services on
a payment basis as indicated in the PC.

Bills of Quantities

The Bills of Quantities shall contain items for Groups of Activities which include the provision of
Services (measured by performance standards) and Works (measured by unit of outputs or of
products). The Bill of Quantities for Works shall include, where applicable, the lump-~sum and unit
price for Rehabilitation Works, and unit rates for Improvement Works and for Emergency Works.

Maintenance Services shall be measured and billed separately and will be remunerated by lump-sum
amount for the period of the contract, and paid in fixed monthly payments during the entire Contract
period. The values for remuneration of the Maintenance Services are those stated in the Bills of
Quantities.

Rehabilitation Works will be remunerated by Lump-Sum amount for the period of the contract,
however, indicating the quantities of measurable outputs to be executed in order that the Road achieves
the performance standards specified in the tendering document. Payments will be made in accordance
with the execution of those measured outputs paid by executed works output. The prices shall be those
stated in the Bill of Quantities.

Improvement Works will be remunerated after acceptance by the Procuring Entity and shall be paid
according to the product unit price using the prices included in the Bill of Quantities.

Each Emergency Work Order issued by the Engineer will include a lump-~sum price for the works to
be performed. The Lump-Sum price for the Emergency Works will be submitted by the Contractor to
the Engineer in each emergency pursuant to Clauses 29 and 64 and will be prepared based on the
Specifications and on the unit prices included in the Bill of Quantities for Emergency Works, and will
remunerate all Emergency Activities. The prices include compliance with all Performance Indices
described in the Specifications. Once approved, Emergency Works will be paid as lump sum in
accordance with the schedule of payment proposed by the Contractor for the specific Emergency and
approved by the Procuring Entity.

The Bills of Quantities is used to calculate the Contract Price. The amounts for Maintenance Services
and Rehabilitation Works are the Lump-Sum prices offered in the Contractor's Tender. The
Improvement Works amount included in the Contract is an estimate on the basis of unit prices included
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47.1

47.2

47.3

47.4

48

48.1

48.2

49

49.1

49.2

49.3

49.4

in the Contractor's Tender. The Provisional Sum included in the Contract Price is an estimate for use
when authorized by the Procuring Entity for Emergency Works and contingencies.

Measurement

Maintenance Services will not be measured in volume; however, its payment will be affected by
compliance withthePerformanceStandard'spursuanttoClause24. Maintenance Services shall be billed
in fixed monthly amounts as per the Bill of Quantities Lump-~Sum amount for Maintenance Services,
beginning from the Start Date. Payments will be made with Reductions if the Performance Standards
are not achieved, as defined in the Specifications. The Reductions for non-compliance with the
Performance Standard's will be applied on a daily basis for the period under which the Road does not
achieve the Performance Standard's, in accordance with the methodology specified in the
Specifications.

Rehabilitation Works will be measured on the basis indicated in the PC, based on the quantity of actual
work outputs as defined in the Specifications, concluded by the Contractor and approved by the
Engineer. The prices shall be those stated in the Bill of Quantities.

Improvement Works will be measured on the basis indicated in the PC and in accordance with the unit
of measurement used for product unit price included in the Bill of Quantities. The prices shall be those
stated in the Bill of Quantities.

Emergency Works will not be measured and shall be billed in accordance with the Schedule of
Payments agreed for each specific Emergency Work as approved by the Procuring Entity.

Price Adjustments

Prices shall be adjusted for fluctuations in the cost of inputs only if provided for in the PC. If so provided,
the amounts certified in each payment certificate, after deducting for Advance Payment, shall be
adjusted by applying the respective price adjustment factor to the payment amounts due in each
currency. A separate formula of the type indicated below applies to each Contract currency:

Pc=Ac+Bclmc/Ioc
where:
Pc is the adjustment factor for the portion of the Contract Price payable in a specific currency “c”

Ac and Bc are coefficients ! specified in the PC, representing the non-adjustable and adjustable portions,
respectively, of the Contract Price payable in that specific currency “c”, and Imc is the index
prevailing at the end of the month being invoiced and Ioc is the index prevailing twenty-eight (28)
days before Tender opening for inputs payable; both in the specific currency “c”.

If the value of the index is changed after it has been used in a calculation, the calculation shall be
corrected and an adjustment made in the next payment certificate. The index value shall be deemed to
take account of all changes in cost due to fluctuations in costs.

Monthly Statements and Payments

The Contractor shall submit to the Engineer monthly statements in the format indicated in the
Specifications, of the estimated value of Maintenance Services, Rehabilitation Works, Improvement
Works, and Emergency Works in separated items covering the Works and Services for the
corresponding month.

The Engineer shall check the Contractor's monthly statement and certify within fourteen (14) days the
amount to be paid to the Contractor.

The value of Services executed shall be certified by the Engineer considering the monthly amount
included in the Bill of Quantities for Maintenance Services and the achievement of the Performance
Standard's for the Maintenance Services adjusted for any payment reductions in accordance with Sub-~
Clause 47.2.

The value of Works executed shall be certified by the Engineer considering the value of the quantities
of products executed and the prices in the Bill of Quantities.
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49.5

50

50.1

The Engineer may exclude any item certified in a previous certificate or reduce the proportion of any
item previously certified in any certificate in the light of later information.

Payments

Payments shall be adjusted for deductions for advance payments, retention, and reductions for not
achieving Performance Standard's for Maintenance Services. The Procuring Entity shall pay the
Contractor the amounts certified by the Engineer in accordance with Clause 50, within twenty-~eight
(28) days of the date of each certificate. If the Procuring Entity makes a late payment, the Contractor
shall be paid interest on the late payment in the next payment. Interest shall be calculated from the
date by which the payment should have been made up to the date when the late payment is made at
the prevailing rate of interest for commercial borrowing for each of the currencies in which payments
are made.

IThe sum of the two coefficients Ac and Bc should be 1 (one) in the formula for each currency. Normally, both
coefficients will be the same in the formulae for all currencies, since coefficient A, for the non-adjustable portion
of the payments, is a very approximate figure (usually O.15) fo take account offixed cost elements or other non-
adjustable components. The sum of the adjustments for each currency is added fo the Contract Price.

50.2

50.3

50.4

50.5

51

o1.1

51.2

If an amount certified is increased in a later certificate or because of an award by the Adjudicator or
an Arbitrator, the Contractor shall be paid interest upon the delayed payment as set out in this clause.
Interest shall be calculated from the date upon which the increased amount would have been certified
in the absence of dispute. The interest rate shall be determined as per Sub-Clause 51.1.

Unless otherwise stated, all payments and deductions will be paid or charged in the proportions of
currencies comprising the Contract Price.

51.4 Items of the Works for which no rate or price has been entered in the Bill of Quantities will not
be paid for by the Procuring Entity and shall be deemed covered by other rates and prices in the
Contract.

Where the contract price is different from the corrected tender price, in order to ensure the contractor
is not paid less or more relative to the contract price (which would be the tender price), payment
valuation certificates and variation orders on omissions and additions valued based on rates in the Bill
of Quantities or schedule of rates in the Tender, will be adjusted by a plus or minus percentage. The
percentage already worked out during tender evaluation is worked out as follows: (corrected tender
price — tender price) /tender price X 100.

Retention and Reductions

The Procuring Entity shall retain the percentage indicated in the PC from each payment due to the
Contractor for Rehabilitation Works and Improvement Works, except for the types of works specified
in the PC. The regular monthly lump-sum payments for performance-based Maintenance Services will
not be subject to retentions, unless indicated in the PC.

52.2 On completion of the Rehabilitation and Improvement Works, half the total amount retained
shall be repaid to the Contractor and the other half after twelve (12) months have passed and the
Engineer has certified that all Defects notified by the Engineer to the Contractor have been corrected
before the end of this period.
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51.3

51.4

52
52.1

52.2

53

53.1

53.2

54

54.1

54.2

54.3

55

55.1

56

56.1

On completion of the whole Works and Services, the Contractor may substitute retention money with
an “on demand” Bank guarantee.

Reduction of monthly payments for Maintenance Services due to noncompliance with the Service Levels
will be made as indicated in Sub-Clause 47.1. The amount of Reduction for the days in which the Road
was not complying with the Performance Standard's will not be paid or repaid, even after the
Contractor re-establishes the quality levels to the standard's required by the contract.

Taxes and Duties

Issuance of Securities

The Contractor shall provide the securities specified below in favour of the Procuring Entity at the
times, and in the amount, manner and form specified below.

Advance Payment Security

The Contractor shall, within twenty-eight (28) days of the notification of contract award, provide a
security in an amount equal to the advance payment calculated in accordance with the corresponding
PC to the Contract Agreement, and in the same currency or currencies.

The security shall be in the form provided in the tendering document or in another form acceptable to
the Procuring Entity. The amount of the security shall be reduced in proportion to the value of the
Works and Services executed by and paid to the Contractor from time to time, and shall automatically
become null and void when the full amount of the advance payment has been recovered by the
Procuring Entity. The security shall be returned to the Contractor immediately after its expiration.

Performance Security

The Contractor shall, within twenty-eight (28) days of the notification of contract award, provide a
security for the due performance of the Contract in the amount specified in the PC.

The security shall be denominated in the currency or currencies of the Contract, or in a freely
convertible currency acceptable to the Procuring Entity, and shall be in one of the forms of guarantees
provided in the tendering document, as stipulated by the Procuring Entity in the PC, or in another form
acceptable to the Procuring Entity.

The security shall automatically become null and void, twelve (12) months after Completion of all
Works and Services under the Contract, provided however, that if the Defects Liability Period has been
extended on any part of the Works pursuant to Sub-Clause 42.7 hereof, the Contractor shall issue an
additional security in an amount proportionate to the Contract Price of that part. The security shall be
returned to the Contractor immediately after its expiration.

Certificate of Completion

The Contractor shall request the Engineer to issue a Certificate of Completion of the Rehabilitation
Works, Improvement Works and Emergency Works, or parts thereof, as applicable, and the Engineer
will do so upon deciding that the work is completed.

Final Statement

The Contractor shall supply the Engineer with a detailed account of the total amount that the Contractor
considers payable under the Contract before the end of the Defects Liability Period. The Engineer shall
issue a Defects Liability Certificate and certify any final payment that is due to the Contractor within
fifty~-six (56) days of receiving the Contractor's account if it is correct and complete. If it is not, the
Engineer shall issue within fifty-six (56) days a schedule that states the scope of the corrections or
additions that are necessary. If the Final Account is still unsatisfactory after it has been resubmitted, the
Engineer shall decide on the amount payable to the Contractor and issue a payment certificate.
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56.2 Discharge

56.2.1 Upon submission of the Final Statement, the Contractor shall give to the Engineer, a written discharge

57
57.1

57.2

58

58.1

58.2

58.3

568.4

confirming that the total of the Final Statement represents full and final settlement of all monies due to
the Contractor arising out of or in respect of the Contract. Provided that such discharge shall become
effective only after payment due under the Final Payment Certificate issued pursuant to Sub-Clause 57
has been made and the performance security referred to in Sub-~Clause 53.3, if any, has been returned
to the Contractor.

As Built Drawings and Manuals

If “as built” Drawings and/or manuals are required; the Contractor shall supply them by the dates
stated in the PC.

If the Contractor does not supply the Drawings and/or manuals by the dates stated in the PC, or they
do not receive the Engineer's approval, the Engineer shall withhold the amount stated in the PC from
payments due to the Contractor.

REMEDIES
Suspension

The Procuring Entity may request the Engineer, by notice to the Contractor, to order the Contractor to
suspend performance of any or all of its obligations under the Contract. Such notice shall specify the
obligation of which performance is to be suspended, the effective date of the suspension and the reasons
therefore. The Contractor shall thereupon suspend performance of such obligation (except those
obligations necessary for the care or preservation of the Site and Works) until ordered in writing to
resume such performance by the Engineer.

If, by virtue of a suspension order given by the Engineer, other than by reason of the Contractor's default
or breach of the Contract, the Contractor's performance of any of its obligations is suspended for an
aggregate period of more than ninety (90) days, then at any time thereafter and provided that at that
time such performance is still suspended, the Contractor may give a notice to the Engineer requiring
that the Procuring Entity shall, within twenty-eight (28) days of receipt of the notice, order the
resumption of such performance or request and subsequently order a change in accordance with Sub-
Clause 66.2, excluding the performance of the suspended obligations from the Contract.

If the Procuring Entity fails to do so within such period, the Contractor may, by a further notice to the
Engineer, elect to treat the suspension as termination of the Contract under Sub-Clause 60.1.

If

a) e Procuring Entity has failed to pay the Contractor any sum due under the Contract within the
specified period, has failed to approve any invoice or supporting documents without just cause
pursuant to the Contract, or commits a substantial breach of the Contract, the Contractor may
give a notice to the Procuring Entity that requires payment of such sum, with interest thereon as
stipulated in Sub-Clause 51.1, requires approval of such invoice or supporting documents, or
specifies the breach and requires the Procuring Entity to remedy the same, as the case may be. If
the Procuring Entity fails to pay such sum together with such interest, fails to approve such invoice
or supporting documents or give its reasons for withholding such approval, or fails to remedy the
breach or take steps to remedy the breach within fourteen (14) days after receipt of the
Contractor's notice; or

b) The Contractor is unable to carry out any of its obligations under the Contract for any reason
attributable to the Procuring Entity, including but not limited to the Procuring Entity's failure to
provide possession for access to the Site, or failure to obtain any governmental permit under the
Procuring Entity's responsibility and necessary for the execution and/or completion of the Works
and Services, then the Contractor may by fourteen (14) days' notice to the Procuring Entity
suspend performance of all or any of its obligations under the Contract, or reduce the rate of
progress.

If the Contractor's performance of its obligations is suspended or the rate of progress is reduced
pursuant to this Clause 59, then the Time for Completion shall be extended in accordance with Sub-
Clause 70, and any and all additional costs or expenses incurred by the Contractor as a result of such
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suspension or reduction shall be paid by the Procuring Entity to the Contractor in addition to the
Contract Price, except in the case of suspension order or reduction in the rate of progress by reason of
the Contractor's default or breach of the Contract.

58.5 During the period of suspension, the Contractor shall not remove from the Site any Plant and Equipment
or any Contractor's Equipment, without the prior written consent of the Procuring Entity.

59 Termination
59.1 Termination for Procuring Entity's Convenience

The Procuring Entity may at any time terminate the Contract for any reason by giving the Contractor a
notice of termination that refers to this Sub-~Clause 60.1.

59.2  Upon receipt of the notice of termination under Sub-Clause 60.2, the Contractor shall either
immediately or upon the date specified in the notice of termination.

a cease all further work, except for such work as the Procuring Entity may specify in the notice of
termination for the sole purpose of protecting that part of the Works and Services already executed,
or any work required to leave the Site in a clean and safe condition,

b terminate all subcontracts, except those to be assigned to the Procuring Entity pursuant to paragraph
(d)below,

¢ remove all Contractor's Equipment from the Site, repatriate the Contractor's and its Subcontractors'
personnel from the Site, remove from the Site any wreckage, rubbish and debris of any kind, and
leave the whole of the Site in a clean and safe condition

d In addition, the Contractor, subject to the payment specified in Sub-Clause 61.3, shall

i) deliver to the Procuring Entity the parts of the Works executed by the Contractor up to the date of
termination,

iito the extent legally possible, assign to the Procuring Entity all right, title and benefit of the
Contractor to the Works and Services and to the Plant and Equipment as of the date of
termination, and, as may be required by the Procuring Entity, in any subcontracts concluded
between the Contractor and its Subcontractors

iii) Deliver to the Procuring Entity all non-proprietary drawings, specifications and other
documents prepared by the Contractor or its Subcontractors as at the date of termination in
connection with the Works.

59.3 In the event of termination of the Contract under Sub-Clause 60.2, the Procuring Entity shall pay to the
Contractor the following amounts:

a. The Contract Price, properly attributable to the parts of the works and services executed by the
Contractor as of the date of termination,

b. the costs reasonably incurred by the Contractor in the removal of the Contractor's Equipment from
the Site and in the repatriation of the Contractor's and its Subcontractors' personnel,

c. anyamountstobepaidbytheContractortoitsSubcontractorsinconnectionwiththeterminationofany
subcontracts, including any cancellation charges,

d. the costs incurred by the Contractor in protecting and leaving the Site in a clean and safe condition
pursuant to paragraph (a) of Sub-Clause 60.3,

e. the cost of satisfying all other obligations, commitments and claims that the Contractor may in
good faith have undertaken with third parties in connection with the Contract and that are not
covered by paragraphs through (d) above.

60 Termination for Contractor's Default

60.1 The Procuring Entity, without prejudice to any other rights or remedies it may possess, may terminate
the Contract forth within the following circumstances by giving a notice of termination and its reasons
there for to the Contractor, referring to this Sub-Clause 61.1:

a If the Contractor becomes bankrupt or insolvent, has a receiving order issued against it, compounds
with its creditors, or, if the Contractor is a corporation, are solution is passed or order is made for its
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winding up (other than a voluntary liquidation for the purposes of amalgamation or reconstruction),
a receiver is appointed over any part of its undertaking or assets, or if the Contractor takes or suffers
any other analogous action in consequence of debt;

b if the Contractor assigns or transfers the Contract or any right or interest therein in violation of the
provision of Clause13;

¢ if the Contractor, in the judgment of the Procuring Entity has engaged in Fraud and Corruption, as
defined in paragraph 2.2a of the Appendix A to the GC, in competing for or in executing the Contract

If the Contractor
a Has abandoned or repudiated the Contract

b has without valid reason failed to commence work on the Road promptly or has suspended (other
than pursuant to Sub-Clause 59.2) the progress of Contract performance for more than twenty-eight
(28) days after receiving a written instruction from the Procuring Entity to proceed,

¢ persistently fails to execute the Contract in accordance with the Contract, such failure being defined
in the PC, or persistently neglects otherwise to carry out its obligations under the Contract without
just cause,

d refuses or is unable to provide sufficient materials, services or labor to execute and complete the
Works and Services in the manner specified in the program furnished under Clause
17atratesofprogressthat give reasonable assurance to the Procuring Entity that the Contractor can
attain completion of the works and services by the Time for Completion as extended, then the
Procuring Entity may, without prejudice to any other rights it may possess under the Contract, give
a notice to the Contractor stating the nature of the default and requiring the Contractor to remedy
the same. If the Contractor fails to remedy or to take steps to remedy the same within fourteen (14)
days of its receipt of such notice, then the Procuring Entity may terminate the Contract forth with by
giving a notice of termination to the Contractor that refers to this Sub- Clause 61.1.

60.2  Upon receipt of the notice of termination under Sub-Clauses 61.1, the Contractor shall, either
immediately or upon such date as is specified in the notice of termination,

a cease all further work, except for such work as the Procuring Entity may specify in the notice of
termination for the sole purpose of protecting that part of the Works and Services already executed,
or any work required to leave the Site in a clean and safe condition

b terminate all subcontracts, except those to be assigned to the Procuring Entity based on the
Procuring Entity's written request

¢ Deliver to the Procuring Entity all drawings, specifications and other documents prepared by the
Contractor or its Subcontractors as of the date of termination in connection with the Works and
Services.

60.3 The Contractor shall be entitled to be paid the Contract Price attributable to the Works and Services
executed as of the date of termination, and the costs, if any, incurred in protecting and in leaving the
Site in a clean and safe condition pursuant to paragraph (a) of Sub-Clause 60.3. Any sums due the
Procuring Entity from the Contractor accruing prior to the date of termination shall be deducted from
the amount to be paid to the Contractor under this Contract.

61 Termination by Contractor

61.1 If

a  The Procuring Entity has failed to pay the Contractor any sum due under the Contract within
the specified period, has failed to approve any invoice or supporting documents without just
cause pursuant to Clause 50, or commits a substantial breach of the Contract, the Contractor
may give a notice to the Procuring Entity that requires payment of such sum, with interest there
on as stipulated in Sub-Clause 51.1,requires approval of such invoice or supporting documents,
or specifies the breach and requires the Procuring Entity to remedy the same, as the case may be.
If the Procuring Entity fails to pay such sum together with such interest, fails to approve such
invoice or supporting documents or give its reasons for withholding such approval, fails to
remedy the breach or take steps to remedy the breach within fourteen (14) days after receipt of
the Contractor's notice, or

b The Contractor is unable to carry out any of its obligations under the Contract for any reason
attributable to the Procuring Entity, including but not limited to the Procuring Entity's failure to
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provide possession of or access to the Site or other areas or failure to obtain any governmental
permit under the Procuring Entity's responsibility and necessary for the execution and/or
completion of the Works and Services, then the Contractor may give a notice to the Procuring
Entity thereof, and if the Procuring Entity has failed to pay the outstanding sum, to approve the
invoice or supporting documents, to give its reasons for withholding such approval, or to remedy
the breach within twenty-eight (28) days of such notice, or if the Contractor is still unable to
carry out any of its obligations under the Contract for any reason attributable to the Procuring
Entity within twenty-eight (28) days of the said notice, the Contractor may by a further notice to
the Procuring Entity referring to this Sub-Clause 62, forth with terminate the Contract.

61.2 The Contractor may terminate the Contract forth with by giving a notice to the Procuring Entity to that
effect, referring to this Sub-Clause 62.1, if the Procuring Entity becomes bankrupt or insolvent, has a
receiving order issued against it, compounds with its creditors, or, being a corporation, if are solution
is passed or order is made for its winding up (other than a voluntary liquidation for the purposes of
amalgamation or reconstruction), a receiver is appointed over any part of its undertaking or assets, or
if the Procuring Entity takes or suffers any other analogous action in consequence of debt.

61.3 If the Contract is terminated under Sub-~Clauses 62 or 62.1, then the Contractor shall immediately

a Cease all further work, except for such work as may be necessary for the purpose of protecting that
part of the Road already executed, or any work required to leave the Site in a clean and safe
condition,

b Terminate all subcontracts, except those to be assigned to the Procuring Entity pursuant to
paragraph (d) (ii),

¢ Remove all Contractor's Equipment from the Site and repatriate the Contractor's and its
Subcontractors' personnel from the Site.

61.4 In addition, the Contractor, subject to the payment specified in Sub-Clause 62.4, shall

i)  deliver to the Procuring Entity the parts of the Road executed by the Contractor up to the date of
termination,

ii) to the extent legally possible, assign to the Procuring Entity all right, title and benefit of the
Contractor to the Road and to the Plant and Equipment as of the date of termination, and, as maybe
required by the Procuring Entity, in any subcontracts concluded between the Contractor and its
Subcontractors,

iii) Deliver to the Procuring Entity all drawings, specifications and other documents prepared by the
Contractor or its Subcontractors as of the date of termination in connection with the Works and
Services.

61.5 If the Contract is terminated under Sub-Clauses 62 or 62.1, the Procuring Entity shall pay to the
Contractor all payments specified in Sub-Clause 61.3, and reasonable compensation for all loss, except
for loss of profit, or damage sustained by the Contractor arising out of, in connection with or in
consequence of such termination.

61.6 Termination by the Contractor pursuant to Sub-~Clause 62 is without prejudice to any other rights or
remedies of the Contractor that may be exercised in lieu of or in addition to rights conferred by Sub-~
Clause 59.3.

61.7 In Clause 62, in calculating any monies due from the Procuring Entity to the Contractor, account shall
be taken of any sum previously paid by the Procuring Entity to the Contractor under the Contract,
including any advance payment paid pursuant to the Contract.

H. PROVISIONAL SUM

62  Provisional Sum

62.1 “Provisional Sum” means a sum included in the Contract for use when authorized by the Procuring
Entity for Emergency Works and for contingencies, which sum may be used, in whole or in part, or not
at all, on the instructions of the Procuring Entity. The Contractor shall be entitled to only such amounts

in respect of the work, supply or contingencies to which such Provisional Sums relate as the Engineer
shall determine in accordance with this Clause.
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63

63.1

63.2

63.3

64

64.1

65
65.1

65.2

65.3

65.4

65.5

67

67.1

Use of Provisional Sum for Emergency Works

After detecting a situation which in the opinion of the Contractor justifies the execution of Emergency
Works or otherwise as defined in Clause 29, the Contractor shall submit a Technical Report to the
Engineer characterizing the situation, and state estimated works quantities to correct the emergency
situation, and a Lump Sum price quotation for the Emergency Works to be carried out. The price
quotation should be based on the Specifications stated in Section VII using the unit prices included in
the Bill of Quantities.

If the execution of the Emergency Works requires any activity not priced in the Bill of Quantities, the
Contractor will use the price breakdowns included in the Contractor's Tender in order to form the unit
prices of the unpriced items to be included in the Price Quotation of the Emergency Works, all in
accordance with agreed methodology for approving new prices.

Upon receiving the request for Emergency Works including a Price Quotation, the Engineer may issue
a Work Order in accordance with Sub-Clause 29.2 for execution of the Emergency Works for a Lump-
Sum amount with a payment Schedule agreed with the Contractor. The cost of these Works will be
covered by the amounts included in the Provisional Sum.

Use of Provisional Sum for Contingencies

The use of the Provisional Sum to cover for Contingencies will be done under the control and initiative
of the Engineer in accordance with the conditions of the Contract.

CHANGE IN CONTRACT ELEMENTS
Change in Assignments to Contractor
Introducing a Change

If so indicated in the PC, the Procuring Entity shall have the right to propose, and subsequently require,
that the Engineer order the Contractor from time to time during the performance of the Contract to
make any change, modification, addition or deletion to, in or from the Assignments to the Contractor
(herein after called “Change”), provided that such Change falls within the general scope of the
Assignment and does not constitute, taking into account both the state of advancement of the Works
and Services and the technical compatibility of the Change envisaged with the nature of the Works and
Services as specified in the Contract.

If so indicated in the PC, the Contractor may from time to time during its performance of the Contract
propose to the Procuring Entity (with a copy to the Engineer) any Change that the Contractor considers
necessary or desirable to improve the quality, efficiency or safety of the Works and Services. The
Procuring Entity may at its discretion approve or reject any Change proposed by the Contractor.

Notwithstanding Sub-Clauses 66.2 and 66.3, no change made necessary because of any default of the
Contractor in the performance of its obligations under the Contract shall be deemed to be a Change,
and such change shall not result in any adjustment of the Contract Price or the Time for Completion.

The procedure on how to proceed with and execute Changes is specified in Sub-Clauses 66.2 and 66.3,
further details and sample forms are provided in the Sample Forms and Procedures section in the
tendering documents.

Changes Originating from Procuring Entity

If the Procuring Entity proposes a Change pursuant to Sub-Clause 66.2, it shall send to the Contractor
a “Request for Change Proposal,” requiring the Contractor to prepare and furnish to the Engineer, as
soon as reasonably practicable, a “Change Proposal,” which shall include the following:

a)  Brief description of the Change
b) Effect on the Time for Completion
c) Estimated cost of the Change
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d)  Effect on Functional Guarantees (if any)
e) Effect on any other provisions of the Contract

67.2  Prior to preparing and submitting the “Change Proposal,” the Contractor shall submit to the Engineer
an “Estimate for Change Proposal,” which shall be an estimate of the cost of preparing and submitting
the Change Proposal.

Upon receipt of the Contractor's Estimate for Change Proposal, the Procuring Entity shall do one of the
following:

f)  Accept the Contractor's estimate with instructions to the Contractor to proceed with the
preparation of the Change Proposal,

g) Advise the Contractor of any part of its Estimate for Change Proposal that is unacceptable and
request the Contractor to review its estimate,

h)  Advise the Contractor that the Procuring Entity does not intend to proceed with the Change.

67.3 67.3 Upon receipt of the Procuring Entity's instruction to proceed under Sub-Clause 67.2 (a), the
Contractor shall, with proper expedition, proceed with the preparation of the Change Proposal, in
accordance with Sub-Clause 67.1.

67.4 The pricing of any Change shall, as far as practicable, be calculated in accordance with the rates and
prices included in the Contract. If such rates and prices are inequitable, the parties thereto shall agree
on specific rates for the valuation of the Change.

67.5 If before or during the preparation of the Change Proposal it becomes apparent that the aggregate
effect of compliance there with, and with all other Change Orders that have already become binding
upon the Contractor under this Clause 67, would be to increase or decrease the Contract Price as
originally set forth in the Contract Agreement by more than fifteen percent (15%), the Contractor may
give a written notice of objection thereto prior to furnishing the Change Proposal as aforesaid. If the
Procuring Entity accepts the Contractor's objection, the Procuring Entity shall withdraw the proposed
Change and shall notify the Contractor in writing thereof. The Contractor's failure to so object shall
neither affect its right to object to any subsequent requested Changes or Change Orders herein, nor
affect its right to consider, when making such subsequent objection, the percentage increase or
decrease in the Contract Price that any Change not objected to by the Contractor represents.

67.6 Upon receipt of the Change Proposal, the Procuring Entity and the Contractor shall mutually agree
upon all matters therein contained. Within fourteen (14) days after such agreement, the Procuring
Entity shall, if it intends to proceed with the Change, issue the Contractor with a Change Order. If the
Procuring Entity is unable to reach a decision within fourteen (14) days, it shall notify the Contractor
with details of when the Contractor can expect a decision. If the Procuring Entity decides not to proceed
with the Change for whatever reason, it shall, within the said period of fourteen (14) days, notify the
Contractor accordingly. Under such circumstances, the Contractor shall be entitled to reimbursement
of all costs reasonably incurred by it in the preparation of the Change Proposal, provided that these do
not exceed the amount given by the Contractor in its Estimate for Change Proposal submitted in
accordance with Sub-Clause 67.2.

67.7 If the Procuring Entity and the Contractor cannot reach agreement on the price for the Change, an
equitable adjustment to the Time for Completion, or any other matters identified in the Change
Proposal, the Procuring Entity may nevertheless instruct the Contractor to proceed with the Change by
issue of a “Pending Agreement Change Order.”

Upon receipt of a Pending Agreement Change Order, the Contractor shall immediately proceed with
effecting the Changes covered by such Order. The parties shall thereafter attempt to reach agreement
on the outstanding issues under the Change Proposal.

If the parties cannot reach agreement within sixty (60) days from the date of issue of the Pending
Agreement Change Order, then the matter may be referred to the Adjudicator in accordance with the
provisions of Sub-~ Clause 6.1.

68 Changes Originating from Contractor

68.1 If the Contractor proposes a Change pursuant to Sub-Clause 66.3, the Contractor shall submit to the
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Engineer a written “Application for Change Proposal,” giving reasons for the proposed Change and
including the information specified in Sub-~Clause 67.1.

68.2 Upon receipt of the Application for Change Proposal, the parties shall follow the procedures outlined
in Sub- Clauses 67.6 and 67.7. However, should the Procuring Entity choose not to proceed, the
Contractor shall not be entitled to recover the costs of preparing the Application for Change Proposal.

69 Value Engineering

69.1 The Contractor may prepare, at its own cost, a value engineering proposal at any time during the
performance of the contract. The value engineering proposal shall, at a minimum, include the
following;

a The proposed change(s), and a description of the difference to the existing contract requirements;

b A full cost/benefit analysis of the proposed change(s) including a description and estimate of costs
(including life cycle costs) the Procuring Entity may incur in implementing the value engineering
proposal; and

¢ A description of any effect(s) of the change on performance/functionality.

69.2 The Procuring Entity may accept the value engineering proposal if the proposal demonstrates benefits
that:

a Accelerates the delivery period; or
b Reduces the Contract Price or the lifecycle costs to the Procuring Entity; or
¢ Improves the quality, efficiency, safety or sustainability of the Road; or

d Yields any other benefits to the Procuring Entity, without compromising the necessary functions
of the Road and Services.

69.3 If the value engineering proposal is approved by the Procuring Entity and results in:

a A reduction of the Contract Price; the amount to be paid to the Contractor shall be the percentage
specified in the PC of the reduction in the Contract Price; or

b An increase in the Contract Price; but results in a reduction in lifecycle costs due to any benefit
described in (a) to (d) above, the amount to be paid to the Contractor shall be the full increase in
the Contract Price.

70 Extension Time for Completion

70.1 The Time(s) for Completion specified in the PC shall be extended if the Contract or is delayed or
impeded in the performance of any of its obligations under the Contract by reason of any of the
following:

a) Any Change in the Works and Services as provided in Clause 67,

b)  Any occurrence of Force Majeure as provided in Clause 39 and unforeseen conditions as
provided in Clause 37,

¢) Any suspension order given by the Procuring Entity under Clause 59,
d)  Any changes in laws and regulations as provided in Clause 38, or

e) Any default or breach of the Contract by the Procuring Entity, or any activity, act or omission of
any other contractors employed by the Procuring Entity, or

f)  Any other matter specifically mentioned in the Contract by such period as shall be fair and
reasonable in all the circumstances and as shall fairly reflect the delay or impediment sustained
by the Contractor.

70.2 Except where otherwise specifically provided in the Contract, the Contractor shall submit to the
Engineer a notice of a claim for an extension of the Time for Completion, together with particulars of
the event or circumstance justifying such extension as soon as reasonably practicable after the
commencement of such event or circumstance. As soon as reasonably practicable after receipt of such
notice and supporting particulars of the claim, the Procuring Entity and the Contractor shall agree
upon the period of such extension. In the event that the Contractor does not accept the Procuring
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Entity's estimate of a fair and reasonable time extension, the Contractor shall be entitled to refer the
matter to an Adjudicator, pursuant to Sub-Clause 6.1.

70.3 The Contractor shall at all times use its reasonable efforts to minimize any delay in the performance of
its obligations under the Contract.

72 Release from Performance

72.1 If the Contract is frustrated by the outbreak of war or by any other event entirely outside the control of
either the Procuring Entity or the Contractor, the Engineer shall certify that the Contract has been
frustrated. The Contractor shall make the Site safe and stop work as quickly as possible after receiving
this certificate and shall be paid for all work carried out before receiving it and for any work carried
out afterward to which a commitment was made.

73 Fraud and Corruption

73.1 The Procuring Entity requires compliance with the national Anti-Corruption Laws and Regulations and
its prevailing sanctions policies and procedures.

73.2  The Procuring Entity requires the Contract or to disclose any commissions or fees that may have been
paid or are to be paid to agents or any other party with respect to the Tendering process or execution
of the Contract. The information disclosed must include at least the name and address of the agent or
other party, the amount and currency, and the purpose of the commission, gratuity or fee.
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SECTION VII ~ SPECIAL CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT

The following Special Conditions shall supplement the GC. They are to be completed by the Procuring Entity

and presented as part of the tendering document. Whenever there is a conflict, the provisions herein shall
prevail over those in the GC.

Reference to GC clauses

Number | Amendments of, and Supplements to, Clauses in the General Conditions of Contract
of GC
Clause

1. The site is the area OF THE ROAD RESERVES OF ALL THE ROADS AS STATED IN ITT 1.1

The name of the Engineer is DIRECTOR, ROAD ASSETS AND CORRIDOR MANAGEMENT.

In the definition of Certificate of Completion after the words “or part thereof” add the
words “and performance maintenance services”

In the definition of Defect add at the end “and/or with deformation detected”.

In the definition of drawings delete the word “include” and replace with “the drawings of
the works including”

In the definition of Rehabilitation works, inserf the words “perform in..” immediately after
the words “the contractor is required to”

Amend the definition of Intended Completion Date to read;

The Intended Completion Date is the date on which it is intended that the Contractor shall
complete the Works and Services, as is the day after the lapse of the contract period stated
in the contract (or as may be extended by the Procuring Entity) computed from the date of
commencement.

In the definition of Services imserf the words “less applicable payment reductions as
certified by the Engineer” after the words “full payment of monthly fee”

In the definition of Start Date delete the words “ It does not necessarily coincide with any
of the Site Possession Dates and Insert;

“It shall be calculated based on the date of the order to commence, commencement period
and commencement conditions as prescribed in the contract”.

Public Procurement Regulatory Authority is a Statutory Government Agency responsible for
oversight of public procurement.

3.1 Amend the documents for the contract by inserting “Special Specifications as item No. 6”
thus amending the order of priority as follows: -
1. Agreement,
Form of Acceptance,
Contractor's Tender
Special Conditions of Contract (SCC),
General Conditions of Contract (GCC),
Special Specifications
Specifications,
Drawings,
. Bill of Quantities, and
10. Any other document listed in the PC as forming part of the

XN S A RN

Contract.
5. The address of the Procurement Entity is: KENYA URBAN ROADS AUTHORITY.
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Number
of GC
Clause

Amendments of, and Supplements to, Clauses in the General Conditions of Contract

Street Address: MAZAO ROAD, JKIA.

Floor/Room number: BARABARA PLAZA, BLOCK D, GROUND FLOOR, EAST WING.
City: NAIROBI.

Postal Address/Code : 41727 - 00100, NAIROBI

Country: KENYA.

Telephone: +254-020-8013844

Electronic Mail Address: info@kura.go.ke

The address of the Contractor is:

Floor/Room NUMDET: .. .uuneeeeeeeeee e
City:

Postal Code :

Country:

Telephone:

Electronic mail address:
http://www .kura.go.ke/
[insert exact street address, including telephone, and E-Mail address]

6.2.4

Delete the words “approved by the Contractor” and replace with “agreed to by the
Contractor”

6.4.1.

Delete Sub-Clause 6.4.1 and replace with;

Notwithstanding anything stated herein the following matters may be referred to
arbitration before the practical completion of the Works or abandonment of the Works or
termination of the Contract by either party if not mutually agreed upon:
a Whether or not a certificate has been improperly withheld or is not in accordance
with these Conditions.
b Engineer’s determination, including certification not agreeable to the Contractor
or Procuring Entity
¢ Any dispute arising in respect of war risks or war damage.

d All other matters shall only be referred to arbitration after the completion or
alleged completion of the Works or termination or alleged termination of the
Contract, unless the Procuring Entity and the Contractor agree otherwise in
writing.

6.5.6

Insert the words “or arguments previously put before other fora to obtain decisions on the
matter in dispute” immediately after the word “evidence”
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Number | Amendments of, and Supplements to, Clauses in the General Conditions of Contract
of GC
Clause
6.5.11 Delete the word “have” and replace with “be”
8.3 Insert in line 3 the words “if so adopted by the Government of Kenya” immediately after
the words “Tender Submission
8.4.1 The Contractor is obliged to prepare and to furnish to the Engineer for Approval any
works on the road that would relate to Rehabilitation, Improvement or Emergency works.
8.4.5 Add paragraph 2 the statement;
Provided such additional costs and extension of time are awarded by the Arbitrators or
determined by the Engineer in Consultation with the Procuring Entity, based on verifiable
facts supported by records provided by the Contractor.
10.1.1 The Start Date shall be not later than Z8 days after the issuance of the order to commence
by the Procuring Entity.
10.1.2 The Time Schedule for the achievement of specific Service Levels is:
Contract Road Usability Road User Comfort Road Durability
Month Compliance required on % | Compliance required Compliance required on
of contract road on % of contract road of contract road
1 50 50 50
2 100 75 75
3 100 100 100
Until end of | 100 100 100
Contract
11.4 Insert the words “The Contractor Shall provide and ensure that” at the beginning of the Sub-
Clause
11.7 Add the following sub-clauses
The Contractor Shall be responsible for the adequacy, stability and safety of all site
operations and of all methods of construction and whenever required by the Engineer,
shall submit details of the arrangements and methods contractor proposes to adopt for
execution of works. No significant alterations shall be made without prior notification to
the Engineer.
12.1 The Contractor is specifically not allowed to sub-contact the any of the activities.
12.2 The Contractor Shall not subcontract under his own responsibility and without prior
approval of the Procurement Entity any Works and Services.
14.2 The Procuring Entity shall give full possession of and access to the Site to the Contractor
Not later than Fourfeen (14) days after issuance of Order fo Commence
15.1 Add the following words at the end of the 15t sentence
“except for the purposes of verification of such information from relevant sources or
confirmation contractual performance”
16.2 Key Personnel
Key Personnel are defined as the Contractor’s personnel named in the Special Conditions
of Contract.
ROAD MANAGER: ..ottt
SENIOR FOREMANE: |...oiiiitiiitiaiteeteeeiteeteeeiteesteeeeeessneeesneeseneeeas
16.2.4 Amend the sub-clause numbering to read 16.2.5 and Add the statement in the statement
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Number | Amendments of, and Supplements to, Clauses in the General Conditions of Contract

of GC

Clause
in the immediate sub-clause 16.2.5 as a paragraph, as follows;
“Any act or exercise by any person of powers, functions and authorities so delegated to
him or her in accordance with this Sub-~Clause 16.2.5 shall be deemed to be an act or
exercise by the Road Manager.”

16.2.6 Insert at the end of the sub-clause the words “with the Engineer’s consent”

16.2.8 Add a paragraph as follows;
If any representative or person employed by the Contractor is removed in accordance
with Sub-Clause 16.2.7, the Contractor shall, where required, promptly appoint a
replacement

16.2.9 Delete the sub-clause

19.1 Add at the end of paragraph 2 the words;
“unless otherwise such qualifications are proven to be not available in the Country and
consented to by the Procuring Entity”

19.2.1 Insertin the first sentence the words “or applicable minimum labor wage as published in
the Kenya Gazette from time to time” immediately after the word “carried out”

19.2.2 Inserf the words “and remittance” immediately after the word “deductions”

19.74 The provisions concerning HIV-~AIDS prevention shall apply.

19.9.1 Add a paragraph after sub-clause 19.9.1 (d) as follows;
“Which requirement the Contractor shall comply with without delay and shall then
appoint (or cause to be appointed) a suitable replacement”

19.9.2 Delete this sub-clause

20.3 Insert the words “not less than 48 hours” immediately after “advance notice”

20.4 In sub-clause 20.4;
Delete the words “and may” and replace with “but shall”
Delete the words “a signed” and replace with “duly certified”

20.9 Insert the word “not less than 48 hours” immediately after the words “a reasonable
notice”

20.10 Insert at the end of sub-clause 20.10
The cost of such uncovering, reinstatement and making good shall be borne by the
Contractor.

20.11 Delete this sub-clause

21. The Contractor shall carry out the Rehabilitation Works, which are detailed in the TDS,
Specifications and Bill of Quantities.

22. There shall be Improvement works in this contract.

23 Delete the last sentence and replace with;
These Services shall be remunerated on monthly payment computed by the length of the
roads maintained to the required performance standards at the tender unit rates less the
applicable non-compliance payment reduction during the entire maintenance service
contract period.

25.2 The Contractor shall establish a Self-Control Unit.
[Note: The Self-control Unit should always be required, except for very small confracts.]

27 In clause 27, Whenever the word “Engineer” appear, add immediately after, the words
“or Engineer’s representative”

28.2 In Sub-Clause 28.2 (c) Delete the word “Contractor” which appears first and replace
with “Contract”

29.2 In the first line of sub-clause 29.2 insert “that” immediately after the word “damages”

29.4 Add “or deducted from the amounts due or may fall due to the contractor” immediately
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Number
of GC
Clause

Amendments of, and Supplements to, Clauses in the General Conditions of Contract

after the words “shall be paid by the contractor to the Procuring Entity”

31.2

Replace the word “by passes” with “deviations”
p yp

33.1 and
34.1

Further to Clause 32.1 and 33.1, schedule of allocated risks are as follows;

Rehabilitation
Contracts

Public Contract
Sector or

PBC Contracts
Risk Item

Public
Sector

Contractor

Design Risk y

Construction Risk v

Technical & Management Risk

2| 2| 2| 2

Performance Risk

Traffic & Volume Risk

2_

Political Risk

2| 2| 2| 2| <2
2

Social & Environmental Risk

35.1

The Contractor shall take out and maintain in effect the following insurance in the sums
and deductibles shown below in the name of both the contractor and the employer:

(@) Loss of or damage fo the Plant and Materials — xxxxxxxxx (INDICATE THE AMOUNT
IN KSHS.)
Covering loss or damage occurring prior to Completion.

(b) Third Party Liability Insurance 1% of Contract Sum.
Covering bodily injury or death suffered by third parties (including the Procurement

Entity’s personnel) and loss of or damage to property occurring in connection with Works
and Services.

(¢) Automobile Liability Insurance ~ xxxxxxxxx (INDICATE THE AMOUNT IN KSHS.)
Covering use of all vehicles used by the Contractor or its Subcontractors (whether or not
owned by them) in connection with the execution of the Contract.

(d) Workers’ Compensation xxxxxxxxx (INDICATE THE AMOUNT IN KSHS.)
In accordance with the statutory requirements applicable in any country where the
Contract or any part thereof is executed.

(e) Procurement Entity’s Liability~ xxxxxxxxx (INDICATE THE AMOUNT IN KSHS.)

In accordance with the statutory requirements applicable in any country where the
Contract or any part thereof is executed.

(f) Other Insurances- xxxxxxxxx (INDICATE THE AMOUNT IN KSHS.)

Such other insurances as may be specifically agreed upon by the parties.

36.1

In line 3 of Sub-Clause 37.1 delete “by an experienced contract” and substitute “by an
experienced contractor”

36.2

Insert “shall” before “decide”
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Number | Amendments of, and Supplements to, Clauses in the General Conditions of Contract

of GC

Clause

39.1 The Time for Completion are the following:

1. The Time for Completion of Rehabilitation/ Improvement /Instructed Works shall be
Two (2) Months.
2 The Time for Completion of PBC Works shall be (Four (4) Months.

39.3 For Rehabilitation/ Improvement Works, the liquidated damages are 0.05% per calendar
day of delay, of the payment normally due for the specific Works for which completion is
delayed. The limit of liquidated damages under this is 5% of the
Rehabilitation/Improvement Works Contract sum.

41.2 The Defect Liability Period for Rehabilitation/ Improvement (Instructed) Works shall (2)
MONTH.

The Defect Liability Period for PBC works shall be ZERO (0) Months (Lapses after the last
formal inspection).

41.8 Delete the word “law” and replace with “fault”

42.1b The aggregate liability of the Contractor to the Procuring Entity, excluding payment
reductions defined in GC 47.1, shall not exceed the amount of 715% of confract amount.

44.1 The payment of the Contract Price will be made in KENYA SHILLINGS ONLY (100%).

45.1 No Advance payment Shall be made.

45.3 No Advance payment Shall be made.

46.2 Delete the word “fixed” before the word “monthly” and
Insert “calculated on the basis of fixed tendered monthly rate and the road length
maintained less the applicable payment reduction” immediately after “contract period”

46.4 Delete the paragraph and substitute
Improvement Works shall be remunerated upon certification by the Engineer and shall be
paid according to the product of measured works quantities and unit price included in
the Bill of Quantities.

46.5 Delete “Procuring Entity” at the end of the paragraph and substitute “the Engineer”

47.2 Rehabilitation/Improvement Works will be measured on the basis of the unit rates
provided in the Bill of Quantities.

Nofte: Rehabilitation Works should normally be measured on the basis of work outpufts.

47.3 Improvement Works will be measured on the following basis unit rates provided in the
BOQ or rates as fixed by the Engineer.

Note: Depending on their nature, Improvement Works may be measured on the basis of
work outputs or work inputs.

48 Price adjustment does not apply.

50.1 Insert “of such certification by the Engineer” immediately after “of the date”

Insert “or as may be specified in the contract” immediately after “borrowing”

50.2 Insert “twenty-eight (28) days of” immediately after “calculated from”

51.1 The procurement Entity shall retain the amount 5% Of the Contract sum as retention fees
due to the Contractor and shall be refunded to the contractor on completion of the
contract.

51.2 Delete “twelve (12) months have passed” and substitute “Defects Notification Period has
lapsed”

51.4 In the last line, Delete “quality” and substitute “service”
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Number | Amendments of, and Supplements to, Clauses in the General Conditions of Contract

of GC

Clause

53.1 No Advance payment Shall be made.

54.2 The Performance Security shall be in the Form of Unconditional demand Bank guarantee
and Amount of 1% of the contract sum.

54.3 Delete “twelve (12) months after” and substitute “twenty-eight (28) days after expiry of
defects notification period following”

Insert at the end the paragraph immediately after “expiration” the words “or within
fourteen (14) days after issuance defects liability certificate whichever comes earlier”

55 Delete “deciding that the work is completed” and substitute “certifying that the works are
completed in accordance with the contract”

57.1 The Contractor shall provide as-built drawings and/or Manuals to the Procurement
Entity within fourteen (14) days on written request by the Employer.

57.2 Failure by the Contractor to submit the required drawings and/or Manuals will result in
the Procurement Entity Withholding 50% of the monthly payment due to the Contractor.
The withheld funds shall be pegged to 10% of the contract limit.

60.2 Termination of Contract: The condition of persistent failure to execute the contract is
given if and when the total amount of payment reductions and liquidated damages
applied under the contract reaches 15% of the total contract amount.

[Depending on the type of roads and the structure of the conftract, the recommended
number could be in the order of 10 — 15 percent of the fotal contract amount.]

65.1 The Procuring Entity has the right to propose a change in the contract

69.1 Value Engineering: NOT APPLICABLE

69.2 Value Engineering: NOT APPLICABLE
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SUMMARY OF SPECIAL CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT

CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT CLAUSE | AMOUNT
Execution of works under site instructions
. : o from Resident Engineer to commence
Instructions in Writing 5.1 within three (3) days
5 .
Amount of Performance Security 54.1 1% (per ce ?‘t) of Tender Sum in the form
o of Unconditional Bank Guarantee
(Unconditional Bank Guarantee)
Not later than Fourteen (14) days after
issuance of Order to Commence in the
Program to be submitted 17.2 format Prescribed in the Tender
Document
Not later than Fourteen (14) days after
Cash flow estimate to be submitted 17.2 issuance of Order to Commence
5% of the Contract Sum Not later than
Minimum amount of Third-Party Insurance 35 Fourteen (14) days after issuance of Order
to Commence
. : ?
Period for commencement, from Engineer’s 10.1.1 14 days
order to commence
Time for completion —Contract Period 10.1.2 Four (4) months
Time for completion for instructed Works 10.1.2 Two (2) months
0,
Number of liquidated damages 39.3 0.05% of Contract Sum per day
Limit of liquidated damages 39.3 5% of Contract Sum
Defects Liability period — Instructed works 41.2 2 months
5 - —
Percentage of Retention 511 5% of Interim Payment Certificate
0,
Limit of Retention Money 51.1 5% of Contract Sum
Time within which payment to be made after
Interim Payment Certificate signed by Engineer 50.1 28 days
Time within which payment to be made after
Final Payment Certificate signed by Engineer 50.1 28 days
Appointer of Adjudicator 6512 Institution of Engineers of Kenya (IEK)
The Employer’s address is:
The Director General,
Kenya Urban Roads Authority (KURA),
P.O.Box 41727 - 00100
NAIROBI
The Engineer’s address is:
Notice to Employer and Engineer 5 Director (RA & CM),

Kenya Urban Roads Authority (KURA),
P.O.Box 41727 - 00100
NAIROBI
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The Contractor address is:

Signature Of TeNdErer..........oovvvieiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieaiiaiaana, Date.......ccooooovviiiiiiiii...
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SECTION VIII ~- CONTRACT FORMS

Form 1:Notification of Intention to Award
[This Notification of Intention to Award shall be sent to each Tenderer that submitted a Tender.]
[Send this Notification fo the Tenderer's Authorized Representative named in the Tenderer

Information Form] For the attention of Tenderer's Authorized Representative Name:

......................................... [insert Authorized Representative's name]

AdAress: ....oovevueveeeiieieeeeeeeeeeene [insert Authorized Representative's Address/
Telephone NUMDETS: .....c.coevveveerereereniennene [insert Authorized Representative's telephone/fax numbers|
Email Address: ......oceveveveneneeneeneneenne. [insert Authorized Representative's email address/

[IMPORTANT: insert the date that this Notification is transmitted to Tenderers. The Notification must be sent
to all Tenderers simultaneously. This means on the same date and as close to the same time as possible.]

DATE OF TRANSMISSION: This Notification is sent by: ................... [email/fax] on [date] (local
time) Notification of Intention to Award

Procuring Entity: .......... [insert the name of the Procuring Entity/ Project:

......................... [insert name of project]

Contract title: ....ccceeveeveeeeeeieenennee. [insert the name of the confract]

ITT NO: oo [insert ITT reference number from Procurement Plan]

This Notification of Intention to Award (Notification) notifies you of our decision to award the above contract.
The transmission of this Notification begins the Standstill Period. During the Standstill Period you may:
a)  Request a debriefing in relation to the evaluation of your Tender, and/or

b)  Submit a Procurement-related Complaint in relation to the decision to award the contract.

1. The successful Tenderer

Name: [insert name of successtul Tenderer]
Address: [insert address of the successful Tenderer|
Contract price: [insert contract price of the successtul Tender]

2. Other Tenderers
[INSTRUCTIONS: insert names of all Tenderers that submitted a Tender. If the Tender's price was
evaluated include the evaluated price as well as the Tender price as read out.]

Name of Tenderer Tender price Eyaluat;d Tender price
(if applicable)

[insert namel linsert Tender pricel [insert evaluated pricel

[insert namel linsert Tender pricel [insert evaluated price]

[insert namel linsert Tender price] [insert evaluated price]

[insert namel linsert Tender pricel [insert evaluated price]

[insert namel linsert Tender price] [insert evaluated price]
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3. Reason/s why your Tender was unsuccessful

[INSTRUCTIONS: State the reason/s why this Tenderer's Tender was unsuccessful. Do NOT include: (a) appoint
by point comparison with another Tenderer's Tender or (b) information that is marked confidential by the Tenderer
in its Tender.]

4. How to request a debriefing
DEADLINE: The deadline to request a debriefing expires at midnight on [insert date] (local time).

You may request a debriefing in relation to the results of the evaluation of your Tender. If you decide to
request a debriefing your written request must be made within three (3) Business Days of receipt of this
Notification of Intention to Award.

Provide the contract name, reference number, name of the Tenderer, contact details; and address the
request for debriefing as follows:

Attention: .....oceceeveevenenicnienieeenen. [insert full name of person, if applicable]
Title/position: ......ccceeeeveeeeeennnnes [insert title/position]

AZENCY: oo [insert name of Procuring Fnfity/

Email address: .......coceveeevueneennene [insert email address/

If your request for a debriefing is received within the 3 Business Days deadline, we will provide the
debriefing within five (5) Business Days of receipt of your request. If we are unable to provide the
debriefing within this period, the Standstill Period shall be extended by five (5) Business Days after the
date that the debriefing is provided. If this happens, we will notify you and confirm the date that the
extended Standstill Period will end.

The debriefing may be in writing, by phone, video conference call or in person. We shall promptly
advise you in writing how the debriefing will take place and confirm the date and time.

If the deadline to request a debriefing has expired, you may still request a debriefing. In this case, we will

provide the debriefing as soon as practicable, and normally no later than fifteen (15) Business Days from
the date of publication of the Contract Award Notice.

5. How to make a complaint
Period: Procurement-related Complaint challenging the decision to award shall be submitted by
midnight,

[insert date] (local time).

Provide the contract name, reference number, name of the Tenderer, contact details; and address the
Procurement-related Complaint as follows:

Attention: ......coceveeveniniennienieeene [insert full name of person, if applicable]
Title/position: .......cceeveeeverervennen. [insert title/position]

AZENCY: ..ot [insert name of Procuring Entity/

Email address: ......ccoeeveverennencne [insert email address]

At this point in the procurement process, you may submit a Procurement-related Complaint challenging
the decision to award the contract. You do not need to have requested, or received, a debriefing before
making this complaint. Your complaint must be submitted within the Standstill Period and received by
us before the Standstill Period ends.

Further information:
For more information refer to the PPRA's Website www.ppra.go.ke or email complaints@ppra.go.ke.

You should read these provisions before preparing and submitting your complaint. In summary, there
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are four essential requirements:

l.  Youmust be an 'interested party'. In this case, that means a Tenderer who submitted a Tender in
this tendering process, and is the recipient of a Notification of Intention to Award.

2 The complaint can only challenge the decision to award the contract.
You must submit the complaint within the period stated above.

4 Youmust include, in your complaint, all of the information required by the Procurement
Regulations (as described in Annex III).

6.  Standstill Period
DEADLINE: The Standstill Period is due to end at midnight on [insert date] (Iocal time).

The Standstill Period lasts ten (10) Business Days after the date of transmission of this Notification of
Intention to Award.

The Standstill Period may be extended as stated in Section 4 above.
If you have any questions regarding this Notification please do not hesitate to

contact us. On behalf of the Procuring Entity:

Signature:

Name:

Title/ position:

Telephone:

Email:
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Form 2: REQUEST FOR REVIEW

FORM FOR REVIEW (r.203 (1))

PUBLIC PROCUREMENT ADMINISTRATIVE REVIEW BOARD

APPLICATION NO.......coueuunue [©) S 20.c.iuee
BETWEEN
...................................................................... APPLICANT
AND
....................................... RESPONDENT (Procuring Entity)
Request for review of the decision of the............... (Name of the Procuring Entity of ............... dated the...day of
............. 20..........in the matter of Tender No..............of ..............20..... for ......... (Tender description).
REQUEST FOR REVIEW
I/We i, ,the above named Applicant(s), of address: Physical address................ P. O. Box
NO..ovvvinnns Tel. No.......Email ............... , hereby request the Public Procurement Administrative Review Board to
review the whole/part of the above mentioned decision on the following grounds , namely:
1.
2.
By this memorandum, the Applicant requests the Board for an order/orders that:
1.
2.
SIGNED .......ccevvnnenn. (Applicant) Dated on................ dayof ............... /...20......
FOR OFFICIAL USE ONLY Lodged with the Secretary Public Procurement Administrative Review Board on............ day of
w20. i
SIGNED
Board Secretary
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Form 3: NOTIFICATION OF AWARD -~ FORM OF ACCEPTANCE

[Form head paper of the Procuring Entity/

................... [date]
TO! e [name and address of the Contractor/
This is to notify you that your Tender dated................... [date] for execution of the [name of the Contract and

identification number, as given in the Contract Data] for the Accepted Contract Amount of the equivalent
of....... [amount in numbers and words/ [name of currencyl, as corrected and modified in accordance with the
Instructions to Tenderers, is hereby accepted by our Agency.

You are requested to furnish the Performance Security within 28 days in accordance with the Conditions of
Contract, using for that purpose one of the Performance Security included in Section VIII, Annex to the Special
Conditions of Contract-Contract Forms, of the tendering document.

AUthorized SIZNAtUTE: ....cc.ccivuiviiirieiieieireteeeteteee ettt

Name and Title Of SIZNALOTY: ..cccvevuiviieriiierieieeteerere et

INAME Of AZEIICY: ..eeevieiieeieeieeteete ettt ettt et st s e sae e st e s seesae e st esseennas

Aftachment: Confract Agreement
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Form 4: CONTRACT AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT made the day of , , between

of (herein after “the Procuring
Entity”), of the one part, and of (herein after “the Contractor”),
of the other part:

WHEREAS  the  Procuring Entity desires that the Works and  Services known as

shou
1d be executed by the Contractor, and has accepted a Tender by the Contractor for the execution and completion
of these Works and the remedying of any defects therein,

The Procuring Entity and the Contractor agree as follows:

1. In this Agreement words and expressions shall have the same meanings as are respectively assigned to them
in the Contract documents referred to.

1. The following documents shall be deemed to form and be read and construed as part of this Agreement.
This Agreement shall prevail over all other Contract documents.
a)  The Form of Acceptance
b) The Form of Tender
¢) The addenda Nos__ (if any)
d) The Special Conditions of Contract
e) The General Conditions of Contract;
f)  The Specification
g) The Drawings;
h)  The completed Schedules, and
i)  Any other document listed in the SCC as forming part of the Contract;
3. In consideration of the payments to be made by the Procuring Entity to the Contractor as indicated in

this Agreement, the Contractor hereby covenants with the Procuring Entity to execute the Works and
Services, and to remedy defects therein in conformity in all respects with the provisions of the Contract.

4. The Procuring Entity hereby covenants to pay the Contractor inconsideration of the execution and
completion of the Works and Services, and the remedying of defects therein, the Contract Price or such
other sum as may become payable under the provisions of the Contract at the times and in the manner
prescribed by the Contract.

IN WITNESS where of the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed in accordance with

the laws of on the day, month and year indicated above.
Signed by (for the Procuring Fntity)
Signed by (tfor the Confractor)
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Form 5: PERFORMANCE SECURITY ~ OPTION 1: DEMAND GUARANTEE

[Guarantor Form head or SWIFT identifier code/

Beneficiary: [insert name and Address of Procuring Entity/

Date: [Insert date of issue]

PERFORMANCE GUARANTEE No.: [Insert guarantee reference number/

Guarantor: [Insert name and address of place of issue, unless indicated in the Form

head]

We have been informed that (hereinafter called "the Applicant") has entered into Contract No.
dated with the Beneficiary, for the execution of

(herein after called "the Contract").

Furthermore, we understand that, according to the conditions of the Contract, a performance guarantee is
required.

At the request of the Applicant, we as Guarantor, hereby irrevocably undertake to pay the Beneficiary any sum

or sums not exceeding in total an amount of (in words ),l such sum being
payable in the types and proportions of currencies in which the Contract Price is payable, upon receipt by us
of the Beneficiary's complying demand supported by the Beneficiary's statement, whether in the demand itself
or in a separate signed document accompanying or identifying the demand, stating that the Applicant is in
breach of its obligation(s) under the Contract,
withouttheBeneficiaryneedingtoproveortoshowgroundsforyourdemandorthesumspecifiedtherein.

This guarantee shall expire, no later than the .... Day of ...... , 2., 2, and any demand for payment under it
must be received by us at this office indicated above on or before that date.

[Signature(s)]

Note: All italicized text (including footnotes) is for use in preparing this form and shall be deleted from the
final product.
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1 The Guaranfor shall inserf an amount represen 1‘1'11?7 the percentage of the Accepted Contract Amount
specified in the Form of Acceptance, less provisional sums, if any, and denominated either in the
currency(cies) of the Contract or a freely convertible currency acceptable fo the Bencficiary.

ZInsert the date twenty-~eight days after the expected completion date. The Proc;m'nf Entity should note that in
the event of an extension of this date for com/olez‘zon of the Contract, the Procuring Entity would need fo
request an extension of this guarantee from the Guarantor. Such request must be in writing and must be made

prior fo the expiration date established in the guarantee. In preparing this guarantee, the rocurmg Entity
might consider adding the following text fo the form, at the end of the penultimate paragraph: “The
Guaranfor dfrees fo 4 one-~time extension of this guarantee for a period not fo exceed [six months/ [one year],
in response fo the Bendficiary's written request for such extension, such request fo be presented fo the

Guarantor before the eéxpiry of the guarantee.

By this Bond as Principal (herein after called “the
Contractor”) and / as Surety (hereinafter called “the
Surety”), are held and firmly bound unto / as Obligee (herein after called “the Procuring
Entity”) in the amount of [for the payment of which sum well and truly to be made in the

types and proportions of currencies in which the Contract Price is payable, the Contractor and the Surety bind
themselves, their heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns, jointly and severally, firmly by these
presents.

WHEREAS the Contractor has entered into a written Agreement with the Procuring Entity dated the day
of ,20 , for in accordance with the documents, plans,
specifications, and amendments there to, which to the extent here in provided for, are by reference made part
hereof and are hereinafter referred to as the Contract.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Condition of this Obligation is such that, if the Contractor shall promptly and faithfully
perform the said Contract (including any amendments thereto), then this obligation shall be null and void;
otherwise, it shall remain in full force and effect. Whenever the Contractor shall be, and declared by the
Procuring Entity to be, in default under the Contract, the Procuring Entity having performed the Procuring
Entity's obligations thereunder, the Surety may promptly remedy the default, or shall promptly:

1) Complete the Contract in accordance with its terms and conditions; or

2)  Obtain a Tender or Tenders from qualified Tenderers for submission to the Procuring Entity for
completing the Contract in accordance with its terms and conditions, and upon determination by the
Procuring Entity and the Surety of the lowest responsive Tenderer, arrange for a Contract between such
Tenderer and Procuring Entity and make available as work progresses (even though there should be a
default or a succession of defaults under the Contractor Contracts of completion arranged under this
paragraph) sufficient funds to pay the cost of completion less the Balance of the Contract Price; but not
exceeding, including other costs and damages for which the Surety may be liable hereunder, the amount
set forth in the first paragraph hereof.

The term “Balance of the Contract Price,” as used in this paragraph, shall mean the total amount payable by
Procuring Entity to Contractor under the Contract, less the amount properly paid by Procuring Entity to
Contractor; or pay the Procuring Entity the amount required by Procuring Entity to complete the Contract in
accordance with its terms and conditions up to a total not exceeding the amount of this Bond.

The Surety shall not be liable for a greater sum than the specified penalty of this Bond. Any suit under this
Bond must be instituted before the expiration of one year from the date of the issuing of the Taking-Over
Certificate.

No right of action shall accrue on this Bond to or for the use of any person or corporation other than the
Procuring Entity named herein or the heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and assigns of the Procuring
Entity.

In testimony whereof, the Contractor has hereunto set his hand and affixed his seal, and the Surety has caused
these presents to be sealed with his corporate seal duly attested by the signature of his legal representative, this
day of 20.

SIGNED ON on behalf of By

in the capacity of In
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the presence of

SIGNED ON on behalf of By

in the capacity of In

the presence of
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Form 6: ADVANCE PAYMENT SECURITY - DEMAND GUARANTEE

[Guarantor Form head or SWIFT identifier code/

Beneficiary: [Insert name and Address of Procuring Entity/

Date: [Insert date of issue/

ADVANCE PAYMENT GUARANTEE No.: [Insert guarantee reference number/

Guarantor: [Inserf name and address of place of issue, unless indicated in the Form

head]

We have been informed that (hereinafter called “the Applicant”) has entered into Contract No.
dated with the Beneficiary, for the execution of

(herein after called "the Contract").

Furthermore, we understand that, according to the conditions of the Contract, an advance payment in the sum
() is to be made against an advance payment guarantee.

At the request of the Applicant, we as Guarantor, here by irrevocably undertake to pay the Beneficiary any

sum or sums not exceeding in total an amount of ( )1 upon receipt by us of the Beneficiary's
complying demand supported by the Beneficiary's statement, whether in the demand itself or in a separate
signed document accompanying or identifying the demand, stating either that the Applicant:

(@) has used the advance payment for purposes other than the costs of mobilization in respect of the Works;
or

(@) has failed to repay the advance payment in accordance with the Contract conditions, specifying the
amount which the Applicant has failed to repay.

A demand under this guarantee may be presented as from the presentation to the Guarantor of a certificate
from the Beneficiary's bank stating that the advance payment referred to above has been credited to the
Applicant on its account number at__ .

The maximum amount of this guarantee shall be progressively reduced by the amount of the advance payment
repaid by the Applicant as specified in copies of interim statements or payment certificates which shall be
presented to us. This guarantee shall expire, at the latest, upon our receipt of a copy of the interim payment
certificate indicating that ninety (90) percent of the Accepted Contract Amount, less provisional sums, has

been certified for payment, or on the day of ,2 ,2 whichever is earlier. Consequently, any demand
for payment under this guarantee must be received by us at this office on or before that date.

[Signature(s)]

Nofte: All italicized text (including foof notes) is for use in preparing this form and shall be deleted from the final
product.

1 The Guaranfor shall insert an amount representing the amount of the advance payment and denominated
either in the currency (ies) of the advance payment as . .
specified in the Confract, or in a freely convertible currency acceptable fo the Procuring Entity.

ZInsert the expected expiration date of the Time for Completion. The Procuring Entity should note that in the
event of an extension of the time for completion of the Contract, the Procuring Fntify would need fo request
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an extension of this guarantee from the Guaranfor. Such request must be in writing and must be made prior
fo the expiration date established in the guarantee. In preparing this guarantee, the Procuring Entity might
consider adding the following fext fo the form, at the end of the penultimate paragraph: “The Guarantor agrees
fo a one-~time extension of this guarantee for a period not fo exceed [six months] [one year/, in response fo the
Beneficiary's written request for such extension, such request to be presented fo the Guarantor before the
expiry of the guarantee.”
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Form 7:RETENTION MONEY SECURITY - DEMAND GUARANTEE

[Guarantor Form head]

Beneficiary: [Insert name and Address of Procuring Entity/

Date: [Insert date of issue/

RETENTION MONEY GUARANTEE NO.: .ccooviieiienieeneen. [Insert guarantee reference

numper/ Guarantor: ................ [Insert name and address of place of issue, unless indicated in

the Form head]

We have been informed that [insert name of Conftractor, which in the case of a joint venture
shall

be the name of the joint venture/ (hereinafter called "the Applicant") has entered into Contract No.

[insert reference number of the contract/ dated with the Beneficiary, for the execution of

[insert name of contract and brief description of Works/ (herein after called "the

Contract").

Furthermore, we understand that, according to the conditions of the Contract, the Beneficiary retains moneys
up to the limit set forth in the Contract (“the Retention Money”), and that when the Taking-Over Certificate
has been issued under the Contract and the first half of the Retention Money has been certified for payment,
payment of [insert the second half of the Retention Money or if the amount guaranteed under the Performance
Guarantee when the Taking- Over Certificate is issued is less than half of the Retention Money, the difference
between half of the Retention Money and the amount guaranteed under the Performance Security and is to be
made against a Retention Money guarantee.

At the request of the Applicant, we, as Guarantor, hereby irrevocably undertake to pay the Beneficiary any
sum or sums not exceeding in total an amount of [insert amount in figures/ (

) [amount in Wom’S/1 upon receipt by us of the Beneficiary's
complying demand supported by the Beneficiary's statement, whether in the demand itself or in a separate
signed document accompanying or identifying the demand, stating that the Applicant is in breach of its
obligation(s) under the Contract, without your needing to prove or show grounds for your demand or the sum
specified therein.

A demand under this guarantee may be presented as from the presentation to the Guarantor of a certificate
from the Beneficiary's bank stating that the second half of the Retention Money as referred to above has been

credited to the Applicant on its account number at/insert name and address of Applicant’s
bank].
This guarantee shall expire no later than the.........ccccoceevvenennennenne. day of....cceceveennne s 2 2 ,and any demand

for payment under it must be received by us at the office indicated above on or before that date.

[Signature(s)]

Nofte: All italicized text (including foof notes) is for use in preparing this form and shall be deleted from the
final product.

IThe Guarantor shall insert an amount representing the amount of the second half of the Retention Money or
if the amount guaranteed under the Performance Guarantee when the Taking-Over Certifficate is issued is less
than half of the Retention Money, the difference befween half of the Retention Money and the amount
guaranteed under the Performance Security and denominated either in the currency(ies) of the second half of
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the Retention Money as specified in the Confract, or in a freely convertible currency acceptable fo the
Beneficiary.

ZInsert the same expiry date as set forth in the Performance Security, representing the date twenty-eight days
atter the completion date. The Procuring Entity should nofe that in the event of an extension of this date tor
completion of the Confract, the Procuring Entity would need fo request an extension of this guarantee from
the Guaranfor. Such request must be in writing and must be made prior fo the expiration date established in
the guarantee. In preparing this guarantee, the Procuring Entity might consider adding the following fext fo
the form, af the end of the penulfimate paragraph: “The Guaranfor agrees fo a one-fime extension of this
guarantee for a period not fo exceed [six months] [one year], in response fo the Beneficiary's written request
for such extension, such request fo be presented to the Guarantor before the expiry of the guarantee. ’thority
(PPRA)National Bank Building, 11th Floor,
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